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3 SUMMARY

In 2006 Alter Nrg Ltd. commissioned Norwest Corporation to prepare a Technical Report for its
coal holdings of the Fox Creek Coal Property located in central Alberta in accordance with the
National Instrument 43-101. The location of this area is shown on Figure 4-1. The confirmation
of documented geclogy and coal development and the verification of coal resources were
completed through data reviews, geclogic modeling, resource calculations, and & site visit. The
findings and conclusions are based on information developed by Norwest from data provided by
Alter Nrg Ltd.

The Fox Creek Coal Property, as illustrated in Figures 6-1, covers coal-bearing strata in the Plains
Region of central Alberta. The property is centred about 27 km northeast of the town of Fox
Creek, Alberta which is located on Highway 43, midway between Edmonton and Grande Prairie,
The Fox Creek Coal Project area is centered approximately on Township 65, Range 18 W5.

In the Fox Creek area the first modern coal exploration commenced in 1968 and 1969 and was
conducted by the Research Council of Alberta. The objective of this work was to identify
potential areas for surface mining such that the power generation needs of the province could be
addressed. This program by the Provincial Government was province wide, but at Fox Creek the
Research Council drilled over 60 rotary drill holes and produced reports of this exploration. This
initiative led to the acquisition of leases in the area by Shell Canada Limited and Esso Resources
Canada Limited.

The Fox Creek Coal Property is located in the central plains region of Alberta. Regionally, the
strata in ihis area lie on the eastern limb of the Alberta Syncline. The coal seams are contained in
the Lower and Upper Ardley coal zones. These coal zones are Tertiary in age and lie in the
Scollard Formation near the base of the Paskapoo Formation. The coal seams are consistent in
nature but thickness variations from place to place do occur. There are eleven seams.named 1, 2
Upper, 2 Lower, and 3 to 11, respectively. The aggregate thickness of a typical section is 9.26 m
in the Fox Creek area.

Previous drilling carried out between 1967 and the present has resulted in over 400 coal
exploration drill holes being drilled throughout the entire Fox Creek area. In this study a
selection of these holes has been used. The geological model that has been prepared for this
evaluation includes a total of 201 holes,

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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Norwest used MineSight® software to construct a gridded seam model of the Fox Creek Coal
Property area in order to estimate volumes for in-place coal resources. Key horizons or
“surfaces™ were modeled to provide the required inputs for volume estimation. Volumes were
converted to tonnage by the application of density values representative of the coal seams
modeled.

Resources are classified as to the assurance of their existence into one of three categories,
Measured, Indicated or Inferred. The category to which a resource is assigned depends on the
level of confidence in the geological information available (CIM Definition Standards). GSC
Paper 88-21 provides guidance for categorizing various types of coal deposits by levels of
assurance. These were considered by the Qualified Person during the classification of the
resources. The in-place resource on the Fox Creck lands is summarized in Table 3.1 and covers
an area of approximately 15,400 ha.

TABLE 3.1
Fox CREeK COAL PROJECT
COAL RESOURCE SUMMARY
AS AT FEBRUARY 20, 2007
In-Place Surface Mineable Coal Resources

ASTM Group down to 13:1 strip ratio (tonnes)
Measured Indicated Inferred
Subbituminous C 400,042,000 370,256,000 111,768,000
Total 770,298,000 111,768,000

In-Place Surface Mineable Coal Resources
13:1 down to 20:1 strip ratio (tonnes)

Measured Indicated Inferred
Subbituminous C 11,047,000 25,048,000 17,820,000
Total 36,095,000 17,820,000

It is recommended that Alter Nrg continue to review coal seam data and update the geclogical
database and model to reflect all available data.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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4

INTRODUCTION

In 2006 Alter Nrg Ltd. commissioned Norwest Corporation to prepare a Technical Report for its
coal holdings of the Fox Creek coal project Jocated in central Alberta in accordance with the
National Instrument 43-101. The location of this arca is shown on Figure 4-1. The confirmation
of documented geology and coal development and the verification of coal resources were
completed through data reviews, geologic modeling, resource calculations, and a site visit. More
specifically, the tasks undertaken to complete the review were as follows:

1.

Estimation of the coal resource for the Alter Nrg land area at Fox Creck. The boundarics
of the area being assessed were checked using descriptions and maps provided by Alter
Nrg and by reference to on-line government records.

Review of existing compiled quality and coal survey dala.

Confirmation of the geological interpretations and their relaticnship to the raw data was
accomplished through the inspection of geological maps and cross-sections and a site
visit.

Confirmation of applied geological complexity in terms of resource reporting
classification was accomplished during the review of the geological maps and sections
and the generation of a new geological model.

Review of the drill hole spacing to confirm adequacy for reported resource classes was
accomplished throngh the inspection of drill hole location maps;

The present report is accordingly designed to comply with the requirements of National
Instrument 43-101 for Technical Reports for reporting of Coal Resources and Reserves. Norwest
personnel, who have extensive and varied experience with the coal deposits of western Canada,
prepared this report.

ALTER NRG L.1D. 06-2970
TECHNICAL REPORT FOX CREEK COAL PROPERTY
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5 RELIANCE ON OTHER EXPERTS

This report has been prepared for Alter Nrg Ltd. by Norwest Corporation. The findings and
conclusions are based on information developed by Norwest from data provided by Alter Nrg.

Norwest has relied wholly on information and data provided by Alter Nrg or its consultants as the
basis for classification and reporting of coal resources in the area. Norwest did not conduct field
work, other than a site visit, and did not independently drill or complete geophysical logs on drill
holes, take samples or subject any coal samples to analysis specific to the preparation of this
report. However, members of Norwest staff have participated on some of the past exploration
programs in the field in this area, conducting logging and sampling activities.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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6 PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION

The Fox Creek Coal Property, as illustrated in Figures 6-1, covers coal-bearing strata in the Plaing
Region of central Alberta. The property is centred about 27 km northeast of the town of Fox
Creeck, Alberta which is located on Highway 43, midway between Edmonton and Grande Prairie.
The property may be accessed by various oil field service roads. The Fox Creek Coal Project
area is centered approximately on Township 65, Range 18 W5,

Coal tenure is held by Alter Nrg Ltd., under six Alberta Government Mineral Agreements as
shown on Table 6.1. This information has been derived from the current government tenure
records. Boundaries are located by sections and legal sub-divisions on-line throngh the coal maps
of the Department of Energy of the Alberta Provincial Government. The property information is
current as of January 2, 2007, as indicated by Alberta Government Mineral Agreement detail
records. The Fox Creek Coal Project covers an area under tenure of 21,760 ha. This area
consists of four separate contiguous blocks of leases as'shown on Figure 6.1. The resource area is
situated over approximately 15,000 ha within the coal tenures.

There are no areas of previous underground or surface mining within the Fox Creek Coal Project
area. There are no known hazards or environmental liabilities related to abandoned open pit areas
or mined out underground areas. The author is not aware of the swrvey status of the property
other than the locations shown on standard government issued maps. These have been checked to
confirm that the licenses and the application are properly located according to the NTS legal
descriptions. The project is encumbered by Crown Coal Royalties that are payable on coal

production.
TABLE 6.1
CoAL LICENSE TENURES AND APPLICATIONS
Meridian/
Agrl,:a:l?:: t B‘:‘;’;‘ ?I::;. Rangef Sections
Township

013 1306080743 | 2006-08-04 5,888 5-17-064 22,23,24W,25-28,31-36

5-17-065 1-6,8S,9-12

013 1306080744 | 2006-08-04 3,328 5-18-064 4-6,8-10,15-18,20,215,228

5-19-064 1

013 1306080745 | 2006-08-04 3,584 5-17-085 19-23,27-33

5-18-085 25,36

013 1306080746 | 2006-08-04 4,096 5-18-065 9-11,14-16,19-22,28-33

013 1306080747 | 2006-08-04 2,816 5-18-066 5,6

5-19-065 23-26,36

5-18-066 1,2,11,12

013 1306080748 | 2006-08-04 2,048 5-17-066 3-7

5-18-086 12,12

ALTER NRG LTD. 058-2970
TECHNICAL REPORT FOX CREEK COAL PROPERTY
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7 ACCESSIBILITY, CLIMATE, LOCAL RESOURCES,
INFRASTRUCTURE AND PHYSIOGRAPHY

The Fox Creek Coal Property is owned and operated by Alter Nrg and is accessible via
Highway 43. The average annual daily temperature of the area is 3.4°C with an average
summer maxima of 21.8°C and a winter minima of -15.9°C. Winds from the west and
northwest predominate with average speeds of 9.3 to 11.9 km/hr. The average annual
precipitation is 536 mm of which 410 mm is recorded as direct rainfall. The average annual
snowfall is 133.9 em. The area has a continental climate with c¢old, dry winters and warm
summers. Annual weather averages are:

¢  Temperature: 1°C

¢ High temperature: 7°C
e Low lemperature; -4°C
¢ Precipitation: 40.8 cm.

The Fox Creek Coal Property is located in central Alberta approximately 215 km northwest
of Edmonton, and is readily accessible by a network of secondary oii and gas roads that
extend from Highway 43. The closest major centre is the town of Fox Creek, located
approximately 13 km to the south-west. The closest settlements are:

¢ Two Creeks — located 28.5 km to the south;
¢ Goose Mountain Provineial Park — located 33 ki to the northeast; and
¢ Meekwap Lake — located in the centre of the area.

The Fox Creek area is bounded on the east by Swan Hills and on the southwest by outliers of
the Rocky Mountain Foothills. Two main rivers, the Simonette and Little Smoky, establish
the principal northward drainage pattern in the area. Topography is typified by flat to gently
rolling terrain, generally from 670 m to 730 m above sea level, underlain by bedrock with
thin till cover or by extensive postglacial lacustrine sediments. This low plain is disrupted by
irregular sub-parallel distinctive sandstone ridges, particularly to the northwest. Extensive
areas of interrupted drainage are typified by black spruce bogs and muskeg. To a certain
extent, the physiography is a reflection of underlying bedrock geology with higher ridges
characteristic of hard siltstones and sandstones while lower areas are underlain by sofier
lithologies including coal.

ALTER NRG L70. 06-2970
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8 HISTORY

In the Fox Creek area the first modern coal exploration commenced in 1968 and 1969 and was
conducted by the Research Council of Alberta. The objective of this work was to identify
potential areas for surface mining such that the power generation needs of the province could be
addressed. This program by the Provincial Government was province wide, but at Fox Creek the
Research Council drilled over 60 rotary drill holes and produced reports of this exploration. This
initiative led to the acquisition of leases in the area by Shell Canada Limited and Esso Resources
Canada Limited.

Shell conducted drilling exploration from 1972 to 1974 on the leases that they acquired and began
mine design work subsequent to this. However, exploration activities were suspended by Shell in
1976. In 1977 Alberta Power Limited reviewed and studied the Shell exploration data with a
view to acquiring some of the areas and developing a power generation station there. However,
this project did not proceed. With changing economic considerations, Shell reactivated the
project in 1991 but has not undertaken new drilling since that time.

The leases in the Fox Creek area that were acquired by Esso Resources Canada Limited were
drilled and sampled in 1974 and further work was conducted in 1978 and 1979. Esso prepared a
Preliminary Feasibility Study in 1981 for the development of a dragline surface mine but no
further work appears to have occurred since that date.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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9.1

9.2

GEOLOGICAL SETTING

The Fox Creek Coal Property is located in the central plains region of Alberta. Regionally, the
strata in this area lie on the eastern limb of the Alberta Syncline. Beds generally strike northwest-
southeast and dip very gently in a west-southwest direction. Clastic rocks of the Scoilard
Formation, which includes the coal, form the basement.

The coal seams are contained in the Lower and Upper Ardley coal zones. These coal zones are
Tertiary in age and lie near the base of the Paskapao Farmation. A table of stratigraphy is shown
on Figure 9-1. The bedrock sequence is overlain by & variable thickness of glacially derived
deposits, namely till. Typical geological cross sections, with the coal zones, are shown on
Figures 9-2 to 9-5, respectively. Figure 9-6 is an illustration showing the locations where the
sections were drawn,

STRATIGRAPHYY

The Fox Creek coal measures constitute the lower Paleeocene (Tertiary} Ardley coal zone of the
Scollard Formation of the Wapiti Group. The coal deposits are considered to represent swamp or
marsh habitats associated with clastic sediments, including siltstone, sandstone and mudstone,
deposited in shallow water basins or lakes. White bentonitic ash layers intercalated with these
sediments represent volcanic ash fall deposits generated from volcanic activity to the west. The
Wapiti Group, which is equivalent to the Edmonton Group, is a thick Upper Cretaceous to Lower
Tertiary sequence. It consists of irregularly bedded non-marine sediments considered to have
originated within deltaic environments adjacent to the margins of the Bearspaw Sea and in
alluvial plain environments between shorelines and uplifted areas to the west. Locally, the
Ardley zone consists of 11 correlatable coal units within a stratigraphic thickness of about
15 metres. Bentonitic layers are common within this zone. Correlation of coal beds within the
lease areas is not difficult but seam thickness variations and pinch-outs are common.
Channelling, or complete replacement of coal beds by sandstone units units is a less common
feature.

STRUCTURE _

Regionally, the Wapiti Group sediments are part of a simple monocline dipping gently and
uniformly 0.5° to the south-southwest or south. However, Pleistocene glacial disturbance has
profoundly affected the subcrop edge of the coal measures in certain areas, with disturbance
particularly severe in regions where bentonitic layering is close to the surface. Ice movement was
generally to the north-northeast, and this disturbance can manifest itself as open to tight folding
and wide variation in faulting. Slumping of outcrops is another feature that is frequently found.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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DEPOSIT TYPES

The definition of “Deposit Type™ for coal properties is different from that applied to other types
of geologic deposits. Criteria applied to coal deposits for the purposes of determination of coal
resources and reserves include both “Geology Type™ as well as “Deposit Type”. For coal deposits
this is an important concept because the classification of a coal deposit as a particular type
determines the range of limiting criteria that may be applied during the estimation of Reserves
and Resources.

“Geology Type” for coal deposits is a parameter that is specified in Geological Survey of Canada
Paper 88-21, which is a reference for coal deposits as specified in NI 43-101. Coal “Geology
Type” is a definition of the amount of geological complexity, usually imposed by the structural
complexity of the area, and the classification of a coal deposit by “Geology Type” determines the
approach to be used for the Resource/Reserve estimation methodology and the limits to be
applied 1o certain key estimation criteria. The identification of a particular Geology Type for a
coal property defines the confidence that can be placed in the extrapolation of data values away
from a particular drill hole.

The classification scheme of GSC Paper 88-21 is similar to many other international coal reserve
classification systems but it has one significant difference. This system is designed to
accommodate differences in the degree of tectonic deformation of different coal deposits in
Canada. Four classes are provided for that range from the first (“low”), which is for deposits of
the Plains type with low tectonic disturbance, to the fourth (“severe”), which is for Rocky
Mountains type deposits.

The Fox Creek Coal Property is characterized by relatively simple geology both with respect to
stratigraphy and structure - its Geology Type is “Low-Type B”. The stratigraphic complexity,
although low, is evident in the number of splits of mineable thickness that may be present in any
given coal seam, and the degree to which these may persist laterally throughout the property, or
die out or coalesce with other coal units. Structural undulations in the strata in the area are either
very minor or too insignificant to impact mine operations.

“Deposit Type” as defined in GSC Paper 88-21 refers to the extraction method most suited to the

coal deposit. There are four categories, which are “surface”, “underground”, “non-conventional”,
and “sterilized”.

The Fox Creek Coal Property is z surface mineable deposit.

ALTER NRG LTD. 08-2970
TECHNICAL REPORT FOX CREEK COAL PROPERTY
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MINERALIZATION

For coal deposits, “mineralization” refers to coal development and coal seam stratigraphy.

The Subbitumminous coal at the Fox Creek property is part of the Scollard Formation. The coal
seams are relatively consistent in nature but thickness variations from place to place do occur. A

typical stratigraphic column for the seams is shown on Figure 11-1. There are 11 seams named

1, 2 Upper, 2 Lower, and 3 to 11, respectively. The aggregate thickness of a typical section is
9.26 m in the Fox Creek area.

Inspection of geopbysical logs of boreholes in the area indicates that the Lower Ardley Zone
consists of 11 coal seams intercalated with bentonite layers and shale. The deepest of these
seams is relatively low ash at 23.9 wi% (ADB) and consists of 2 mineable plies. Seam 10 is
typically too thin to mine on a stand alone basis with a typical thickness of about 0.21 m, but can
add to the mineable thickness of Seam 11. Seam 9, with a thickness of 0.98 m is one of the
thicker units available for mining but the ash content is relatively high. Seam 8 is another seam
that has relatively low ash and a thickness of 0.46 m. Seams 7, 6 and 5 all have relatively high
ash and are 0.64 m, 0.91 m, and 0.43 m thick, respectively. Seam 4 is the thickest in the sequence
at 1.86 m and has relatively low ash content. Seam 3 is also quite thick at 0.88 m, but the ash
content is high. Seam 2 consists of 2 separate splits referred to as Seam 2 Lower and Scam 2
Upper that have thicknesses of 0.76 m and 1.40 m, respectively and the ash content of these
seams is quite low. Seam | has the lowest ash content of any seam in the sequence but it is thin.

TABLE 11.1
Fox CREEK COAL PROPERTY
TypicAL COAL THICKNESS
SEAM GRross
NO. THICKNESS (M)
1 0.27
2 Upper 1.40
2 Lower 0.76
3 0.88
4 1.68
5 043
8 0.91
7 0.64
8 0.48
9 0.98
10 0.21
11 0.88
Total 9.2¢

ALTER NrRG LTD. D6-2870
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EXPLORATION

Most of the exploration, by the coal mining companies and the Provincial Government, in the
area has mvolved the drilling of rotary test holes and the collection of cuttings samples to
determine proximate values of the coal quality. Some core samples for quality testing were also
acquired. Further details of these activities are described in the next section of this report.

Except for reconnaissance geological mapping, there are no records of a significant amount of
exploration work being conducted for coal in this area using other techniques.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2870
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DRILLING

Previous drilling carried out between 1967 and the present has resulted in over 400 coal
exploration drill holes being drilled throughout the entire Fox Creek area. For this report, the
client supplied a drill hole database which included a selection of the available holes. The
geological mode] that has been prepared for this evaluation includes a total of 201 holes, with a
total of 10,411 m drilied.

Table 13.1 shows the year in which the holes included in the database were drilled. Also shown
is the total number of metres for each exploration period.

TasLE13.1
Fox CREEK COAL PROPERTY
EXPLORATION DRILLING

YEAR NUMBER OF HOLES METRES DRILLED

1968 2 114.3

1969 13 6346

1970 1 63.7

1672 17 8949

1973 53 2,664.5

1974 50 2,140.2

1976 65 3,899.1
TOTAL 201 10,411.3

Drill holes in the database have survey coordinates for the collars. Further, these drill hole data,
including geophysical logs, geologists’ core/cuttings descriptions, sample intervals (core) and
drillers’ logs, have been compiled and transcribed into a digital database containing the “from”,
“to” and “thickness” of lithologic units per drill hole, including coal and till, coal seam
identification as well s analytical results from coal samples.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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SAMPLING METHOD AND APPROACH

Typical procedures for sampling of coal seams at the Fox Creek Coal Property involved coring or
the use of rotary drilling. Extensive programs were carried out in 1968 and 1969 by the Alberta
Research Council and by Shell Canada Limited in the 1970’s, and more recently in the 1990’s.
Adjacent leases that existed at the time were explored by Esso Resources Canada Limited. in the
1980’s.

Cores were examined following retrieval and all field subsamples were then sealed before being
forwarded to the laboratory for testing for analysis. Composite samples were blended at the
lahoratory for further analysis.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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SAMPLE PREPARATION, ANALYSES AND SECURITY

Samples are collected from drill core and cuttings and submitted for analysis using methods that
are standard for the coal industry. The specific process used is described below:

1. Core from the drill hole is logged (i.e. measured and described) using standard geological
terms to document various attributes including lithology, color, hardness and grain size.

2. Each core hole is subject to a down-hole geophysical logging program. The logging
program produces a geophysical log suite consisting of caliper, density (gamma-gamma),
natural gamma and resistivity trace. The geophysical logs are used to identify rock types,
including coal intersected in the hole.

3. Coal intervals are collected in a plastic-lined core barrel. The core tubes are opened and
logged by a geologist. The geologist’s core log consists of the measured thickness and
description of the coal, inter-seam partings, adjacent roof and floor rock, and details of any
sample intervals removed for analysis.

4.  Recovered core is measured to determine an overall recovery (reported in percent) by
comparing the recovered core length with the coring run length recorded by the driller.
Recovered core is measured and compared to the coal interval thickness determined from
the geophysical log suite.

5.  Collected samples are cleaned of any mud contamination and placed in individual plastic
bags. The bags are labelled on the cutside with both the core hole and sample number and
sealed with plastic tape to prevent excessive moisture loss. The sample bags are placed
together in a collection bag for the core hole before being placed in palletized containers
and shipped to an independent lab for analysis.

In coal work, additional special security methods for the shipping and storage of samples are not
commonly employed, as coal is a relatively low value bulk commodity.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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16.1

DATA VERIFICATION

Alter Nrg provided Fox Creck Coal Property data to Norwest in digital format for validation and
subsequent use in geological modeling and resource estimation work. The company also
provided hard copy of various previous reports of exploration for review. Norwest reviewed a
rendomly chosen series of test holes throughout the mine area for data quality and file content.

The property has been visited by an independent qualified person, who is a staff member of
Norwest and his certificate attesting to this is included in Section 24.

DicitaL DaTA

Digital geological data are stored in an electronic database and includes drill hole coilar
coordinates, lithology, coal seam intercepts, and coal quality information. Norwest uses
MineSight® to interpret and model the geologic data.

In the process of validating the geological data and interpretation for the Fox Creek area Norwest
first reviewed, verified, and completed any necessary edits of the source data files. The geological

database addressed by Norwest included 201 drill holes.

Verification procedures included the following activities:

1.) Review of the drill hole collar data to eliminate any obvious location control
problems.
2) Review of seam tops and bottoms.

3) Review of lithology files.

4.) Review of coal seam interpretations and correlations.
5. Review of coal seam density data.

6.) Review of the coal quality database.

The data and/or interpretations are a reasonable representaticn of the geology of the Fox Creek
area, as it is presently understood, based on the exploration and development drill hole data.

16.2 ORIGINAL DATA

A total of 24 representative drill hole files were randomly selected to evaluate the quality of the
geological data generated and the extent to which exploration information was interpreted and
recorded from downhole sources. Minor data edils were noticed in the data that are not
significant enough to cause the data base to be changed. Considering the quality of the original
drill hole data, Norwest is in agreement with the results and/or interpretations that have been
produced.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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ADJACENT PROPERTIES

This technical report does not utilize any data and/or interpretations from adjacent properties.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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18.1

18.2

MINERAL PROCESSING AND METALLURGICAL TESTING

The equivalent terminology, which will be used in this report for a coal property is “Coal Quality
and Processing”.

COAL QUALITY AND PROCESSING

In central Alberta, the near-surface coals of the Ardley Zone of the Scollard Formation are ranked
Subbituminous C. Subbituminous C coal is a lower rank, consolidated, black coal that produces
between 19,300 and 22,100 kilojoules per kilogram (kJ/kg) on a moist, mineral-matter-free basis
when burned. The coal has high moisture content and is bright to dull in lustre, medium hard and
often has a blocky texture.

CoAL QUALITY TESTING

Fach coal core sample is subjected to a number of analyses, with the most common described
below:

Proximate Analysis
Determination of moisture, ash, volatile matter and fixed carbon in a sample. The fixed
carbon is determined by difference and the four components total 100%.

Sulphur
Determination of the percent of sulphur in a sample. Coal seams within the Mine have low
sulphur contents, usually less than 1%.

Heating Value

This is a very important parameter with respect to thermal coals. It is traditionally referred to
as “calorific value” and is the determination of the amount of energy in kilojoules per
kilogram of sample.

Coal ash is composed primarily of oxides of silicon, aluminium, iron, calcium, magnesium,
titanium, sodium, potassium, arsenic, mercury, and sulphur; testing to date shows that the sulphur
content of this coal is low. Select samples may be analyzed for their sodium oxide (Na,0%)
content within the coal ash. Sodium in coal ash can play a major role in ash fouling end slagging
processes during combustion.

Norwest is of the opinion that the spacing of available coal quality data for the seams used in the
geological and mining model is adequate for characterization of the in-place quality parameters.
In the Fox Creek area the summary in-place coal quality, by Seam, s shown in Table 18.1.

ALTER NRG LTD, 06-2970
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TaBLE 18.1
SUMMARY IN-PLACE COAL QUALITY
AIR DRIED ANALYSES
SEAM No, MOISTURE ASH HEATING VALUE
{%) (%) {MsrKe)
1 12.00 22.20 19.55
2 Upper 8.40 26.70 18.89
2 Lower 11.10 28.40 18.16
3 10.40 43.50 13.53
4 11.45 26.43 18.13
5 11.40 41.20 13.76
6 8.90 46,20 12.50
7 10.04 38.53 14.90
8 10.80 26.50 18.86
9 10.02 40.74 14.15
10
11 12.95 23.87 18.96
Average 10.48 32.84 16.59

In 1991 Shell Canada considered the process of washing this coal and made the following
observations:

“Considerable efforts were made towards characterizing the washability of the coal in
1673, Different schemes of mining the Ardley were addressed and various quality tests
were conducted in concert with these plans. A review of the float-sink and washability
data of Area Il coals indicate that reducing minus 100 mesh material significantly
improves yield and lowers clean ash content. It is apparent that excluding parting
material and bentonite beds is critical to maintaining low volumes of minus 100 mesh
material. Washability data suggest the plus 100 mesh material is easy to clean to a 20%
ash level with specific gravity cuts in the range of 1.9 to 2.0. Sulphur content varies from
0.3% to 0.6% and at 15% ash, calorific value is approximately 10,000 BTU/Ib on an air
dried basis. A review of quality data for core samples from various boreholes in Area II
suggest most of the mineable seams have raw ash concentrations varying from 15% to
30%. It is fundamentally important to characterize the nature of this ash and the ease and
effectiveness of beneficiation if coal cleaning is to be considered.”

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2870
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191

MINERAL RESOURCE AND MINERAL RESERVE ESTIMATES

The following is a discussion of the criteria and results obtained for coal resource estimation on
the Fox Creek Coal Property of Alter Nrg Ltd. In accordance with NI 43-101 and the CIM
Definition Standards, a Qualified Person employed by Norwest, supervised the data validation
and the resource estimation and classification work. The certifications for the Qualified Person
are provided in Section 24 of this report.

APPROACH

In accordance with National Instrument 43-101, Norwest has used the referenced document, the
Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleumn “Definition Standards on Mineral
Resources and Reserves” adopted by CIM Council on December 11, 2005” (“CIM Definition
Standards™} and, as appropriate, the Geological Survey of Canada Paper 88-21 "A Standardized
Coal Resource/Reserve Reporting System for Canada™ (“GSC Paper §8-21") during the
classification, estimation and reporting of coal resources for the Fox Creek coal project.

Norwest’s approach included the following tasks:

»  Norwest used MineSight® software to construct a gridded seam model of the Fox Creek Coal
Property area in order to estimate volumes for in-place coal resources. Key horizons or
“surfaces” were modeled to provide the required inputs for volume estimation. Volumes were
converted to tonnage by the application of density values representative of the coal seam
modeled.

« Initial geological interpretations and their relationship to the raw data were confirmed
through use of the EUB coal database. This was used to create a coal hole data file for this
area. The Author of this report also visited the site. There are no coal exposures, evidence of
past mining nor even evidence of past coal exploration drilling on the site.

» Laboratory analyses results were reviewed. Seam density values were obtained from
information provided by Alter Nrg and by reference information provided in GSC 88-21.

» Coal thicknesses were confirmed for 24 drill logs supplied by Alter Nrg Ltd..

e Alter Nrg’s coal tenure boundaries were checked using descriptions and maps provided by
Alter Nrg and those obtained from the Government of Alberta.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06.2970
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o The level of geological complexity was established through the review of the
geological maps, and construction of computer models.

» Review of the drill hole spacing to classify the resources and reserves was accomplished
through the inspection of drill hole location maps.

Description of Assumptions and Criteria
The following assumptions and criteria have been used in the resource estimate:

*  Geological Type is Low;

¢ Minimum seam thickness of 0.3 m for potential surface;

» Bank ratio not exceeding 13:1 bem of waste/coal tonne;

* Maximum parting thickness of 0.1 m; and

¢ Data spacing consistent with GSC Paper 88-21 requirements.

19.2 CoAL RESOURCE ESTIMATICON

The term “resource” is utilized to quantify coal contained in seams occurring within specified
limits of thickness and depth from surface. The term “resource™ refers to the in-place inventory
of coal that has ‘reasonable prospects for economic extraction’. Coal resources are always
reported as in-place tonnage and not adjusted for mining losses or recovery. However, minimum
mineable scam thickness and maximum removable parting thickness are considered.

Resources are classified as to the assurance of their exisience into one of three categories,
Measured, Indicated or Inferred. The category to which a resource is assigned depends on the
level of confidence in the geological information available (CIM Definition Standards). GSC
Paper 88-21 provides guidance for categorizing various types of coal deposits by levels of
assurance. These were considered during the classification of the resources.

In-place resources within the Fox Creck Coal Property, summarized in Table 19.1, cover an area
of approximately 15,400 ha. These resources include all coal seams that form the Ardley Coal
Zone of the Scollard Formation. Where the thickness constraints are met, this coal sequence is
intended for mining within the Fox Creek Coal Project.

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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TABLE 19.1
FoX CREEK COAL PROJECT
COAL RESOURCE SUMMARY
AS AT FEBRUARY 20, 2007

In-Place Surface Mineable Coal Resources

ASTM Group down to 13:1 strip ratio (tonnes)
Measured indicated Inferred
Subbituminous C 400,042,000 370,256,000 111,768,000
Total 770,298,000 111,768,000

In-Place Surface Mineabla Coal Resources
13:1 down fo 20:1 strip ratio (tonnes}

Measured Indicated Inferred
Subbituminous C 11,047,000 25,048,000 17,820,000
Total 36,095,000 17,820,000
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OTHER RELEVANT DATA AND INFORMATION

There are no other relevant data and information applicable to this report.
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INTERPRETATION AND CONCLUSIONS

The Alter Nrg lands at the Fox Creek Property are underlain by coal seams that generally
demonstrate lateral stratigraphic continuity, influenced by minor thickness variations and low
amplitude structural undulations. The geology type is Low Type B according to guidelines set
forth in Geological Survey of Canada Paper 88-21.

The verification of the local geology and the caleulation of resources were accomplished through
the preparation of a computer model using MineSight® geological modeling software.

The density of drilling in this mine was adequate for the delineation of in-place resources. To
February 20, 2007, the Alter Nrg surface mineable resources at the Fox Creek Property are
estimated to be 770,298,000 tonnes of Measured and Indicated plus 111,768,000 tonnes of
Inferred Resource at 13:1 cumulative strip ratio. ‘

ALTER NRG LTD. 06-2970
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RECOMMENDATIONS

The Fox Creek Coal Property database comprises data from previous exploration and
development programs. The review of the data as well as the development of a new geological
model and subsequent calculations of resources has demonstrated that the integrity of the data
utilized and the subsequent resource estimates are very good.

It is recommended that Alter Nrg continue to review coal seam data and update the geological
database and model to reflect all available data.
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CERTIFICATE OF QUALIFICATIONS

1, Geoffrey R. Jordan, P.Geol., do hereby certify that:

1.

10.

I am currently employed as Senior Vice President by:

Norwest Corporation

Suite 2700, 411 — Ist Street SE.,
Calgary, Alberta, Canada

72G 4Y5

I graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of New South Wales in
1971.

I am a member of the Association of Professional Engineers, Geologists and
Geophysicists of Alberta, {Member #22095).

I have worked as a geolegist for a total of thirty-three years since my gradvation from
university.

I have read the definition of “qualified person” set out in Naticnal Instrument 43-101
(NI 43-101") and certify that by reason of my education, affiliation with a professional
agsociation (as defined in NI 43-101) and past relevant work experience, I fulfill the
requirements to be a “qualified parson” for the purposes of NI 43-101.

I am responsible for the preparation of all of the report titled “Technical Report Alter Nrg
Lid. Lands, Fox Creek Coal Property, Alberia” dated February 20, 2007 (the “Technical
Report™).

| personally visited the site scveral times during the carly 1980°s.

1] am not aware of any material fact or material change with respect to the subject matter

of the Technical Report that is not reflected in the Technical Report, the omission to

disclose which makes the Technical Report misleading.

1 am independent of the issuer applying all of the tests in Section 1.5 of National
Instrument 43-101.

I have read National [nstrument 43-101 and Form 43-101F1, and the Technical Report
has been prepared in compliance with that instrument and form.

Dated this 20™ Day of February 2007.

“ORIGINAL SIGNED AND SEALED BY AUTHOR”

Geoff Jordan, P. Geol
Senior Vice President
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CONSENT of AUTHOR

TO: Commission des Valeurs Mobilieres du Quebec
Ontario Securities Commission
Manitoba Securities Commission
Saskatchewan Financial Services Commission — Securities Division
Alberta Securities Commission
British Columbia Securities Commission

I, Geoff Jordan, do hereby consent to the public filing of the Technical Report titled “Technical Report
Alter Nrg Ltd. Lands, Fox Creek Coal Property, Alberta” dated February 20, 2007 (the Technical Report)
and to extracts from or a summary of the Technical Report by Alter Nrg Ltd. in the Preliminary
Prospectus.

Dated this 20® Day of February, 2007

“ORIGINAL SIGNED AND SEALED BY AUTHOR”

Signature of Qualified Person

Geoff Jordan, P. Geol.
Print name of Qualified Person
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CERTIFICATE OF QUALIFICATIONS

1, Craig Acott, P. Eng., do hereby certify that:

11.

12,

13.

14.

13.

17.

18.

19.

I am currently employed as Vice President — Mining by:

Norwest Corporation

Suite 2700, 411 — Ist Street SE.,
Calgary, Alberta, Canada

T2G 4Y5

1 graduated with a Masters of Sciencé degree from the University of Alberta in 1981.

1 am a member of the Association of Professional Engineers, Geologlsts and
Geophysicists of Alberta, (Member #33264).

I have worked as an engineer for more than 25 years since my graduation from
university,

I bave read the definition of “qualified person™ set out in National Instrument 43-101
(*“NI 43-101"") and certify that by reason of my education, affiliation with a professional
association (as defined in NI 43-101) and past relevant work experience, I fulfill the
requirements to be a “qualified person” for the purposes of NI 43-101.

1 personally visited the site on December 13, 2006.

I am not aware of any material fact or material change with respect to the subject matter
of the Technical Report that is not reflected in the Technical Report, the omission to
disclose which makes the Technical Report misteading,

I am independent of the issuer applying all of the tests in Section 1.5 of National
Instrument 43-101.

I have read National Instrument 43-101 and Form 43-101F1, and the Technical Report
has been prepared in compliance with that instrument and form.

Dated this 20® Day of February, 2007.

“ORIGINAL SIGNED AND SEALED BY AUTHOR"

Craig Acott, P. Eng.
Vice President - Mining
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CONSENT of AUTHOR

TO: Commission des Valeurs Mobilieres du Quebec
Ontario Securities Commission
Manitoba Securities Commission
Saskatchewan Financial Services Commission — Securities Division
Alberta Securities Commission
British Columbia Securities Commission

1, Craig Acott, do hercby consent to the public filing of the Technical Report titled “Technical Report
Alter Nrg Ltd. Lands, Fox Creck Coal Property, Alberta” dated February 20, 2007 (the Technical Report)
and to extracts from or a summary of the Technical Report by Alter Nrg Ltd. in the Preliminary
Prospectus

Dated this 20% Day of February, 2007.

“ORIGINAL SIGNED AND SEALED BY AUTHOR”

Signature of Qualified Person

Craig P. Acott. P. Eng.
Print name of Qualified Person
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ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR TECHNICAL REPORTS ON
DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES AND PRODUCTION PROPERTIES

There is no additional information that applies. This property has not advanced yet to a
development stage.
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A copy of this preliminary prospectus has been filed with the securities regulatory authorities in each of the provinces of Canada, except Quebec, but has not yet become
final for the purpose of the sale of securities. Information contained in ihis preliminary prospectus may not be complete and may have to be amended. These securities
may not be sold until a receipt is obtained from the securities regulatory authorities.

No securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to claim otherwise. This prospecius constitutes a public offering
of securities only in those jurisdictions where such securities may be lawfully offered for sale and therein only by persons permitted to seil such securities. These
securities have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “U.S, Securities Act”), or any state securities laws.
Accordingly, these securities may not be offered or sold in the United States unless registered under the U.S. Securities Act and applicable state securities laws or
pursuant to an exemption from such registration regquirements. This prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or any solicitation of an offer to buy any of the
securities within the United Stales. See “Plan of Distribution”.
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This prospectus qualifies the distribution of upto @ common shares (“Common Shares™) of Alter Nrg Corp. (the “Corpmi.agon“) at a price of
S @  per Common Share (the “Offering”). The price of the Common Shares offered pursuant to the Offering was determined by negotiation
among the Corporation and Wellington West Capital Markets Inc., Canaccord Capital Corporation, Raymond James Ltd., TD Securities Inc. and

Paradigm Capital Inc. {collectively, the “Agents™). This prospectus also qualifies the distribution of the Common Shares issuable pursuant to the
Reorganization (as defined below) and the WPC Acquisition (as defined below). See “Plan of Distribution”.

A portion of the net proceeds of this Offering will be used, subsequent to the closing of the Reorganization, to complete the acquisition by the
Corporation of the issued and outstanding shares of Westinghouse Plasma Corporation (“WPC”), Closing of this Offering is conditional upon the
satisfaction of all conditions relating to the completion of the Reorganization and the WPC Acquisition, other than the payment of the Purchase Price (as
defined below) in respect thereof. See “The Reorganization™, “WPC Acquisition™ and “Use of Proceeds”.

Price: $ @ Per Common Share

Net Proceeds to the

Price to the Public Agents’ Fee Corporationt"
Per Common Share .. ...............covn.. $ o 5 @ s o
Total® . ... . 5 ® s e 5 @

Notes:
(1)  Before deducting cxpenses of the Offering, estimaed tobe 3 @, which will be paid by the Corporation,

(2)  Assumes completion of the Maximum Offering (as defined below).

There is currently no market through which the Common Shares may be sold and purchasers may not be able to resell the Common Shares
purchased under this prospectus. An investment in Common Shares should be considered speculative due to the nature of the Corporation’s
business which is subject to a number of risks. Subscribers for Common Shares must rely upon the ability and integrity of the management of
the Corporation (“Management”). See “Risk Factors”.

The Corporation has applied to list its Common Shares on the TSX Venture Exchange (the “TSXV"), Listing will be subject to the Corporation
fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the TSXYV.

Subject to certain assumptions, limitations and restrictions, in the opinion of Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP, counsel to the Corporation, and Heenan
Blaikie LLP, counse! to the Agents, as of the date of this prospectus, on closing of the Offering and listing of the Common Shares on a prescribed stock
exchange, the Common Shares will be eligible investments as set forth under the heading "Eligibility for Investment™.

The Agents conditionaily offer the Common Shares, subject to prior sale, on a best efforts basis, if, as and when issued by the Corporation, and delivered
to and accepted by the Agents in accordance with the conditions contained in the Agency Agreement referred to under “Plan of Distribution” and subject
to the approval of certain legal matters on behalf of the Corporation by Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP and on behalf of the Agents by Heenan Blaikie
LLP.

Subject to applicable laws in connection with the Offering, the Agents may over-allot or engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise
affect the price of the Common Shares. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time. See “Plan of Distribution”.

Subscriptions for the Common Shares to be sold pursuant to the Offering will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and the
right is reserved to close the subscription books at any time without notice. It is expected that the closing of the Offering will take place on or 2bout
@® |, 2007, and in any event not later than @ , 2007. See “Plan of Distribution”.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this prospectus may constitute “forward-looking™ statements which involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Corporation,
or industry results, to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied

LI

by such forward-looking statements. When used in this prospectus, such statements use such words as “may”, “would”,
“could”, “will”, “intend”, “expect”, “believe”, “plan”, “anticipate”, “estimate” and other similar terminology. These
statements reflect the Corporation’s current expectations regarding future events and operating performance and speak
only as of the date of this prospectus. Forward-looking statements involve significant risks and uncertainties, should not
be read as guarantees of future performance or results, and will not necessarily be accurate indications of whether or not
such results will be achieved. A number of factors could cause actual results to differ materially from the results discussed
in the forward-looking statements, including, but not limited to, the factors discussed below and under “Risk Factors™.
Although the forward-looking statements contained in this prospectus are based upon what Management believes are
reasonable assumptions, the Corporation cannot assure investors that actual resulis will be consistent with these forward-
locking statements. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this prospectus, and, subject to
applicable securities laws, the Corporation assumes no obligation to update or revise them to reflect new events or
circumstances.

In particular, this prospectus contains forward-looking statements pertaining to the following:
* capital expenditure programs;
» supply and demand for the Corporation’s services and industry activity levels;
* commodity prices;
* income tax considerations;

* treatment under govermnmental regulatory regimes;
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+ dependence on equipment suppliers and equipment improvements;
+ dependence on personnel;

« collection of accounts receivable;

* operating risk lability;

* expectations regarding market prices and costs;

« ability to raise additional capital;

+ expansion of services in domestic and international markets; and
*  competitive conditions.

The Corporation’s actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a
result of the risk factors set forth below and elsewhere in this prospectus:

* reliance on Management;

+ reliance on technical and field personnel;

* competition;

* dependence on suppliers;

= regulatory and political risk factors;

* commodity price volatility;

« prices for end products;

+ potential environmental lability;

s operating risks and insurance limits;

+ sensitivity to fixed costs;

+ reliance on technology;

« risk of third party claims for infringement of intellectual property rights;
+ access to additional financing;

« conflicts of interest;

+ litigation,

+ absence of prior public market for the Common Shares;
» dilution and future sales of Common Shares;

s failure to realize anticipated benefits of acquisitions;

» currency exchange rate risk;

+ aboriginal claims; and

« the other factors considered under “Risk Factors”.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Throughout this prospectus, the term “cash flow” is used to refer to cash flow from operations, being net revenue less all
operating and general and administrative costs, before charges to working capital related to operating activities. The term
cash flow is not a measure recognized by GAAP and does not have a standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP. Cash
flow may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers, and investors are cautioned that cash flow
should not be considered as an alternative to net earnings or other measures of financial performance calculated in
accordance with GAAP.

Cash flow is provided as a measure of financial performance because such term is commonly used by investors to evaluate
energy sector projects. Accordingly, Management believes that cash flow is a useful measure for prospective investors in
evaluating the financial performance of the Corporation, and specifically, the ability of the Corporation to generate cash
flow from its projects and fund projects and endeavours through cash flow from operaticns.

3



GENERAL PROSPECTUS DISCLOSURE MATTERS

Although the subsidiaries of the Trust currently operate the Existing Business to be acquired by the Corporation pursuant
to the Reorganization, unless otherwise indicated, the disclosure in this prospectus assumes that the steps outlined under
the heading “The Reorganization” have been completed and the Corporation (either directly or through its subsidiaries)
operates the Existing Business. In that context, references to the Corporation include, where required, a reference to the
Corporation indirectly through its subsidiaries.



SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the principal features of the Offering and should be read together with the more detailed
information and financial data and statements contained elsewhere in this prospectus. Please refer to the Glossary for the
definitions of certain terms used in this prospectus and in this Summary.

Description of Gasification Process

Gasification can convert any low value carbon-containing feedstock, including municipal waste, biomass (wood chips,
agricultural waste), petroleum coke (“petcoke”), refinery residue and coal, into high value energy products including
hydrogen, synthesis gas (“syngas”), steam, electricity and transportation fuels. The gasification process, as compared to
conventional energy production metheds such as coal fired power plants, also reduces air emissions, including greenhouse
gases, sulphur oxides and nitrous oxides. All gasification reactor designs have similar internal chemical reactions,
however the process efficiencies can be varied by using different combinations of pressure and temperature. See “Industry
Overview — The Gasification Process”.

Additonally, gasification is a commercially proven and well established process. For instance, South Africa has been
commercially applying gasification to create gasoline and diesel fuel for over 30 years. Approximately 30% of South
Africa’s current transportation fuel needs are derived from coal gasification (Source: World Coal Institute, “Coal: Liquid
Fuels”, October 2006). Until recently, gasification has been more expensive than conventional production, but the
increasing spread between the cost of gasification feedstocks like coal and the price of gasification products like
biodegradable sulphur-free diesel have made gasification more economical in the production of liquid fuels. See “Industry
Overview — The Gasification Process.”

Management believes that due to gasification’s: (i) matrix of potential inputs and outputs; (ii} potential environmental
benefits versus other energy production methods; and (iii} proven and established process, the Corporation will be
provided with a wide range of business opportunities and the flexibility to maximize value in an environment of volatile
commedity prices.

Alter Nrg Corp.

The Corporation was incorporated under the ABCA on February 20, 2007. The head and registered offices of the
Corporation are located at Suite 420, 1414 — 8th Street S.W., Calgary, Alberta, Canada T2R 1J6.

The Corporation is a development-stage entity pursuing alternative energy solutions to meet the growing demand for
environmentally responsible energy in world markets. The Corporation’s vision is to become a North American leader in
the development of innovative gasification projects for the commercial production of energy.

The Corporation’s objective for the next decade is to become a senior energy producer of hydrogen, syngas, and
transportation fuels such as biodegradable sulphur free diesel, ethanol, steam or electricity, alt of which are fundamental
products for the world’s growing energy needs.

The Corporation, which has the ability to economically capture carbon dioxide (“CO,") while producing energy through
use of the WPC Technology (as defined in “WPC Acquisition — WPC Technology™}, will endeavour to help industries
meet their energy needs while reducing emissions of greenhouse gases and complying with any upcoming government
mandated greenhouse gas emission limitations.

Alter Nrg, the Corporation’s predecessor to the Existing Business (as defined below), was incorporated in November 2005
and commenced operations in March 2006 and has since secured an established gasification technology, namely the WPC
Technology (see “Development of the Business” and “WPC Acquisition™), secured a suitabte coal resource for
gasification, assembled a strong and experienced management team (comprised of an experienced group of engineering
and project management professionals who have worked together for up to 20 years), and developed a focused and
tangible business plan. The Corporation believes that assembling these key components uniquely positions it as a fully
integrated gasification company that is well positicned to execute its plans in the dynamic and growing gasification
market. See “Alter Nrg Corp.”.

Development of the Business

Since inception in March 2006, the Corporation has taken the following steps towards its objective of becoming a leading
North American fully integrated gasification corporation:

*  OnlJune 5, 2006, Alter Nrg entered into a license agreement with WPC (the “WPC License™) with respect to the
WPC Technology. The fundamental terms of the WPC License are as follows:
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» The exclusive right to use the WPC Technology in Canada for coal, petcoke and refinery residue for an initial
term of five years up to June 3, 2011.

* The exclusive right to use the WPC Technology for all other feedstocks, including municipal waste and
biomass in Western Canada, and a right of first refusal to participate in projects in Eastern Canada using these
feedstocks.

* In August 2006, Alter Nrg procured eight Crown coal leases, comprising 27,456 hectares in total, in three
geographic areas within Alberta suitable for surface coal mining of sub-bituminous coal. The key area is the Fox
Creek Property, which has approximately 770 million tonnes of coal in place (as evaluated in the Norwest
Report). See “Coat Rights™.

*  On December 2, 2006, Alter Nrg entered into the Share Purchase Agreement (as defined below) to acquire all of
the WPC Shares (as defined below). See “WPC Acquisition”,

= Assembling a strong technical team of professionals who have a history of innovation and effective project
execution. See “The Corpoeration’s Execution and Technical Strengths”.

+  From March 2006 to January 2007, Alter Nrg Income Fund (the “Trust”) raised $13.5 million through issuances
of trust units of the Trust (the “Trust Units"), with $9.0 million cash remaining at December 31, 2006. See “Prior
Sales of Securities™.

See “Development of the Business™.

WPC Acquisition

On December 2, 2006, Alter Nrg entered into a share purchase agreement, as amended on February 20, 2007 (the “Share
Purchase Agreement”), with Dr. Shyam Dighe (“Dighe”) and a minority shareholder (collectively, the “WPC
Sharehclders™) pursuant to which Alter Nrg agreed to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares (the “WPC
Shares”) of WPC (the “WPC Acquisition”™). WPC is a private corporation organized under the laws of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. On @, 2007, the Share Purchase Agreement was further amended and assigned
by Alter Nrg to the Corporation.

The purchase price (the “Purchase Price™) to be paid to the WPC Shareholders pursuant to the Share Purchase
Agreement is an aggregate of US$29,000,000, of which US$22,000,000 is payable in cash (the “Cash Portion™) with the
balance payable through the issuance of that number of Common Shares (at the Offering Price (as defined below)) equal 10
US$7,000,000 (the “Share Portion™).

See "WPC Acquisition — Acquisition Terms”.

Comparison of the WPC Technology and Conventional Gasification

The Corporation believes that the WPC Technology has the following advantages over conventional gasification
technologies.

* Environmentally Benign. The WPC Technology has the capability of operating at much higher temperatures
than any conventional gasifier, producing a glass-like non-leachable slag from any feedstock. Current analysis
conducted by WPC indicates that the slag is environmentally benign and could be used directly in the
construction of buildings and roads. Many other gasification technologies produce a leachable ash that must
be landfilled or treated before it can be used.

+ Wide Range of Feedstocks. The feedstock for all conventional gasifiers must undergo a preparation process to
make it suitable for gasification. In some cases, the feedstock for conventional gasifiers must meet very tight
tolerances for size, heating value and moisture content. The WPC Technology can accommodate very
heterogeneous feedstocks.

= Variable Heating Value. The WPC Technology can handle feedstocks with a very wide range of heating
value; everything from waste to bitumen. The gasifiers marketed by most of the large gasifier companies do not
accept waste or biomass as a feedstock. Because of the intense temperatures generated by a plasma gasifier
utilizing the WPC Technology, it can also safely handle hazardous waste.

* Metal Recovery. Because the WPC Technology produces a slag and not ash, it is significantly easier and less
costly to recover valuable metals,




« High Reliability. The WPC Technology is based on the foundry cupola, a well known and simple design used
for centuries in the mining and ore industry. Management believes the simple design of the Reactor (as defined in
“WPC Acquisition — WPC Technology™) results in higher plant availability and produces a high quality syngas.

See “WPC Acquisition — Comparison of the WPC Technology and Conventional Gasification”.

Acquisition Rationale
The Corporation believes that the WPC Acquisition will provide the Corporation with the following benefits:

+ Positive Cash Flow with Upside Potential. 'WPC has had positive cash flow for the past several years. WPC is
a research and development focused organization which has not allocated significant resources towards business
development. Management believes that with increased business development efforts, WPC’s cash flow can be
increased. In addition, WPC has existing customers that are expected to provide future revenue streams.

+ Commercially Proven Technology. The key component of the WPC Technology, being the plasma gun, has
been applied commercially for over 15 years and has benefited from years of research and development
conducted by Westinghouse Electric Corporation (“WEC”). It is commercizally proven in gasification with
several operational gasification facilities that have proven to be robust and reliable.

+ Direction over the Technology. Ownership of WPC, and therefore, the WPC Technology, means the
Corporation can direct WPC’s research, development and strategy to benefit the Corporation's projects going
forward,

* Access to Global Markets. WPC has recently made sales of the WPC Technology to a company in India and
has sales opportunities in the U.S. and other countries. This provides the Corporation an opportunity to
participate and develop projects worldwide,

* Access to Research and Development. WPC has completed approximately 100 pilot tests, has 24 active
patents worldwide and has a wealth of expertise in plasma systems and plasma gasification. The Cerporation
believes that this research and development experience will allow the Corporation’s technical personnel to
explore additional business opportunities.

+  Multiple Product Applications. Plasma systems have been and can be applied 1o commercial applications
other than gasification which Management believes provides the potential to increase sales volumes by WPC.

« Broader Gasification Solutions. The combination of the plasma gasification experience at WPC with the
engineering, construction, and balance of plant expertise of the Corporation is expected to allow the joint entity
to provide a more complete gasification system for the customer,

« Infrastructure. The Plasma Center is an approximately 30,000 square foot pilot and office facility outside
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania where WPC has performed approximately 100 pilot tests on varying feedstocks.

See "WPC Acquisition — Acquisition Rationale”.

Corporate Strategy
Vision
To become a senior energy producer by leading the development of innovative gasification projects for commercial
energy production.
Mission
* To participate in strategic or financially accretive projects or make acquisitions in the emerging alternative
energy market.

+ Tobe aleader in innovative gasification-retated technologies applied to produce profitable and clean alternative
energy solutions.

+ To invest in the skills of the Corporation’s people who will provide the creativity, determination and passion to
generate growth in Shareholder (as defined below) value.

+ To conduct its activities with transparency and fairness and to work together to form positive relationships in the
communities in which the Corporation operates and with all of its stakeholders.

See “Description of the Business — Corporate Strategy™.




Target Markets
The Corporation initially intends to focus its efforts on the following three target markets:
1. WTE: Gasification of waste products to produce syngas or electricity.

2. Oilsands: Gasification of petcoke or refinery residue for the production of syngas to be used in SAGD (as defined
below) projects and hydrogen for use in bitumen upgrading.

3. CTL: Gasification of coal to create hydrogen, syngas, naphtha and sulphur-free diesel.

Corporate Objectives and Milestones
Overview

To meet its long term objective of becoming a senior energy producer, the Corporation is using a staged strategy in each of
its three target markets, as discussed below,

Management believes the target markets provide the opportunity to grow rapidly and in staged increments. The initial
waste to energy (“WTE") project is expected to cost approximately $105 million for 1,100 boe/d of production which is
an achievable size of project to provide initial cash flow and strengthen the Carporation’s balance sheet. The WPC
Technology is commercially proven in WTE projects, and the Corporation is advancing business relationships with both
government and private waste companies in an effort to have a commercial scale WTE facility operational within a
three year timeframe. The Corporation will then lock to replicate WTE on a larger scale throughout North America in
markets that offer the economic potential outlined under “Project Opportunities and Market Descriptions — Waste to
Energy Market”. Management believes that it has significant opportunities in the Ontario WTE market alone to provide
accretive growth in its energy production base and cash flow.

The oilsands are expected to be a crucial part of Alberta’s future growth. The oilsands require an enormous amount of
energy in order to extract the bitumen and turn it into saleable energy products. Gasification is an attractive method to
provide energy for the extraction process using a by-product of upgrading (petcoke) as the feedstock to produce steam or
hydrogen while offering attractive project returns. Management betieves that the WPC Technology, combined with a
modular construction approach, can provide a flexible and scalable energy solution for oilsands producers. The
Corporation’s short term objective is to optimize and showcase the WPC Technology, for application in an oilsands
process, in a joint demonstration facility (for both oilsands and coal to liquids (“CTL"™}) 10 be constructed over the next
18 months at a cost of $10 million to $20 million. Management is currently discussing its oilsands gasification solution
with several companies and intends to aggressively pursue undertaking gasification facilities projects in the oilsands
which would each produce approximately 4,000 boe/d or greater once the demonstration facility is completed.

The Corporation has acquired the Fox Creek Property which provides ownership of feedstock resources which can be used
to develop a CTL project to produce gasoline or diesel. See “Coal Rights -~ Fox Creek Property”. As described under the
heading “Industry Overview", CTL facilities have been producing significant quantities of liquid fuels worldwide, and
numerous projects are being developed worldwide in this growth industry. The Corporation believes that CTL presents an
opportunity offering atiractive returns on projects and tong-lived production. Management expects 1o use a modular
construction approach to allow it to construct smaller 5,000 bbl/d to 10,000 bbl/d facilities at attractive project returns and
10 thereafter develop larger scale projects. The Corporation’s short term objective is to optimize and showcase the WPC
Technology, for application in CTL, in a joint demonstration facility as referenced in the preceding paragraph. Thereafter,
Management will attempt to develop joint venture relationships to contract coal or develop its coal resource for larger,
commercial scale facilities.

Short Term

The following is a summary of the Corporation’s short term objectives:

* Increasing WPC’s existing revenue streams subsequent to the completion of the WPC Acquisition, through
increased worldwide licensing and sales from the application of disciplined business development and marketing
sales practices. See “WPC Acquisition”.

*+ Utilizing the WPC Technology to pursue WTE opportunities in Ontario by developing a commercial scale WTE
facility. See “Project Opportunities and Marker Descriptions — Waste to Energy Market”,

* Advancing a small scale field demonstration facility with the WPC Technology utilizing coal and petcoke
feedstocks. Such a facility is expected to begin construction in 2008 at a cost of $10 million to $20 million.
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Preliminary engineering indicates the WPC Technology has the potential to efficiently gasify feedstocks,
including coal and petcoke, at lower capital and operating costs than conventional gasification technologies;
however, a demonstration facility will be required to substantiate this advantage.

* Advancing commercial scale Western Canadian gasification opportunities using coal and petcoke as feedstocks.
The Corporation intends to advance engineering, regulatory, resource assessment and business development
activities during 2007 and through 2009 as the demonstration facility is under development,

» Responding to strategic or financially accretive acquisition opportunities that may arise in the gasification industry
that will strengthen operating cash flow and support and accelerate the Corporation’s business plan.

See “Description of the Business — Corporate Objectives and Milestones”,

Comparison of Gasification to Conventional Oil and Gas Production

It can be difficult to compare gasification facilities to those of conventional energy companies even though both
ultimately produce income from energy products. One of the key metrics that measures capital efficiency is the Recycle
Ratio. This is one measure of how effectively a company is investing its cash and is obtained by dividing the cash flow per
boe by the capital cost per boe, with higher values showing greater capital efficiency. Gasification projects are projected to
have Recycle Ratios of 4.6 to greater than 7.0 as compared to the conventional oil and gas industry which, according to a
FirstEnergy Capital Corp. analysis published in August 2006, had Recycle Ratios of approximately 1.6 to 2.4.

Gasification facilities operating at scale have a low estimated operating cost environment compared to conventional oil
and gas, which provides premium cash flow per boe. The CTL and WTE projects have high cash flow per bbl of energy
equivalent production due to the associated supplemental revenue streams. Gasification facilities have long term uniform
producticn rates. The related long-lived cash flow from production over the 30 year facility life provides for attractive
capital costs on a per boe basis.

See the table below for a comparison of the estimated operating metrics of the Corporation’s planned gasification facilities
by target market compared to conventional energy company averages:

Corporate Projects

Qilsands
Petcoke Conventional Oil
WTE Facility Facility CTL Facility and Gas
Cashflowperboe .................... $61.00 $36.90  $62.00 to $69.00  $24.32 10 $29.13
Capital costperboe .. .............,.... $8.00 1o $9.00 $7.50 $11.00 to $13.50 $11.81 to $18.63
RecycleRatio........................ Greater than 7.0 49 461063 1.56 10 2.41

Notes and Assumptions:

(1) Conventional oil and gas data provided from FirstEnergy Capital Corp., 2006 Edition of “Finding, Development and Acquisition Cost analysis
based on 2005 operating results™. The data provided includes companies of all sizes and is organized into small capitalization entities (less than
$500 million market capitalization) mid-capitalization entities ($500 million to $2.5 billion in market capitalization), and large capitalization
entities {greater than $2.5 billion market capitalization). The data provided is the high and low averages from the size categories. The capital cost
per boe equates to the finding, development and acquisition cost per boe including future capital costs and calculated proved plus probable
reserves. The values provided in US dollars have been converted to Canadian dollars at an exchange rate of $1.15 : US$1.00.

(2}  Cash flow per boe takes revenues, less all operating costs, royalties and general and administrative costs settled with cash at the project level.
(3} Capital cost per boe is calculated by dividing the total facility capital cost by the total boe production from the facility.

(4) Recycle Ratio is calculated by dividing the cash flow per boe by the capital cost per boe.

(5)  See “Project Opportunities and Market Descriptions™ for further assumptions regarding project economics,

See “Description of the Business — Comparison of Gasification to Conventional Oil and Gas Production”.




Selected Financial Information

The following tables present a summary of data for the Trust derived from the consolidated financial statements of the
Trust as at December 31, 2006 and for the period from commencement of operations on March 9, 2006 to December 31,
2006 and certain pro forma information of the Corporation after giving effect to the Reorganization (as defined in “The
Reorganization™) and the WPC Acquisition.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet was prepared as if: (a) the Reorganization; (b) the issuance of

®  Common Shares for net proceeds of approximately § @ pursuant to the Maximum Offering; and (c) the
WPC Acquisition had occurred on December 31, 2006 and the pro forma consolidated statement of operations assumes
that these matters occurred on January 1, 2006.

The following data should be read along with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis Regarding the Trust” and the
financial statements and related notes of each of the Corporation and the Trust included in this prospectus. The unaudited
pro forma information should also be read together with the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements and
related notes of the Corporation included in this prospectus.

The Corporation
The Trust

Pro Forma
From the commencement Consolidated
of operations on March 9, 2006 for the year ended
to December 31, 2006 December 31, 2006
(unaudited)
Sales. .. ... .. $ — $ 2,280,202
Interestrevenue. .. ..........c0vuvrrnns 83,366 83,366
Depreciation . ........c..iivireineen.. 13,568 1,817,857
General and administrative expenses .. ... .. 1,437,436 8,778,915
Management bonus .. .................. — 169,668
Stock based compensation . . ............. 290,253 334,564
Loss ... e e (1,657,891) (6,400,716)
Loss per Trust Unit/Common Share
(basicand diluted) . . .. ............... (0.16) ( @ )
The Trust The Corporation
Pro Forma
As at As at Consolidated as
December 31, 2006 February 20, 2007 at December 31, 2006
(unaudited)
Working capital . . ...... ... o $ 8,466,410 $ 100 $ ®
Capital assets, intangible assets resource
properties and deferred costs .. ......... 2,789,769 — 29,354,965
Total ASSEIS ..o v ittt 11,919,896 100 ®
Unitholders’/Shareholders’ equity. .. .... ... 11,256,179 100 ®
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Offering Price
Offering
Use of Proceeds

Closing

Eligibility for Investment

The Offering
Upto$ @  per Common Share.

Upto @ Common Shares.

The estimated net proceeds of the Maximum Offering (as defined below) to
the Corporation, after deducting the Agents’ feeof $ @  and expenses
of this Offering and the Reorganization of approximately$ ® , willbe
approximately $§ @

It is anticipated that the net proceeds of the Offering will be used by the
Corporation as follows:

« Acquisitionof WPC . ..., ... ... ... .. ®
« Workingcapital . ...................... ®

Closing of the Offering is conditional upon the satisfaction of all conditions
relating to the completion of the Reorganization and the WPC Acquisition,
other than the payment of the Purchase Price (as defined below) in respect
thereof. See “The Reorganization”, “WPC Acquisition” and “Plan of
Distribution™.

The closing of the Offering is expected to occur on or about ® 2007,
and in any event not later than ® | 2007.

In the opinion of Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP, counsel to the Corporation,
and Heenan Blaikie LLP, counsel to the Agents, the Common Shares will be
qualified investments for Exempt Plans (subject to the specific provisions of
any particular Exempt Plan) provided they are listed on a stock exchange
prescribed for the purposes of the Tax Act at the relevant time. See
“Eligibility for Investment”,

11




Risk Factors

An investment in Common Shares should be considered speculative due to the nature of the Corporation’s
business. In assessing the risks of an investment in the Common Shares, subscribers must rely upon the ability and
integrity of Management. An investment in Common Shares is suitable only for those investors who are willing to risk a
loss of their entire investment and who can afford 1o lose their entire investment. Purchasers should consult their own
professional advisors to assess the income tax, legal and other aspects of an investment in the Common Shares. See
“Risk Factors”,




GLOSSARY

In this prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, the following words and phrases have the meanings set forth
below.

“ABCA” means the Business Corporations Act (Alberta), including the regulations thereunder;

“Adminco” means Alter Nrg Administration Ltd., a corporation incorporated under the ABCA and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Alter Nrg;

“AERI"” means Alberta Energy Research Institute;

“Agency Agreement” means the agency agreement dated as of @, 2007 among the Corporation and the Agents
with respect to the Offering;

“Agents” means, collectively, Wellington West Capital Markets Inc., Canaccord Capital Corporation, Raymond James
Ltd., TD Securities Inc. and Paradigm Capital Inc;

“Alter LP” means Alter Nrg Limited Partnership, a limited partnership established pursuant to the laws of the Province of
Alberta;

“Alter Nrg” means Alter Nrg Ltd., a corporation incorporated under the ABCA;

“Alter Nrg Shares” means common shares of Alter Nrg;

“API” means degrees API, a measure of hydrocarbon density;

“BDR"” means Bower Damberger Rolseth Engineening Ltd.;

“bitumen” means a highly viscous crude oil;

“bituminous coal” means a relatively hard coal, of better quality than lignite but of poorer quality than anthracite coal;
*Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the Corporation, as from time to time constituted;

*Break Fee” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition - Acquisition Terms”;

“C&D" means Construction and Demolition waste matter;

“Cash Portion” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition - Acquisition Terms”;

“Closing Date” means the date of the closing of the Offering, expectedtobe onorabout @ 2007 and in any event
not later than ® | 2007;

*CO;"” means carbon dioxide;

*Commercial Trust” means Alter Nrg Commercial Trust, an unincorporated, open ended trust established under the laws
of Alberta;

“Common Shares” means common shares of the Corporation;

“Corporation” means Alter Nrg Corp., a corporation incorporated under the ABCA,;
“CRA" means the Canada Revenue Agency;

“CTL” means the conversion of coal to liquids;

“CT Unit” means a fully paid and non-assessable trust unit of the Commercial Trust;
“Dighe” means Dr. Shyam V. Dighe, P.E., the majority shareholder of WPC;

“diluted basis™ means the number of Common Shares cutstanding assuming the exercise of all outstanding options and
other rights to acquire Common Shares;

“DOE" means the United States Department of Energy;

“EOR"” means Enhanced Oil Recovery;

“Escrowed Securities” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Escrowed Securities”;
“EUB” means the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board;

“Exempt Plans” means, collectively, trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans, registered retirement income
funds, registered education savings plans and deferred profit sharing plans, each as defined in the Tax Act;
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“Existing Business” means the business carried on, prior to the Reorganization, by the Trust and its subsidiaries and,
subsequent to the Reorganization, by the Corporation and its subsidiaries, as outlined under “Alter Nrg Corp. —
Description of the Business™;

“Fox Creek Property” means Alter Nrg's coal holdings of the Fox Creek, Alberta property located in central Alberta and
as described in the Norwest Report;

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles in Canada;

“greenhouse gas effect” means the phenomenon whereby the earth’s atmosphere traps solar radiation, caused by the
presence in the atmosphere of gases such as CQO,, water vapour, and methane that allow incoming sunlight to pass through
but absorb heat radiated back from the earth’s surface;

“H,8” means hydrogen sulfide;
“IC&I" means Industrial, Commercial and Institutional waste matter;

“Kyoto Protocol” means the result of negotiations between industrial nations in Kyoto, Japan, in December of 1997
which sets binding greenhouse gas emissions targets for countries that sign and ratify the agreement and covers gases such
as CO,, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs) and sulphur hexafluoride;

“Long Lake Project” means the OPTI Canada Inc. and Nexen Inc. joint venture SAGD angd upgrading oilsands facility
near Long Lake, Alberta;

“LP Agreement” means the limited partnership agreement between Alter Nrg as general partner and the Commercial
Trust, providing for the creation of Alter LP, as the same may be amended from time to time;

“LP Unit” means a unit in Alter LP, which entitles the holder thereof to all the rights, benefits and obligations of a limited
partner under the LP Agreement;

“Management” means, prior to the Reorganization, the management of Alter Nrg and, subsequent to the Reorganization,
the management of the Corporation;

“Maximum Offering” means the maximum of @  Common Shares offered pursuant to this prospectus;
“MSW" means Municipal Solid Waste matter;

“NEB" means the National Energy Board;

“Norwest” means Norwest Corporation, independent energy, mining and environmental consultants;

“Norwest Report” means the technical report dated February 20, 2007 titled “Technical Report Alter Nrg Lid. Lands Fox
Creek Coal Property, Alberta” prepared by Norwest in accordance with the requirements of National Instrument 43-101,
Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects;

“NO,” means a mixture of nitrogen monoxide and nitrogen dioxide, a pollutant;
“NYSE"” means the New York Stock Exchange;

“QOctober Pronouncement” means the announcement made by the Minister of Finance {Canada) on October 31, 2006 of
the Federal Government’s intention to tax, inter alia, publicly traded trusts on distributions of income made to
beneficiaries;

“Offered Shares” means the Common Shares offered pursuant 1o this prospectus;

“Offering Price” means the price per Common Share offered pursuant to this prospectus;

“QOption” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Executive Compensation — Unit Option Plan™;
“Option Plan” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Executive Compensation -— Unit Option Plan”;
“PCB” means polychlorinate biphenyl;

“Person” means any individual, partnership, association, body corporate, trust, trustee, executor, administrator, legal
representative, government, regulatory authority or other entity;

“petcoke” means petroleum coke, a carbonaceous solid derived from oil refinery coker units or other cracking processes:

“Plan of Arrangement” means the statutory plan of arrangement in respect of the Corporation as described *“The
Reorganization™;
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“Post-Closing Escrow Agreement” means the escrow agreement to be dated the WPC Closing Date among Dighe, the
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Association, as escrow agent;

“Purchase Price” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition — Acquisition Terms™;
“Reactor” has the meaning ascribed thereto under *WPC Acquisition — WPC Technology™;
“Recycle Ratio” means cash flow per boe divided by the capital cost per boe;

“Reprganization” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “The Reorganization™;

“ROE" means return on equity which is calculated by dividing net earnings, less interest on debt and debt repayments, by
average equity and is a measure of the rate of investment return earned on equity;

“SAGD” means steam assisted gravity drainage, a production process for recovering bitumen from oilsands;

“sequestration” means a technique for the permanent storage of CO; or other active compounds so they will not be
released to the atmosphere and contribute to the greenhouse gas effect;

“Shareholder” means a holder from time to time of Common Shares;

“Share Portion” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition — Acquisition Terms”;

“Share Purchase Agreement” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition — Acquisition Terms”;
“Slag” means a glass-like, non-hazardous product produced from gasification of feedstocks by the WPC Technology;
“80,” is a shorthand for any of the oxides of sulphur including sulphur monoxide, sulphur dioxide or sulphur trioxide;
“Stock Option” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Executive Compensation — Stock Option Plan™;

“Stock Option Plan” means the proposed stock option plan of the Corporation;

“sub-bitumincus coal’” means a coal whose properties range from those of lignite to those of bituminous coal and is used
primarily as fuel for steam-electric power generation;

“Superfund site” means a site designated under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and
Liability Act which was enacted by the United States Congress on December 11, 1980 to protect people from heavily
contaminated toxic waste sites that have been abandoned;

“syngas’” is the name given to a synthesis gas mixture containing amounts of carbon monoxide and hydrogen;

“Tipping Fees” means the revenue received at WTE facility gates from receipt of waste which is based on a combination
of weight and type of waste;

“Trust” means Alter Nrg Income Fund, a trust established by the Trust Indenture pursuant to the laws of the Province of
Albena;

“Trust Indenture” means the indenture dated April 28, 2006 among the Trust Trustee, Alter Nrg and Cameron M.
Proctor, as settlor, under which the Trust was created, as the same may be amended from time to time;

“Trust Trustee” means Valiant Trust Company or any other entity appointed as trustee of the Trust pursuant to the terms
of the Trust Indenture;

“Trust Units” means fully paid and non-assessable trust units of the Trust as presently constituted;
“TSX” means the Toronto Stock Exchange;
“TSXV” means the TSX Venture Exchange;

“United States” and *U.S.” means the United States, its territories and possessions, any state of the United States and the
District of Columbia;

“Unitholder” means a holder of record of one or more Trust Units;

“UJS$"” means United States dollars;

“U.8. Securities Act” means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended;
“WEC” means Westinghouse Electric Corporation;

“WPC” means Westinghouse Plasma Corporation, a private corporation organized under the laws of the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania;

“WPC Acquisition” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition — Acquisition Terms”;
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“WPC Closing” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition — Acquisition Terms™;
“WPC Closing Date” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition — Acquisition Terms”;
“WPC Escrow Terms” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition — Acquisition Terms”;
“WPC License” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Development of the Business™;

“WPC Sharcholders” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition — Acquisition Terms”;
“WPC Shares” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition — Acquisition Terms”;

*WPC Technology” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “WPC Acquisition — WPC Technology™;
“WTE"” means waste to energy; and

“WTT” means West Texas Intermediate grade crude oil at a reference sales point in Cushing, Oklahoma, 2 common
benchmark for crude oil.

Unless otherwise indicated, references herein to “$” or “dollars” are to Canadian dollars. On February 23, 2007,
the noon exchange rate of the Bank of Canada was $1.0000 = US$0.8632,

ABBREVIATIONS

In this prospectus, the abbreviations set forth below have the following meanings:

bbl/d barrels of oil per day mbbl 1,000 barrels
bbls barrels of oil mboe 1,000 barrels of oil equivalent
bef 1,000,000,000 cubic feet of natural gas mcf 1,000 cubic feet
beoe barrels of oil equivalent mef/d 1,000 cubic feet of natural gas per day
boe/d barrels of oil equivalent per day mmbtu 1,000,000 British thermal units
btu British thermal units mmcf 1,000,000 cubic feet
°C degrees Celsius mmcf/d 1,000,000 cubic feet per day
Mt 1,000,000 tonnes
mtpy 1,000,000 tonnes per year
MW 1,000,000 watts
MWth 1,000,000 watts thermal
NGL natural gas liquids
OOIP original oil in place
USs United States dollars
$MM 1,000,000 dollars

Note: Disclosure provided herein in respect of boes may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. A boe
converston ratio of 6 mcf : 1 bbl is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner
tip and does not represent an economic value at the wellhead.

Conversion of hectares to acres: 1 hectare = 2.471 acres.

DEFINITIONS RELATED TO THE NORWEST REPORT

The disclosure contained in the Norwest Report uses the definitions and applicable mineral resource categories prescribed
by the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum, in the CIM Definition Standards on Mineral Resources
and Mineral Reserves adopted by CIM Council, as those definitions may be amended (the “CIM Standards”™). The CIM

Standards definitions of “mineral resource”, “measured mineral resource”, “indicated mineral resource™ and “inferred
mineral resource” are set out for reference below:

An “indicated mineral resource” is a mineral resource that is part of a mineral resource for which quantity, grade or
quality, densities, shape and physical characteristics can be estimated with confidence. An indicated mineral resource has
a higher level of confidence than an inferred mineral resource but has a lower level of confidence than a measured mineral
resource,
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An “inferred mineral resource” is a mineral resource that is part of a mineral resource for which quantity and grade or
quality can be estimated on the basis of geclogical evidence and limited sampling, and reasonably assumed, but not
verified, geological and grade continuity, The estimate is based on limited information and sampling gathered through
appropriate techniques from locations such as outcrops, trenches, pit, workings and drill holes. Due to the uncertainty
attached to inferred mineral resources, it cannot be assumed that all or any part of an inferred mineral resource will be
upgraded to an indicated or measured mineral resource or that it is economically or legatly mineable. An inferred mineral
resource has a lower level of confidence than that applied to an indicated mineral resource.

A “measured mineral resource” is a mineral resource that is part of a mineral resource for which quantity, grade or
quality, densities, shape and physical characteristics are so well established with a high level of confidence.

A “mineral resource” is the occurrence of a mineral in a form, amount and quality that it has a reasonabte prospect for
economic extraction but which has not been economically evaluated by a feasibility siudy or which does not meet current
economic or technical criteria for mining. Mineral resources are upgraded to mineral reserves after a preliminary
feasibility study shows that the mineral resource is anticipated to be economically mineable and there are no known legal
impediments to mining the mineral.

See **Coal Rights”.
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DESCRIPTION OF GASIFICATION PROCESS

Gasification can convert any low value carbon-containing feedstock, including municipal waste, biomass (wood chips,
agricultural waste), petcoke, refinery residue and coal, into high value energy products including hydrogen, synthesis gas
(“syngas™), steam, electricity and transportation fuels. The gasification process, as compared to conventional energy
production methods such as coal fired power plants, also reduces air emissions, including greenhouse gases, sulphur
oxides and nitrous oxides. All gasification reactor designs have similar internal chemical reactions, however the process
efficiencies can be varied by using different combinations of pressure and temperature. See “Industry Overview — The
Gasification Process”.

Additionally, gasification is a commercially proven and well established process. For instance, South Africa has been
commercially applying gasification to create gasoline and diesel fuel for over 30 years. Approximately 30% of South
Africa’s current transportation fuel needs are derived from coal gasification (Source: World Coal Institute, “Coal: Liquid
Fuels”, October 2006). Until recently, gasification has been more expensive than conventional production, but the
increasing spread between the cost of gasification feedstocks like coal and the price of gasification products like
biodegradable sulphur-free diesel have made gasification more economical in the production of liquid fuels. See
“Industry Overview — The Gasification Process.”

Management believes that due to gasification’s: (i) matrix of potential inputs and outputs; (ii) potenttal environmental
benefits versus other enerpy production methods; and (iii) proven and established process, the Corporation will be
provided with a wide range of business opportunities and the flexibility to maximize value in an environment of volatile
commodity prices.

ALTER NRG CORP.

The Corporation was incorporated under the ABCA on February 20, 2007. The head and registered offices of the
Corporation are located at Suite 420, 1414 — 8th Street S.W., Calgary, Alberta, Canada T2R 1J6.

The Corporation is a development-stage entity pursuing energy solutions to meet the growing demand for
environmentally responsible energy in world markets. The Corporation’s vision is to become a North American leader
in the development of innovative gasification projects for the commercial production of energy.

The Corporation’s objective for the next decade is to become a senior energy producer of hydrogen, syngas, and
transportation fuels such as biodegradable sulphur free diesel, ethanol, steam or electricity, all of which are fundamental
products for the world’s growing energy needs.

The Corporation, which has the ability to economically capture carbon dioxide (“CQ,”) while producing energy through
use of the WPC Technology, will endeavour 1o help industries meet their energy needs while reducing emissions of
greenhouse gases and complying with any upcoming government mandated greenhouse gas emission limitations,

Alter Nrg, the Corporation’s predecessor to the Existing Business, was incorporated in November 2005 and commenced
operations in March 2006 and has since secured an established gasification technology, namely the WPC Technology (see
“Development of the Business” and “WPC Acquisition”), secured a suitable coal resource for gasification, assembled a
strong and experienced management team (comprised of an experienced group of engineering and project management
professionals who have worked together for up to 20 years), and developed a focused and tangible business plan. The
Corporation believes that assembling these key components uniquely positions it as a fully integrated gasification
company that is well positioned to execute its plans in the dynamic and growing gasification market.
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DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS

Since inception in March 2006, the Corporation has taken the following steps towards its objective of becoming a leading
North American fully integrated gasification corporation:

+  OnJune 5, 2006, Alter Nrg entered into a license agreement with WPC (the “WPC License”) with respect to the
WPC Technology. The fundamental terms of the WPC License are as follows:

+ The exclusive right to use the WPC Technology in Canada for coal, petcoke and refinery residue for an initial
term of five years up to June 5, 2011.

+ The exclusive right to use the WPC Technology for all other feedstocks, including municipal waste and
biomass in Western Canada, and a right of first refusal to participate in projects in Eastern Canada using these
feedstocks.

+ Payments made or to be made by Alter Nrg to WPC under the WPC License include:

*

A $250,000 initial payment upon entering into the WPC Licence on June 5, 2006,

The contracting of US$400,000 worth of engineering services from WPC to establish the commercial
economics of the WPC Technology, such services to be ordered by Alter Nrg within 6 months of the
contract date. Such services have been contracted and will be paid for when rendered.

$750,000, payable as to $450,000 in cash and $300,000 in Trust Units, upon the satisfactory completion
of the initial engineering services.

$600,000 on June 5, 2009 to maintain the exclusivity rights for the remainder of the five year term. This
$600,000 is not payable if an order for a Plasma Torch System having a value of at least US$5 million is
placed prior to June 5, 2009 and is refundable if such an order is placed after June 5, 2009 but before the
end of the initial five year term.

$400,000, payable as to $200,000 in cash and $200,000 in Trust Units, at the earlier of the startup of an
initial project utilizing the WPC Technology and 48 months.

US$600,000 per year for each year after the initial five year term unless Alter Nrg places US$5 million of
plasma torch system orders by Alter Nrg or a customer of Alter Nig to extend the exclusivity feature one
year for each US$5 million payment.

* In August 2006, Alter Nrg procured eight Crown coal leases, comprising 27,456 hectares in total, in three
geographic areas within Alberta suitable for surface coal mining of sub-bituminous coal. The key area is the Fox
Creek Property, which has approximately 770 million tonnes of coal in place (as evaluated in the Norwest
Report). See “Coal Rights”.

«  On December 2, 2006, Alter Nrg entered into the Share Purchase Agreement to acquire all of the WPC Shares,
See “WPC Acquisition”.

+ Assembling a strong technical team of professionals who have a history of innovation and effective project
execution. See "“The Corporation’s Execution and Technical Strengths”.

*  From March 2006 to January 2007, the Trust raised $13.5 million through issuances of Trust Units, with
$9.0 million cash remaining at December 31, 2006. See “Prior Sales of Securities”.

COAL RIGHTS

In 2001, Mr. Michael E. Heier engaged LAS Associates Ltd. and Retread Resources Lid., both organizations with Western
Canadian coal expertise, to idemtify surface mineable coal resource acquisition opportunities in Alberta and
Saskatchewan. A list of 39 favourable Alberta deposits and several Saskatchewan deposits were identified from which
Mr. Heier and consultants from the foregoing organizations generated a list of what they considered to be the most
promising prospects. These prospects were ranked based on criteria that Mr. Heier and the consultants believed would be
suitable for gasification.
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Coal Lease Purchase Summary

On August 3, 2006, Alter Nrg successfully procured eight coal leases through a public sale held by the Mineral
Devetopment Division of the Alberta Department of Energy. The aggregate purchase price was $964,096, which included
the bonus, first year lease rent and the posting fee. The annual rental fee for all eight leases will be $96,096, for a 15-year
term. The eight leases, located in three separate areas, are further described below.

/ Fox Creek

- Hinton Area

/ Wetaskwin Area

Fox Creek Property
Norwest Report

Alter Nrg retained Norwest to prepare the Norwest Report in respect of its Fox Creek Property. Norwest is an independent
firm of energy, mining and environmental consultants that has been working in the field of mineral resource and mineral
reserve estimation since 1979. Norwest is an international firm, with its Canadian head office located in Calgary. Geoff
Jordan, P.Geol., and Craig Acott, P.Eng., each a “qualified person” in accordance with the requirements of National
Instrument 43-101, were responsible for the Norwest Report.

The Norwest Report has been filed by the Corporation with the securities regulatory authorities in each of the provinces of
Canada, except Quebec, and is available on www.sedar.com. The fellowing information is a summary only of certain of
the information contained in the Norwest Report. Reference should be made to the complete text of the Norwest
Report for a further discussion of the key assumptions, parameters and methods used to estimate the mineral
resources and mineral reserves described below, as well as the methods used to verify the data disclosed.
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Property Description and Location

The Fox Creek Property is centred approximately on Township 65, Range 18 W5, which is about 27 kilometres northeast
of the town of Fox Creek, in the plains region of central Alberta. The Fox Creek Property is located on Highway #43,
midway between Edmonton and Grande Prairie.

The coal license tenures for the Fox Creek Property are held by Alter Nrg under six Alberta Government Mineral
Agreements as shown in the table below. The Fox Creek Property covers an area under tenure of 21,760 hectares, The
resource area is situated over approximately 15,000 hectares within the coal tenures. The Fox Creek Property is
encumbered by Crown ccal royalties that are payable on coal production. Under the current regulations, the royalty rate
for Crown owned sub-bituminous coal is $0.55 per tonne,

Coal License Tenures and Applications

Term Area Meridian/ Range/
Agreement Number Date (ha) Township Sections
0131306080743 ....... .. .. ... .. ..... 2006-08-04 5,888 5-17-064 22,23,24W,25-28,31-36
5-17-065 1-6,85,9-12
013 1306080744 ..................... 2006-08-04 3,328 5-18-064 4-6,8-10,15-18,20,215,228
5-19-064 1
013 1306080745 ... .. .. .. 2006-08-04 3,584 5-17-065 19-23,27-33
5-18-065 25,36
013 1306080746 .. ... ... ... ... ... 2006-08-04 4,096 5-18-065 9-11,14-16,19-22,28-33
013 1306080747 .. ... o 2006-08-04 2,816 5-18-066 5,6
5-19-065 23-26,36
5-19-066 1,2,11,12
0131306080748 ... ... ... ... .. ... 2006-08-04 2,048 5-17-066 3-7

5-18-066 1,2,12

There are no areas of previous underground or surface mining within the Fox Creek Property.

Accessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrastructure and Physiography

The Fox Creek Property is accessible via Highway #43 and a network of secondary oil and gas roads that extend from
Highway #43. The closest major centre is the town of Fox Creek (13 kilometres to the southwest), and the closest
settlements are Two Creeks (28.5 kilometres to the south), Goose Mountain Provincial Park (33 kilometres to the
northeast) and Meekwap Lake (located in the centre area). Major power and natural gas pipelines are in close proximity to
the Fox Creek Property.

The Fox Creek Property is bordered on the east by Swan Hills and on the southwest by outliers of the Rocky Mountain
Foothills. Two main rivers, the Simonette and Little Smoky, establish the principal northward drainage pattern in the area.
Topography is typified by flat to gently rolling terrain, generally from 670 metres to 73(} metres above sea level, underlain
by bedrock with thin till cover or by extensive postglacial lacustrine sediments. This low plain is disrupted by irregular
sub-parallel distinctive sandstone ridges, particularly to the northwest. Extensive areas of interrupted drainage are typified
by black spruce bogs and muskeg. To a certain extent, the physiography is a reflection of underlying bedrock geology with
higher ridges characteristic of hard siltstones and sandstones while lower areas are underlain by softer lithologies
including coal.

History

The Research Council of Alberta conducted the first modern coal exploration in the Fox Creek area in 1968 and 1969, The
Research Council drilled over 60 rotary drill holes and produced reports of this exploration. The leases were subsequently
acquired by Shell Canada Limited (“Shell”) and Esso Resources Canada Limited (“Esso™).

Shell conducted drilling exploration from 1972 to 1974 on the leases that they acquired and began mine design work
subsequent to this. Exploration activities, however, were suspended by Shell in 1976. In 19677, Alberta Power Limited
reviewed and studied the Shell exploration data with a view to acquiring some of the areas and developing a power
generation station; however, this project did not proceed. Shell reactivated its project in 1991, but has not undertaken new
drilling since that time.
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The Fox Creek leases that were acquired by Esso were drilled and sampled in 1974 and further work was conducted in
1978 and 1979. Esso prepared a preliminary feasibility study in 1981 for the development of a dragline surface mine but
no further work has occurred since that time.

Alter Nrg acquired the coal leases related to the Fox Creek Property through a public sale held by the Mineral
Development Division of the Alberta Department of Energy for $795,000.

Geological Setting

The Fox Creek Property is located in the central plain area of Alberta. Regionally, the strata in this area lie on the eastern
limb of the Alberta Syncline. Beds generally strike northwest — southeast and dip very gently in a west-southwest
direction. The coal seams are contained in the Lower and Upper Ardley coal zones. The Ardley zone consists of
11 correlatable coal units within a stratigraphic thickness of approximately 15 metres. Bentonitic layers are common
within this zone. Correlation of coal beds within the lease areas is not difficult, but seam thickness variations and pinch-
outs are common. Channelling, or complete replacement of coal beds by sandstone units is a less common feature.

Exploration

To date, neither Alter Nrg, nor any third party on behalf of Alter Nrg, has conducted any exploration of the Fox Creek
Property.

Mineralization

The sub-bituminous coal at the Fox Creek Property is part of the Scollard Formation. The coal seams are relatively
consistent in nature, but thickness variations from place to place do occur. There are 11 seams intercalated with bentonite
layers and shale and the aggregate thickness of a typical section is 9.26 metres.

Drilling

Previous drilling carried out between 1967 and the present has resulted in over 400 coal exploration drill heles being
drilled throughout the entire Fox Creek Property. Alter Nrg has not conducted any drilling.

Sampling, Analysis and Security

Typical procedures for sampling coal seams at the Fox Creek Property involved coring or the use of rotary drilling. Cores
were examined following retrieval and all field subsamples were then sealed before being forwarded to an independent
laboratory for testing and analysis. Composite samples were blended at the laboratory for further analysis.

Samples were collected from drill core and cuttings and submitted for analysis using methods that are standard for the coat
industry. The cores were measured and described to document various attributes including lithology, colour, hardness and
grain size. Each core was subject to a down-hole geophysical logging program used to identify rock types. Geologists
measured thickness and described the coal, inter-seam partings, adjacent roof and floor rock, and details of any sample
intervals removed for analysis. Recovered core was measured to determine an overall recovery by comparing the
recovered core length with the coring run length recorded by the driller. Recovered core was measured and compared to
the coal interval thickness determined from the geophysical log suite. Collected samples were cleaned of any mud
contamination and placed in individual plastic bags. The bags were labelled on the outside with both the core hole and
sample number and sealed with plastic tape to prevent excessive moisture loss. The sample bags were placed together in a
collection bag for the core hole before being placed in palletized containers and shipped to an independent lab for
analysis.

Fox Creek Property Mineral Resources
The resource information on the Fox Creek Property is as reported in the Norwest Report.

In preparing the Norwest Report, Norwest confirmed the documented geology and coal development and verified the coal
resources by conducting data reviews, geologic modeling, resource calculations and a site visit. Norwest employed
MineSight software to construct a gridded seam model of the Fox Creek Property in order to estimate volumes of in-place
coal resources, The geological model that has been prepared for the Norwest Report includes a total of 201 holes. Key
horizons or “surfaces” were modeled to provide the required inputs for volume estimation. Volumes were converted to
tonnage by the application of density values representative of the coal seam modeled. In addition, Norwest reviewed initial
geological interpretations and their relationship to the raw data were confirmed through use of the EUB coal database.
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In the Fox Creek Property area, the near-surface coals are ranked sub-bitumincus C. Coal core samples were subjected to a
number of analyses to determine the level of moisture, ash, volatile martter and fixed carbon in the coal, to determine the
percent of sulphur in the coal, and to determine the amount of energy in kilojoules per kilogram of coal.

The following table sets forth Alter Nrg's in-place mineable coal resources as at February 20, 2007:

Fox Creek Coal Project
Coal Resource Summary
as at February 20, 2007

In-Place Surface Mineable Coal Resources
down to 13:1 strip ratio (tonnes)

ASTM Group Measured Indicated Inferred
Sub-bituminous C . ... ... .. L 400,042,000 370,256,000 111,768,000
Total. ... 770,298,000 111,768,000

In-Place Surface Mineable Coal Resources
13:1 down to 20:1 strip ratio (tonnes)

Measured Indicated Inferred
Sub-bituminous C .. . e e e 11,047,000 25,048,000 17,820,000
Total . ... 36,095,000 17,820,000

Noles:

(1) Coal mineral resources are reported in thousands of metric tonnes in ground before mining and without the application of recovery factors.
However, minimum mineable seam thickness and maximum removable parting thickness were considered, Coal mineral reserves are not included
in coal mineral resources. Coal mineral resources do not have demonstrated economic viability.

{2y  Coal mincral resources are classified as to the assurance of their existence into one of three categories: measured, indicated and inferred. The
category to which a resource is assigned depends on the level of confidence in the geological information available. See “Definitions Related 1o
the Norwest Report”™.

The following table sets forth the quality of the Alter Nrg’s coal resources by seam;

Summary In-Place Coal Quality

Air Dried Analyses
Moisture Ash Heating Value

Seam No. (%) (%) (Mji/Kg)
L e 12.00 22.20 19.55
2 3T 8.40 26.70 18.99
2 LW, L e e e 11.10 28.40 18.16
O 10.40 43.50 13.53
O 11.45 2643 18.13
S e e e e e e 11.40 41.20 13.76
& P 8.90 46.20 12.50
T e e e e e 10.04 38.53 14.90
- 10.60 26.50 18.86
e e e e e e 10.02 40.74 14.15
L0 e e e e e
) 1295 23.87 18.96
AV A . . . .. e 10.48 32.84 16.59

Notes:

(1}  Coal mineral resources are reported in thousands of metric tonnes in ground before mining and without the application of recovery factors,
However, minimum mineable seam thickness and maximum removable parting thickness were considered. Coal mineral reserves are not included
in coal mineral resources. Coal mineral resources do not have demonstrated economic viability.

(2)  Coal mineral resources are classified as to the assurance of their existence into one of three categories: measured, indicated and inferred. The
category to which a resource is assigned depends on the level of confidence in the geological information available. See “Definitions Related to
the Norwest Report™.
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Exploration and Development

At this time, Alter Nrg is not conducting exploration or development activities on the Fox Creek Property, nor does it
currently have plans to commence such exploration or development. In the future, Management anticipates that coal from
the Fox Creek Property will be used as feedstock for its gasification projects.

Hinton and Wetaskiwin

Alter Nrg also acquired two coal leases in the Hinton and Wetaskiwin areas of Alberta. The Hinton properties have a
history of exploration dating back to the 1970’s and bore holes indicate that it is a high grade sub-bituminous coal. The
Corporation is advancing third party resource technical assessment work. Currently, Management believes these coal
leases are longer term business prospects and not currently material to its business plan.

Conversion of Coal to Liquid Fuels

Based on third party data, Management believes that one tonne of ceal will equate to approximately 1.6 boe of liquid
fuels, such as gasoline or diesel, through gasification. The Fox Creek Property, with its approximately 770 million tonnes
of coal {as evaluated in the Norwest Report), is expected to be used by the Corporation as feedstock for its CTL projects.
See “Project Opportunities and Market Descriptions — Coal to Liquids Market — The Corporation’s CTL Strategy™.

WPC ACQUISITION

Acquisition Terms

On December 2, 2006, Alter Nrg entered into a share purchase agreement, as amended on February 20, 2007 (the “Share
Purchase Agreement’™), with Dighe and a minority shareholder (collectively, the “WPC Shareholders™) pursuant to
which Alter Nrg agreed to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares (the “WPC Shares”) of WPC (the “WPC
Acquisition™). WPC is a private corporation organized under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. On
® |, 2007, the Share Purchase Agreement was further amended and assigned by Alter Nrg to the Corporation.

The purchase price (the “Purchase Price™) to be paid to the WPC Shareholders pursuant to the Share Purchase
Agreement is an aggregate of US$29,000,000, of which US$22,000,000 is payable in cash (the “Cash Portion™') with the
balance payable through the issuance of that number of Common Shares (at the Offering Price) equal to US$7,000,000
(the “Share Portion™). The entirety of the Share Portion is payable to Dighe. At the closing of the transaction
contemplated by the Share Purchase Agreement (the “WPC Closing™), the Cash Portion and the Share Portion will be
payable to the WPC Shareholders, with the exception of US$4,100,000 of the Cash Portion and US$1,000,000 of the
Share Portion payable to Dighe, which will be held in escrow pursuant to the Post-Closing Escrow Agreement and
released to Dighe in increments over the balance of 2007. Within 90 days of the date of the WPC Closing (the “WPC
Closing Date”), the Purchase Price will be adjusted on a dollar for dollar basis by: (i) being decreased by any amount by
which WPC'’s working capital balance (calculated pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement) as at the WPC Closing Date
is less than US$150,000; or (ii) being increased by any amount by which WPC’s working capital balance (calculated
pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement} as at the WPC Closing Date is greater than US$150,000, to a maximum
increase of US$325,000. In the circumstances contemplated by (i) above, the WPC Shareholders will make payment to
the Corporation of any difference owing, and in the circumstances contemplated by (ii) above, the Corporation will make
payment to the WPC Shareholders of any difference owing,.

Notwithstanding the existence of the Post-Closing Escrow Agreement, Dighe has agreed that the Common Shares
comprising the Share Portion will be subject to contractual escrow on terms substantially similar to those imposed on the
Corporation’s directors and officers pursuant to the Offering (the “WPC Escrow Terms”) if such terms are more onerous
than those contained in the Post-Closing Escrow Agreement. [t is anticipated that on the WPC Closing Date, Dighe will
enter into an agreement substantially similar to the Escrow Agreements entered into by the Principals (See “Escrowed
Securities”) in respect of the Share Portion. In addition, if, subsequent to the expiration of any hold periods applicable to
the Common Shares (as may be imposed by applicable law, the rules of the TSXV or the Escrow Terms) and prior to the
date which is 18 months from the WPC Closing Date, Dighe wishes to sell or otherwise dispose of any Common Shares,
he will allow the Corporation (if the Corporation so desires) ten days to facilitate such sale or disposition at an equivalent
price per Common Share (and without any greater commission, fee or other charge) through other means.

If the Corporation terminates the Share Purchase Agreement or if the WPC Closing Date does not occur by April 30,2007,
for any reason except for a default under the Share Purchase Agreement by the WPC Shareholders, the Corporation has
agreed to pay to the WPC Shareholders a break fee equal to US$3,300 per day (the “Break Fee”) for each day which has
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elapsed from December 2, 2006 to the earlier of the day the Corporation provides notice to the WPC Shareholders of the
termination of the Share Purchase Agreement or April 30, 2007.

The Share Purchase Agreement contains representations and warranties of the parties which are typical for transactions of
this type, and which survive for 18 months from the WPC Closing Date. The Share Purchase Agreement also contains
covenants typical for transactions of this type, which require the WPC Shareholders to cause WPC to carry on its business
in the normal and ordinary course, consistent with past practice, until the WPC Closing Date. The Share Purchase
Agreement also contains indemnification provisions, including mutual indemnities by both the Corporation and the WPC
Shareholders (on a several basis) for such matters as material misrepresentations or breaches of warranties or the failure to
perform or observe, in any material respect, any of the covenants or agreements thereunder. Depending upon the nature of
the claim, the liability of the WPC Shareholders is either restricted to 100% of the Purchase Price paid, or, alternatively,
10% of the Purchase Price paid. In certain circumstances, no claim for indemnity under the Share Purchase Agreement
may be made by the Corporation untii the aggregate of such claims exceeds US$1,250,000.

A portion of the net proceeds from this Offering will be applied to the Cash Portion of the Purchase Price. Closing of this
Offering is conditicnal upon the satisfaction of all conditions relating to the completion of the Reorganization and the
WPC Acquisition, other than the payment of the Purchase Price in respect thereof. In the event that either this Offering or
the Reorganization is not completed, the WPC Acquisition will not be completed. See *“The Reorganization” and “Use of
Proceeds”. Closing of the WPC Acquisition is also subject to satisfaction of conditions which are typical for a share
purchase of this nature, including: (i) Alter Nrg's satisfaction, in its sole and unrestricted discretion, with its due diligence
investigations of WPC, WPC’s business and WPC’s assets; (ii) the transfer by the WPC Shareholders at the WPC Closing
of the WPC Shares to the Corporation free and clear of any security interests or other encumbrances, other than certain
permitted encumbrances; and (iii) receipt of all necessary approvals and third party consents,

It is a further condition of the WPC Acquisition that each of the WPC Shareholders enter into non-competition agreements
with the Corporation and WPC whereby each will agree not to compete in the high temperature plasma business for three
years subsequent to the WPC Closing Date in Canada and the continental United States of America. In addition, Dighe
will enter into an employment agreement with WPC pursuant to which he will serve as the President of WPC.

WPC Technology

WPC continues the high temperature plasma gasification business (the “WPC Technology™) of the former Westinghouse
Electric Corporation (“WEC"). Dighe, one of the principal scientists behind WEC's plasma development program,
acquired the plasma business from WEC in 1999 and created WPC.

Plasma is a scientific term referring to the fourth state of matter, which is a very high temperature ionized gas, such as
exists at the surface of the sun. WEC’s plasma technology has been under development for the last 50 years. WEC’s
original objective was to provide an enabling tool for engineers and scientists who needed to use very high temperatures
for new process applications. Over the 50 year development period, WEC and WPC have collectively invested into the
research and development of WPC's industrial quality plasma torches and gasifier designs.

One of the process applications developed at WPC'’s Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania facility, known as the Plasma Center, is the
Westinghouse Plasma Gasification Reactor (the “Reactor”). The Reactor enables a wide variety of ‘opportunity fuels’
such as petcoke, refinery residue, coal, coal fines, biomass (such as wood waste and agricultural waste), municipal solid
waste, industrial sludge and auto shredder residues to be converted into an economically competitive fuel gas or syngas,
with minimal undesirable by-products and emissions. This is currently done in an ambient pressure, gravity fed vessel
using regular air as the process gas, resulting in 100% gasification of organic material into syngas with no tars produced.
The Reactor accomplishes this by generating very high temperatures at the bottom of the Reactor to dramatically increase
the kinetic rates of the various chemical reactions occurring in that zone, while also melting the inorganic constituents
(ash) of the feed into a glass slag. The syngas produced can be used for a variety of different chemical and industrial uses.
See “Industry Overview — The Gasification Process”

Comparison of the WPC Technology and Conventional Gasification

The Corporation believes that the WPC Technology has the following advantages over conventional gasification
technologies.

+ Environmentally Benign. The WPC Technology has the capability of operating at much higher temperatures
than any conventional gasifier, producing a glass-like non-leachable slag from any feedstock. Current analysis
conducted by WPC indicates that the slag is environmentally benign and could be used directly in the
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construction of buildings and roads. Many other gasification technologies produce a leachable ash that must be
landfilled or treated before it can be used.

=  Wide Range of Feedstocks. The feedstock for all conventional gasifiers must undergo a preparation process to
make it suitable for gasification. In some cases, the feedstock for conventional gasifiers must meet very tight
tolerances for size, heating value and moisture content. The WPC Technology can accommodate very
heterogeneous feedstocks.

« Variable Heating Value. The WPC Technology can handle feedstocks with a very wide range of heating
value; everything from waste to bitumen. The gasifiers marketed by most of the large gasifier companies do not
accept waste or biomass as a feedstock. Because of the intense temperatures generated by a plasma gasifier
utilizing the WPC Technology, it can also safely handle hazardous waste.

*+ Metal Recovery. Because the WPC Technology produces a slag and not ash, it is significantly easier and less
costly to recover valuable metals.

+ High Reliability. The WPC Technology is based on the foundry cupola, a well known and simple design used
for centuries in the mining and ore industry. Management believes the simple design of the Reactor results in
higher plant availability and produces a high quality syngas.

Development of the WPC Technology for Various Feedstocks and End-Products

WEC went through a number of strategic reorganizations in the 1980’s and 1990’s. During that period, the focus of the
WPC Technology development was on remediation of environmental waste, in particular a Superfund site with
polychlorinate bipheny! (“PCB”) contamination for which WEC was a principal responsible party. It was that focus
that led to the WPC Technology being advanced and used commercially to gasify municipal solid waste. Hitachi Metals
Ltd. chose the WPC Technology for one demonstration plant and two commercial WTE facilities in Japan. The Hitachi
Metals Ltd. Utashinai facility, which has been in operation since 2003, was designed to process approximately 280 tonnes
per day of MSW or a combination of MSW and auto shredder residue at a rate of approximately 190 tonnes per day.

It has only been within the last few years that WPC has directed its attention to coal, petcoke and biomass as potential
feedstocks. During that period, several companies, including the Corporation, have been working with WPC to run pilot
tests on the feedstocks such as the various ranks of coal, petcoke and heavy oil.

Acquisition Rationale
The Corperation believes that the WPC Acquisition will provide the Corporation with the following benefits:

+ Positive Cash Flow with Upside Potential. WPC has had positive cash flow for the past several years. WPC is
a research and development focused organization which has not allocated significant resources towards business
development. Management believes that with increased business development efforts, WPC’s cash flow can be
increased. In addition, WPC has existing customers that are expected to provide future revenue streams.

» Commercially Proven Technology. The key compaonent of the WPC Technology, being the plasma gun, has
been applied commercially for over 15 years and has benefited from years of WEC research and development. It
is commercially proven in gasification with several operational gasification facilities that have proven to be
robust and reliable.

* Direction over the Technology. Ownership of WPC, and therefore, the WPC Technology, means the
Corporation can direct WPC'’s research, development and strategy to benefit the Corporation’s projects going
forward.

*  Access to Global Markets. WPC has recently made sales of the WPC Technology to a company in India and
has sales opportunities in the U.S. and other countries. This provides the Corporation an opportunity to
participate and develop projects worldwide.

* Access to Research and Development. WPC has completed approximately 100 pilot tests, has 24 active
patents worldwide and has a wealth of expertise in plasma systems and plasma gasification. The Corporation
believes that this research and development expertence will allow the Corporation’s technical personnel to
explore additional business opportunities.

*  Multiple Product Applications. Plasma systems have been and can be applied to commercial applications
other than gasification which Management believes provides the potential to increase sales volumes by WPC.
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+ Broader Gasification Solutions, The combination of the plasma gasification experience at WPC with the
engineering, construction, and balance of plant expertise of the Corporation is expected to allow the joint entity
to provide a more complete gasification system for the customer.

* Infrastructure. The Plasma Center is an approximately 30,000 square foot pilot and office facility outside
Pittsburgh, Pennsyivania where WPC has performed approximately 100 pilot tests on varying feedstocks.

Management intends that, initially, WPC will be run as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Corporation and will continue to
be located in Pennsylvania. Management will work to provide business development and marketing expertise to imprave
the sales and related cash flow of WPC. Management believes that the WPC Acquisition is a significant opportunity to
acquire the established WPC Technology and thereby increase the overall value of the Corporation,

Additional Opportunities for the WPC Technology

Management expects the WPC Technology can be applied commercially outside of the areas that have traditionally
benefited from the WPC Technology. In addition to being used to gasify waste, the WPC Technology is currently being
used for metal recovery in the following two applications.

¢ Alcan Intemnational Limited has used WPC plasma torches at their Guillaume-Tremblay plant, located in
Jonquiere, Quebec since 1990 for the efficient processing of dross (dross is a mass of solid impurities floating on
a molten metal bath). (Source: Serge Lavoie and Jacques Lachance, Five Years of Industrial Experience with the
Plasma Dross Treatment Process”, 1995)

* General Motors Corporation, at their powertrain plant in Defiance, Ohio, has been operating a plasma cupola
since June 1989 for the production of gray iron used in making engine blocks and other automotive castings.
(Source: Jim Gary, er al., *“Plasma Cupola Operations at General Motors Foundry™, May 10, 1998).

Other potential business opportunities for the WPC Technology in areas other than gasification and metal recovery
applications include:

+ The destruction of hazardous organics and high-level radioactive waste. WPC conducted successful test
programs in these areas through out the early 1990s. (Source: www.westinghouse-plasma.com, December 2002)

* Specialty coatings, such as the deposition of diamond films. WPC conducted extensive testing, from 1993 to
2005,with Siemens Corp. for the development of specialty protective coatings on gas turbine blades.

+ Catalyst recovery. WPC has conducted testing and is contractually engaged with a U.S. company that is
evaluating the use of the WPC Technology to assist in the efficient recovery of spent catalyst from industriai
processes.

« Upgrading of oilsands bitumen. WPC and Alter Nrg conducted an initial pilot test in October 2006, whereby
heavy oil with similar characteristics to oilsands bitumen was introduced into the Reactor under conditions
which would promote upgrading. Although the WPC Plasma Center was not designed for this process, there were
sufficient volumes of heavy oil upgraded to a higher quality oil product that the Corporation and WPC intend to
continue to pursue further pilot work. The WPC Technology, integrated with a SAGD project, has the potential to
provide the necessary heat for steam generation and to produce an upgraded product. Management believes there
is potential to provide a step change for lower capital and operating costs and to support commercial scale field
upgrading.

Management intends to increase marketing and sales efforts at WPC for numerous potential industrial applications of the
WPC Technology. Management expects that this will diversify WPC’s revenue siream and lead to advances in the WPC
Technology to create further opportunities.

27




DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Corporate Strategy
Vision

To become a senior energy producer by leading the development of innovative gasification projects for commercial
energy production,

Mission
+ To participate in strategic or financially accretive projects or make acquisitions in the emerging alternative
energy market.

» To be a leader in innovative gasification-related technologies applied to produce profitable and clean alternative
energy solutions.

+ To invest in the skills of the Corporation’s people who will provide the creativity, determination and passion to
generate growth in Shareholder value,

+ To conduct its activities with transparency and fairness and to work together to form positive relationships in the
communities in which the Corporation operates and with all of its stakeholders.

Target Markets
The Corporation initially intends to focus its efforts on the following three target markets:
1. WTE: Gasification of waste products to produce syngas or electricity.

2. Oilsands: Gasification of petcoke or refinery residue for the production of syngas to be used in SAGD projects
and hydrogen for use in bitumen upgrading.

3. CTL: Gasification of coal to create hydrogen, syngas, naphtha and sulphur-free diesel.

Corporate Objectives and Milestones
Overview

To meet its long term objective of becoming a senior energy producer, the Corporation is using a staged strategy in each of
its three target markets, as discussed below.

Management believes the target markets provide the opportunity to grow rapidly and in staged increments. The initial
WTE project is expected to cost approximately $105 million for 1,100 boe/d of production which is an achievable size of
project to provide initial cash flow and strengthen the Corporation’s balance sheet. The WPC Technology is commercially
proven in WTE projects, and the Corporation is advancing business relationships with both government and private waste
companies in an effort to have a commercial scale WTE facility operational within a three year timeframe. The
Corporation will then look to replicate WTE on a larger scale throughout North America in markets that offer the
economic potential outlined under “Project Opportunities and Market Descriptions — Waste to Energy Market”,
Management believes that it has significant opportunities in the Ontario WTE market alone to provide accretive growth in
its energy production base and cash flow.

The oilsands are expected to be a crucial part of Alberta’s future growth. The oilsands require an enormous amount of
energy in order to extract the bitumen and turn it into saleable energy products. Gasification is an attractive method to
provide energy for the extraction process using a by-product of upgrading (petcoke) as the feedstock to produce steam or
hydrogen while offering attractive project returns. Management believes that the WPC Technology, combined with a
modular construction approach, can provide a flexible and scalable energy solution for oilsands producers. The
Corporation’s short term abjective is to optimize and showcase the WPC Technology, for application in an oilsands
process, in a joint demonstration facility (for both oilsands and CTL) to be constructed over the next 18 months at a cost of
$10 million to $20 million, Management is currently discussing its oilsands gasification solution with several companies
and intends to aggressively pursue undertaking gasification facilities projects in the oilsands which would each produce
approximately 4,000 boe/d or greater once the demonstration facility is completed.

The Corporation has acquired the Fox Creek Property which provides ownership of feedstock resources which can be used
to develop a CTL project to produce gasoline or diesel. See “Coal Rights — Fox Creek Property”. As described under the
heading “Industry Overview”, CTL facilities have been producing significant quantities of liquid fuels worldwide, and
numerous projects are being developed worldwide in this growth industry. The Corporation believes that CTL presents an
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opportunity offering attractive returns on projects and long-lived production. Management expects to use a modular
construction approach to allow it to construct smaller 5,000 bbl/d to 10,000 bbi/d facilities at attractive project returns and
to thereafter develop larger scale projects. The Corporation’s short term objective is to optimize and showcase the WPC
Technology, for application in CTL, in a joint demonstration facility as referenced in the preceding paragraph. Thereafter,
Management will atiempt to develop joint venture relationships to contract coal or develop its coal resource for larger,
commercial scale facilities.

The Corporation intends to fund these projects through a combination of equity and debt financing, WPC operating cash
flow and through potential joint ventures. There can be no assurance, however, that such funding opportunities will be
available to the Corporation when required. See “Risk Factors”.

Short Term

The following is a summary of the Corporation’s short term objectives:

+ Increasing WPC’s existing revenue streams subsequent to the completion of the WPC Acquisition, through increased
worldwide licensing and sales from the application of disciplined business development and marketing sales practices.
See “WPC Acquisition™.

Utilizing the WPC Technology to pursue WTE opportunities in Ontario by developing a commercial scale WTE
facility. See “Project Opportunities and Market Descriptions — Waste to Energy Market™.

.

« Advancing a small scale field demonstration facility with the WPC Technology utilizing coal and petcoke feedstocks.
Such a facility is expected to begin construction in 2008 at a cost of $10 million to $20 million. Preliminary engineering
indicates the WPC Technology has the potential to efficiently gasify feedstocks, including coal and petcoke, at lower
capital and operating costs than conventional gasification technologies; however, a demonstration facility will be
required to substantiate this advantage.

Advancing commercial scale Western Canadian gasification opportunities using coal and petcoke as feedstocks. The
Corporation intends to advance engineering, regulatory, resource assessment and business development activities
during 2007 and through 2009 as the demonstration facility is under development.

Respending to strategic or financially accretive acquisition opportunities that may arise in the gasification industry that
will strengthen operating cash flow and support and accelerate the Corporation’s business plan.

The foregoing objectives (other than the WPC Acquisition) are intended to be funded through a combination of equity and
debt financing, WPC operating cash flow and through potential joint ventures. There can be no assurance, however, that
such funding opportunities will be available to the Corporation when required. See “Risk Factors”.

Market Overview

The Corporation believes that high energy prices will prevail as depleting global supplies of conventional oil and gas
continue to become more costly to produce in quantities required to meet the growing demand, due in part to political
instability of the world’s key producing regions and the increased finding and development costs and operating costs of
conventional energy companies. Management anticipates that such high energy prices, together with increasing
awareness of and demand for environmentally responsible energy solutions, will create opportunities in the alternative
energy market,

Management believes that the growth of the gasification market is being accelerated by the following market fundamentals:

* The expansion of world economies has generated increased interest in gasification as a viable energy option with
numerous multi-billion dollar facilities in development or under construction.

= Theinstability of the geopolitical climate and the desire of countries to obtain secure sources of domestic energy,
especially the U.S. and China.

+ Countries with large energy demands (such as China and the U.S.) have sufficient supplies of coal to support
commercial gasification projects,

* Alternative energy solutions are receiving increased government support through financial incentives or
streamlined regulatory processes.

« The Kyoto Protocol, coupled with generally increasing concemns over greenhouse gas emissions, are encouraging
governments to consider more environmentally responsible energy solutions, including gasification.
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Comparison of Gasification to Conventional Oil and Gas Production

It can be difficult to compare gasification facilities to those of conventional energy companies even though both
ultimately produce income from energy products. One of the key metrics that measures capital efficiency is the Recycle
Ratio. This is one measure of how effectively a company is investing its cash and is obtained by dividing the cash flow per
boe by the capital cost per boe, with higher values showing greater capital efficiency. Gasification projects are projected to
have Recycle Ratios of 4.6 to greater than 7.0 as compared to the conventional oil and gas industry which, according to a
FirstEnergy Capital Corp. analysis published in August 2006, had Recycle Ratios of approximately 1.6 to 2.4

Gasification facilities operating at scale have a low estimated operating cost environment compared to conventional oil
and gas, which provides premium cash flow per boe. The CTL and WTE projects have high cash flow per bbi of energy
equivalent production due to the associated supplemental revenue streams. Gasification facilities have long term uniform
production rates. The related long-lived cash flow from production over the 30 year facility life provides for attractive
capital costs on a per boe basis.

See the table below for a comparison of the estimated operating metrics of the Corporation’s planned gasification facilities
by target market compared to conventional energy company averages:

Corporate Projects

Oilsands
Petcoke Conventional Qil
WTE Facility Facility CTL Facility and Gas
Cashflowperboe .................... $61.00 $36.90 $62.00 to $69.00  $24.32 to $29.13
Capital costperboe . .................. $8.00 10 $9.00 $7.50 $11.00 10 $13.50  $11.81 to0 $18.63
Recycle Ratio. ....................... Greater than 7.0 49 4610 6.3 1.56 to 2.41

Notes and Assumptions:

{1} Conventional oil and gas data provided from FirstEnergy Capital Corp., 2006 Edition of “Finding, Development and Acquisition Cost analysis
based on 2005 operating results”. The data provided includes companies of all sizes and is organized into small capitalization entities (less than
$500 million market capitalization) mid-capitalization entities (3500 million to $2.5 billion in marke! capitalization), and large capitalization
entities (greater than $2.5 billion market capitalization). The dava provided is the high and low averages from the size categories. The capital cost
per boe equates to the finding, development and acquisition cost per boe including future capital costs and calculated proved plus probable
reserves, The values provided in US dollars have been convented to Canadian dollars at an exchange rate of $1.15 : US$1.00.

(2}  Cash flow per boe takes revenues, less all operating costs, royalties and general and administrative costs settled with cash at the project level.
(3} Capital cost per boe is calculated by dividing the total facility capital cost by the total boe production from the facility.

(4) Recycle Ratio is calenlated by dividing the cash flow per boe by the capital cost per boe.

(5} See “Project Opportunities and Market Descriptions™ for further assumptions regarding project economics.

The FirstEnergy Capital Corp. study referenced above estimates increasing capital costs per boe of production, and
reduced Recycle Ratios for 2006 and 2007 on average for conventional energy producers. Management believes this is
consistent with the lower reserve values per well combined with increasing costs for services within the industry. This
market dynamic makes the capital efficient gasification process an attractive alternate energy source.

PROJECT OPPORTUNITIES AND MARKET DESCRIPTIONS

Waste To Energy Market

The Corporation has an opportunity in the WTE market to build gasification projects which can eliminate waste and create
energy (electrical power or syngas). In particular, the Corporation is pursuing the following opportunities in Ontario:

* The Corporation is in discussions with an industrial waste management company with the objective of
developing one or more WTE facilities and providing solutions to waste management companies and
municipalities that Management expects will be affected by the expected closure of the U.S. border to Ontario
waste, The Corporation will provide the WTE conversion technology, the project design, construction and
operation skill set while the waste management company will provide access to customers, feedstock gathering
expertise and regulatory expertise.

« Two Ontario municipalities have each publicly stated that they are considering the construction of WTE
facilities. Management expects each municipality will begin its own Request for Proposals process later in
the year.
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Attributes of WTE Market

Strong Returns. Astabulated in Table 1 below, and subject to
the assumptions described therein, the preliminary pre-tax
returns on equity, based on internal projections, are greater than
30% with long-lived (30 year) cash flow, and a capital
investment of $105 million for a moderately sized 500 tonne
per day facility.

Strong Market Fundamentals. The supply and demand
situation in Ontario, the Corporation’s first Canadian target
market, is changing rapidly. Currently, approximately
four million tonnes per year (approximately one third of
Ontario’s waste) comprising 1.3 million tonnes per year of
municipal solid waste (“MSW?”) and 2.7 million tonnes per year of industrial, commercial and institutional waste
(“IC&I") is being sent to the U.S. for disposal. The three key Ontario municipalities responsible for the MSW
being sent to the U.S. have agreed to stop transporting their waste to the U.S. by 2010. The U.S. is actively
considering closing the border to all Ontario waste. As a result, there is limited existing landfil] capacity in
Ontaric and a growing public reluctance to approve new landfill sites. (Sources: Ontaric Ministry of the
Environment, “Letter from Laure! C. Broten, Ontario Minister of Environment, to Senators Debbie Stabenow
and Carl Levin”, August 30, 2006 and Press Release of Congressmen John D. Dingell and Mike Rogers,
“Michigan Delegation Introduce Bill to Curtail Importation of Canadian Trash”, Januvary 17, 2007)

Hitachi Metals Ltd.’s Utashinai facility
in Japan vsing the WTE Technology

Diversified Risk. Tipping Fees and energy sales provide roughly equivalent revenue streams for 2 WTE
facility. The viability of a WTE project is therefore partially insulated from decreases in energy prices.
Management expects Ontario Tipping Fees to increase over the next four years because disposal of MSW in
Michigan will be eliminated. Management also expects that if the U.S. stops accepting other forms of waste from
Ontario, Tipping Fees would increase further.

Environmentally Responsible. 1t is Management’s opinion that plasma gasification is an environmentally
superior method of treating waste since it has fewer emissions, generates non-hazardous by-products and
generates more energy per tonne of waste processed than other technologies such as incineration. CO; emissions
from a gasifier have less impact from a greenhouse gas perspective than methane emissions from landfills. In
addition, landfills have an associated long term environmental liability, usually measured in terms of many
decades, that are not associated with WTE facilities.

Regulatory Support. The Ontario Ministry of the Environment has drafted legislation to significantly reduce
regulatory hurdles for the implementation of WTE facilities which are anticipated to reduce project approval
timelines once project sites are identified. Management believes that this legislation will be enacted in 2007,

Commercially Proven. The WPC Technology has been commercially proven by Hitachi Metals Ltd. in its
Japanese WTE facilities, These facilities have been in operation for approximately five years.

Potential Opportunities. The Corporation has advanced discussions with waste management companies and
municipalities that are interested in the Corporation’s solution to the waste problems in Ontario.

Strong Growth Potential. Japan thermally treats over 75% of its waste while the 25 members of the European
Union treat over 20% with some member countries treating over 40%. Management believes that there is the
potential for rapid market growth in Canada where less than 3% of waste is thermally treated.

(Sources: Ontario Ministry of the Environment, “Fact Sheet: How Ontario Manages its Waste,” accessed February 2007
and Ontario Ministry of the Environment, *Notice of Proposal for Regulation: Regulatory Amendments to Facilitate
Waste Receiving Use of Alternate Fuels and New and Emerging Waste Management Technologies,” December 12, 2006)

Management believes that WTE provides the Corporation with a near-term opportunity to produce energy from various
types of common waste products creating a positive cash flow stream.
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The Corporation has compiled preliminary project economics based on constructing an initial 500 tonne per day facility.

Table 1 — The Potential Economics of WTE Projects

Inmput {tonnes perday) .. ... ... .o e 500
Output (boe/d). . . . ... e 1,161
Capital Cost (BMM) ... e e e 105
Annual revenue (BMM) . ... e 38
Pre-tax Annual Cash flow (3MM) .. ... . ... ... ... .. ... ... . ... .. 26
Cash flow per boe ($/boe) . . . .. ... e 61.00
Capital cost perboe ($/boe). . ... ... . i e 8.70
Recycle Ratio . . ... ... ... .. e 1.0
Return on equity (“ROE”) (before tax) .. ... ... ... .. .. .. ... 32.4%
Net Present Value (“"NPV" @10% ($MM). . ........ ... .. .. i 105

Notes and Assumptions:
(1) Syngas has been converted to boe based on 6 mcf : 1 boe.

(2)  The syngas gas price used is $8.00 per GJ which reflects Management's assumption of the expected future natural gas price, which syngas will
replace on an energy equivalent basis. This price assumption has no escalation.

(3)  Capital cost per boe assumes a 30 year facility life with no salvage value a1 the end of the life. Cash flow includes an additional 75% of the amount
of initizl capital being reinvested over the life of the facility, evenly distributed.

(4} ROE and annual cash flow assumes 50% debt financing at a 7% annual interest rate repaid in equal installments over 20 years,

(5)  Assumes 80% MSW and 20% tires and hazardous waste with associated Tipping Fees of $75 per tonne for MSW, and $200 per tonne for tires or
hazardous waste.

(6) CO, is assumed not to be captured and sold.

WTE projects have high cash flow per boe on energy production due to the associated Tipping Fee revenues which are
paid to dispose of waste at the WTE facility. The long-lived cash flow over the 30 year facility life provide for attractive
capital costs on a boe basis. See the table below for a comparison of the operating metrics of a WTE facility compared to
conventional averages:

WTE Facility Conventional Oil and Gas
Cashflowperboe ............ ... . ... ...... ... ..... $61.00 $24.32 to $29.13
Capital costperboe .. .......... ... .. ... ........... $8.00 to0 $9.00 $11.81 to $18.63
Recycle Ratio. . ........... ... . ... Greater than 7.0 1.56 to 2.41
Waste Feedstocks
Types of waste that are suitable as feedstock into a gasifier include:
MSW Common household solid waste typically collected at curbside or on behalf of
muricipalities or private companies.
IC&I A combination of wastes generated by IC&I sectors that are not typically picked up at

the curb or accepted at public drop-off facilities as part of the municipal waste
collection process. These wastes are primarily managed by way of contracts with
private waste management service providers and have a composition similar to MSW.

Construction and Demolition  Waste building materials, dredging materials, tree stumps and rubble resulting from
(“C&D") construction, remodeling, repair, and demolition of homes, commercial buildings and
other structures and pavements.

Scrap Tires Passenger and commercial tires.

Hazardous Waste Waste that poses substantial or potential threats to public health or the environment.
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The Corporation plans to focus on MSW, scrap tires, petroleum hazardous waste and IC&I. Although the Corporation
does not currently have opportunities in the C&D or other hazardous waste sectors, such opportunities will be evaluated if
they arise.

There are two primary differences between using waste as a feedstock versus using coal or petcoke. The first difference is
heating value. As indicated in Table 2, most types of waste have a lower heating value than coal or petcoke. The second
difference is the cost of the feedstock. Coal and petcoke will cost up to $20 per tonne as a feedstock. In conirast, municipalities
and commercial waste management transportation and disposal companies will pay Tipping Fees for others to take their waste.
For most WTE projects, these Tipping Fees will provide approximately 50% or more of the total project revenues.

Table 2 — Average Heating Values and Cost of Gasification Feedstocks

Average Cost or

Heating Value Tipping Fee

Feedstock (Average btu/lb) ($/tonne)
Petcoke .. ... . e e e 15,000 0-10
Coal (sub-bituminous and bituminous) ........... 8,300 - 14,000 I5-20
Waste

MSW . e 4,500 (75)

Tires ..o e 13,500 (200)

IC&I .. e 5,500 (75)

C&D . . e 10,000 (45)

Hazardous .......... ... ... ... . ... ....... 7,500 (>250)

Availability of Waste (North America)

Through information provided by Statistics Canada and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, it is estimated that
North Americans generate approximately 317 million tonnes of waste annually, of which approximately 206 million
tonnes is landfilled, 79 million tonnes is recycled and 32 million tonnes is treated in WTE facilities.

According to Statistics Canada, Canada generates 33 million tonnes of waste per year of which about 24%, or eight
million tonnes, is diverted through recycling, composting and reuse programs. The remaining 25 million tonnes is
landfilled or treated via WTE facilities. There are currently four WTE incineration facilities in Canada that process a
combined total of 720,000 tonnes per year or two percent of the available non-hazardous waste.

Table 3 — Canada and U.S. Waste Market
Canada U.S. Total

MSW, ICEI & CED (mtpy) ....... ..o, 33 284 317
Recycle Go. .. o e e 24% 25% 25%
Recycle (mtpy) ... ... .. i 8 71 79
Incineration %o. . ... .. .. i e 2% 11% 10%
Incineration (mtpy) . ........ . i 0.7 3.2 317
Landfill To. . ..o e 74% 64% 65%
Landfill (mipy) . ... ... o i 24 182 206

Notes:
(1} A conversion factor of 0.907 was used to convert U.5. EPA short tons to tonnes.

(2)  The U.S. total data equals the converted 245 million tons generated by U.S. residents, businesses, and institutions in 2005 plus the converted 1996
C&D waste reduced by 50% since the Statistics Canada information does not include concrete, bricks or metal.

(3)  U.S. recycle rates assume no recycling or incineration of C&D waste.
(Source: Statistics Canada, "“Waste Management Industry Survey: Business and Government Sectors,” 2004)

(Source: Recycling Council of Alberta, “MSW Options Workshop: Integrating Organics and Residual Treatment/Disposal and Thermal Treatment —
Technical Primer,” March 2006}

{Source; United States Environmental Protection Agency, “Municipal Solid Waste Basic Facts,” accessed February 2007)

(Source: United States Environmental Protection Agency, “Construction and Demolition (C&D) Debris,” accessed February 2007)

{Source: The Private Sector IC&I Waste Management System in Omuario, “Report Prepared for Ontario Waste Management Association by RIS
International Ltd.”, January 2005)
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In the near term, the Corporation is focusing on the Ontario market due to its size and the shortage of landfill and
incineration capacity, as described below.

Availability of Waste (Ontario)

According to the Ontario Ministry of the Environment, Ontario municipalities and IC&I sources generated approximately
13.3 million tonnes of waste in 2005. Approximately ten million tonnes of this waste was disposed of through landfill or
incineration, as follows:

* Approximately six million tonnes of this waste was managed in Ontario.

*  Approximately four million tonnes of this waste exported to the U.S., with about 90% exported to Michigan and
the remainder exported to New York State.

{Source: Ontario Ministry of the Environment, “Fact Sheet: How Ontario Manages its Waste”, accessed February 2007)

On August 30, 2006, Debbie Stabenow and Carl Levin, U.S. Senators from Michigan, together with Ontario officials,
announced an agreement to stop shipments (currently approximately 1.3 million tonnes per year) of MSW to Michigan
over the next four years. Under the terms of this Stabenow-Levin agreement, there will be a 20% reduction of Canadian
MSW in 2007, a 40% reduction by 2008 and a complete end to MSW shipments by 2010. On January 17, 2007,
Congressmen John Dingell and Mike Rogers introduced a Bill aimed at preventing all Canadian waste shipments from
being disposed of in Michigan. If this Bill is enacted, Management expects that the U.S. will begin limiting all Ontario
waste starting in 2007 and move toward a total prohibition on the export of waste in 2010. In this event, Ontario will have
to find alternative solutions to domestically dispose of an additional four million tonnes per year of MSW and IC&I waste.

(Source: Ontario Ministry of the Environment, “Letter from Laurel C. Broten, Ontario Minister of Environment, to
Senators Debbie Stabenow and Carl Levin”, August 30, 2006 and Press Release of Congressmen John D. Dingell and
Mike Rogers, “Michigan Delegation Introduce Bill to Curtail Importation of Canadian Trash”, January 17, 2007)

Even with the recent landfill expansions approved by the Ministry of Environment, the Province of Ontario will face an
annual IC&I waste disposal capacity deficit of 2,7 million tonnes per year once all approved capacity is fully operational,

(Source: RIS International Ltd., “The Private Sector IC&I Waste Management System in Ontario”, January 2005)

Ontario’s municipalities and waste management companies are actively trying to address the shortage. There are seven
municipalities, representing approximately 3.2 million tonnes per year of waste, currently evaluating WTE, among other
options, as a means to extend or replace their landfills or divert waste from being shipped to Michigan.

Future Tipping Fees

Current Tipping Fees in Ontario are being influenced by the cost to dispose of waste in the U.S. As reported by the City of
Toronto, the all-in cost to the city to dispose of waste in the U.S., including transportation and Tipping Fees, is
approximately $78 per tonne. According to the Niagara/Hamilton Joint Waste Plan, the long-term cost of creating a
landfill in Ontario is 361 to $89 per tonne, if the appropriate permits can be obtained. Permits to create new landfilis or
extend current landfills are very difficult to obtain at present. Over the past few years, it has been taking three years for
landfill expansion approvals and three to five years for new landfill approvals. As the U.S. border closes to waste and
demand for the limited remaining landfill waste disposal capacity increases, Management believes Tipping Fees in
Ontario will increase.

(Source: Government of Ontario, “Municipal Performance Measurements Program (MPMP) Summary of Toronto’s 20035
versus 2004 Results’™)

Role of WTE in Ontario’s Waste Market

An initial commercial size plasma gasification facility, with one plasma gasification reactor, is expected to process
approximately 500 tonnes of waste per day or about 180,000 tonnes per year. The processing shortfall in Ontario is
projected to be about 2.7 million tonnes per year; therefore, the Ontario waste market presents the Corporation with an
attractive opportunity. The Corporation could build numerous facitities in the coming years and even if it only captures a
small share of the demand, Management believes this would be a lucrative opportunity. For instance, four WTE facilities
could process approximately 20% of the Ontario waste market or approximately 1,800 tonnes per day. Management
believes that the WPC Technology will allow it to effectively penetrate this market segment.
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Advantages of WPC Technology for WIE

Management believes that the WPC Technology has the following advantages compared to other gasification
technologies, landfills and waste incinerators:

» The WPC Technology’s use of higher temperatures results in higher reactor rates with a corresponding gasifier
efficiency, thereby resulting in a greater capture rate of the waste’s energy as compared to other alternatives.

= Unlike incineration, gasification does not produce bottom ash that requires treatment. An inert slag, from which
metals can easily be recovered and from which construction aggregates can be produced, is generated.

» Any recovered metal which forms part of the slag is concentrated and requires less subsequent processing
resulting in a higher market value.

*  The WPC Technology can handle a wide range of feedstocks ranging from unprocessed MSW to hazardous waste.

= Feedstock handling costs are lower because the WPC Technology requires little or no treatment of the feedstock.
Most other gasifiers require a very consistent and homogeneous feedstock.

» The simple design of the WPC Technology results in higher plant availability and produces a high quality syngas.
WPC’s durable plasma torches have been used in very demanding industrial applications since 1989,

* Landfills require expensive long term care and monitoring. The long term environmental impacts are unknown.
Waste processed by the WPC Technology is completely processed with virtuaily all remaining solid material
being converted to inert slag.

= Compared to disposing of waste in a traditional landfill, gasification produces fewer greenhouse gas emissions.

{Source: S.A, Thorneloe, et al., “The Impact of Municipal Solid Waste Management on Greenhouse Gas Emissions in the
United States”, Vol. 52, pp. 1,000 to 1,011, September 2002)

Due to the advantages listed above and after building a demonstration facility in Japan, Hitachi Metals Ltd. chose the WPC
Technology for two commercial scale WTE facilities in Japan. The largest facility is located in Utashinai, was constructed in
2002 and has been fully operational since 2003. The facility was designed to process a 190 tonnes per day mixture of auto
shredder residue and MSW or 280 tonnes per day of MSW. On its two acre site, the facility is able to generate 7.9 MW of
electricity of which 4 MW is used internally. The second facility, built near the twin cities of Mihama and Mikata, Japan, was
commissioned in 2002 to treat 24 tonnes per day of MSW and four tonnes per day of sewage sludge.

Geoplasma LLC, of Atlanta has selected the WPC Technology for a large WTE project in St. Lucie County, Florida, The
proposed 100,000 square foot plant, based on media reports and other public sources, is expected to process
approximately 2,700 tonnes of MSW per day of which 900 tonnes per day is being reclaimed from the county landfiil.
The plan is to completely reclaim 3.9 million tonnes of waste in the landfill over an 18 year period. Sludge from the
county’s wastewater treatment plant is also anticipated to be treated. The facility is expected to generate 540 tonnes per
day of inert slag to be sold as an aggregate for use in road and construction projects. In addition, the St. Lucie gasification
facility is expected to produce approximately 160 MW of electricity of which approximately 120 MW will be available for
sale to local utilities through power purchase agreements.

Air Emissions and Greenhouse Gases

Emissions from WTE facilities (gasifiers and incinerators) will include such things as NO,, SO,, hydrocarbons, carbon
monoxide, particulate matter, heavy metals, greenhouse gas emissions such as methane and CO,, and dioxins/furans. All
WTE processes have advanced significantly over the last 20 years and are able to meet or be lower than Canadian air
emissions regulatory standards.

The WPC Technology has successfully proven that it meets strict environmental regulations. Based on confidential data that the
Corporation has from the Utashinai facility in Japan, the plant meets Ontario MOE Guideline A-7, which specifies that new
munictpal waste incinerators must comply with limits for a number of compounds which are produced through incineration.

According to Environment Canada, the decomposition of waste in landfills produces a gas which is composed primarily
of methane, a greenhouse gas thought to be contributing to climate change. Methane emissions from landfills account for
25% of the man-made methane emissions in Canada. Methane is believed to have a global warming potential 23 times
greater than CO;. Estimates have shown that over 25 Mt of CO; equivalent are being generated annually from Canadian
landfills. This is equivalent to approximately 5.5 million cars on the road.

(Source: Environment Canada, Waste Management, “Landfill Gas — Overview”, accessed February 2007).
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If all the waste in Canada going to landfill was treated in WTE facilities, 32 million metric tonnes per year of CO;
equivalent would be avoided. This amount of CO, would be equivalent to that produced by 7 million cars, or
approximately a 30% reduction in Canada’s greenhouse gas emissions.

The Corporation’s WTE Strategy

The Corporation’s WTE strategy is to focus on the Ontario market and take advantage of possible waste treatment
capacity restrictions, The Corporation intends to initially focus on creating partnerships with commercial waste
management and transportation companies which are facing processing capacity shortfalls and understand the market
and regulatory fundamentals. The Corporation also intends to participate in any municipal WTE request for proposal
processes, two of which Management expects to be initiated in 2007.

The Corporation expects to lever the strengths of the WPC Technology, especially its environmental attributes, feedstock
flexibility and scalability.

Qilsands Market

The oilsands are expected to be a crucial part of Alberta’s future growth. The oilsands require an enormous amount of
energy in order to extract the bitumen and turn it into saleable products. Gasification is an attractive method to provide
energy for the extraction process using a by-product of upgrading (petcoke) as the feedstock to produce steam or
hydrogen. According to a presentation by the Alberta Energy Research Institute (“*AERI”), “Alberta is destined to develop
the world’s largest gasification capacity” (Source: Alberta Energy Research Institute, “Alternatives to the Use of Natural
Gas”, May 2006). The application of gasification to the oilsands market has the following key attributes:

+ Strong Returns. As tabulated in Table 3, and subject to the assumptions as set forth therein, the preliminary
pre-tax return on equity based on internal projections is greater than 18% with long-lived (30 year) cash flow and
capital costs of production of less than $10 per boe.

» Strong Market. Currently, all operational oilsands projects require approximately 1.1 bef/d of natural gas for
the bitumen extraction process. The natural gas usage for oilsands is forecast to be 6.0 bef/d by 2030 which
Management believes will create a market for alternative fuel sources. Alberta oilsands production is projected to
create the greatest market in the world for hydrogen as well. Currently, the only two viable hydrogen production
methods are steam reforming of natural gas or the gasification process. (Source: National Energy Board,
“Canada’s Qilsands Opportunities and Challenges to 20157, June 2006)

» Eavironmentally Responsible. Management believes plasma gasification is an environmentally superior
method of producing steam or hydrogen with low emissions and non-hazardous by-products.

*  Governmental Support. The Alberta Government is supportive of the use of gasification in the oilsands to
assist in creating energy in an environmentally responsible manner. The Corporation has already received a
provincial government grant to cover 50% of the cost related to an engineering study to compare the WPC
Technology to current conventional gasification technologies.

* Market Acceptance. The Long Lake Project which includes a gasification facility, is nearing completion and
is expected to highlight how gasification is an effective solution. Most major oilsands upgrader projects are
evaluating gasification,

= Strong Growth Potential. The oilsands market is growing at a significant rate, and therefore, gasification
demand is expected to increase as well.

Management believes that the otlsands industry is a high growth market in which the Corporation is positioning itself to
capture significant market share. The Corporation’s strategy is to use the flexible and scaleable WPC Technology to
provide the energy for oilsands projects and hydrogen for bitumen upgrading, Management believes that gasification is
ideally suited for the Alberta oilsands as a current waste-product can be used as an alternative to natural gas. The
Corporation expects to advance a demonstration facility over the next 18 months to showcase its operational advantages.
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The Corporation has compiled preliminary project economics based on the construction of a 1,000 tonne per day facility
which would provide the fuel needed for a 25,000 bbl/d SAGD project.

Table 3 — The Economics of Oilsands Gasification Projects

Input (fonmes per day) . . . ... oot e 1,000
Output (boe/d). . . ... e e 4,275
Capital Cost (SMM) .. ... i e e 333
Annual revenue (SMM) . . ... 80
Pre-tax Annual Cash flow (SMM) . .. ... ... ... ... i 58
Cash flow per boe ($/D08) . .. .ot e et e e e 36.90
Capital cost perboe ($/boe). . ... ... e e 7.50
Recycle Ratio . ... ... ... . 49
ROE (Before taX). . . .o oottt e e e e e e e e e e 18.8%
NPV @10% (SMM) .. ..o e e e 125

Notes and Assumptions:

(1} The syngas price used is $8.00 per GJ which reflects Management’s assumption of the expected future natural gas price, which syngas will replace
on an energy equivalent basis, This price assumption has no escalation. The facility would be located at the oilsands projects and therefore the
marketed product price, including delivery, would be expected to be higher.

(2y Capital cost per boe assumes 2 30 year facility life with no salvage value at the end of the life. Cash flow includes an additional $250 million of
sustaining capital being reinvested over the remaining 25 year life of the facility, evenly distributed.

(3} ROE and annual cash flow assumes 50% debt financing at a 7% annual interest rate repaid in equal annwal installmeats over 20 years.
(4) No CO; is assumed to be captured and sold as the Western Canadian oilsands are not in proximity to EOR fields.

The long-lived cash flow over the 30 year facility life and the efficient energy production from the high btu value petcoke
feedstock provide for attractive capital costs on a per boe basis. The oilsands gasification projects have strong cash flow
per bee of energy production compared to conventional energy producers due to the stable and predictable operating cosis
and long term uniform production rates. See the table below for a comparison of the operating metrics of an oilsands
facility compared to conventional averages:

Qilsands Conventional
Petcoke Facility 0Oil and Gas
Cashflowperboe .. ... ... ... . . e $36.90 $24.32 to $29.13
Capital cost perboe . . .. ... .. ... ... $7.50 $11.81 10 $18.63
Recycle Ratio .. ... ... 0 i i e e e 4.9 1.56 10 2.41

Production in the Alberta oilsands is growing at a rapid rate (Figure 1). The National Energy Board (“NEB™) is projecting
that production in the oilsands will grow from 1.1 million bbl/d in 2005 to three million bbl/d in 2015. The NEB is
predicting that $94 billion will be invested over that time period.

Figure | — Projected Total Bitumen Production — Canada’s Oilsands
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{Source: National Energy Board, “Canada’s Oilsands, Opportunities and Challenges to 2015", June 2006)

37



There are two primary methods for producing bitumen, open pit mining and SAGD, and both require tremendous amounts of
stearn, currently produced by burning natural gas which constitutes the largest operating cost for SAGD oilsands operators.
The NEB projects that natural gas purchases for oilsands development will increase to 2.1 befiday by 2015.

Figure 2 — Projected Natural Gas Consumption at Alberta Oilsands
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(Source: Alberta Energy and Utiliies Board and National Energy Board, “Canada's Oilsands, Opportunities and Challenges to 20157, June 2006)

Management believes that volatility in the price of natural gas will cause oilsands producers to investigate alternative
methods for producing steam and that the gasification of petcoke and other heavy components within bitumen, such as
asphaltenes, to produce steam, represents the most viable technical and commercial alternative to burning natural gas.
Gasification has the potential to provide a reliable supply of steam at stable costs because the feedstock is plentiful and, in
maost cases, is produced as a by-product of oilsands operations. Petcoke is produced by any upgrader processing heavy oil
or bitumen. Currently, there are limited market opportunities to sell the petcoke produced in the oilsands. Upgraders in the
Fort McMurray region (Syncrude Canada Limited, Suncor Energy Inc. and soon Canadian Natural Resources Limited)
have been and will continue to stockpile the produced petcoke back into mined out sections. Even if those operators all
implement gasification operations, they may not be able to use all the petcoke they produce or have stockpiled for their
internal energy needs.

Gasification of oilsands byproducts is being implemented at Canada’s first commercial gasification plant, using Shell’s
gasification technology, currently being built at the Long Lake Project. The gasifier, which will use asphaltenes as
feedstock, will produce steam that will be used in the SAGD process to recover bitumen from the oilsands. The gasifier
will also produce hydrogen for use in upgrading bitumen. The Long Lake Project is expected to produce 70,000 bbl/d. The
gasifier at the Long Lake Project is expected to replace in excess of 70 mmef/day of natural gas, a very small percentage of
the gas used every day in the region. (Source; TD Newcrest, “Oilsands Volume IV”, March 2006).

WPC Technology for Application in the Oilsands

The Corporation recognizes that a reliable and cost effective supply of steam is critical to an oilsands operator.
Management’s short-term objective is to optimize and showcase the WPC Technology, for application in an oilsands
process, in a demonstration size facility. The demonstration facility is projected to cost $10 million to $20 million and to
be constructed within 18 months. The construction of the facility is expected to be financed through a potential
combination of operating cash flow from WPC, industry participation, government contributions and equity issuances.

The Corporation’s Oilsands Strategy

Assuming successful completion of a demonstration facility, the Corporation’s strategy is to initially target SAGD
prejects in the range of 10,000 bbl/d to 35,000 bbl/d for which the Corporation believes that the WPC scaleable design has
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a competitive advantage. Projects of this size may be too small for competing technologies which creates a market niche
for the Corporation (see “WPC Acquisition — Comparison of WPC Technology and Conventional Gasification”).
Management believes that oilsands operators will be motivated to use gasification to mitigate their natural gas price risk.
Other tangible benefits of using gasification in oilsands operations are expected to be improved energy integration, the
gasification of SAGD waste products and the integration of water treatment systems. Though a plant initially designed
with a gasification system would be the preferred option, construction of a gasification system alongside an existing
operation is also possible.

Coal to Liquids Market
Description of Coal to Liquids Conversion

Coal to Liquids (“CTL") is the conversion of coal into liquid fuels such as gasoline or diesel. As described under the
heading “Industry Overview", numerous gasification projects are being built around the world to produce liquid fuels,
with coal as the predominant feedstock as it is relatively inexpensive, abundant and able to be gasified efficiently and
effectively.

CTL has been gathering significant momentum over the past few years as a clean energy solution that turns a relatively
inexpensive and abundant feedstock into high value liquid fuels. The CTL market has the following key attributes:

* Strong Returns. As noted in the Table 6, and subject to the assumptions as set forth therein, the preliminary
estimate of pre-tax returns on equity are approximately 20% with long-lived cash flow (in excess of 30 years) and
capital costs per bbl of production of less than $15 per boe.

« Strong Market. Management believes that the North American gasification market is in a rapid growth phase
with sustained higher commodity prices, a drive for energy self-sufficiency and the social pressure to find clean
energy solutions.

* Diversified Risk. Management believes that CTL gasification has the ability to tailor the outputs and create a
variety of liquid fuels, syngas, and chemical compounds that can be adjusted to optimize economics. The Great
Plains Synfuel Plant in Beulah, North Dakota produces a wide variety of high value energy products from a low
value lignite coal utilizing gasification technology.

+ Environmentally Responsible. Management believes that plasma gasification is an environmentally superior
methed of producing power, syngas or liquid fuels with low emissions, and non-hazardous by-products. At the
Great Plains Synfuel Plant, one of the outputs is CO,, which is efficiently captured as part of the process
downstream of the gasifier, and is sold to EnCana Corporation’s Weyburn miscible EOR project. (Source: U.S.
Department of Energy, “Gasification Technology R&D", accessed February 2007)

+ Commercially Proven. Sasol Limited, a South African public company traded on the NYSE, produces
30 percent of that country’s liquid fuels through coal gasification. The WPC Technology is commercially
operational in WTE facilities with more difficult and heterogeneous feedstock to gasify, and has been
successfully pilot tested with various coals. (Source: World Coal Institute, “Coal: Liquid Fuels”, October 2006)

« Availability of Feedstock. Based on third party data, Management believes that one tonne of coal will equate
to approximately 1.6 boe of liquid fuels, such as gasoline or diesel, through gasification. The Fox Creek Property,
with its approximately 770 miilion tonnes of coal (as evaluated in the Norwest Report), is expected to be used by
the Corporation as feedstock for its CTL projects. See “Project Opportunities and Market Descriptions — Coal to
Liquids Market — The Corporation’s CTL Strategy™.

The Corporation believes that CTL presents an opportunity offering favourable returns on projects and long-lived
production in an attractive emerging industry. The Corporation intends to combine its expertise in designing cost effective
staged facilities with the scalable WPC Technology to create CTL gasification facilities that are a fraction of the size of
currently planned projects being announced by other parties on a regular basis. It is believed that creating large energy
production facilities through the staged duplication of smaller, yet economic, plants will reduce implementation and
execution risk.

The Economics of CTL Production

The economics of CTL is driven by the spread between coal prices and the value of the liquid fuel end products which are
indexed to the price of WTI crude oil. Figure 3 illustrates the widening spread between coal input and oil equivalent
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output. The recent dramatic growth in CTL projects worldwide has largely been driven by the significant recent increases
in the oil to coal price differential.

Figure 3 — Energy Price Trends {US$ per tonne of oil equivalent)
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(Source: World Coal Institute, “Coal Liquid Fuels”, October 2006)

There are independent reports indicating that CTL projects are economic as long as the price of oil remains above
UUS$45 per bbl. It takes approximately one tonne of coal to produce 1.4 to 2.0 bbis of transportation fuels, depending on
the quality of the resource and type of product.

(Source: Syngas Refiner, “China, U.S. Continue Developing CTL Infrastructure”, August 2006 and The Southern States
Energy Board, “American Energy Security”, July 2006)

The preliminary engineering studies performed by the Corporation and summarized in the table below, have yielded
similar results to publicly available data:

Table 4 — The Potential Economics of CTL Projects
Facility 1 Facility 2

Input (tonnes per day) . .. ...t e e 2,850 5,700
Output (bbld) . . .. ... e 5,079 10,158
Capital Cost (SMM ). . . . ... 713 1,158
Annual revenue (SMM) . . .. . e e e 172 344
Pre-tax Annual Cash flow (3MM) .. ... ... ... . . . . 116 244
Cash flow per bbl (B/bbl) . . . ..o i i e e e e 49.00 55.00
Cash flow per bbl (with COzstream (3)) . ....... .. e e 62.00 69.00
Capital costper bbl ($/bbl) . ... ... . e e 13.50 11.00
Recycle Ratio . . ... ... e e, 36 5.0
Return on Equity (before tax). .. ... ... i e 17.3% 24.3%
NPV @10% (SMM). ..o e e e e e e 219 743



Notes and Assumptions:

(1) Assumes WTI price of $60 per bbl held constant over the facility life, adjusted for premiums on diesel fuel and naphtha, and converted to Canadian
dollars at an exchange rate of $1.15: US$1.00.

(2) Assumes 50% debt financed, with 7% annual interest rate, repaid in equal annual installments over 20 years.

(3) Capital cost per bbl assumes & 30 year facility life with no salvage value at the end of the life. Cash flow includes $250 millicn of sustaining capital
being invested over the 25 year life of the facility, evenly distributed.

(4) €O, is captured and sold at an assumed 330 per tonne sales price.

The Corporation expects to produce diesel fuel, naphtha, gasoline and various other light oil products which are expected
to be priced at up to a 30% premium to WTL As such, the US$30 to US$35 per bbl cost structure is expected to result in a
high cash flow per bbl of production.

The CTL projects have high cash flow per bbl of energy production due to the associated CO; revenues streams. The long-
lived cash flow over the 30 year facility life provides for attractive capital costs on a per boe basis. See the table below fora
comparison of the operating metrics of a CTL facility compared to conventional averages:

CTL Facility Conventional Energy
Cashflowperboe. .. ... ... ... o it $62.00 10 69.00  $24.32 10 $29.13
Capital costper boe. . .. ... ... . i i, $11.00 10 13.50  $11.81 to $18.63
Recycle Ratio .. ..ot i i e e 361050 1.56 to 2.41

The Corporation’s coal resources were deliberately chosen due to their proximity to mature oil fields that would benefit
from EOR. As shown in Figure 4, the greatest potential light oil recovery is from the use of CO, miscible flooding, and
Management believes that the Corporation’s coal resources at the Fox Creek Property are ideally suited to provide CO;, for
EOR. The Corporation’s Fox Creek Property is in close proximity to large, mature oilfields which provides a strong
market and which improves the projected cash flow from the projects. One tonne of coal produces approximately two
tonnes of CO,. One tonne of CO, can produce incrementally approximately three barrels of conventional oil through
EOR. (Source: The Southern States Energy Board, “American Energy Security”, July 2006)

Figure 4 — Natural Resources Canada — Estimate of light oil barrels of original oil in place (“OOIP”} in Canada
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(Source: Vikor Energy Inc., “Economic Feasibility of Horizontal CO; EOR Projects in Alberta”, November 2001)

EnCana Corporation is using CO; injection EOR at its Weybum oilifield in southern Saskatchewan. CO,, which is
produced at Dakota Gasification Company’s coal gasification facility in Beulah, North Dakota, is being transported by
pipeline to the oilfield, which began production in the 1950’s and was nearing the end of its economic life. The
incremental o1l recovery is expected to be 222 million barrels, or an incremental 11% recovery. In addition, it is projected
that the reservoir will store more than 40 million tonnes of CO; (gross), which is the equivalent of removing more than
eight million cars from the road for one year. (Source: Petroleun Technology Research Centre, “Weyburm-Midale CO»
Project”, accessed at hitp://www.ptrc.ca/weyburn_overview.php, February 2007)
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The Corporation’s CTL Strategy

The Corporation's strategy is to develop smaller scale CTL projects with capital costs of $500 million to $800 million,
much smaller than the projects currently being developed by companies like Shell International, General Electric
Corporation and Siemens Canada Limited who have announced projects of $1 billion to in excess of $5 billion. The
Corporation has secured the coal resource at the Fox Creek Property, scalable technology (see “The Corporation’s
Execution and Technical Strategies — Relationship with BDR™) and the engineering capability to bring a staged CTL
project onstream.

The Corporation is in preliminary discussions with two public coal resource owners, each of whom have an operating coal
mine, about potential partnerships to construct a combined coal and petcoke demonstration facility and subsequent
commercial scale CTL facilities.

The Corporation believes that the WPC Technology is ideally suited to allow the Corporation to meet its goal of creating a
new market niche. The Corporation’s short term objective is to optimize the WPC Technology, for application in a CTL
process, in a demonstration size facility which also will be used to test petcoke as a feedstock, projected to cost $10 million
to $20 million and to be constructed within 18 months. [t is anticipated the CTL facility will be combined with the
oilsands facility. See “Description of the Business — Corporate Objectives and Milestones”,

The Corporation’s long-term objective is to build a commercial scale CTL facility that will use the Corporation’s coal
resource at the Fox Creek Property and produce liquid fuels for the North American market and CO; for sale to oil
producers in nearby oilfields.

Biomass Opportunities

While not yet considered material to its business plan, the Corporation has a memorandum of understanding with an
organization in Saskatchewan that has secured a site and access to sufficient diverse biomass feedstock to support a 600
tonne per day gasification facility that could produce transportation fuels.

THE CORPORATION'S EXECUTION AND TECHNICAL STRENGTHS

Successfully designing, building and operating cost effective and scalable gasification facilities is a key component of the
Corporation’s strategy. Management believes that it has the ability to design and implement such facilities through the
establishment of a strong relationship with an established engineering firm and through the hiring of experienced staff and
contractors.

Relationship with BDR

BDR is a private Calgary-based engineering firm with nearly 25 years experience in the design, engineering, procurement
and management of oil and gas facilities. From inception, BDR has challenged the industry status quo on technology
selection, design and construction techniques. For example, BDR will routinely implement superior technology from
other industries and regions rather than defaulting to a technology that is common in Western Canadian oil and gas
operations.

BDR’s modularization approach has become a competitive advantage that ensures construction is done in controlled
environments and maximizes workers’ efficiency and quality. When the modules are shipped to the field, nearly all the
welding, electrical, instrumentation and insulation is already complete, resulting in the ability for a small field mechanical
and electric crew to assemble the components. In addition, the engineering design has been completed so that very few scope
changes take place in the uncontrolled field environment. Qther engineering firms offer elements of modularization, but
BDR, through the integrated skills of its engineers, draftsmen and shop inspectors, produce equipment designs that require
minimal rework, meet accelerated project schedules and stay within budget. This approach is very difficult to duplicate
because it takes many years to put the unique processes in place and work with suppliers, crews and inspection personnel to
ensure the modules can be assembled quickly and easily in the field. This approach requires strict attention to quality control
and detail is placed on each phase of the project development. BDR has assembled these people and processes and has
refined their system to a point where field construction is efficiently minimized.

BDR’s track record of designing facilities that are optimized for scale and staged growth is another strength. This
capability and design phtlosophy allows for the efficient use of capital in staging facility expansions, allowing the operator
1o learn as the project advances. This information can then be applied to subsequent design stages. Management believes
this philosophy ensures the best design and technology business decisions.
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It is anticipated the Corporation and BDR will have a close relationship for the engineering, project management,
construction and operation of gasification facilities. BDR has undertaken studies at their sole cost to advance their
understanding of gasification and the WPC Technology, and is currently conducting engineering studies with respect to
use of the WPC Technology in the Corporation’s three target markets.

The Corporation contracts with BDR on a project by project basis.

Staff and Consultants

The Corporation has engaged Rob McNeill as a consultant, along with former associates who have worked with
Mr. McNeill for more than 20 years. Mr. McNeill has a history of implementing projects on time and on budget.
Combined, the group has extensive experience in engineering, project management, field inspection, construction
supervision and operations with such companies as Renaissance Energy Ltd., Pacalta Resources Limited and Deer Creek
Energy Limited.

The Corporation intends to develop engineering knowledge internally and apply that knowledge to different projects, and
has engaged a range of technical expertise to support this goal. To ensure gasification expertise is intemally levered, the
Corporation has hired Alex Gorodetsky as its Gasification Engineer. He has a Chemical Engineering degree and an MBA,
with a unique combination of experience in both gasification and plasma technology working with Sherritt International
and Westaim Corporation,

To further support and grow the Corporation’s expertise, the Corporation is working closely with University of Calgary
Chemical Engineering Professor Dr. William Svrcek. Dr. Svreek is contributing advice and support on general chemical
engineering design, in particular, the advancement of a numerical model that will model the Reactor together with the
balance of plant design. In addition, Chemical Engineer Graduate students at the University of Calgary are contributing
efforts for research and assimilation of technical information that will guide the Corporation’s technical efforts.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The Gasification Process
Introduction

Gasification is a process that converts carbon-containing materials into a syngas, composed primarily of carbon monoxide
and hydrogen. Gasification occurs when a carbon-containing feedstock is exposed to stcam at elevated temperatures or
pressures in the presence of controlled amounts of air or oxygen. Syngas can be used as a fuel to generate electricity or
steam, or as a basic chemical building block in the petrochemical and refining industries.

Major Building Blocks of Gasification Processes

Air/Oxygen
Bitumen — Steam j » Hydrogen
Petcor O F(;'?d & bol Gasifier Gas Syngas | Conversion FT Liquids
etcoke andling HI Clean-up ¥|  Process
Storage
Coal — H» Methane
CO,

Biomass —1 Slag/Ash HS H» Steam

Wasie ] - Power

Feedstock Handling and Storage

Feedstock handling is a very important and expensive facet of the gasification process as most gasifiers can only take
feedstock in a certain form that requires pretreatment. Feedstock requires storage to ensure that periods of reduction in
feedstock transport do not affect the flow to the gasifier. The feedstock must then be prepared and transported to the
gasifier in a form that it can handle. The WPC Technology requires minimal pretreatment and handling.
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Gasifier

The heart of a gasification-based system is the gasifier. Gasification technologies differ in many aspects but share certain
general production characteristics. The feedstock reacts in the gasifier with steam and oxygen at high temperature and
pressure in an oxygen starved atmosphere to produce a syngas and slag or ash. Syngas is primarily hydrogen, carbon
monoxide and other gaseous constituents, the proportions of which can vary depending upon the conditions in the gasifier
and the type of feedstock.

Minerals in the feedstock (i.e. the rocks, dirt and other impurities which do not gasify) separate and leave the bottom of the
gasifier either as an inert glass-like slag or ash. The gasification technology determines whether slag or ash is produced.
While slag is environmentally benign, ash is typically leachable and may require further processing before it can be
disposed. Slag, which resembles glass, is a marketable material with a variety of uses in the construction and building
industries. With some combinations of feedstocks and gasifier technologies, valuable metals can be recovered as part of
the slag or ash.

Gas Clean-up

Sulphur impurities in the feedstock form H,S, which can be easily removed from the syngas stream using commercially
available technology.

CO,, which is formed in the gasifier and in a process downstream of the gasifier, is in a concentrated stream, making it
easy and inexpensive to separate and capture. Once captured, it can be compressed and sequestered into either deep saline
aquifers or used for EOR projects, thus preventing its escape into the atmosphere and contributing to the greenhouse
effect.

Conversion Process

Syngas can also be converted into a variety of outputs, including steam, electric power, liquid fuels, hydrogen and
chemicals.

Steam and Power

Syngas can be burned to create steam for use in industrial processes such as SAGD bitumen recovery projects or other
processes that require steam. Alternatively, syngas can be burned in a combustion turbine (much like natural gas is burned
in a turbine) and converted to electricity using a generator.

Currently, gasification-based systems can operate at approximately 45% efficiency for the generation of power. In the
future, Management believes these systems may be able to achieve efficiencies approaching 60% through advances in
technology. By contrast, a conventional coal-based boiler plant employs only a steam turbine-generator and is typically
limited 10 33% to 40% efficiency. Higher efficiency means that less fuel is used to generate the rated power, resulting in
better economics and the formation of fewer greenhouse gases (a 60% efficient gasification power plant can cut the
formation of CQ; by 40% compared to a typical coal combustion plant). In addition, the CO; from an oxygen blown
gasifier is relatively easy to capture as compared to a conventional coal combustion power plant. See “Industry
Overview — The Gasification Process — Environmental Benefits of Gasification™.

Fischer-Tropsch Liguids
Syngas can be processed through a Fischer-Tropsch (“FT") synthesis reactor to produce liquids such as biodegradable
sulphur free diesel, ethanol, gasoline, jet fuel, kerosene and naphtha.

Hydrogen
Hydrogen in the syngas stream can be isolated and then used as a feedstock for refineries and upgraders to upgrade
petroleum products. It can also be used in any other industrial process that requires hydrogen. The large quantities of
bitumen being produced and upgraded in Alberta are expected to cause increased demand for hydrogen.

Orther Liquids and Chemicals
Syngas can provide the basic building blocks for a broad range of chemicals (for example, fertilizer and plastics) using
processes that are well established in today’s chemical industry.
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Environmental Benefits of Gasification

The significant environmental benefits of gasification stem from the capability to produce extremely low SO,, NO, and
particulate emissions. Sulfur in coal and petcoke, for example, emerges from the gasification process as H,S and carbonyl
sulphide, and can be captured by processes presently used in the chemical industry.

Gasification offers a further environmental advantage in addressing concerns over the atmospheric buildup of greenhouse
gases such as CO,. Using gasification, CO; can be captured easily and at a low cost for use in EOR projects or
sequestration. By contrast, when coal or petcoke burns or is reacted in air, the resulting CO, is in much more dilute
concentrations and is more difficult to separate than gasification processes.

(Source: U.S. Department of Energy, “Gasification Technology R&D”, accessed February 2007)

Description of the Industry

Although gasification has been in commercial use for more than 50 years, the majority of significant developments have
happened since 1990. Technological advancements, coupled with a shift in market conditions, have enhanced the
efficiencies and economics of the gasification process. The Corporation believes that gasification technologies represent
the next generation of alternative energy production systems,

Management believes that the following market conditions will contribute to the growth of the gasification industry:

* Recent periods of sustained high prices of oil and gas due to depleting conventional oil and gas supplies and
political instability.

* The cost and risk of locating and developing new oil and gas finds.

* Increasing demand for energy.

» Stricter environmental guidelines for the disposal of waste and the increasing cost to dispose of waste in landfills.
= Environmental guidelines and public support surrounding climate change and reduction of greenhouse gases.

These trends have spurred governments, developers and technology providers to develop alternative energy sources,
especially the gasification of coal, petcoke and biomass.

Gasification offers one of the most versatile and clean ways to convert carbon based feedstocks into electricity, hydrogen
and other energy forms. Many experts predict that coal gasification will be at the heart of the future generations of clean
coal technology plants for several decades into the future.

Today, the demand for hydrogen in Alberta is growing with the upgrading and refinery requirements for the vastly
increasing volumes of bitumen production. Hydrogen and other gasification outputs can also be used to fuel power-
generating turbines or as the chemical ‘building blocks’ for a wide range of commercial products.

Gasification Worldwide

In 2004, the U.S. Department of Energy (“DOE”) sponsored the World Gasification Survey that involved all major
gasification technology vendors, suppliers of supporting technologies and owners and operators of existing gasification-
based power and manufacturing plants, The survey was designed to describe the world gasification industry and to
identify planned capacity additions. (Source: U.S. Department of Energy, “Gasification World Survey Results”, 2004)

During the 1990s, worldwide gasification capacity increased by 50% when 43 new plants became operational. Since
2000, a similar number of projects have begun operations, expanding the world’s capacity by another 50%.

World gasification capacity in 2004 reached 45,001 MWy, of syngas output at 117 operating plants with a total of 385
gasifiers. Existing gasification plants are operating in 24 countries.

From 2005 to 2010, it is expected that 38 additional plants with 66 gasifiers will be in operation. The DOE reports that
worldwide capacity from these new plants is expected to add 25,282 MW, an increase of 56% between 2005 and 2010.
Worldwide capacity in 2010 is projected to be 70,283 MW, of syngas output from 155 plants and 451 gasifiers. Figure 5
shows the existing and planned worldwide gasification capacity by region.
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Figure 5 — Worldwide Gasification Capacity by Region
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(Source: U.S. Department of Energy. “Gasification World Survey Results™, 2004)

Gasification in North America

In 2004, North America represented 6,697 MWy, or 15% of the total existing world gasification output. All of this activity
is in the U.S. where 20 gasification plants are in operation.

Gasification growth in North America is projected to exceed 31% from 20035 to 2010 with six announced projects in the
U.S. and three in Canada. For instance, OPTI Canada Inc., Nexen Inc., Sherritt International and Synenco Energy Inc. (the
Northern Lights Project} have all announced intentions to proceed with gasification facilities.

The first Canadian facility, the Long Lake Project, has been designed to gasify asphaltenes, which are by-products of the
extraction and upgrading of bitunen. Further oilsands gasification projects are in the preliminary or planning stages. With
respect to the oilsands, Management believes that gasification of petcoke has the potential to replace natural gas to create
steam or heat for the oil extraction process and to create hydrogen used for upgrading. Given the expected strong demand
for synthetic crude oil from the oilsands, Management believes that the prospects for a sustained future gasification
market in Canada are positive.

The future outlook in the U.S. for gasification is also expected to remain strong as the country explores options to reach
energy independence. One suggested route to offset the energy import gap is through the development of CTL
technologies. Figure 6 shows the large role gasification is expected to play, according to the Southern States Energy
Board, if the U.S. is to eliminate its dependence on foreign oil. In the figure, the wedges titled CTL, Biomass and EOR all
represent potential market opportunities for gasification projects.
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Figure 6 — The Path 10 U.S. Energy Security and Independence
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(Source: Southern States Energy Board and Management Information Services, Inc., “American Energy Security”, July 2006)

The U.S. has the world’s largest coal reserves with an estimated 275 billion recoverable tons. (Source: U.S. Department of
Energy, “Coal Reserves”, August 2004). Converting 5% of the U.S. coal reserves to FT fuels is equivalent to U.S. crude
reserves of approximately 27 billion bbls. Similarly, Canada holds close to 10 billion tonnes of coal reserves; more energy
than all of the nation’s reserves of conventional oil and natural gas combined. (Source: Coal Association of Canada, “Coal

in Canada”, accessed February 2007)

Gasification Technologies and Major Competitors

According to a study conducted in 2004 by the National Energy Technical Laboratory, three gasification technologies

accounted for 94% of the world gasification facilities (Figure 7).
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Figure 7 — Worldwide Gasification by Technology
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Currently, the gasification industry is comprised of several large multi-national companies, a sample of which are shown
in Figure 7 above, and many small emerging gasification technology companies. The large multi-national companies,
who have the vast majority of market share, have put significant resources inte developing their technology, have made
technology sales, and all are involved in large projects having capital costs of $1 billion to $5 billien. Most of the
gasification technology competitors have relationships with multi-national engineering firms for facility design and
construction. These multi-national corporations, such as Shell International and General Electric Corporation, have many
business lines and gasification is not their exclusive focus.

It is reported that 75% of gasified coal is processed with the Sasol Lurgi technology, which has challenges associated with
production of byproducts which require additional separation and treatment. As such, Management anticipates that this
technology will gradually lose market share as its well understood operational capabilities are limited.

From a geographic competitor perspective, there is also evidence that the large market players are interested in
gasification in Canada and particularly Alberta. The Long Lake Project, now under construction by OPTI Canada
Inc. and Nexen Inc., is the first application of large-scale gasification in Canada and will be the first gasification project
operated in conjunction with a heavy oi! recovery and upgrading project. The Long Lake Project is using the Shell
gasification process which converts the liquid asphaltene by-product of the primary upgrader into hydrogen and syngas.
The gasifier component of the project is scheduled to begin operations in the second half of 2007.

Numerous new technologies have emerged as the gasification industry grows, most of which are still in the research or
early development phase. Management believes that these new technologies and gasification companies are focused on
smaller scale projects and generally do not have a commercial operating history or proven reliability.

Gasification is an emerging market that is growing rapidly to meet the world’s future energy needs. The number of
projects 1s increasing significantly. The majority of projects are either billion dollar facilities or small developments by
emerging technologies. Management believes that this leaves a market niche for smaller scale projects having capital
costs of $200 million to $700 million (or smaller for WTE facilities) which can be filled with flexible, scalable
gasification solutions.

Feedstocks

Gasification products can be derived from a number of feedstocks including: coal, petcoke, biomass, petroleum (heavy
oil, bitumen) and waste products such as MSW. Figure 8 details worldwide gasification by primary feedstock. According
to the DOE report in 2004, world feedstock distribution remains weighted towards coal. (Source: U.S. Department of
Energy, “Gasification World Survey Results”, 2004)
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Figure 8 — Worldwide Gasification by Primary Feedstock
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Coal is anticipated to be used as the feedstock in 41% of new facilities between 2005 and 2010. Petroleum residues and
petcoke account for 16% of increased feedstock capacity through 2010. In the U.S., projected growth will be dominated
by coal. According to the DOE, of the seven planned facilities between 2006 and 2010, four will use coal as their
feedstock. (Source: U.S, Department of Energy, “Gasification World Survey Results”, 2004)

The WPC Technology has the capability to handie all feedstocks. The use of a variety of feedstocks is anticipated to
provide for risk diversification of the facility portfolio going forward. The Corporation has also acquired surface mineable
coal leases, which is the leading feedstock for gasification. See ""Coal Rights™.

THE REORGANIZATION

During the spring and summer of 2006, the Existing Business was organized to be indirectly owned by the Trust, which
was established as a “mutual fund trust” under the Tax Act. Prior to the October Pronouncement, Management anticipated
that such a structure would have advantageous tax benefits for Unitholders go-forward, consistent with the benefits
typically realized at that time by the unitholders of mutual fund trusts.

In order to qualify as a mutual! fund trust, the Trust was established as a “unit trust” resident in Canada with the sole
undertaking of passively investing its funds; namely, its direct and indirect investment in Alter Nrg, the Commercial Trust
and Alter LP. The Existing Business is currently conducted by Alter LP. The Trust is the holder of all of the outstanding
CT Units and the Commercial Trust holds LP Units representing a 99.99% interest in Alter LP (with the residual LP Units
representing a 0.01% interest being held by Alter Nrg, in its capacity of general partner of Alter LP). The trustee of the
Trust is Valiant Trust Company and Adminco was established to be the trustee of the Commercial Trust.
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The current structure of the Trust and its subsidiaries is as follows:

Valiant Trust
Lt Company

Alter Nrg

Income Fund Administrator

Alter Nrg Lid.
100%
Alter Nrg
Corp. Trustee Alter Nr,
g
Alter Nrg = Administration 0.01%

Commercial el Ltd
Trust )

Limited
Partner

99.99%

General Partner
Alter Nrg
Limited
Partnership

Since the October Pronouncement, Management has determined that it is in the best interests of the Unitholders to
reorganize the Trust so that, among other things, the Trust will not be subject to the new tax regime announced in the
October Pronouncement. In that regard, the Corporation, the Trust and Alter Nrg have determined to effect the
Reorganization (as defined below).

The following is a summary of the steps to be substantially undertaken to reorganize the Corporation and the Trust and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Reorganization™):

(a) The Trust will, prior to the closing of this Offering, convene a special meeting of the Unitholders to seek
Unitholder approval of certain amendments to the Trust Indenture and the other matters described below, as

applicable.

(b)  Provided that the Unitholder approvals contemplated above are granied, the Corporation will seek the approval
of the Alberta Court of Queen’s Bench to proceed with the completion of a statutory plan of arrangement
pursuant to section 193 of the ABCA (the “Ptan of Arrangement”™), the effective time of which will occur
simultaneously with the closing of this Offering. The following steps will be contemplated by the Plan of
Arrangement:

(i) each outstanding Option will be exchanged for one Stock Option;
(i) each Trust Unit will be exchanged for one Common Share; and

(iii) the Common Shares owned by the Trust will be cancelled.
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The Reorganization is conditional upon the Common Shares being listed on the TSXV. The Corporation has applied to list
the Common Shares on the TSXV. Listing will be subject to the Corporation fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the
TSXV.

Subsequent to the Reorganization, the structure of the Corporation and its subsidiaries will be as follows:

Shareholders
(Comprised of the former
Unitholders)

Alier Nrg Corp.

Alter Nrg
Income Fund
Trustee and
Administrator

Alter Nrg Lid.

100%
0.01%
Alter Nrg Stee . -1 Alter Nrg.
Commercial N -~ Administration Ltd.

Trust

99.99%

General
Alter Nrg Partner
Limited
Partership

After the Reorganization, the Corporation intends to review and, if appropriate, implement internal reorganization steps to
maximize operational and tax efficiencies within its wholly-owned entities.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The estimated net proceeds of the Maximum Offering to the Corporation, after deducting the Agents’ fee of
5 o and expenses of this Offering and the Reorganization of approximately § @ | will be approximately
} e :

It is anticipated that the net proceeds of the Offering will be used by the Corporation as follows:

« Acquisitionof WPC .. ... ... ... .. ®
¢ Working capital . ... . . e ®

Closing of the Offering is conditional upon the satisfaction of all conditions relating to the completion of the
Reorganization and the WPC Acquisition, other than the payment of the Purchase Price in respect thereof. See “The
Reorganization™, “WPC Acquisition” and “Plan of Distribution”.

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables present a summary of data for the Trust derived from the consolidated financial statements of the
Trust as at December 31, 2006 and for the period from commencement of operations on March 9, 2006 to December 31,
2006 and certain pro forma information of the Corporation after giving effect to the Reorganization and the WPC
Acquisition.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet was prepared as if: (a} the Reorganization; (b) the issuance of

®  Common Shares for net proceeds of approximately $§ @ pursuant to the Maximum Offering; and (c) the
WPC Acquisition had occurred on December 31, 2006 and the pro forma consolidated statement of operations assumes
that these matters occurred on January 1, 2006.

The following data should be read along with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis Regarding the Trust” and the
financial statements and related notes of each of the Corporation and the Trust included in this prospectus. The unaudited
pro forma information should also be read together with the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements and
related notes of the Corporation included in this prospectus.

The Corporation
The Trus

Pro Farma
From the commencement Consolidated
of operations on March 9, 2006 for the year ended
to December 31, 2006 December 31, 2006
(unaudited)
Sales. . .o $ — $ 2,280,202
Interestrevenue . ... ............cuvrn.. 83,366 83,366
Depreciation . . . ....... ... ... . n., 13,568 1,817,857
General and administrative expenses ....... 1,437,436 8,778,915
Management bonus . .......... ... .. ... — 169,668
Stock based compensation .. ............. 290,253 334,564
Loss . ... e (1,657,891} (6,400,716}
Loss per Trust Unit#/Common Share
(basicand diluted) . . . ................ (0.16) ( ® )
The Trust The Corporation
Pro Forma
As at As at Consolidated as
December 31, 2006 February 20, 2007 at December 31, 2006
(unaundited)
Working capital . ... ... ... $ 8,466,410 5 100 5 ®
Capital assets, intangible assets resource
properties and deferred costs ... ........ 2,789,769 — 20,354,965
Total Assets .......... ... ... 11,919,896 100 ®
Unitholders'/Shareholders’ equity. .. ....... 11,256,179 100 o
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REGARDING THE TRUST

The following management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A® ) for the Trust, prepared as at January 29, 2007, provides
a review of the fiscal 2006 operating results and consideration of the Trust’s future opportunities. The MD&A should be
read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for the period ended
December 31, 2006. The financial statements, and extracts of those statements provided within this MD&A, were
prepared in Canadian dollars and are in accordance with GAAP.

The period for this report is from the commencement of active operations on March 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006;
therefore, no comparative information is available.

Overview

The Trust, through its subsidiaries, is a development-stage entity in the business of pursuing alternative gasification
energy solutions to meet the growing demand for energy in world markets. Management’s vision is to become a leader in
the development of innovative gasification projects for the commercial production of energy. The Trust’s objective is ta
become a senior energy producer of sulphur-free diesel, steam, power or syngas, all of which are fundamental products for
the world’s growing energy needs. In this MD&A, references to the Trust are references to the Trust through its
subsidiaries, and/or the Trust and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, as the context requires.

The Trust’s mission is to participate in financially accretive projects in the emerging alternative energy market to
maximize returns for investors. The Trust endeavours to be a leader in innovative gasification related technologies applied
to produce profitable and clean alternative energy solutions. The Trust invests in the skills of its people who will provide
the creativity, determination and passion to generate growth in Unitholder value. The Trust intends to be transparent and
fair in its activities and work together to form positive relationships in the communities in which it operates and with all of
its stakeholders.

Results of Operations
Interest income

Interest income of $83,366 for the period from March 9 to December 31, 2006 relates to the term deposits which are
invested in short-term, interest-bearing investments with a major chartered bank. The investments were made with net
proceeds received from issuances of Trust Units between May and July 2006.

General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative (“G&A”™) expenses were $1,437,436 for the peried from March 9, 2006 to December 31,
2006. The largest G& A expense relates to employee salaries of $550,852 and general consulting costs of $296,791 for the
period related to the Trust’s Management team. Accounting and legal fees were the next largest item, being approximately
$278,000, predominantly related to legal costs for advice on tax structure, structure of the Trust and other general legal
services that were expensed. Legal costs associated with share issuances, the WPC License, and the WPC Acquisition is
capitalized directly to those accounts. The remaining G&A is for office rent, employee benefits, business travel,
information technology costs and general costs of setting up and maintaining an office.

Income Taxes

The Trust had a loss from operations for the period ended December 31, 2006, which resulted in a corresponding future
tax recovery that was not recognized. The Trust took a full valuation allowance on the future tax asset and tax recovery, as
without commercial operations it cannot be considered more likely than not that the future tax benefits could be realized.

The tax losses are realized by the Commercial Trust under Canadian tax law and will be used to offset future taxable
income. The losses cannot be distributed to the Unitholders,

Loss and Cash Flow used in Operations

The loss for the period ended December 31, 2006 was $1,657,891, of which $1,437,436 related to G&A costs and the
remaining amount related to non-cash charges of depreciation and stock-based compensation offset by interest income.
Cash flow used in operations was $944,738 which represents the current cash expenditure for G&A costs for the period
offset by interest income. The Trust has entered into the Share Purchase Agreement in respect of the WPC Acqguisition
which, if completed, is expected to provide cash flow to the Trust in 2007,
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Capital Expenditures
A breakdown of the capital expenditures for the period ended December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Period from March 9, 2006
to December 31, 2006

WP LICeNSe e e $ 299,515
Acquisition costs. . . ... ... .. i 368,633
Engineering evaluations and pilot testing . . .............. 945,043
Resource properties. ... ..o u i ie i 1,107,325
Office equipment .. ... ... ... ... . . . 82,821
Total Capital Expenditures. .. ...................,.., .. $2,803,337

During the period from March 9, 2006 to December 3 1, 2006, the Trust invested in various assets and activities, as follows:

WPC License: On June 6, 2006, the Trust entered into an agreement in respect of the WPC License. The financial
commitments and license terms are disclosed in Note 3 of the consolidated financial statements.

Acquisition costs: On December 2, 2006, the Trust entered into the Share Purchase Agreement in respect of the
WPC Acquisition. See “WPC Acquisition”,

Engineering evaluations and pilot testing: The Trust has been evalnating the WPC Technology for various feedstocks, and
outputs through pilot testing at the WPC facility outside of Pittsburgh. This will provide a basis to move forward on the
planning and detailed engineering of future projects. The Trust also has engaged several studies, from well respected
engineering firms, and other industry experts to provide more detailed capital and operating cost data which will be used
to perform more detailed economic modeling. These studies have now been completed and the engineering team of the
Trust intends to use these results to focus project development efforts going forward.

Resource properties: Early in 2006, the Trust invested in a study which evaluated the known EUB coal reserves in Alberta.
The evaluation was based on various factors including size of reserves, quality, access to market, depth and infrastructure
availability. This ranking process was used as a basis for Alter Nrg to participate in the August 3, 2006 Crown land sale
where it acquired the rights, at its Fox Creek Property, for approximately 770 million tonnes of coal in place (as evaluated
in the Norwest Report); with leases in Hinton and Wetaskiwin that have yet to be evaluated. The Crown lease costs
represent the majority of the costs to date. This secures a feedstock source for the Trust going forward and, combined with
the WPC License, positions the Trust with full-cycle operating capability.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

AtDecember 31, 2006, the Trust had $9,000,252 in cash and cash equivalents and $8,466,4 10 net working capital surplus.
The working capital surplus is primarily a result of the net proceeds received by the issuance of Trust Units, offset by
capital expenditures and G&A costs. Net proceeds of $12.6 million were received from the May, June, July, and December
2006 private placement issuances of Trust Units. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis Regarding the Trust —
Equity”. These proceeds provide the Trust with the capital to continue to invest in a resource base, provide for G&A
support for the team and fund engineering studies to provide a strong technical foundation to evalvate investment
opportunities.

Equity

As at December 31, 2006, the Trust had 17,360,272 Trust Units outstanding. As at February 23, 2007, the Trust had
17,555,272 Trust Units outstanding.

On May 29, 2006, the Trust closed a private placement of 7,520,000 Trust Units at $0.40 per Trust Unit for gross proceeds
of $3,008,000. In June and Juty 2006, the Trust closed a private placement of 7,695,355 Trust Units at a price of $0.75 per
Trust Unit for gross proceeds of $5,771,525. No commissions were paid on the transactions and officers, directors and key
consultants of the Trust participated in both private placements. Trust Unit issuance costs related to these transactions
were $131,703.

On December 29, 2006, the Trust closed the first tranche of the private placement of 2,144,917 Trust Units at $2.00 per
Trust Unit for gross proceeds of $4,289,834. Trust Unit issuance costs related to this transaction were $313,839. The
second tranche of the private placement was closed subsequent to year end. See “Prior Sales of Securities”,
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The Trust granted 1,476,500 Options in 2006 (28,200 of which were subsequently cancelled} and had 1,448,300 Options
outstanding at a weighted average exercise price of $0.69 per Trust Unit at December 31, 2006. See “Executive
Compensation — Unit Option Plan™.

The authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of Trust Units.

Contractual Obligations

The Trust has entered into a lease for office space which expires on March 31, 2011. The annual commitments for the next
five years are as follows:

Annuoal Commitments

7 $85,500
2008 . e e 91,3500
000 L e e 97,500
2 97,500
72 1 24,500

The Trust also has ongoing commitments under the WPC License as disclosed in Note 3 of the consolidated financial
statements, These commitments are for exclusivity of the WPC License and are conditioned upon continued commercial
success with the WPC Technology. See “Development of the Business”.

The Trust has annual coal lease rental payments of $96,096 per year for 15 years.

Related Party Transactions

During the period, the Trust paid $263,075 for legal fees to a legal firm of which two officers of Alter Nrg are partners;
these fees are included in G&A expense, WPC License acquisition costs and Trust Unit issue costs. All legal costs were
transacted at general market terms and conditions.

During the period, a director loaned $750,000 to the Trust through an unsecured, non-interest-bearing loan. The loan was
repaid during the period.

During the period, the Trust also paid $42,400 in engineering consulting fees to a firm of which one of the officers of Alter
Nrg is a partner.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As at December 31, 2006, the Trust does not have off-balance sheet arrangements.

New Accounting Policies

This is the first reporting period of the Trust which has adopted the current accounting policies under Canadian GAAP.

Financial Instruments

The Trust’s financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. It is
Management’s opinion that the Trust is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from the
financial instruments and that the fair value of these instruments approximate their carrying values due to their short term
nature.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

See “Risk Factors”.

Subsequent Event

On January 12, 2007, the Trust closed the second tranche of a private placement for 193,000 Trust Units at $2.00 per Trust
Unit for gross proceeds of $390,000. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis Regarding the Trust — Equity”.
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The following table sets forth the name and municipality of residence, position held with the Corporation, principal
occupation and date of election or appointment as a director or officer, as the case may be, of each director and executive

'DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

officer of the Corporation as at February 20, 2007,

Name and Municipality
of Residence

MicHaiL E. HeEr
Calgary, Alberta

NaNCY M. LARD
Calgary, Alberta

Brent J. Conway
Calgary, Alberta

Mark A. MONTEMURRO . . . .

Calgary, Alberta

Danie. R. Hay . . ..... ...

Calgary, Alberta

(2)(3.(4)

(210304

(2).43).(4)

Position with

the Corporation

Director and Chairman

Director

Director

President and Chief
Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Prircipal Qccupation
During Previous Five Years

Chairman of the Board of Directors
of Trinidad Drilling Ltd. or its
predecessor since June 1998,
Director and Executive Chairman of
Alter Nrg since November 7, 2005.

Independent Businessperson and
corporate director of Alberta Electric
System Operator, Canetic Resources
Trust, Keyera Facilities Income Fund
and Synodon Inc.; Director of

Alter Nrg since May 23, 2006; prior
thereto, Vice President, Marketing
and Midstream of PanCanadian
Energy Corporation from Aprl 1997
to April 2002 and subsequently held
the same position with EnCana
Corporation until June 2002.

Chief Financial Officer of Trinidad
Drilling Ltd. or its predecessor

since November 2001; Director of
Alter Nrg since November 7, 2005.

President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Corporation since
February 20, 2007; President and
Chief Executive Officer of Alter Nrg
since May 1, 2006; prior thereto,
President of Alter Nrg since
November 7, 2005; prior thereto,
Vice President, Thermal Operations
of Deer Creek Energy Limited from
August 2002 to September 2005;
prior thereto, General Manager at
PanCanadian Energy Corporation
from 1997 to June 2002.

Chief Financial Officer of the
Corporation since February 20,
2007, Chief Financial Officer of
Alter Nrg since May 23, 2006; prior
thereto, Chief Financial Officer of
Waveform Energy Ltd. from
February 2005 to November 2006;
prior thereto, a Senior Manager of
Grant Thornton LLP from October
2003 to January 2005; prior thereto,
a Manager at Collins Barrow from
1998 to September 2003,
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Director/Officer
Since'"

February 20, 2007

February 20, 2007

February 20, 2007

February 20, 2007

February 20, 2007



Name and Muricipality Paosition with Principal Occupation Director/Officer

of Residence the Corporation During Previous Five Years Since'"
RicHARD D. BOWER . .. ... .. Vice President, Vice President, Engineering of the February 20, 2007
Calgary, Alberta Engineering Corporation since February 20,

2007; Vice President, Engineering
of Alter Nrg since May 1, 2006;
prior thereto, a professional
engineer with and founder of BDR.

Kevin L. WILLERTON . . . .. .. Vice President, Business  Vice President, Business February 20, 2007

Calgary, Alberta Development Development of the Corporation
since February 20, 2007; Vice
President, Business Development of
Alter Nrg since October 16, 2006,
prior thereto, Director, Market
Services of Alberta Electric System
Operator from November 2004 to
October 2006; prior thereto, Vice
President, Business Development of
ENMAX Corporation from
October 2000 to May 2004.

MIcHELLE M. LEMMENS . . . .. Controller Controller of the Corporation since February 20, 2007
February 20, 2007;
Controller of Alter Nrg since
December 2006; prior thereto,
Manager, Accounting & Tax of
Total E&P Canada Ltd. from
December 2005 to December 2006;
prior thereto, Senior Financial
Analyst at Deer Creek Energy
Limited from November 2004 to
December 2005; prior thereto,
Assistant Controller of Promax
Energy Inc. from 2002 to
November 2004.

Brock W. GIBSON. . .. ... .. Corporate Secretary Partner, Blake, Cassels & Graydon February 20, 2007
LLP
Scort W, N, CLARKE . ..... Assistant Corporate Partner, Blake, Cassels & Graydon February 20, 2007
Secretary LLP
Notes:

(1) Each of the directors has been appointed to hold office until the next annual general meeting of Shareholders or until his successor is duly elected
or appeinted, unless his position is carlier vacated. The Corporation’s articles of incorporation permit the Board of Directors to appoint one or
more additional directors to serve until the next annual general meeting of Shareholders, provided that the number of such additional directors
shall not, at any time, exceed one-third of the number of directors who held office at the expiration of the last annual meeting of Shareholders of

_ the Cerporation. The Corporation’s articles of incorporation currently authorize a minimum of one and a maximum of 11 directors to serve on the
Board of Directors and the number of directors has been initially set at three.

(2  Member of the Audit Committee,
(3} Member of the Compensation Committee.
(4) Member of the Governance and Nominating Committee.

As at the date of this prospectus, and assuming completion of the Reorganization, the directors and executive officers, as a
group, beneficialty own, directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, a total of 8,018,749 Common Shares,
representing approximately 45.7 percent of the issued and outstanding Common Shares of the Corporation
{ @& percent after giving effect to the Maximum Offering and the WPC Acquisition, assuming they do not
subscribe for any Common Shares pursuant to the Offering).
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The following are brief biographies of each of the officers and directors of the Corporation, including a description of their
present occupation and their principal occupations during the last five years,

Directors
Michael E. Heier/Director and Chairman

Mr. Heier is the founder and Chairman of Trinidad Drilling Ltd. (*Trinidad”), the operating subsidiary of Trinidad
Energy Services Income Trust, a TSX listed Trust. Mr. Heler has also held the position of Chief Executive Officer of
Trinidad or its predecessor since June 1998. He is a journeyman millwright and has been involved in the oil and gas
industry in Western Canada since 1976. Mr. Heier played a key role in the growth of a family group of companies from
that time until early 2000. At its peak activity level in 1997, this group of companies had combined revenues in excess of
$50 million and employed just fewer than 400 people throughout Western Canada.

Mr. Heier also served as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of Trinity Energy Ltd. from 1987 to 1998. Trinity Energy
Ltd. grew from 25 bbl/d day to an average of over 2,000 bbl/d making it one of the largest private independent oil and gas
producers in the Province of Saskatchewan. During this same time frame, Trinity Energy Ltd. developed and sold over
$75 million worth of oil and gas assets. Trinity Energy Ltd. became Trinity Energy Inc. in 1998 and went on to find one of
the largest concentrated deposits of coal bed methane in the plains region in Alberta. This land position was successfully
joint-ventured with Nexen Inc. in 2000. Trinity Energy Inc. operated as a public non-trading entity with approximately
135 shareholders.

Nancy M. Laird/Director

Ms. Laird is a corporate director with more than 20 years of experience in the energy industry, Ms Laird served as a Senior
Vice-President, Marketing and Midstream for PanCanadian Energy Corporation (“PanCanadian™), a TSX listed
Company, from Aprl 1997 to April 2002 and subsequently held the same position with EnCana Corporation until
June 2002. Prior to joining PanCanadian, Ms. Laird was President of NoG Information Services Inc., a joint venture
initiative involving four of North America’s leading natural gas pipeline companies with a mandate to create a seamless
flow of natural gas across North America.

Ms. Laird is currently a board member for the Alberta Electric System Operator, Canetic Resources Trust (a TSX and
NYSE listed company), Keyera (formerly KeySpan) Facilities Income Fund (a TSX listed company) and Synodon Inc. (a
TSXYV listed company). Ms. Laird holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree (Honours) from the University of Western Ontario and
eamed her MBA from the Schulich School of Business at York University in Toronto.

Brent J. Conway/Director

Mr. Conway graduated from the Faculty of Management at the University of Calgary with a Bachelor of Commerce
degree in accounting. Mr. Conway received his Certified General Accountant Designation in 1986. He began his business
career in 1991, joining Deloitte and Touche, Chartered Accountants where he advanced through the audit group reaching
the level of Senior Accountant,

In 1994, Mr, Conway joined Bowridge Resource Group Inc., a TSX listed company (“Bowridge”™), in the capacity of
Corporate Controller. He was promoted to Chief Financial Officer in 1996 and was promoted again in 1999 to Vice President
Finance and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Conway left Bowridge in November 2001 when the company was purchased and
privatized. He joined Trinidad in November of 2001 as Chief Financial Officer and still retains that position.

Executive Officers and Senior Management
Mark A. Montemurro/President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Montemurro recently held the position of Vice President, Thermal Operations with Deer Creek Energy Limited
(a TSX listed company) from August 2002 to September 2005, at which time the company was purchased by Total E&P
Canada Ltd. He has more than 24 years of oil and gas experience, focusing primarily on the application of new
technologies and the commercial development of conventional and thermal heavy oil.

Prior to Deer Creek Energy Limited, Mr. Montemurro was General Manager at PanCanadian, and was initially
responsible for the Heavy Oil Business Unit and later, Information Services. Mr. Montemurro spent eight years in
increasingly senior engineering management roles at CS Resources Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Chemical Engineering from the University of Calgary.
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Daniel R. Hay/Chief Financial Officer

As Chief Financial Officer and Vice President Finance of Waveform Energy Ltd. (a TSX listed company) from February
2005 to November 2006. Mr. Hay brings with him extensive experience in oil and gas accounting, finance and public
company reporting. Mr. Hay was also a Senior Manager with Grant Thornton LLP, from October 2003 to January 2005,
where he was leader of the oil and gas business unit specializing in audit, taxation and consulting services that included
public documents and filings.

Mr. Hay holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Calgary and is a Chartered Accountant.

Richard D. Bower/Vice President, Engineering

Mr. Bower's career as a professional engineer began in 1973 and has been in the o0il and gas industry of Alberta with the
majority of his experience focused on the design of gas plants and oil production facilities. Mr. Bower is a professional
engineer with a Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering.

In 1984, Mr. Bower, with two co-workers, formed an engineering consulting firm, BDR, to provide project engineering
and management services 1o the oil and gas industry, Qver the past 22 years, Mr. Bower has led the design and construction
of numerous facilities in Western Canada and South America. Projects have ranged from oil facilities, sweet and sour gas
processing facilities, turbine driven power generation and cogeneration, SAGD facilities, water treatment and sour gas re-
injection facilities. Capital budgets for these facilities have ranged from less than $1 million to over $150 million. On
many of these projects, Mr. Bower has utilized innovative technology and design strategies which have resulted in setting
the benchmarks for others in the industry.

Kevin L. Willerton/Vice President, Business Development

Mr. Willerton brings to Alter Nrg 20 years of experience in the electricity industry, the majority of which has been in a
business development capacity. He was Vice President Business Development at ENMAX Corporation, from October
2000 to May 2004, where he led the company’s entry into wind power, Mr, Willerton held numerous roles over a ten year
period at TransAlta Corporation, from 1989 to 1999, including business development, marketing, commodity risk
management and engineering.

Mr. Willerton is a Professional Engineer, has a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the University
of Saskatchewan and a Masters of Business Administration from the University of Calgary.

Michelle M. Lemmens/Controller

Ms. Lemmens brings to the Corporation experience in oil and gas accounting, corporate reporting, finance, tax, budgeting
and regulatory compliance. Prior to joining the Corporation, Ms. Lemmens was Manager, Accounting and Tax of Total
E&P Canada Ltd., and has held positions with Promax Energy Inc. as an Assistant Controller and Deer Creek Energy
Limited as a Senior Financial Analyst (TSX listed companies), Ms. Lemmens holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Calgary.

Brock W. Gibson/Corporate Secretary

Mr. Gibson has been a senior partner in the Calgary office of Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP since 1996, He advises
primarily on mergers and acquisitions, corporate finance and energy transactions. His clients include energy and power
companies, investment dealers, income funds and services and technology companties. Mr. Gibson also has extensive
experience in all aspects of energy and power-related transactions, as well as corporate, securities, governance and trust
matters affecting energy and power entities.

Scont W. N. Clarke/Assistant Corporate Secretary

Mr. Clarke is a partner in the Calgary office of Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP, where he has practiced since 1997.
Mr. Clarke’s practice has a primary focus on securities and transactiona! corporate matters, Mr. Clarke principally
represents a broad range of resource-based, oilfield services and energy sector clients, including alternative energy.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has established three board committees: an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a
Governance and Nominating Committee. The information below summarizes the functions of each of the committees in
accordance with their charters.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been structured to comply with the requirements of Multilateral Instrument 52-110 — Audit
Committees of the Canadian Securities Administrators (“MI 52-110"). The Board of Directors has determined that the
Aundit Committee members have the appropriate leve! of financial understanding and industry specific knowledge to be
able to perform the duties of the position and, in particular, are “financially literate™ as defined in MI 52-110.

The Audit Committee shall, as permitted by, and in accordance with, the requirements of the ABCA and the Corporation’s
articles and by-laws and any legal or regulatory authority having jurisdiction, pericdically assess the adequacy of
procedures for the public disclosure of financial information and review on behalf of the Board of Directors, and report to
the Board of Directors, the results of its review and its recommendation regarding all material matters of a financial
reporting and audit nature, including, but not limited to the following main subject areas:

(a) financial statements, including management’s discussion and analysis thereof’;

(b) financial information in any annual information form, management proxy circular, prospectus or other
offering document, material change report or business acquisition report;

(c) reports to shareholders and others;

(d) annual and interim press releases regarding financial results or containing earnings guidance;
(e} internal controls;

(f)  audits and reviews of financial statements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries; and

(g) filings to securities regulators containing financial information.

The Audit Committee shall ensure satisfactory procedures for receipt, retention and treatment of complaints and for the
confidential, anonymous submission by employees regarding any accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing
matters. The Board of Directors will be kept informed of the Audit Committee’s activities by a report delivered at each
regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee shall recommend the appointment and compensation of the external auditor annually and shall
review and evaluate the external auditor. Once appointed by the shareholders, the external auditor shall report directly to
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall review and approve the Corporation’s hiring policies regarding current
and former partners and employees of the external auditor. In addition, the Audit Committee shall pre-approve non-audit
services undertaken by the external audit firm.

The Audit Committee shall have direct responsibility for overseeing the work of the external auditor engaged for the
purpose of preparing or issuing an auditor’s report or performing other audit, review or attest services, including the
resolution of disagreements between the external auditor and Management.

The Audit Committee will meet at least once per financial quarter to fulfil its mandate. The Audit Committee is comprised
of Mr. Heier, Ms. Laird and Mr. Conway, who will be the chair of the Audit Committee.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee’s role is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to matters
of human rescurces and compensation, including equity compensation, and to establish a plan of continuity and
development for senior Management of the Corporation. The Compensation Committee will also review and recommend
to the Board of Directors a comprehensive statement of compensation philosophy, strategy and principles for the
Corporation’s executives, and periodically evaluate the Corporation’s compensation and benefits program in accordance
with such statement. The Compensation Committee will review and make recommendations to the Board of Directors
regarding all new employment, consulting, retirement and severance agreements and arrangements proposed for the
Corporation’s executives, and will evaluate existing agreements with the Corporation’s executives, including the Chief
Executive Officer, and with the Corporation’s directors.

The Compensation Committee is comprised of Mr. Heter, Mr. Conway and Ms. Laird, who will be the chair of the
Compensation Committee.
Governance and Nominating Committee

The Governance and Nominating Committee’s charter provides that the responsibilities of such committee will include:
(i) establishing and reviewing member characteristics for the Board of Directors; (ii) evaluating, identifying and
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recommending nominees to the Board of Directors; (iii) monitoring and reviewing the education and development of
members of the Board of Directors; (iv) recommending directors to serve as committee members and chairs; (v) reviewing
and developing corporate governance guidelines, policies and procedures for the Board of Directors; (vi) establishing and
implementing evaluation processes for the Board of Directors, committees and chairs; {vii) establishing procedures for the
engagement of independent counsel by a director; (viii) reviewing disclosure by the Corporation of matters within the
Governance and Nominating Committee’s mandate; and (ix) reviewing and evaluating the Governance and Nominating
Committee’s charter and efficacy.

The Governance and Nominating Commitlee is comprised of Mr. Heier, Mr. Conway and Ms. Laird, who will be the chair
of the Governance and Nominating Committee.

Corperate Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies

No director or officer of the Corporation is, or within the ten years prior to the date hereof has been, a director, officer or
promoter of any other issuer that, while that person was acting in the capacity of a director, officer or promoter of that
issuer, was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the issuer access to any statutory exemptions
under applicable securities laws for a period of more than 30 consecutive days, or became bankrupt, made a proposal
under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or has been subject to or instituted any proceedings,
arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold his or her
assets.

Penalties or Sanctions

No director or officer of the Corporation has been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating o
Canadian securities legislation or by a Canadian securities regulatory authority, or has entered into a settlement agreement
with a Canadian securities regulatory authority, or been subject to any other material penalties or sanctions imposed by a
court or regulatory body.

Personal Bankruptcies

No director or officer of the Corporation (or personal holding company of any such person) has, during the ten years prior
to the date hereof, become bankrupt or, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or has
been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver
manager or trustee appointed to hold his assets.

Conflicts of Interest

Except as set forth below and other than as disclosed elsewhere in this prospectus, there are no known existing or potential
conflicts of interest among the Corporation, its directors or officers as a result of their outside business interests, except
that certain of the directors and officers serve as directors and/or officers of other public companies which may be
involved in the oil and natural gas industry and therefore it is possible that a conflict may arise between their duties as a
director or officer of the Corporation and their duties as a director and/or officer of such other companies. Any such
conflicts shall be dealt with in accordance with the procedures set forth in the ABCA. See “Principal Holders of Common
Shares”.

Mr. Bower is a director of BDR, which provides engineering services to the industry and is presently providing
engineering services to the Corporation. See “The Corporation’s Execution and Technical Strengths”.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation of Executive Officers

The following table sets forth all annual and long-term compensation of the individuals who were, at December 31, 20086,
Alter Nrg’s President and Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Engineering and Vice
President, Business Development (collectively, the “Named Executive Officers™), for the financial year of Alter Nrg
ended December 31, 2006. Following the completion of the Reorganization, such individuals will be compensated by the
Corporation and not Alter Nrg.

Summary Compensation Table

Long-Term Compensation

Awards
Annual Compensation “le:dli:m ‘I;x;j‘egtn(lr M
Other Annual Options Resale LTIP All Other
Salary Bonus Compensation Granted Restrictions Payouts Compensation

Named Executive Officer Year 5 3] ® # ($) (%) ($)
Mark A. MoNTEMURRO'Y . . 2006 154,167 24,000 Nil 261,900 Note 5 Nil Nil

President and Chief

Executive Officer
DaNEL R. Hay'? .. ... .. 2006 59,583 20,000 Nil 201,300  Note 5 Nil Nil

Chief Financial Officer
Ricuaro D. Bower™ |, .. 2006 55,965 24,000 Nil 140,600 Note 5 Nil Nil

Vice President,

Engineering
Kevin L. Wierton™ .. 2006 35417 12,000 Nil 135000  Note 5 Nil Nil

Vice Prestdent,
Business Development

Notes:

(I} Mr. Montemurro commenced paid employment with Alter Nrg on March 9, 2006.
(2) Mr. Hay commenced employment with Alter Nrg on May 23, 2006.

(3y Mr Bower commenced employment with Alter Nrg on May 1, 2006.

(4) Mr Willenton commenced employment with Alter Nrg on October 16, 2006,

(5} All Trust Units underlying the Options held by the Named Executive Officers vest as to one third of the Options granted immediately upon grant
and as to one third of the number of Options granted on each of the one year and two year anniversaries of the date of grant. As there is currently no
public market for the Trust Units, the dollar value of the Trust Units subject to sale restrictions is undeterminable. See “Executive
Compensation — Unit Option Plan”.

Unit Option Plan

The Trust has adopted a Trust Unit opticn plan (the “Option Plan"} to enable the directors, officers and employees of the
Trust’s affiliates to participate in the growth and developrment of the Trust by providing such persons with the opportunity,
through options (“Options”™) to acquire an increased proprietary interest in the Trust that will be aligned with the interests
of the Unitholders. Since adoption of the Option Plan, an aggregate of 1,496,500 Options have been granted (62,400 of
which were subsequently cancelled) and none of such Options have been exercised.

Upon closing of the Reorganization, the Option Plan will be discontinued and the Options which are issued and
outstanding at the commencement of closing of the Reorganization will be exchanged for new options (“Stock Options™)
(ona 1:1 basis} under a proposed stock option plan (the “Stock Option Plan”) of the Corporation. The Stock Options will
have the same exercise price and vesting terms as the Options they replace. The terms of the Stock Option Plan are
described below under “Executive Compensation — Stock Option Plan™.

Stock Option Plan

The Corporation intends to adopt the Stock Option Plan in conjunction with the Reorganization. The Stock Option Plan
will enable the directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Corporation and its affiliates to participate in the
growth and development of the Corporation by providing such persons with the opportunity, through options (“Stock
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Options™) to acquire an increased proprietary interest in the Corporation that will be aligned with the interests of the
Shareholders. Upon completion of the Reorganization and the closing of the Offering, the Stock Option Plan will be the
Corporation’s only securities-based compensation arrangement pursuant to which securities may be issued from treasury
of the Corporation.

The Stock Option Plan will be administered by the Board of Directors which may grant Stock Options to purchase
Common Shares to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Corporation and its affiliates. The Board of
Directors has the discretion to determine to whom Stock Options will be granted, the number and exercise price of such
Stock Options and the terms and time frames in which the Stock Options will vest and be exercisable. Stock Options,
however, may only be exercisable for a maximum of ten calendar years from the date of grant and the exercise price of the
Stock Options must be no less than the volume-weighted average trading price of the Common Shares on the TSXV for
the five trading days preceding the date on which the granting of an Steck Option is approved by the Board of Directors.

Notwithstanding the maximum ten year term (or any shorter term determined by the Board of Directors), the Stock Option
Plan will contain provisions which address the circumstance in which a Stock Option expires during a time when the
Corporation is under a setf-imposed blackout period which prevents officers, directors, employees and consultants from
exercising Stock Options. The Corporation has, and intends to have in the future, policies which mandate trading
blackouts in certain circumstances, such as preceding the release of financial results. The Stock Optien Plan will provide
that if the expiration date for a Stock Option occurs during a blackout period applicable to the relevant opticnee, or within
10 business days after the expiry of a blackout period applicable to the relevant optionee, then the expiration date for that
Stock Option shall be the date that is the tenth business day afier the expiry date of the blackout period (the “Blackout
Expiration Term”).

The Blackout Expiration Term will only be available when there is a blackout period self-imposed by the Corporation
(that is, it does not apply to the Corporation or its insiders being the subject of a cease trade order) and the Blackout
Expiration Term will be available to all eligible participants under the Stock Option Plan, under the same terms and
conditions.

In the absence of the alternative resolution of the Board of Directors at the time of the granting of Stock Options to a
grantee, the Stock Options issued to a grantee will vest as to one third of the number of Stock Options granted immediately
and as to one third of the number of Stock Options granted on each of the one year and two year anniversaries of the date of
grant.

The number of Common Shares to be reserved for issuance under the Stock Option Plan will equal 10% of the issued and
outstanding Common Shares, from time to time. Any Stock Options granted during the period subsequent to closing of the
Offering and the next Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders will be subject to Shareholder ratification.

The maximum number of Stock Options (and corresponding Common Shares reserved for issuance upon exercise of such
Stock Options) that may be issued to any one person under the Stock Option Plan, together with any other securities based
compensation arrangement, 15 10% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares (on a non-diluted basis) at the date of
the grant of the Stock Option. The maximum number of Stock Options (and corresponding Common Shares reserved for
issuance upon the exercise of such Stock Options) that may be reserved for issuance to insiders of the Corporation under
the Stock Option Plan, together with any other securities based compensation arrangement, is 10% of the issued and
outstanding Common Shares (on a non-diluted basis) at the date of the grant. The total number of Stock Options which
may be granted to any one insider of the Corporation within a one year period shall not exceed 5% of the issued and
outstanding Common Shares.

In addition to the limits set forth above, the Stock Option Plan imposes limits on the number of Stock Options that may be
issued to consultants and employees who perform investor relations activities. The maximum number of Stock Options
that may be granted to any one consultant of the Corporation within a one year period shall not exceed 2% of the issued
and ocutstanding Common Shares (on a non-diluted basis) at the date of the grant. Similarly, the maximum number of
Stock Options that may be granted within a one year peried to an employee conducting investor relations activities shall
not exceed 2% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares {on a non-diluted basis) at the date of the grant.

A Swock Option is personal to the grantee of the Stock Option and is non-transferable and non-assignable. The Stock
Opticn Plan does not provide for or contemplate the provision of financial assistance to facilitate the exercise of Stock
Options and the issuance of Common Shares. If the employment or appointment of a Stock Option holder with the
Corporation or its affiliates is terminated by either party for any reason other than termination for cause, the Stock Options
held by such Stock Option holder must be exercised within 90 days of the date of termination of the Stock Option holder’s
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employment or appointment with the Corporation or its affiliates. If terminated for cause, the Stock Options held by such
Stock Option holder terminate and are cancelled upon the holder ceasing to be a director, officer or employee of the
Corporation or its affiliates.

The Stock Option Plan contains standard adjustment and anti-dilution provisions for changes in the capital structure of the
Corporation. If, during the term of a Stock Option, the Corporation is merged into or amalgamated with any other entity, or
the Corporation sells all or substantially all of its assets, and as a result of such transactions the Shareholders would receive
securities of another issuer in substitution for the Common Shares, the Stock Options would be modified so that the holder
would receive that number of securities of the successor issuer that he or she would have received as a result of such
merger, amalgamation or sale if the Stock Option holder had exercised the Stock Options to purchase Common Shares
immediately prior to the transaction. However, if the employment or appointment of a Stock Option holder with the
Corporation, its affiliates or a successor issuer is terminated for any reason (other than for cause or the death of the holder)
within 90 days of a merger, amalgamation or sale as described above, the Stock Option holder may exercise all of his or
her Stock Options within 90 days of such termination, whether or not such Stock Options would have otherwise been
vested or exercisable. Additionally, if a take-over bid that is not exempt from the take-over bid requirements of the
Securities Act (Ontario) is made for the Common Shares, holders of Stock Options have the right to immediately exercise
all unexercised Stock Options held by such holder, whether vested or not at such time, in order to tender such Common
Shares to the take-over bid. If such Common Shares are not tendered to or taken up under the bid, any Common Shares so
acquired by the holder of the exercised Stock Options are deemed to be cancelled and returned to the Corperation and the
Stock Options and the consideration paid by the holder to exercise such Stock Options will be returned to the holder.

The Stock Option Plan will state that the Board of Directors may amend, suspend or discontinue the Stock Option Plan at
any time, provided that Shareholder approval will be required to increase the maximum number of Common Shares
reserved for issuance under the Stock Option Plan or change the manner of determining the exercise price for Stock
Options.

Option Grants During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year

The following table summarizes the outstanding Options granted to the Named Executive Officers pursuant to the Unit
Option Plan for the pericd ended December 31, 2006:

% of
Total Options
Granted to
Employees in Market Value
Trust Units  Financial Year of Trust Units
Under Options ended Underlying
Granted December 31,  Exercise Price of Options
Named Executive Officer @ 2006 Options ($/Option) ($/Unit) Option Expiry Date
Mark A. MONTEMURRO . . . . ... .. .. 126,900 8.83% 045 Note 2 May 30, 2016
President and Chief Executive Officer 135,000 9.3% 0.80 Note 2 August 29, 2016
DanviELR.Hay ..o oo 112,800 7.8% 0.45 Note 2 May 30, 2016
Chief Financial Officer §8,500 6.1% 0.80 Note 2 August 29, 2016
Richarp D. BowEr. . . .. ......... 84,600 58% 045 Note 2 May 30, 2016
Vice President, Engineering 56,000 31.9% 0.80 Note 2 August 29, 2016
Keviv L. WILLERTON. . .. .., ... ... 135,000 9.3% 1.00 Note 2 October 16, 2016
Vice President, Business Development
Notes:
(E}  Atthe time of closing of the Reorgarization, each Option will be exchanged for a Stock Option, See “Executive Compensation — Stock Option
Plan™,

(2} As there is corrently no public market for the Trust Units, the market value of the Trust Units underlying Options is undeterminable.

Employment Agreements

Alter Nrg has executive employment agreements with each of Messrs. Mark A. Montemurro, President and Chief
Executive Officer, Daniel R. Hay, Chief Financial Officer, Kevin L. Willerton, Vice President, Business Development and
Richard D. Bower, Vice President, Engineering (each, an “Executive”).
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The executive employment agreements between Alter Nrg and each of the Executives are in substantially similar form,
other than as set forth below. The executive employment agreements have an indefinite term and provide for the salary and
benefits to be paid to such Executives, comprised of current annual salaries of $192,400 (Mr. Montemurro), $155,000
(Mr. Hay), $176,800 (Mr. Willerton) and $176,800 (Mr. Bower). In addition, each Executive is entitled to benefits and an
annual bonus to be determined by the Corporation, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, and is eligible to be
considered for grants under the Stock Option Plan. See “Executive Compensation — Stock Option Plan”.

The executive employment agreements also provide that if the Executive is terminated without just cause, the Executive
will be entitled to receive, in the aggregate, a lump sum severance payment equal to the Executive’s annual base salary as
at the date of termination multiplied by 1.5, plus the equivalent of 18 months’ health benefits and bonus (the “Severance
Payment”). In addition, the executive employment agreements provide that if the Executive terminates his employment
with the Corporation within the three month period following a change of control of the Corporation, he will be entitled to
receive, within seven days after the date of such termination, the Severance Payment. In either case, the Executive’s right
to receive the Severance Payment is not subject to any obligation to mitigate, nor is it affected by any actual mitigation.
The completion of the Reorganization and the WPC Acquisition will not constitute a change of control for the purposes of
these executive employment agreements.

Pursuant to the executive employment agreements, each of the Executives is subject to a covenant not to compete with the
Corporation during the term of the executive’s employment. In addition, each Executive is subject to a covenant not to
initiate contact with any employee or other executive of the Corporation for the purpose of offering him or her
employment or business opportunities with any person or entity other than the Corporation, or solicit any customers of the
Corporation, for a period of 12 months after the Executive’s employment is terminated for any reason.

Concurrently with the execution of each Executive's employment agreement, each Executive entered into a
Confidentiality and Intellectual Property Rights Agreement wherein he covenants and agrees not to disclose certain
confidential information and intetlectual property rights of the Corporation.

If the Offering and the Reorganization are completed, it is expected that the Corporation will enter into executive
employment agreements with each Executive on substantially similar terms and the existing executive employment
agreements with Alter Nrg will be terminated.

Pension and Retirement Plans

The Corporation does not currently have pension or retirement plans; therefore, no compensation is currently paid to the
directors or officers of the Corporation in that capacity.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth the securities of the Trust that are authorized for issnance under equity compensation plans
as at December 31, 2006. The Trust does not have any equity compensation plans not approved by the Unitholders.
Number of Trust Units

Remaining Available For
Issuance Under Equity

Number of Trust Units Compensation Plans
to be Issued Weighted Average (Excluding Qutstanding
Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Securities Reflected
Plan Category Qutstanding Option Qutstanding Options in the First Column)
Option Plan®® ... ... .............. 1,448,300 $0.69 287,727

Total ......... ... .. 1,448,300 $0.69 287,727

(1) At the time of closing of the Reorganization, each Option will be exchanged for a Stock Option. See “Executive Compensztion — Stock Option
Plan™.

(2}  The aggregate number of Common Shares (hat may be reserved for issuance under the Stock Opiion Plan shall not exceed 10% of the issued and
oumstanding Common Shares.

Compensation of Directors

No compensation is currently paid to the directors of Alter Nrg or the Corporation in that capacity except Unit Option
grants and Stock Option grants, as applicable, as described herein.
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INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

No individual who is a director or executive officer of either Alter Nrg or the Corporation, and no associate of any such
individual, is, or has been at any time during the fiscal period ended December 31, 2006, indebted to either Alter Nrg or the
Corporation or any of their respective subsidiaries or to another entity where such indebtedness is the subject of a
guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by either Alter Nrg
or the Corporation or any of their respective subsidiaries, other than routine indebtedness.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Pursuant to an agency agreement (the “Agency Agreement™) dated ® | 2007, among the Corporation and the
Agents, the Agents have agreed to act as, and have been appointed as, the sole and exclusive agents of the Corporation to
offer for sale to the public the Offered Shares on a best efforts basis if, as and when issued by the Corporation, subject to
the terms and conditions of the Agency Agreement, The Agents will receive acommissionequalto$ @  per Offered
Share sold under the Offering or 6.5% of the gross proceeds of the Offering, payable by the Corporation. The Agents have
agreed to use their best efforts to secure subscriptions for the Offered Shares on behalf of the Corporation, and, if the
Agents deem it appropriate, to make syndication or other selling arrangements with other investment dealers at no
additional cost to the Corporation. The obligations of the Agents under the Agency Agreement are several and not joint
and may be terminated at any time at the Agents’ discretion on the basis of their assessment of the financial markets and
the occurrence of certain stated events, While the Agents have agreed to use their best efforts to setl the Offered Shares
offered hereby, the Agents will not be obliged to purchase any Offered Shares which are not sold.

There is currently no market for the Offered Shares. Accordingly, the offering price of the Offered Shares offered
hereunder was determined by negotiation among the Corporation, Wellington West Capital Markets Inc. and Canaccord
Capital Corporation. Subscriptions for Offered Shares will be received subject to rejection or allotment, in whole or in
part, and the right is reserved to close the subscription book at any time without notice. It is expected that definitive
certificates for the Offered Shares will be available for delivery on the closing of this Offering. Closing of this Offering is
expected to occur on or about @, 2007, or such later date as may be agreed upon by the Corporation and the
Agents, but, in any event, not later than @ 2007,

The Corporation has apptied to list its Common Shares on the TSXV. Listing will be subject to the Corporation fulfilling
all of the listing requirements of the TSXV.

Closing of the Offering is conditional upon the satisfaction of all conditions relating to the completion of the
Reorganization and the WPC Acquisition, other than the payment of the Purchase Price in respect thereof. This
prospectus also qualifies the distribution of the Common Shares issuable pursuant to the Reorganization and the WPC
Acquisition. See “The Reorganization™ and “WPC Acquisition”,

Pursuant to policy statements of certain Canadian securities authorities, the Agents may not, throughout the period of
distribution, bid for or purchase Common Shares. The foregoing restriction is subject to certain exceptions, on the
condition that the bid or purchase is not engaged in for the purpose of creating actual or apparent active trading in, or
raising the price of, the Common Shares. Such exceptions include a bid or purchase permitted under the by-laws and rules
of the relevant seif-regulatory authorities relating to market stabilization and passive market-making activities and a bid or
purchase made for or on behalf of a customer where the order was not solicited during the period of distribution. In
connection with the Offering, and subject to the foregoing, the Agents may effect transactions which stabilize or maintain
the market price for the Common Shares at levels other than those which might otherwise prevail in the open market. Such
transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time,

The Corporation has agreed that it will not, without the prior consent of Wellington West Capital Markets Inc. and
Canaccord Capital Corporation, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld, authorize, issue or sell any Common
Shares or securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Common Shares, or agree or announce any
intention to do so, at any time prior to 120 days after the Closing Date, other than Common Shares to be issued by the
Corporation in connection with the Reorganization and the WPC Acquisition, Stock Options issued pursuant to the Stock
Option Plan or Common Shares issuable on exercise of Stock Options.

The Common Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act or any state securities laws and
accordingly may not be offered or sold in the United States except pursuant to registration under the U.S. Securities Act
and any applicable state securities laws or pursuant to an exemption therefrom. The Agency Agreement permits the
Agents to offer and resell the Common Shares that they have acquired pursuant to the Agency Agreement only to
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“qualified institutional buyers” (as defined in Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act) and to institutional “accredited
investors™ in the United States (as defined under Regulation D under the U.S. Securities Act) in transactions exempt from
the registration requirements of the U.8. Securities Act. In addition, the Agency Agreement provides that the Agents may
offer and sell the Common Shares outside the United States only in accordance with Regulation S under the U.S.
Securities Act.

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the Offering, an offer or sale of the Common Shares within the
United States by any dealer, whether or not participating in this Offering, may violate the registration requirement of the
U.S. Securities Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance with an available exemption from
registration under the U.S. Securities Act.

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION OF THE CORPORATION

The following table sets forth the consolidated capitalization of the Corporation as at February 20, 2007, both before and
after giving effect to the Maximum Offering, the Reorganization and the WPC Acquisition. This 1able should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and the Corporation and the notes thereto, included
elsewhere in this prospectus.

Qutstanding as at February 20, 2007
after giving effect o the Maximum

Outstanding as at Offering, the Reorganization and
Authorized February 20, 2007 the WPC Acquisition!' ¥
$100 5 e
Common Shares™ . ... .. ... ... ... ..., unlimited (10 Commen Shares) ( ®  Common Shares)

Preferred Shares . . ... ... ... ... ... ... .... unlimited Nil Nil

Notes:

(1)  Assuming maximum net proceeds of this Offering of § @  basedontheissvanceof @  Common Shares for aggregate gross proceeds
to the Corporation of § @ less the Agents’ Fee of 3 @ and expenses of the Offering estimated tobe § @

(2)  Assumes the issuance of 17,555,272 Common Shares pursuant to the Reorganization. See “The Reorganization”.
(3)  Assumes the issuance of @  Common Shares pursuant to the WPC Acguisition. See “WPC Acquisition*.

(4) In addition, it is expected that [ ] Common Shares will be reserved for issuance under the Stock Option Plan. Ses “Executive
Compensation — Stock Option Plan™,

DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

Common Shares

The holders of Common Shares shall be entitled to receive notice of, and to atiend and vote at, every meeting of the
Shareholders (except where the holders of a specified class are entitled to vote separately as a class, as provided for in the
ABCA), and each Common Share shall confer the right to one vote in person or by proxy thereat.

Subject to the rights of the holders of any other classes of shares of the Corporation that have or may have preference or
priority over the Common Shares in respect of the payment of dividends, the holders of Common Shares are entitled to
such dividends as the Board of Directors, in their sole discretion, may determine from time to time. The shares of the
Corporation shall not rank equally in respect of dividends; and, in particular, subject to the rights of any series of preferred
shares, the Board of Directors may declare dividends on one or more of the Common Shares and the preferred shares
without declaring dividends on any or all of the other classes or may declare dividends on any or all of the Common Shares
and the preferred shares in differing amounts, and/or at different times.

In the event of the liquidation, dissolution, bankruptcy or winding-up of the Corporation or other distribution of assets or
property of the Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose of winding-up its affairs, the holders of the Common
Shares shali, subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to any other class of shares of the
Corporation, be entitled to receive the remaining property of the Corporation.

Preferred Shares

The preferred shares may at any time, or from time to time, be issued in one or more series, each series to consist of such
number of shares as may, before the issue thereof, be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.
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The Board of Directors shall, by resolution, fix from time to time before the issue thereof, the designation, price,
restrictions, conditions and limitations attached to the preferred shares of each series including, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the rate or amount of dividends or the method of calculating dividends, the dates of payment
thereof, the redemption or purchase prices and terms and conditions of redemption or purchase, and voting rights, any
conversion rights and any sinking funds or other provision.

The preferred shares of each series shall rank, both as regards dividends and return of capital, in priority to all other shares
of the Corporation. The preferred shares of any series may also be given such other preferences over the Common Shares,
and over any other shares of the Corporation ranking junior to the preferred shares, as may be fixed by the Board of
Directors, provided, however, that no rights, privileges, restrictions or conditions attached 1o a series of shares shall confer
on a series a priority in respect of voting, dividends or return of capital over any other series of shares of the same class that
are then outstanding.

OPTIONS AND OTHER RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES

The following table summarizes the outstanding Options granted pursuant to the Unit Option Plan for the period ended
February 20, 2007.

Trust Units % of Total Market Value of
Under Options Exercise Price Trust Units
Options Granted During of Options Underlying Options
Granted'!! (#) the Period ($/Option) ($/Unit) Option Expiry Date
Officers and Executives . . . ... .. .. 324,300 22.6% $0.45 Note 2 May 30, 2016
279,500 19.5% $0.80 Note 2 August 29, 2016
135,000 9.4% $1.00 Note 2 QOctober 16, 2016
50,000 3.5% $2.05 Note 2 December 8, 2016
Directors .. .................. 188,000 13.1% $0.45 Note 2 May 30, 2006
110,000 1.7% 30.80 Note 2 August 29, 2016
Employees . . ................. 69,000 4.8% $0.80 Note 2 August 29, 2016
6,000 0.4% $1.00 Note 2 September 19, 2016
Consultants. . ................. 183,300 12.8% $0.45 Note 2 May 30, 2016
69,000 4.8% $0.80 Note 2 August 29, 2016
20,000 1.4% $2.05 Note 2 February 7, 2017
1,434,100

Notes:

(1)  Atthe time of closing of the Reorganization, each Option will be exchanged for a Stock Option. See “Executive Compensation — Stock Option
Plan™.

(2)  As there is currently no public market for the Trust Units, the market value of the Trust Units underlying Options is undeterminable.

PRIOR SALES OF SECURITIES

Other than ten Common Shares issued to the Trust on incorporation, there have been no prior issuances of Common
Shares. The Trust issued the following Trust Units from the period of commencement of operations on March 9, 2006 to
January 12, 2007:

Issue Price Per Trust Nature of Consideration
Nurmber of Trust Units Date of Issuance Unit Aggrepate Issue Price Received

7,520,000 May 29, 2006 $0.40 $ 3,008,000 Cash
5,126,663 June 22, 2006 $0.75 $ 3,845,001 Cash
2,568,692 July 18, 2006 $0.75 $ 1,926,524 Cash
2,144 617 December 29, 2006 $2.00 $ 4,289,834 Cash

195,000 January 12, 2007 $2.00 $ 390,000 Cash
17,555,272 $13,459,359
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PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF COMMON SHARES

To the best of the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Corporation, the following table sets forth the
shareholdings of those persons who are the direct or indirect beneficial owners of or exercise control or direction over 10%
or more of any class of voting shares of the Corporation as at the date hereof and after giving effect to the Maximum
Offering, the Reorganization and the WPC Acquisition:

Number of
Common Shares % of Class
After Giving Alter Giving
Effect to the Effect to the
Maximum Offering, Maximum Offering,
Number of the Reorganization  the Reorganization
Designation Type of Common and the WPC and the WPC
Shareholder of Class Ownership Shares™ % of Class'" Acquisition Acquisition
Michael E. Heier .. Common Shares Direct and Indirect 6,583,333 37,5 @ o
Notes:
(1Y After giving effect 1o the Reorganization. See “The Reorganization™.
{2) On a diluted basis, these numbers are ® | ® ® and ® |, respectively.

ESCROWED SECURITIES

In accordance with the Canadian Securities Administrators National Policy 46-201 entitled Escrow for Initial Public
Offerings (the “Policy™) and pursuant to an agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”) to be entered into among @

® and @ (collectively, the “Principals™), the Corporation and Valiant Trust Company (the “Escrow
Trustee”), atotal of @  Common Shares, representing @ % of the Corporation’s outstanding Common Shares
after giving effect to the Maximum Offering, will be deposited into escrow with the Escrow Trustee as escrow agent on the
closing of this Offering (the “Escrowed Securities”). Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, the following table discloses the
Common Shares which will be held in escrow:

Number of Common Shares

Name of Principal Held in Escrow Percentage of Class
@ ® ®
O e e e ® ®

Under the Policy, the Corporation will be classified as an “established issuer”. Based on the Corporation being an
established issuer, the Escrowed Securities will be subject to an 18 month escrow from the date the Commen Shares are
listed on the TSXV (the “Listing Date”) and will be released to the Principals under the following schedule:

= 25% on the Listing Date;

+  25% six months following the Listing Date;

*  25% twelve months following the Listing Date; and
+ 25% eighteen months following the Listing Date.

The Escrowed Securities cannot generally be transferred or otherwise dealt with while in escrow. Permitted transfers or
dealings within escrow include: (i) transfers to continuing or, upon their appointment, incoming directors and senior
offtcers of the Corporation or of a material operating subsidiary, with approval of the Board of Directors; (i1) transfers to a
person or company that, before the transfer, holds more than 20% of the voting rights attached to the outstanding Common
Shares; (iii) transfers to a person or company that, after the transfer, holds more than 10% of the voting rights attached to
the outstanding Common Shares and has the right to elect or appoint one or more directors or senior officers of the
Corporation or any material operating subsidiaries; (iv) transfers to or between an RRSP or similar trustee plan provided
that the only beneficiaries are the transferor or the transferor’s spouse, children or parents; (v) transfers upon bankruptey
to the trustee in bankruptcy; and {vi) transfers to a financial institution on the realization of escrow securities pledged,
mortgaged or charged by the holder to the financial institution as collateral for a loan. Tenders of Escrowed Securitiestoa
take-over bid would be permitted provided that, if the holder of the Escrowed Securities is a principal of the successor
issuer upon completion of the take-over bid, securities received in exchange for tendered Escrowed Securities are
substituted in escrow on the basis of the successor issuer’s escrow classification.

In addition, it is a condition of the Share Purchase Agreement that Dighe will, on the WPC Closing Date, enter into an
escrow agreement in respect of the Share Portion containing substantially the same terms as the Escrow Agreement. See
“WPC Acquisition™.
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RISK FACTORS

The following are certain factors relating to the business of the Corporation which prospective investors should
carefully consider before deciding whether to purchase Common Shares. All of these risk factors conld negatively
impact the Corporation’s consolidated revenue, margins and cash flow. The following information is a summary
only of certain risk factors and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, and must be read in conjunction with, the
detailed information appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

Reliance on Management

The success of the Corporation is dependent upon the ability, expertise, judgment, discretion and good faith of
Management. Upon completion of the Reorganization and the WPC Acquisition, the employment agreements of Alter
Nrg with each of the Executives will be assighed to the Corporation and the Corporation will enter into an employment
agreement with Dighe. The Corporation will be particularly dependent upon Dighe to manage the business of WPC.,
However, although it is customary to rely on employment agreements as a method of retaining the services of key
employees, these agreements cannot assure the Corporation of the continued services of such employees. Any loss of the
services of such individuals could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s business, technical capabilities,
operating results or financial condition or could result in delays to, or abandonment of, the Corporation’s projects. The
Corporation does not carry “key man™ insurance for any of its employees.

Reliance on Technical and Field Personnel

The Corporation’s success is greatly dependent upon its employees, and particularly its technica! and field personnel. Any
loss of the services of such individuals could have a material adverse effect on the business and operations of the
Corporation. Furthermore, the ability of the Corporation to expand its business is dependent upon its ability to attract and
retain such qualified employees. The ability to secure the services of additional personnel is constrained in times of strong
industry activity.

Factors which may Prevent Satisfaction of Corporate Milestones

The Corporation is currently in the early development stage. There is a risk that certain of the Corporation’s anticipated
milestones will not be achieved on time, on budget or at all. Additionally, there is a risk that the Corporation may
experience delays, interruption of operations or increased costs due to many factors, including, without limitation:

+ challenges and issues related to the proprietary technology of the Corporation and WPC;
¢ delays in obtaining, or conditions imposed by, regulatory approvals;

+ design errors;

= non-performance by third party contractors;

* increases in materials or labour costs;

* construction performance falling below expected levels of output or efficiency;
* breakdown or failure of equipment or processes;

*  CONtractor or Operator errors;

= labour disputes, disruptions or declines in productivity:

+ inability to attract sufficient numbers of qualified workers;

+ changes in the scope of the Corporation’s business;

+ violation of patents;

+ disruption in the supply of energy; and

* major incidents and/or catastrophic events such as fires, explosions, earthquakes or storms.

Competition

The gasification industry is highly competitive and the Corporation competes with a substantial number of companies
which have greater technical and financial resources. There can be no assurance that such competitors will not
substantially increase the resources devoted to the development and marketing of products and services that compete
with those of the Corporation or that new or existing competitors wilt not enter the various markets in which the
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Corporation is active. In certain aspects of its business, the Corporation also competes with a number of small and
medium-sized companies, which, like the Corporation, have certain competitive advantages such as low overhead costs
and specialized regional strengths.

Dependence on Suppliers

The ability of the Corporation to compete and grow will be dependent on the Corporation having access, at a reasonable
cost and in a timely manner, to skilled labor, equipment, parts and components. Failure of suppliers to deliver such skilled
labor, equipment, parts and components at a reasonable cost and in a timely manner would be detrimental to the
Corporation’s ability to compete and grow. No assurances can be given that the Corporation will be successful in
maintaining its required supply of skilled labor, equipment, parts and components. It is also possible that the final costs of
the major equipment contemplated by the Corporation’s capital expenditure program may be greater than anticipated by
Management, and may be greater the net proceeds of the Offering and other funds available to the Corporation, in which
circumstance the Corporation may curtail, or extend the timeframes for completing, its capital expenditure plans. This
could have an adverse affect on the financial results of the Corporation.

The Corporation’s ability to compete and grow is also dependent upon the availability of feedstocks at reasonable prices.
The Corporation has acquired coal interests in an attempt to mitigate this risk. There can be no assurance that the coal
resources acquired will be developed due 10 regulatory impediments, or it is not suitable for gasification projects.
However, if the suppliers are unable to provide the necessary feedstocks, or otherwise fail to deliver products in the
quantities required, any resulting delays could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s results of operations
and the Corporation's financial condition.

Commeodity Price Volatility

The Corporation is subject to the fluctuations in oil, natural gas and other commodity energy prices. It is anticipated that
the gasification industry has an inherently high capital cost due to large construction projects. Nevertheless, changes in
commodity prices could result in a decision by the Corporation to suspend or reduce operations because such operations
are no longer economically viable. Any such suspension or reduction of operations would result in a corresponding
decrease in the Corporation’s revenues and earnings and could materially impact the Corporation’s ability to meet
customer demands and could expose the Corporation to additional expense as a result of any future long-term contracts. If
production is not suspended or reduced during such period, the low differential between the price of the Corporation’s end
products and the cost of production could lower the Corporation’s revenues.

Prices for End Products

The prices the Corporation will receive for its end products will be dependent on the demand for them. While there is a
proven market for gasification products, there can be no assurance that the pricing of these products will be at levels
anticipated by the Corporation. All such estimates for the pricing of the Corporation’s end products are, to some degree,
uncertain, For this reason, estimates of future net revenues prepared by the Corporation compared to actual net revenues
may vary substantially.

Regulatory and Political

The Corporation’s operations are subject to a variety of Canadian and United States federal, provincial, state and local
laws, regulations and guidelines, including laws and regulations relating to health and safety, the conduct of operations,
the protection of the environment and the manufacture, management, transportation, storage and disposal of certain
materials used in the Corporation’s operations. Management believes that the Corporation is in compliance with such
laws, regulations and guidelines, however, changes to such laws, regulations and guidelines due to environmental
changes, unforeseen environmental effects, general economic conditions and other matters beyond the control of the
Corporation may cause adverse effects to the Corporation’s operations. The Corporation has invested financial and
managerial resources to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and guidelines and will continue to do so in
the future. Although such expenditures have not, historically, been material 1o the Corporation, such laws, regulations and
guidelines are subject to change. Accordingly, it is impossible for the Corporation to predict the cost or impact of such
laws, regulations or guidelines on its future operations. It is not expected that any changes to these laws, regulations or
guidelines would affect the operations of the Corporation in a manner materially different than they would affect other
gasification companies of a similar size.
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Environmental Liability

The Corporalion is subject to various environmental laws and regulations enacted in the jurisdictions in which it operates
which govern the manufacture, processing, importation, transportation, handling and disposal of certain materials used in
the Corporation’s operations. The Corporation is in process of establishing procedures to address compliance with current
environmentat laws and regulations and monitors its practices concerning the handling of envircnmentally hazardous
materials. However, there can be no assurance that the Corporation’s procedures will prevent environmental damage
occurring from spills of materials handled by the Corporation or that such damage has not already occurred. On occasion,
substantial liabilities to third parties may be incurred. The Corporation may have the benefit of insurance maintained by it
or the operator, however, the Corporaticn may become liable for damages against which it cannot adequately insure or
against which it may elect not to insure because of high costs or other reasons.

The Corporation’s customers are subject to similar environmental laws and regulations, as well as limits on emissions to
the air and discharges into surface and sub-surface waters. While regulatory developments that may follow in subsequent
years could have the effect of reducing industry activity, the Corporation cannot predict the nature of the restrictions that
may be imposed. The Corporation may be required to increase operating expenses or capital expenditures in order to
comply with any new restrictions or regulations.

Operating Risk and Insurance

The Corporation intends to implement an insurance and risk management program in place to protect its assets, operations
and employees in advance of operations. WPC however does have such a program in place. The Corporation also has
programs in place to address compliance with current safety and regulatory standards. However, the Corporation’s
operations are subject to risks inherent in the gasification industry, such as equipment defects, malfunction, failures and
natural disasters. These risks and hazards could expose the Corporation to substantial liability for personal injury, loss of
life, business interruption, property damage or destruction, pollution and other environmental damages.

While the Corporation believes its insurance coverage addresses all materials risks to which it is exposed and is adequate
and customary in its current state of operations, such insurance is subject to coverage limits and exclusions and may not be
available for the risks and hazards to which the Corporation is exposed. In addition, no assurance can be given that such
insurance will be adequate to cover the Corporation’s liabilities or will be generally available in the future or, if available,
that premiums will be commercially justifiable. If the Corporation were to incur substantial liability and such damages
were not covered by insurance or were in excess of policy limits, or if the Corporation were to incur such liability at a time
when it is not able to obtain liability insurance, its business, results of operations and financial condition could be
materially adversely affected.

Sensitivity to Fixed Costs

Fixed costs, including costs associated with operating losses, leases, labour costs and depreciation will account for a
significant portion of the Corporation's costs and expenses. As a result, reduced productivity resulting from reduced
demand, equipment failure, weather or other factors could significantly affect financial results.

Reliance on Technology

The Corporation will depend upon continuous improvements in technology to meel customer demands in respect of
performance and cost, and to expiore additional business opportunities. There can be no assurance that the Corporation
will be successful in its efforts in this regard or that it will have the resources available to meet this demand. While the
Corporation anticipates that the research and development experience of WPC will allow the Corporation to explore
additional business opportunities, there is no guarantee that such business opportunities will be presented or realized.

The Corporation has not sought nor obtained patent or other similar protection in respect of any technology developed by
the Corporation. The commercial advantage of the Corporation will depend to a significant extent on the intellectual
property and proprietary technology of WPC and the ability of the Corporation and WPC to prevent others from copying
such proprietary technologies. WPC currently relies on intellectual property rights and other contractual or proprietary
rights, including (without limitation) copyright, trade secrets, confidential procedures, contractual provisions, licenses
and patents, to protect its proprietary technology. WPC may have to engage in litigation in order to protect its patents or
other intellectual property rights, or to determine the validity or scope of the proprietary rights of others. This type of
litigation can be expensive and time-consuming, regardless of whether or not the Corporation or WPC is successful.
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In the future, the Corporation and WPC may seek patents or other similar protections in respect of particular technology;
however, there can be no assurance that any future patent applications will actually result in issued patents, or that, even if
patents are issued, they will be of sufficient scope or strength to provide meaningful protection or any commercial
advantage to the Corporation or WPC. Moreover, the process of seeking patent protection can itself be long and
expensive, In the meantime, competitors may develop technologies that are similar or superior to the technology of the
Corporation and WPC or design around the patents owned by the Corporation or WPC, thereby adversely affecting the
Corporation’s competitive advantage in one or more of its businesses.

Despite the efforts of the Corporation or WPC, the intetlectual property rights of WPC may be invalidated, circumvented,
challenged, infringed or required to be licensed to others. It cannot be assured that any steps the Corporation or WPC may
take to protect its intellectual property rights and other rights to such proprietary technologies that are central to the
Caorporation’s operations will prevent misappropriation or infringement of WPC Technology.

Risk of Third Party Claims for Infringement

A third party may claim that the use of the WPC Technology has infringed such third party’s rights or may challenge the
right of WPC to its intellectual property. In such event, WPC and/or the Corporation will undertake a review to determine
what, if any, action should be taken with respect to such claim. Any claim, whether or not with merit, could be time
consuming to evaluate, result in costly litigation and have material adverse effects on the business, operations and
financial condition of the Corporation. Such a claim could result in WPC or the Corporation having to enter into licensing
arrangements that may require the payment of a license fee or royalties to the owner of the intellectual property. Such
royalty or licensing arrangements, if required, may not be available on terms acceptable to the Corporation.

Additional Financing

In order to execute its business plan, the Corporation will require a combination of additional debt and equity financing to
suppert ongoing operations, to undertake capital expenditures or to undertake acquisitions or other business combination
transactions. There can be no assurance that additional financing will be available 1o the Corporation when needed or on
terms acceptable to the Corporation. The Corporation’s inability to raise financing to support ongoing operations or to
fund capital expenditures or acquisitions could limit the Corporation’s growth and may have a material adverse effect
upon the Corporation.

Conflicts of Interest

Certain of the directors and officers of the Corporation are also directors and officers of other companies, and conflicts of
interest may arise between their duties as officers and directors of the Corporation and as officers and directors of such
other companies. Such conflicts must be disclosed in accordance with, and are subject to such other procedures and
remedies as apply under, the ABCA,

Litigation

Although there are currently no material legal proceedings outstanding or threatened against the Corporation, the
Corporation may become party to litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of business which could adversely
affect its business. The Corporation intends to seek insurance coverage as deemed appropriate by Management. There can

be no assurance that such insurance would be available to the Corporation on terms acceptable to Management or in an
amount sufficient to cover claims,

Absence of Prior Public Market for the Common Shares

Prior to the closing of the Offering, there has been no public market for the Common Shares. The price offered to the
public and the number of Common Shares to be issued have been determined by negotiation among the Corporation and
the Agents. The price paid for each Common Share may bear no relationship to the price at which the Common Shares
will trade in the public market subsequent to this Offering. See *Plan of Distribution”. The Corporation cannot predict at
what price the Common Shares will trade and there can be no assurance that an active trading market in the Common
Shares will develop or be sustained.

Dilution and Future Sales of Common Shares

The Corporation may issue additional Common Shares in the future, which may dilute a Shareholder’s holdings in the
Corporation. The Corporation’s articles permit the issuance of an unlimited number of Common Shares and an unlimited
number of preferred shares, issuable in series, and Shareholders will have no pre-emptive rights in connection with such
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further issuances. The Board of Directors has the discretion to determine the provisions attaching to any series of preferred
shares and the price and the terms of issue of further issuances of Common Shares.

Failure to Realize Anticipated Benefits of Acquisitions

The Corporation may make acquisitions of businesses and assets in the ordinary course of business. Closing on the WPC
Acquisition and achieving the benefits of acquisitions (including the WPC Acquisition) depends in part on successfully
consolidating functions, retaining key employees and customer relationships and integrating operations and procedures in
a timely and efficient manner. Such integration may require substantial Management effort, time and resources, may
divert Management’s focus from other strategic opportunities and operational matters and ultimately the Corporation may
fail to realize anticipated benefits of acquisitions (including the WPC Acquisition).

Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The Purchase Price for the WPC Acquisition is denominated in United States dollars, so that fluctuations in the currency
exchange rate between the Canadian dollar and the United States dollar before the WPC Closing Date may have an
adverse impact on the Canadian dollar amount to be funded to WPC and Common Shares to be issued to the WPC
Shareholders. See “Use of Proceeds”. In addition, the revenue generated from the operations of WPC wiil be denominated
in United States dollars so that fluctuations in the currency exchange rate between the Canadian and the United States
doltar may have an impact on the results of the Corporation.

Aboriginal Claims

Aboriginal peoples have claimed aboriginal title and rights to a substantial portion of Western Canada. Although the
Corporation is not aware of any such claim, it is possible in the future that aboriginal peoples may claim aboriginal title
and rights to the lands where the Corporation’s coal leases are located. Any successful claim in respect of the land could
have an adverse effect on the Corporation.

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT

In the opinion of Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP, counsel to the Corporation, and Heenan Blaikie LLP, counsel to the
Agents, the Common Shares will be qualified investments for Exempt Plans {(subject to the specific provisions of any
particular Exempt Plan) provided the Common Shares are listed on Tier 1 of the TSXV or another stock exchange
prescribed for the purposes of the Tax Act at the relevant time.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Except for contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, the following are the only material contracts entered
into by the Corporation or the Trust or its subsidiaries since March 9, 2006 (the commencement of operations of Alter
Nrg) or to be entered into on or before Closing Date by the Corporation or Alter Nrg or its subsidiaries which can be
regarded as presently material:

1. the Agency Agreement (See “Plan of Distribution™);

2. the WPC License (See “Development of the Business™);

3. the Share Purchase Agreement (See “WPC Acquisition™); and
4. the Trust Indenture.

Following execution, copies of these agreements (other than any maintained as confidential) may be inspected at the
Corporation’s head office and at the offices of Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP in Toronto, Ontario during regular business
hours during the distribution of the Common Shares.

INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

None of the directors, executive officers or principal shareholders of either the Corporation or Alter Nrg and no known
associate or affiliate of any of them, has or had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction within the three
years prior to the date of this prospectus or in any proposed transaction, that has materially affected or will materially
affect the Corporation or its subsidiaries, other than as disclosed elsewhere in this prospectus.
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PROMOTERS

Messrs. Mark A, Montemurro and Michael E, Heier may be considered promoters of the Corporation (the “Promoters™)
by reason of their initiative in organizing the business and affairs of the Corporation. The number and percentage of
Common Shares the Promoters will hold prior to closing of the Offering is outlined in the following table. The Promoters
have not received any cash or other compensation in their capacities as directors and/or officers of the Corporation or
Alter Nrg other than as disclosed under “Executive Compensation™,

Number and Percentage Number and Percentage

of Common Shares of Common Shares
Name on a Non-Diluted Basis'" on a Diluted Basis'"”
Mark A, Montemurro, ............. 502,916/2.9% 764,816/4.0%
Michael E. Heier . ................ 6,583,333/37.5% 6,687,133/35.2%

Notes:

(1}  After giving effect to the Reorganization. See “Aller Nrg Corp. — The Reorganization™.

DIVIDEND RECORD AND POLICY

The Corporation has not paid any dividends on its Common Shares. Any future payments of dividends will be at the
discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon the financial condition, capital requirements and earnings of the
Corporation as well as other factors it may deem relevant. The Corporation’s articles do not contain any restrictions on the
payments of dividends.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no material outstanding iegal proceedings to which the Corporation or any subsidiary of the Corporation is a
party or of which any of their respective property is the subject matter, nor is any such proceeding known by the
Corporation to be contemplated.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters relating to the securities offered hereby have been passed upon on behalf of the Corporation by
Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP, and on behalf of the Agents by Heenan Blaikie LLP.

AUDITORS, REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

The Auditors of the Corporation are Deloitte & Touche LLP, 3000 Scotia Centre, 700 — 2nd Street S.W,, Calgary, Alberta,
T2P 0S7.

Valiant Trust Company is the registrar and transfer agent for the Common Shares at its principal offices at Suite 300,
606 ~ 4th Street S.W., Calgary, Alberta and in Toronto, Ontario.

INTEREST OF EXPERTS

None of Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP, Heenan Blaikie LLP or any partner or associate thereof has received or will
receive a direct or indirect interest in the property of the Corporation or of any associate or affiliate thereof. Blake,
Cassels & Graydon LLP and the partners and associates thereof, and Heenan Blaikie LLP and the partners and associates
thereof, each as a group, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, less than one percent of the securities of the Corporation.
In addition, none of the aforementioned persons or companies, nor any director, officer or employee of any of the
aforementioned persons or companies is, or is expected to be elected, appointed or employed as a director, officer or
employee of the Corporation or of any associate or affiliate of the Corporation.
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STATUTORY RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces of Canada provides purchasers with the right to withdraw from an
agreement to purchase securities. This right may be exercised within rwo business days after receipt or deemed receipt of a
prospectus and any amendment. In several of the provinces, securities legislation further provides a purchaser with
remedies for rescission or, in some jurisdictions, damages if the prospectus and any amendment contains a
misrepresentation or is not delivered to the purchaser, provided that the remedies for rescission or damages are exercised
by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province, The purchaser
should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser's province for the particulars of
these rights or consult with a legal adviser.
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AUDITORS’ CONSENT

We have read the prospectus of Alter Nrg Corp. (the “Corporation™) dated @ , 2007 qualifying the distribution of
upto @  common shares of the Corporation. We have complied with Canadian generally accepted standards for an
auditor’s involvement with offering documents.

We consent to the use in the above-mentioned prospectus of our report to the directors of Alter Nrg Ltd. as administrator

of Alter Nrg Income Fund (the “Fund”} on the consolidated balance sheet of the Fund as at December 31, 2006 and the

consolidated statements of operations and deficit and cash flows of the Fund for the period from commencement of

operations on March 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006. Our report is dated January 29, 2007 except for note 13 which is as of
® | 2007

We also consent to the use in the above-mentioned prospectus of our report to the directors of the Corporation on the
balance sheet of the Corporation as at February 20, 2007. Our report is dated February 23, 2007 except for note 3 which is
asof @ 2007

We also consent to the use in the above-mentioned prospectus of our report to the directors of Westinghouse Plasma
Corporation (“WPC"™) on the balance sheets of WPC as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the statements of loss and
deficit and cash flows of WPC for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2006. Our report is dated
January 29, 2007,

Calgary, Alberta signed @& "
® 2007 Chartered Accountants
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Alter Nrg Corp.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Directors of
ALTER NrG CoRre:

We have audited the balance sheet of Alter Nrg Corp. (the “Corporation™) as at February 20, 2007. This financial
statement is the responsibility of the management of the Corporation. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on this
financial statement based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statement is free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounis and disclosures in the
financial statement. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

[n our opinion, the balance sheet presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Alter Nrg Corp. as at
February 20, 2007 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Calgary, Alberta Signed* @ "
February 23, 2007 except for note 3 which is as of ® | 2007 Chartered Accountants
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Current Assets

Cash e e

Shareholder’s EQUItY. . . ..ottt it it e e e e e

Approved by the Board:

(signed) “Brent J. Conway”, Director

Alter Nrg Corp.

BALANCE SHEET
As at February 20, 2007

ASSETS

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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(signed) “Michael E. Heier”, Director



Alter Nrg Corp.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
As at February 20, 2007
1. FORMATION AND FINANCIAL PRESENTATION

Alter Nrg Corp. (the "Corporation™) was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) on February 20, 2007. The Corporation has not
carried on active business since inception. The Corporation is currently a wholly owned subsidiary of Alter Nrg Income Fund (the “Trust™).

2. SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Authorized

An unlimited number of Common Shares.

Issued

#of
Common shares Common Shares  Amount
Issued Upon ICOIPOTALION . & Lo v it it e e et et e e e e e e e 10 §100
Balance as of February 20, 2007 . . .. . ... ... e e i $160

3. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On @ 2007, the Corporation filed a final prospectus relating to an initial public offering (the “Offering”) of ®  Common Shares at
S @  per Common Share.

In cenjunction with the Initial Public Offering (the “Offering™), the Trust will reorganize from an income trust structure to a corporation. Upon
completion of such reorganization, the Trust's unitholders will have exchanged all of their trust units of the Trust for common shares of the Corporation,
and the Trust will thereby become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation,
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Alter Nrg Income Fund

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Directors of Alter Nrg Ltd. as administrator of
ALTER NrG INcOME FUND:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Alter Nrg Income Fund (a development stage enterprise) as at
December 31, 2006 and the consolidated statements of operations and deficit and cash flows for the period from
commencement of operations on March 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Trust’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An aundit atso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overalt financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Alter Nrg Income Fund (a development stage enterprise) as at December 31, 2006 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the period from commencement of operations on March 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006 in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

”

Calgary, Alberta signed * @
January 29, 2007 except for note 13 which is as of ® 2007 Chartered Accountants
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Alter Nrg Income Fund

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2006
December 31,
2006
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashand cash equivalents . .. ... .. . i i i i e $ 9,000,252
Accounts receivable. . . . L e 106,403
Prepaid X PeSeS . . . . e e s 23472
9,130,127
Technology Heense (Note 3). . .. .. ..t e e e e 269,515
Capital assels (MOIB ) . . ... ottt i e e e e e 09,253
Resource properties (NOIe 5 . ... oot ittt e 1,107,325
Deferred CoStS (NOE B) . . ..t e e e e e e e e 1,313,676
$11,919,896
LIABILITIES AND UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . ... ... ... . .. L $ 663,717
663,717
Unitholders’ equity:
Unitholders' capital {note 8) . . ... ottt i e i e 12,623,817
Contributed surplus (MO Q) . . ... . 290,253
- T3 (1,657,891)
11,256,179
$11,919,896
Commitments and subsequent events (notes 12 and 13)
Approved by the Board:
(signed) “Brent J. Conway”, Director (signed) “Michael E. Heier”, Director

See accompanying notes 1o financial statements,
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Alter Nrg Income Fund

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND DEFICIT
Period from commencement of operations on March 9, 2006 te December 31, 2006

Period from commencement
of operations on
March 9, 2006 to

December 31, 2006

Revenue:
INEEIESE IMCOMIE . . o vttt e e et e e e e e $ 83,366

Expenses:
LT (=T F= 1T 13,568
Stock based compensation (note 9). . ... ... . 200,253
General and administrative . . .. . i e e e e e e s 1,437,436
1,741,257
Loss before InCOmME LaXeS. . . . .. ittt e e e e e (1,657,891)
Income taxes (MOt T ). . . ... i e ittt e, —
D088 i e e e e e e e e e (1,657,891)
Deficit, beginning of period . . ... ... .. e —
Deficit, end of period. . . ... ... . e $(1,657,891)
Loss per unit — basic and diluted (note 10) . . ... .. . e e b (0.16)

See accompanying notes to financial siatements.
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Alter Nrg Income Fund

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Period from commencement of operations on March 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating:

13-

Add items not involving cash:

D PTeCiationN . . ..o e e e e
Stock based cOmMPENsation . . ....... ...ttt e

Change in non-cash working capital . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... . ..

Financing:
Issue of unit capital, net of unit issuance costs .

Change in non-cash working capital . . . ... ... .. i

Investing:
Investment in technology license ...........

Acquisition of capital @assets. . .. ... ... e

Acquisition of resource properties . .........
Deferredcosts . . .............ooiea.,

Increase in cash and cash equivalents ... ... ..
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period . . . ..
Cash and cash equivalents consists of;

Termdeposits .. .......................
Bank balances . ..................... ...

No interest or taxes were paid during the period.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

F-%

Period from commencement
of operations on March 9, 2006
1o December 31, 2006

$(1,657,891)

13,568
290,253

(1,354,070)
409,332

(944,738)

12,623,817
10

12,623,827

(299,515)
(82,821)
(1,107,325)
(1,313,676)
124,500
(2,678,837)
9,000,252

$ 9,000,252

$ 4,500,000
4,500,252

$ 9000252



Alter Nrg Income Fund

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE TRUST
Alter Nrg Income Fund (the “Trust™) is an unincorporated, open-ended unit trust established in the Province of Alberta on April 28, 2006 (Note 13).

The Trust’s business operations are conducted through the Alter Nrg Limited Partnership and the Alter Nrg Commercial Trust. The Trust invests in
alternative energy projects using gasification and gasification related technology to create saleable energy products.

The Trust may. in the future, make distributions to Unitholders from available cash flow from the business; however, as the start-up phase of the business
is capital intensive and will not initially generate revenues, no distributions are currently contemplated. [t may be several years before distributions are
made to Unitholders and there can be no assurance that distributions will ever be made.

The Trust has an obligation under the Declaration of Trust to distribute all of its taxable income and realized capital gains to the Unitholders of record as
ut December 31 of each fiscal year. Distribution of this taxable income can be in the form of cash or through the issuance of additional Trust Units. Under
the terms of the Declaration of Trust, if taxable income is distributed in the form of additional Trust Units, there will be an immediate consolidation of the
number of Trust Units outstanding. After the consolidation, each Unitholder will hold the same number of Trust Units as held before the distribution of
additional Trust Units.

The Trust is in the development stage and since inception the Trust’s efforts huve been focused on the procurement of coal and other feedstocks, the
financing, the gasification technology and people to execute on its business plan. To date, the Trust has not carned revenues from operations and will
require future profitzble operations and/er financing to continue operating. The Trust will be considered an operating entity when a project is
substantially planned, meaning the project has the engineering feasibility, business agreements, regnfatory approval and finzncing capability to move
forward into the implementation phase.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements are prepared by Management, in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP requires Management to make estimates and assumptions. These
eslimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent amounts and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses. Actual results could differ from these estimates,

*  Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Trust and its wholly owned subsidiaries as at and for the period ended December 31,
2006, Any reference to the Trust throughout these consolidated financial statements refers to the Trust and its subsidiaries. All inter-company
transactions have been eliminated.

« Cask and Cask Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term investments with original maturities of three months or less. The term deposits are daily
revolving short term investments at a variable interest rate averaging 4% for the period ended December 31, 2006.

¢  Technology License
Expenditures incurred to acquire the license, including any direct development costs and overhead directly attributable, will be capitalized. These costs
will be amortized on a straight line basis over the useful life of the license once it is being commercially applied.

*  Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost, Major renewals and improvements that extend the useful life of the asset are capitatized, while repairs and
maintenance expenses are charged to operations as incurred. Depreciation is recognized over the expected useful lives of the assets using the declining
balance method and the following annual rates:

Office eqUIPMENt . . . . .. o e e e e e e e e e e 20%
Compuier EQUEPMEIIT, . . . v . ot ettt e e e e e e e e e 30%

The carrying value of capital assets are assessed each period to determine if there are any events or circumstances that would indicate the carrying value
will not be recovered in the future. [F the carrying value is unlikely to be recovered, the carrying value in excess of the fair value is charged to eamings in
that period.

* Deferred Costs

Costs related to projects or transactions that are still in progress are temporarily capitalized as deferred costs. Once the project or transaction is
substantially complete, it is transferred to the relevant related account and amortized over the expected useful life.

The carrying value of deferred costs is assessed each period to determine if there are any events or circumstances that would indicate the carrying values
will not be recovered in the future. If the carrying value is unlikely to be recovered, the carrying value in excess of the fair value is charged to earnings in
that period.
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e Income Tax

The Trust is an unincorporated, open-ended Unit Trust for income tax purposes. As such, the Trust is taxed on any taxable income not allocated (o
Unitholders. Under the terms of the Declaration of Trust, all Canadian taxable income of the Trust will be allocated to the Unitholders resulting in no
Canadian tax expense to the Trust. The Trust is not able to distribute losses to the Unitholders.

The Trust and its subsidiaries follow the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, the change in net future income tax assets or
liabtlities is charged to income. Future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the tax and accounting bases of
assets and liabilities at rates enacted or substantively enacted at the dates the differences are expected to reverse as well as the benefit of losses available
to be carried forward to future years. Future income taxes are classified as current and long-term depending upon the classification of the balance sheet
items to which they relate. A valuation allowance is established, as needed, to reduce future income tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to
be realized.

¢ Unit-based Compensation

‘The Trust has established a Unit Incentive Plan {the “Plan”’} to assist directors, officers, employees and consultants to participate in the growth and
development of the Trust,

Compensation expense associated with rights granted under the Plan is recognized in earnings over the vesting period of the rights granted with a
corresponding increase in contributed surplus. The Trust calculates the fair value of the options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
¢ Resource Properties

All direct costs related to the acquisition of mineral property interests are capitalized on a property-by property basis, Exploration costs, net of incidental
revenues, are capitalized along with any costs incurred to develop the properties.

The Trust is in the process of exploring and developing its mineral properties and has not yet determined the amount of reserves available. The Trust
reviews capitalized costs on mineral properties under development whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount
based on estimated future cash flows on a discounted basis is less than the carrying amount of the property.

On the commencement of commercial production, depletion of each mining property is provided on a unit-of-production basis using the estimated
proven and probable recoverable reserves as the depletion base.

* Financial Instruments
Financial instruments include accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The market value of these financial instruments
approximates the carrying value due to their short term to maturity.

*  Loss Per Unit

Loss per Unit is calculated using the weighted average number of Units omstanding during the period. Diluted per Unit amounts are calculated using the
treasury method, which assumes that any proceeds from the exercise of Unit options would be used to purchase Units at the average market price during
the period.

¢ Foreign Exchange
Monetary assets and lizbilities denominated in a foreign currency are recorded at rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Any exchange gain
or loss that arises on translation is included in the consolidated statement of operations in that period.

*»  Government Assistance

Government assistance toward projects for plasma gasification technology evaluations is received as grants. Assistance related to the zcquisition of
assets used for the Trust's technology is recorded as a reduction to the cost of the related capital assets when reasonable assurance exists that the Trust has
complied with the terms and conditions of the approved grant.

3. TECHNOLOGY LICENSE

On June 6, 2006 (the “contract date™), the Trusi entered into an agreement giving it an exclusive license for the Westinghouse Plasma Corporation
(“WPC"} Plasma Gasification Technology (the “Technology™). The license gives the Trust exclusive right to use the Technology in Canada for coal,
petroteum coke and refinery residue for an initial term of five years up to June 5, 2011. The license also gives exclusive right for all other feedstocks,
including municipal waste and biomass in Western Canada, and a right of first refusal wo participate in projects in Eastern Canada for these feedstocks.

In consideration for the license, the Trust paid a $250,000 initial payment, plus associated legal and closing costs. During the initial term the Trost has
agreed to make the following payments and enter into the following transactions:

*  $400,000 USD in engineering services to establish the commercial economics of the WPC Plasma Gasification System 10 be ordered within
6 months from the contract date.

*  $750,000, payable 5450,000 in cash and $300,000 worth of Trust Units of the Trust, upon the satisfactory completion of the initial engineering
SErvices.

= §600,000 after 36 months from the date of the contract to maintain the exclusivity rights for the remainder of the five year term, or placing an
order for a Plasma Torch System for a minimum of $5 million USD. This $600,000 payment is refundable if the first order is placed within the
five year term,.

F-11



+  $400,000, payable $200,000 in cash and $200,000 worth of Trust Units of the Trust, at the earlier of the startup of the initial plant project, or
48 months.

+  5600,000 USD for each year after the initial five year term unless the Trust places $5 million USD of Plasma Torch System orders by the Trust
or a customer of the Trust to extend the exclusivity feature one year for each $5 million USD payment.

The contract extends for a maximum of 44 additional years after the initial term of five years as long as the above ongoing conditions are satisfied.

The Trust has capitalized the initial $250,000 payment plus associated legal and closing costs, The remaining payments will be accounted for once paid,
or payable,

On December 2, 2006, the Trust entered into a purchase and sale agreement to acquire 100% of WPC for 529 million USD. The purchase price will be
satisfied with cash consideration of $21.0 million USD, and $8 miilion USD of equivalent value through the issuance of Trust Units. If the Trust becomes
4 listed public entity before or in conjunction with the acquisition, an additional $1 million of the total $29.0 million USD of consideration will be
satisfied in cash, The price of the Trust Units issued will be equal to the market value of the Units that is established during financing of the cash portion
of the agreement. A rotal of $5.1 million USD of consideration to the principal shareholder of WPC will be held in escrow and released in equal monthly
instalments beginning one month after closing up to December 15, 2007, as long as the principal shareholder is still employed and active in the business.
The $5.1 million USD will be charged to the statement of operations as payments are made.

The Trust paid an exclusivity fee of $100,000 USD to make the purchase price binding and has agreed to pay an additional $3,300 USD per day as a
break fee until the agreement expires on Aprit 30, 2007. The exclusivity fee and break fees paid to December 31, 2006 are included in deferred costs. The
break fee of $3,300 USD per day is not payable if the acquisition of WPC is completed.

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

December 31, 2006

Accumulated  Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value

Office equipment . . .. . ... e §51,537 $ 7124 344,413
Computer eqUIPMIEIL . . . . . . ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e 31.284 6,444 24,840
$82,821 $13,568 $69,253

5.  RESOURCE PRCOPERTIES

The Trust acquired seven Alberta Crown coal leases on August 4, 2006 for an aggregate cost of $964,096. The leases comprise a total of 67,845 acres in
the Hinton, Fox Creek and Wetaskiwin areas of Alberta for terms of 15 years with total annual rental payments of $36,096. Costs of $143,229 were
incurred relating 1o consulting costs regarding acquisition and evaluation of development of the properties.

6. DEFERRED COSTS

As at and for the period from
commencement of operations on
March 9, 2006 to
December 31, 2006

Engineering studies . . . . ... ... § 351,656
Less government grant for engineering studies . .. . ... ... ... . e (70,000)
WPC pilot testing and technology evaluation . . ... ... .. .. . L e 663,387
WPC nequisilion COSIS . . .. ot et e e e e e e e e e 368,633

$1,313,676
The Trust initiated several engineering studies to determine the project economics of several potential gasification projects. The Trust also performed
pilot testing and technology evaluation studies to determine the effectiveness of the WPC technology.

The government grant is for a maximum of $134,500 related to the evaluation of the Trust's plasma gasification technology. At December 31, 2006, the
grant had not been received but the Trust had fulfilled the requirements of the grant agreement for the first installment of $70,000. The remaining
564,500 will be paid after the final technology evaluation report prepared by the Trust has been received and accepted by the government agency.
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7. FUTURE INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes in the financial statements differs from the result which would be obtained by applying the federal and provincial tax rate
to the Trust's loss before income taxes. This difference results from the following items:

December31,
2006
L0855 BelOrE IMCOME LAXES. . . . o v ettt et et et e e e e e e e e $(1,657,891)
Combined federal and provincial tax rate . .. ... ... L 35%
Computed “expected” inCOME AX EXPENSE . . . . . . .o oot e e e e (580,262)
Increase resulting from Non-deductible items:
Stock based COMPENSRNON . . . . . ... ..o e 101,588
L1 525
FUlre iNCOME 18X TECOVETY . . . . o o ittt e it et e et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e (478,149)
Valuation AlOWANCE. . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e, 478,149
Future income (ax recovery recorded . . . .. . ot i i e e e e e e e s $ —
The components of the Trust’s future income tax asset are as follows:

Capital BS5ELS . . . . ..t e e e e e $ 4,749
Ut ISSUANCE COSIS .+ o 4 o vt v e ittt et a s s st e b e e e e e e 127,400
NOD-CapPital JOSSE8 . . . . . . o e e e e e e e e e e e e e 501,939
FUlure inCome LaX A8881. . . . .. . . ottt e e e e e e e e e e 634,088
Valuaton AlOWance . . . . i e e e e e e e e e e e e s (634,088)
Net future income tax asset Tecorded . . . .. . o u i e e e i $ —

Non-capital losses of $1.434,111 were incurred in 2006 and will expire in 2016.
At December 31, 2006, a valuation allowance was recorded against the future income ax as it was not considered more likely than not to be recoverable
as the Trust is in the development stage and does not have commercial operations at this time.
8. UNITHOLDERS’® CAPITAL
Authorized
Unlimited number of Trest Units, voting and participating
December 31, 2006

Number of

Trust Units Value
Opening Balance . . . . ... .. L e i e s —- % —
Issued for cash at 8040 per Unit . . .. . .. 7,520,000 3,008,000
Issued forcash at $0.75 per Unit . . ... ... L e 7,695,355 5,771,525
Issued for cash at $2.00 per Unit . . .. L0 e e 2,144,917 4,289,834
UnIl iSSUANCE COBIS . . . v v ot ittt v et et e et e et e et e et et e e et e e e e e — (445,542)
Unitholders’ capital, end of period . . . . .. . ... .. . .. s 17,360,272 $12,623,817

On May 29, 2006, the Trust closed a private placement of 7,520,000 Units at $0.40 per Unit for gross proceeds of $3,008,000. In June and Juty 2006, the
Trust closed a private placement of 7,695,355 Units at a price of $0.75 per Unit for gross proceeds of $5,771,525. On December 29, 2006, the Trust
closed the first part of a private placement of 2,144,917 Units at $2.00 per Unit for gross proceeds of $4,289,834. The second part of the private
placement was closed subsequent to year end (note 13).

Unithelders capital has not been adjusted for future taxes of $155,939 related to the Unit issuance costs as the future tax asset is not considered more
likety than not to be realized (note 7).
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9. UNIT OPTION PLAN

The Trust has a Unit Option Plan for employees, consultants, officers and directors. The Trust may grant options up to 10% of the aggregate number of
Trust Units outstanding, with no one optionee permiited to hold more than 5% of the total Units outstanding. The exercise price of options is approved by
the Board and cannot be less than the market price of the Units on the day the option is granted. The market price is established based on the most recent
private placement prier to the grant. The options vest one-third immediately with an additional one-third on the first and second anniversary dates of the
grant and expire in ten years from the date of grant. The following Unit options have been granted:

December 31, 2006
Weighted
Average
Number of  Exercise Price
Trust Units ($/option)

Qutstanding, beginning of the period . . . . . . ... .. . e e e — 5 —
Granted . . L e e e e e e e e 1,476,500 0.68
Cancelled. . . e e e e e e e e e (28,200) (0.45)
QOutstanding, end of the period . . . .. . .. . .. . .. . . e e 1,448,300 $0.69
Exercisable, end of the period .. . .. .. ... . . . .. L. e e 482,767 $0.69
Qutstanding Exercisable
Weighted Average Weighted Weighted

Exercise Remaining Average Average
Price Number of Contractual Exercise Price Number of Exercise Price
($/option) Trust Units Life (years) ($/option) Trust Units ($/option)
$0.45 723,800 9.4 5045 241,267 $0.45
$0.80 533,500 9.7 0.80 177,833 0.80
51.00 141,000 98 1.00 47,000 1.00
$2.05 50,000 99 2.05 16,667 2.05

1,448,300 9.6 $0.69 482,767 $0.69

For the period ending December 31, 2006, the Trust recognized compensation expense included in the calculation of net eamings of $290,253 with an
equal offsetting amount 1o contributed surplus, based on the vesting terms of the options.

The weighted-average fair value of options granted during the period ended December 31, 2006 was $0.38 per option. The Trust uses the Black-Scholes
option-pricing medel to determine the estimated fzir value of the Unit options at the date of grant. A summary of the assumptions used in the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model to determine the estimated fair value is as follows:

2006
Expected volatility . . ... ... ... e 50% to 60%
Distnibution rate. . . . .. ... e e e 0%
Risk free iMterest rate . . . . .. .. .. e 4.0%
Expected life. . ... e e 8 years

10. LOSS PER UNIT

Basic and diluted net loss per Unit has been calculated using the weighted average number of Trust Units outstanding during the period from inception to
December 31, 2006 of 10,351,401, As the Trust is in a loss position, any conversion of options would be anti-dilutive to the loss per Unil calculation.

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Trust incurs transactions with related parties, in the normal course of business. The transactions are measured at the exchange amount, which is the
consideration established and agreed to by the related party and the Trust. During the period, the Trust paid $263,075 for corporate legal fees to a legal
firm of which two officers of Alter Nrg are partners; these fees are included in general and administrative expense, technology license acquisition costs
and unit issue costs. During the period, the Trust paid $42,400 in engineering consulting fees to a firm of which one of the officers of Alter Nrg was a
director.

During the period, a director icaned $750,000 1o the Trust through an unsecured, non-interest-bearing loan. The loan was repaid during the period,
12. COMMITMENTS

The Trust has operating lease agreements for office rent with future lease obligations for the next five years as summarized below:

2007 . e e e 585,500
2 $91,500
2000 . L e e e e e $97,500
200 . e e e e e e $97.500
£ P $24,500

Additional commitments of the Trust are disclosed in Notes 3 and 5.
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13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Private Placement

On January 12, 2007, the Trust closed the second part of the private placement for 195,000 Units at $2.00 per Unit for gross proceeds of $390,000.

Reorganization

On January 29, 2007, the board of directors of the Trust resolved to convert from a Trust structure to a corporation. On October 31, 2006 the Federal
governmenl announced proposed new changes in taxation legislation affecting trusts whose units are listed on & stock exchange or other public market.
The proposed changes are having a negative impact on valvation of publicly-traded income trusts, cost of capilal, and access to capital to fund growth
initiatives. As such, the Trust will be undergoing a conversion to a corporation named Aler Nrg Corp. The conversion is not anticipated to create a tax
liability for existing Unitholders.

Initial Public Offering

On @ 2007, after conversion of the Trust to a corporation, Alter Nrg Corp. filed a final prospectus related to its initial offering of @
Common Shares a1t $ @  per Common Share.
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PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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COMPILATION REPORT ON PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors of ALTER NrG Corp.

We have read the accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet of Alter Nrg Corp. (the “Company™) as
at December 31, 2006 and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31,
2006, and have performed the following procedures:

1. Compared the figures in the columns captioned “Alter Nrg Income Fund” to the audited consolidated financial
statements of Alter Nrg Income Fund as at December 31, 2006 and for the period from commencement of
operations on March 9, 2006 1o December 31, 2006 and found them to be in agreement.

2. Compared the figures in the columns captioned “WPC” to the audited financial statements of Westinghouse
Plasma Corporation (“WPC”) as at and for the year ended December 31, 2006 and compared the US dollar
exchange rates to published records, recalculated the Canadian doltar amounts, and found the translated
amounts to be arithmetically correct translations of the WPC US dollar amounts.

3. Compared to the figures in the columns captioned “Alter Nrg Corp.” to the audited balance sheet of the
Company as at February 20, 2007 and found them to be in agreement.

4.  Made enquiries of certain officials of the Company who have responsibility for financial and accounting
matters about:

a. the basis for determination of the pro forma adjustments; and

b. whether the unaudited pro forma consotidated financial statements comply as to form in all material
respects with the Securities Acts of the applicable provinces of Canada.

The officials:
a,  described to us the basis for determination of the pro forma adjustments; and

b. stated that the unaudited pro forma consolidated statements comply as to form in ail material
respects with the various Securities Acts of the applicable provinces of Canada.

5. Read the notes to the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements, and found them to be consistent
with the basis described to us for determination of the pro forma adjustments.

6. Recalculated the application of the pro forma adjustments to the aggregate of the amounts in the columns
captioned “Alter Nrg Income Fund”, “Alter Nrg Corp.” and “WPC” and found the amounts in the columns
captioned “Pro Forma Consolidated” to be arithmetically correct.

A pro forma financial statement is based on management assumptions and adjustments which are inherently subjective.
The foregoing procedures are substantially less than either an audit or a review, the objective of which is the expression of
assurance with respect to management's assumptions, the pro forma adjustments and the application of the adjustments to
the historical financial information. Accordingly, we express no such assurance. The foregoing procedures would not
necessarily reveal matters of significance to the pro forma consolidated financial statements, and we therefore make no
representations about the sufficiency of the procedures for the purposes of a reader of such statements.

Calgary, Alberta signed* @ 7
® 2007 Chartered Accountants
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Alter Nrg Corp.

Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at December 31, 2006

ASSETS
Current

Cash and cash equivalents . . . .. ..

Accounts receivable . ..........
Prepaid expenses. .............
Inventories . .................
Customer contracts . . . .........
Future tax benefit . .. ..........

Technology license. ... ..........
Capital assets . ................
Resource properties .. ..........
Deferredcosts . . ...............
Intangible assets . . .............
Future tax benefit. . . . .. ... ... ..

LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities. . ................
Deferred revenue. . ............

Deferred lease inducement . ... ...

SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Unitholders’ capital. . ..........
Share capital . . ...............

Contributed surplus . . . .........
Deficit .....................

Canadian Dollars

Alter Nrg Alter Nrg Pro forma
Corp. Income Fund WwPC Adjustments
$ $ 5 5
100 9,000,252 635,574  (26,138,800)
®
(200,100)
— 106,403 325,476 —
— 23,472 68,632 —
_ —_ 169,065 —
— — — 1,471,318
— — 53608 48,947
100 9,130,127 1,252,355 @
— 299515 — (299,515)
— 69,253 —_ —_
— 1,107,325 — —
— 1,313,676 — (198,118)
— — 27,062,829
= — 100,509 (100,509)
100 11,919,896 1,352,864 L
— 663,717 184,482 —_
— — 998392 _ (198,118)
— 663,717 1,182,874 (198,118}
— — 436,990 (436,990)
— 663,717 1,619,864 (635,108)
— 12,623,817 — (12,623,817
100 — 1,165 8,156,635
L
12,423,717
290,253 —_ 22,155
—  (1657.891) _(268.165) _(5.697.530)
100 11,256,179 (267.000) ®
100 1191989 1352864 ®
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Note

3(a)
3(b)
3(c)

3(a)
3(a)

3(a)

3(a)
3(a)
3(a)

3(a)

3(a)

3(c)
3(a)
3(b)
3(c)
3(d)

Pro forma
Consolidated

$

431,879
92,104
169,065
1,471,318
102,555

69,253
1,107,325
1,115,558

27,062,829

848,199

800,274

1,648,473

1,648,473

312,408

(7,623,586)



Alter Nrg Corp.

Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Operations
Year-ended December 31, 2006
Canadian dollars

Alter Nrg Alter Nrg Pro forma Pro forma
Corp. Income Fund WwWPC Adjustments  Note Consaolidated
$ $ $ $ $
Revenue
Sales . .. . s — — 2,713,918 (433,716) 4(a) 2,280,202
Interest HCOME. . v v v vt v et n e = 83,366 — — 83,366
—_ 83,366 2,713918 (433,716) 2,363,568
Expenses
Depreciation. ... ..........ovvunn.. _ 13,568 —_ 1,804,189 4(cy 1,817,757
Stock based compensation ........... —_ 290,253 —_ 44311 4(d) 334,564
Management bonuses . . ............. — 1,379,066 (1,209,398)  4(e) 169,668
Selling, general & administrative ...... _ 1,437,436 1,458,902 98,667 4by 8,778,915
_ 5,783,910 3@
— 1,741,257 2,837,968 6,521,679 11,100,904
Loss beforetaxes ................. — (1,657,891) (124,050) (6,955,395) (8,737,3306)
Income taxes (recovery)
Current ..., —_ — 18,983 (18,983) 4D —
Fauture .. ........... ... ... . ... ... e — (47,593) (2,289,027 4(f) (2,336,620)
e — (28,610) (2,308,010) (2,336,620
Loss . ... ... .. ... ... _— (1,657,891} (95,440) (4,647,385) {6,400,716)
Loss per univ/share basic and diluted
(NOte ) .o e $— $(0.16) $3(®)
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Alter Nrg Corp.

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2006 and for the year ended December 31, 2006
All amounts in Canadian dollars unless specified otherwise

1. Corporate Reorganization

Alter Nrg Income Fund (the “Trust”) was an income trust as at December 31, 2006 and up to the date of the Initial Public Offering (the "Offering”). In
conjunction with the Offering, the Trust will reorganize from an income trust structure to a corporation. The following is 2 summary of the steps to be
undertaken to reorganize Alter Nrg Corp. (the “Corporation”™) and the Trust and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Reorganization”):

(a} The Trust will, prior to the closing of the Offering, convene a special meeting of the Unitholders to seek Unitholder approval of certain
amendments to the Trust Indenture and certain other matters.

(b) Provided that the Unitholder approvals contemplated above are granted, the Corporation will seek the approval of the Alberta Court of
Queen’s Bench to proceed with the completion of a statutory plan of arrangement, the effective time of which will eccur simultaneously with
the closing of the Offering. The Plan of Arrangement contains details on the reorganization which exchanges Units of the Trust for Common
Shares of the Corporation on a I:1 tax free basis.

2. RBasis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2006 and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 (collectively, the “pro forma consolidated financial statements™) have been prepared by management
of the corporation in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP"). The pro forma consolidated financial statements
have been prepared to reflect the acquisition (the “Acquisition”} of Westinghouse Plasma Corporation (“WPC"), the Offering and the Reorganization of
the Trust from an income trust to a corporation. The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet has been prepared as if the Offering, Reorganization
and Acquisition had occurred on December 31, 2006, The unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations has been prepared asif the Offering,
Reorganization and Acquisition occurred on January 1, 2006.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP and have been derived from the following:
+ Aodited balance sheet of Aller Nrg Corp. as at February 20, 2007,

* Audited consolidated financial statements of the Trust as at December 31, 2006 and for the period from commencement of operations on
March 9, 2006 to December 31, 2006.

+ Audited financial statements of WPC as at and for the year ended December 31, 2006. For the purpose of the pro forma consolidated financial
statements, the WPC amounts denominated in U.S. dollars have been converted into Canadian dotlars at the exchange rate in effect at
December 31, 2006 of $Cdn 1.1654:3US1 and the average exchange rate for the year of $Cdnl.1341:3USI for the balance sheet and statement
of operations, respectively.

The pro forma consolidated financial statements have been prepared from information derived from and should be read in conjunction with the audited
financial statements of the Trust and WPC included elsewhere in the Prospectus. The pro forma consolidated financial statements do not reflect any
synergies from combining with the Corporation with WPC.

In the opinion of Management, these pro forma consolidated financial statements include all adjustments necessary for fair presentation in accordance
with GAAP. The pro forma consolidated financial statements may not be indicative of the financial position or results of cperations that would have
occurred if the events reflected therein had been in effect on the dates indicated or of the results that may be obtained in the future,
Significant accounting policies
(a) Imangible assets
The intangible assets represent the value attributed to the technology acquired from WPC, including the technological processes, patents, designs
and engineering expertise. The intangible assets are amortized on a straight-ling basis over their estimated useful life of 15 years.
(b) Customer contracts

Customer contracts represent open sales contracts that the Corporation will acquire from WPC, All goods and services are expected to be provided to the
customers in 2007.

The remaining acceunting policies used in the preparation of the pro forma consolidated financial statements are those disclosed in the audited financial
statements of the Trust included elsewhere in the Prospectus.

3. Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet of the Corporation gives effect to the following transactions on December 31, 2006,

a}  The Trust entered into a purchase and sale agreement with WPC on December 2, 2006 (the “Agreement”) pursuant to which the Trust agreed
to acquire 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of WPC for an aggregate purchase price of $34,296,600, which includes $500,000 of
legal and other costs incurred related to the Acquisition. The purchase price will be funded by payment of $22 million USD ($25,638,800 at
an exchange rate of 1.1654 at December 31, 2006) in cash and $7 million USD ($8,157,800 at December 31, 2006) worth of Common Shares

F-20



b}

<)

d)

at an assumed price of 3 @ per Common Share, The fair value ultimately assigned to the Common Shares will be based on the price
established by the Offering.

A total of $5.1 million USD of the purchase price consideration, $4.1 million USD in cash and $1 million USD in Common Shares, to the
principal shareholder of WPC will be held in escrow. This consideration will be released in twelve equal monthly installments beginning one
month after closing up to December 15, 2007 if the principal shareholder is still employed and active in the business. As such, the $5.1 million
USD ($5,783,910 at an exchange rate of 1.1654 for the year ended December 31, 2006) is considered compensation to the principal
shareholder and included in selling, general and administrative costs in the unaudited consolidated pro forma statement of operations.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method with the consideration being allocated to the fair value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed on the following basis:

Description
Current assets, excluding inventory . . ... .. .. .. e e $ 1,029,682
CUSIOMEL COMIACIS . &« v v v v v e e v et v et b it e it e et s et ettt s e e et b ettt s e e 1,471,317
IV EntOryY . . e e e 169,065
T S (Ve 13 N 3~ 102,555
INEangible AsseIS . . . vt t e eee ee eaeees 26,763,314
Current abilities . . . . . .. e e e e e e e e (1,182,874)
Fair value of net assets acquired . . . . ..o e e e e e e s 28,353,060
Purchase Price
L0 21,360,660
COmMMOn Shares . . . . L . . e e e e e 6,992,400

$28,353,060

The actual calculation and allocation of the purchase price will be based on the fair value of assets purchased and liabilities assumed at the
effective date of the 2equisition and other information at that date (o support the allocation of the purchase price to the respective assets and
liabilities. In addition, certain of the above amounts are Management’s current estimate of the known and expected fair values and may
change as final information becomes available. Accordingly, the actual amounts for each of the assets and liabilities will vary from the pro
forma amounts and the variation may be material.

The technology license costs paid to WPC of $299,515 prior 1o the Acquisition have been reclassified to intangible assets as the Corporation
will own the technology after acquisition and will no longer require a license. Deposits paid by Alter Nrg to WPC for engineering services of
$198.118 have been ¢liminated from deferred costs and deferred revenue, respectively.

Assuming a maximum offering, the Corporation will issue @ Common Shares and assuming a price of § @ per share, the gross proceeds
will be 3 @ . Estimated transaction costs will be approximately 3 @ . The Corporation will use the net proceeds from the offering of its
Common Shares to acquire the issued and outstanding common shares of WPC and retain approximately $ @ in cash to fund additional
Corporate expenditures.

The Trust Units will be exchanged one unit for one common share by the Corporation on a tax free basis concurrently with the closing of the
Acquisition. Corporate reorganization costs of 200,000 to change the Trust's organizational structure to a corporation have been capitalized
to share capital at December 31, 2006.

The consolidated pro forma balance sheet reflects stock based compensation of $22,155 related to the recognition of stock based
compensation from the issuance of 50,000 options to a WPC executive that vest one-third immediately at closing of the Acquisition. Ses
Note 4(d).

4. Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Operations

The unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations of the Corporation gives effect to the following transactions and assumptions as if they
had taken place on January 1, 2006,

a)

b)

c)

d)

Pro forma revenue reflects the elimination of $433,716 of intercompany sales from revenue received by WPC from the Corporation. There is
no offsetting adjustment in the unaudited pro forma statement of operations to expenses as this amount was capitalized by the Corporation.

General and administrative costs have been increased by the salaries that would have been paid to the executives of WPC under the new
Employment Agreements as part of the acquisilion. Salary increases totaling $98,667 were added to general and administrative expenses for
the year ended December 31, 2006 as if the Acquisition occurred on Januvary 1, 2006,

The unaudited consolidated pro forma statement of operations reflects an increase in amortization expense to give effect to the increase in
intangible assets as a result of the Acquisition.

The unaudited consclidated pro forma statement of operations reflects an increase in stock based compensation of $44,311 related to the
recognition of stock based compensation from the issuance of 50,000 options 10 a WPC executive that vest one-third immediately with an
additional one-third on the first and second anniversary dates of the grant and expire in ten years from the date of grant. The fair value of the
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options granted was $1.33. The Corporation estimated the fair value of the options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following assumptions on a weighted average basis:

Expected volatility. . . . ... ... e 60%
Risk free iMMErest mie. . .. v i i it st i 4%
Dividend FRtE . . . . . . L e e s 0%
Expected life . . .. oo i e 8 years

€)  WPC management bonuses in the amount of $1,379,066 have been removed for the year ended December 31, 2006. WPC management
bonuses for the year ended December 31, 2006 under the new Employee Agreements had the acquisition occurred on January 1, 2006 would
be $169,668.

fy  Calculation of income tax expense incorporates the above adjustments.

5. Loss Per Share

The basic and diluted loss per share is calcolated based on the following shares outstanding:

Alter Nrg, asreported . . . . .. . e e e s 10,351,401

L0 T4 T [ ]

AcQUISIION . . . . . L L e e s 4,078,900
[ )
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Westinghouse Plasma Corporation
AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Directors of
Westinghouse Plasma Corporation:

We have audited the balance sheets of Westinghouse Plasma Corporation as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the
statements of loss and deficit and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2006. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s Management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our zudits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

Because we were appointed auditors of the company in December 2006, we were neither able to observe the counting of
physical inventories at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 nor satisfy ourselves concerning those inventory quantities by
alternative means. Since opening inventories enter into the determination of the results of operations and cash flows, we
were unable to determine whether adjustments to inventory as of December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 and to direct costs of
goods provided, income taxes, loss, opening deficit and cash provided by operating activities for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 might be necessary.

In our opinion, except for the effect of adjustments, if any, which we might have determined to be necessary had we been
able to examine opening inventory quantities, as described in the preceding paragraph, the statements of loss and deficit
and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company as at December 31, 2005 and
the results of operations and cash flows of the company for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31,
2006 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Further, in our opinion, the balance sheet
presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company as at December 31, 2006 in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Calgary, Alberta signed “@”
January 29, 2007 Chartered Accountants
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Westinghouse Plasma Corporation

Balance Sheets
As at December 31
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2006 2005
ASSETS
Current
07 T o 545,370 61,691
ACCOUNtS Teceivable . .. L . i e e e e e e 279,283 88,541
Prepaid eXpenses . ... ... it e e e 58,891 25,928
IVEOTIES . o . oot i e e e 145,070 108,562
Future income tax benefit (NOtE 7) . .ot irii ee ees i v c e 46,000 12,500
1,074,614 297,222
Capital assets (NOte d) .. ... ... i i ittt i s — —
Future income tax benefit (Note 7). . .. .. ... .. . . e 86,244 86,662
1,160,858 383,884
LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . ........... ... ... . . . e, 158,299 134,562
Deferred revenUe . .. ...t it e e e e e e e 856,695 —
Current portion of long term debt (Note 6) .. . ... ... .. ... ... .. ... .. ... ... — 13,341
Future income tax liability (Note 7) . ... ... ... . . — 5,963
1,014,994 153,866
Deferred lease inducements (Note 11) ... ... ... .. ittt 374,970 374,970
Long term debt (Note 6). . ... ... ... it ittt nans — —
1,389,964 528,836
Shareholders’ Equity
Capital Stock (Note 9) . .. ... ... 1,000 1,000
Delicit . . . ... (230,106) (145,952)
(229,106) (144,952)
1,160,858 383,884
Commitments (Note 11)
Approved by the Board:
(signed) “Dr. Shyam Dighe”, Director (signed) “Daniel Lazarra”, Director

See accompanying notes to financial statemenis.
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Westinghouse Plasma Corporation

Statements of Loss and Deficit
For the vears ended December 31,
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2006 2005 2004

g L 1 T N $2,393.015 $1,117,346  $1,434,803
Expenses
Direct costof goods provided .. ............. ... .. .. o, 171,795 203,075 288,223
Compensation (Note 3) . ... ... .. e e 1,764,098 641,291 671,063
Consulting SEIVICES . . .ottt e e 154,813 48,629 136,571
License and MAINENANCE . . . . . ..\ttt it it it e e aans 133,183 53,436 68,382
OCCUPANCY COSIS . v v vttt et 197,360 196,284 220,911
Depreciation . . ... . i e e e e e — 4,619 4,871
[nterest on long termdebt . ... ... ... .. .o e 5,292 4,279 2,559
Other administrative COSIS . . . .. ... ittt ettt e i ineas 75,855 35,765 47,759

2,502,396 1,187,378 1,440,339
Loss beforeinceme taxes. . . .......... ... . ... ... . ... ... (109,381} (70,032) (5,534)
Provision for (recovery of) income taxes (Note 7)
51y =4 | 13,818 — 2,014
Y411 (- N (39,045} (18,281) {1,862)

(25,227 (18,281} 152

LSS . .o (84,154} (51,751) (5,686)
Deficit, beginning of year ... ... ... . ... ... . (145,952) (94,201} (88.515)
Deficit,end of year . . . .. ... ... ... .. $ (230,106) $ (145,952 § (94,201)

See accompanying notes to financial siatements.
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Westinghouse Plasma Corporation

Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31,
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2006 2005 2004

Operating activities
s 1 $ (84,154) % (51,751) % (5.686)
Items not involving cash

Depreciation . ... ..t e — 4,619 4,871

Deferred lease inducement . . . ... . .. . . e — — 18,750

Future inCOmMEe [aX TECOVETY. . . v vttt st a et e onannns {39,045) (18,281) (1,862)
Change in non-cash working capital items ... ... ... ................ 620,219 96,726 6,530)
Cash provided by operating activities . . ... ....................... 497,020 31,313 9,543
Financing activities
Borrowing under the credit agreements. . . ... ...... ... ... ... L. 100,000 119,000 —
Repayment of debt and borrowings. . . ........... ... ... ... ... .. ... (113,341  (129,943)  (142,143)
Cash used in financing activities . .. ............................. (13,341) (10,943)  (142,143)
Net increase (decrease}incash ............ ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 483,679 20,370 (132,600)
Cash, beginningof year . . .. ...... ... ... ... . .. . . i 61,691 41,321 173,921
Cash,endofyear. .. ... . ... ... .. . . . . . .. . .. . e $545370 $ 61,691 § 41,321
Other cash flow information:
Interest paid ... ..o e e e e $ 4874 $ 4279 § 2,264
[ncome taxes paid . . ... .. ... — 2,673 5,718

See accompanying notes o financial statemenis.
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Westinghouse Plasma Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

1. Description of the Business

Westinghouse Plasma Corporation (““WPC™ or the “Company™) a Pennsylvania corporation, designs, manufactures and services plasma torch systems
and applications throughout the world.

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial stztements in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) requires Management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance
sheet dates and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the periods. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when evidence of an arrangements exists, goods are shipped, services are rendered, the selling price is fixed and determinable,
and cellectibility is reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers, in excess of revenue recognized, are classified as deferred revenue until the service is provided or the
product delivered.

Revenue from license fees is recognized based on the terms of the license agreement, Revenues related to licenses subject to attaining milestones are
recognized as revenues as milestones are reached. Non-refundable license fees are recognized as revenues when the Company has no further
involvement or obligation to perform under the arrangement, the fee is fixed and determinable and collection of the amount is deemed probable.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost, determined on the first-in, first out (“FIFQ™) basis, and net realizable value,

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; renewals and betterments
which extend the physical or economical useful life of related assets are capitalized. Amortization is based on the estimated useful lives of the assets ona
straight-line basis as follows:

Machinery and eqUIPIENL. . . . .. ot e e e e e e e e 5 years

Income Taxes

The Company follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized
based on the estimated future tax effects of differences in the carrying value of assets and liabilities in the financial staterents and their respective tax
bases, using income tax rates enacted or substantively enacted for the years in which the differences are expected to reverse. Future income tax assets are
limited to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

3. Compensation

The Company’s qualified defined contribution plan for eligible full-time employees is a salary reduction provision by which the Company makes a
matching contribution of 100% of the first 3% of salary contributed by each employee, Company contributions, included in compensation expense, were
$11,616, $13,845, and $15,360 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively,

The Cempany has a discretionary, performance based incentive plan. Under the plan the Company’s employees, primarily top Management, were paid
51,090,000, $37,000, and nil for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

4. Capital Assets

The Company's capital assets were fully amortized by December 31, 2005. No capital purchases were made for the years ending December 31, 2004,
2005 or 2006.

5. Credit Facility

The Company entered into a credit agreement for a $400,000 working capital line of credit due on demand and secured by substantially all of the
Company's assets at a variable interest rate of prime plus 0.75%.
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6. Long Term Debt

The Company’s credit agreement provided for a $120,000 term loan.

2006 2005
Term loan: interest at Libor plus 2.0%, repayable in equal monthly installments of $1,429 maturing in May 2006 . . . . .. $—  § 7141
Term loan: interest a1 7% repayable in equal monthly installments of $1,661 mawring May 2006. . . .............. - 6,200
Less: amounts due Within 008 Year. . . .. .ottt ittt i n e i e e e = 13,341
Long term debl . .. oo e e e e e e s — $ —

7. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes in the financial statemenis differs from the result which would be obtained by applying the federal and state tax rate to the
Company’s income (loss) before income taxes. This difference results from the following items:

2006 2005 2004

Loss before provision for income taxes . . .. . ... ...l (109,381) (70,032) (5,534)
Basic iNCOMe TAX TAIE . . . .t vttt ittt et et e e e e 23% 23% 23%
Computed INCOME EAX FECOVETY . . o o i\t it i e et e et e et e e e e e et et e et i e e e e e e (25,158) (16,107 (1,273)
Effect on income taxes resulting from other i8NS . . . .. .00 ittt i i e (69) (2,174) 1,425
Provision for (recovery of) income 1axes . . . .. ... ... L. (25,227) (18.281) 152

The major component of the Company's long term future tax benefit as of December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 relates to accrued rent expense not
currently deductible. The current future tax liability consists primarily of capital assets and prepaid expenses deducted for tax purposes.

In the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company generated a $54,099 state and federal non-capiial loss carry forward. The resulting future tax benefit
of $12,500 ts classified as current in 2005 as it will be utilized in the 2006 tax year. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company included
$200,000 of deferred revenue in taxable income resulting in a current future tax benefit of $46,000.

8. Related Party Transactions

The Company enters into transactions with related parties, in the normal course of business. The transactions are measured at the exchange amount,
which is the consideration established and agreed to by the related party. Related party transactions included accounting fees paid to one of its
shareholders. These fees totaled $36,000 for each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and are included in consulting services in the
accompanying statement of loss and deficit.

9. Capital Stock

Shares of authorized, issued and outstanding common stock are 1,000,000 at no par value with a stated value of $.001 per share.

10. Financial Instruments

‘The fair value and carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments, consisting of accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and
long term debt are approximately equivalent due to the short period of time to maturity.

11. Commitments

The Company leases its main office and production facility under an operating agreement dated April 1999 with two five year option renewal periods.
Future minimum lease payments under this operating lease and the related renewal option periods in excess of onc year at December 31, 2006 are:

2007 e e $ 75.000
2008 . e e e e e e e e e e e e 75,000
200 . e e 131,250
2000 e e e e e e e e e e e e 150,000
71 150,000
3Tt . 337,500

Al L . e e e e e e e e e e 5918,750

The deferred lease inducement of $374,970 for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 relates o a rental incentive the Company received for the
first 5 year lease term between 1999 and 2004 and will reverse in the last 5 year lease term from 2010 to 2015.
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The lease agreement has two five year renewal terms. In the first term from 1999 to 2004 the Company paid a nominal amount of rent. In the second term
from 2005 to 2009 the Company paid/will pay $75,000 per year or $375,000 over the five year term, In the third term from 2010 to 2015 the Company
will pay $150,000 per year or $750,000 over the five year term. The total rent paid over the entire lease term will be $1,125.000 which equates to $75,000
per year of rent expense recorded on a straight line basis over the 15 year lease term.

The lease expense recorded over the first 5 year term was $375,000 and the difference between the expense and nominal amount paid resulted in a
deferred lease inducement of $374,970 as at December 31, 2004 to be recognized during the 2009 to 2014 lease term.
12. Significant Customers

The Company’s five largest customers accounted for 76%, 96%, and 99% of the revenue for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The targest customer accounted for approximately 25%, 54%, and 51% of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and
2004, respectively.
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CERTIFICATE OF THE CORPORATION AND THE PROMOTERS

February 26, 2007

The foregoing constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by this
prospectus as required by Part 9 of the Securities Act (Bnitish Columbia), by Part 9 of the Securities Act (Alberta), by
Part XI of The Securities Act, 1988 (Saskatchewan), by Part VII of The Securities Act (Manitoba), by Part XV of the
Securities Act (Ontario), by Part 6 of the Securities Act (New Brunswick), by Section 63 of Securities Act (Nova Scotia),
by Part 11 of Securities Act (Prince Edward Island} and by Part X1V of Securities Act (Newfoundland and Labrador) and
the respective regulations thereunder. This prospectus does not contain any misrepresentation likely to affect the value or
the market price of the securities to be distributed within the meaning of the Securities Act (Québec) and the regulations
thereunder.

(Signed) Mark A. MONTEMURRO (Signed) DaniEL R. Hay

President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

On behalf of the Board of Directors

(Signed) MicHageL E. HElER (Signed) BRenT J. Conway
Director _ Director

On behalf of the Promoters

(Signed) Mark A. MoNTEMURRO (Signed) MicuaeL E. HEer
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CERTIFICATE OF THE AGENTS

February 26, 2007

To the best of the Corporation’s knowledge, information and belief, the foregoing constitutes full, true and plain
disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by this prospectus as required by Part 9 of the Securities
Act (British Columbia), by Part 9 of the Securities Act (Alberta), by Part XI of The Securities Act, 1988 (Saskatchewan),
by Part VII of The Securities Act (Manitoba), by Part XV of the Securities Act (Ontario), by Part 6 of the Securities Act
{New Brunswick), by Section 64 of Securities Act (Nova Scotia), by Part II of Securities Act (Prince Edward Island) and
by Part XIV of Securities Act (Newfoundland and Labrador) and the respective regulations thereunder. To the
Corporation’s knowledge, this prospectus does not contain any misrepresentation likely to affect the value or the market
price of the securities to be distributed within the meaning of the Securities Act (Québec) and the regulations thereunder.

WELLINGTON WEST CAPITAL MARKETS INC. CanaccorD CaprraL CORPORATION
(Signed) JEFF REYMER (Signed) Timomy J. HarT
Director, Investment Banking Managing Director, Investment Banking

RaymonD James Inc.

(Signed) Jason HoLrey
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THIS TRUST INDENTURE is made as of this 28" day of April, 2006.

BETWEEN:

VALIANT TRUST COMPANY, a frust company incorporated under the iaws of
Alberta, having an office at Calgary, Alberta, which is the first trustee (hereinafter called
the "Initial Trustee"} of the trust constituted by this Trust Indenture (the "Fund") and
each person who after the date hereof becomes a trustee of the Fund as herein provided
(cach person, while a trustee of the Fund as herein provided, is hereinafter called a
“Trustee™)

-and -

ALTER NRG LTD.,, a corporation incorporated under the laws of Alberta and having a
registered office in the City of Calgary, Alberta (hereinafter called the "Corporation™)

-and -

CAMERON M. PROCTOR, an individual resident in the Province of Alberta, who is a
party hereto for the purpose of settling the trust constituted by this Trust Indenhare
(hereinafter called the "Initial Unitholder')

WHEREAS the Initial Unitholder desires to create a trust for the purpose of acquiring and
holding certain investments, including: (i) trust units of an Alberta trust to be formed and called "Alter

; Nrg Commercial Trust" that will acquire direct or indirect interests or make other investments in assets,

roperties and facilities related to iress: i1) corenon shares of the Corporation;

AND WHEREAS the Trustee has agreed to hold and use the $10.00 in lawful money of Canada,
which has been paid by the Initial Unitholder to the Trustee (the "Tnitial Contribution") in exchange for
one Trust Unit, and all amounts and assets subsequently received under this Trust Indenture upon the
trusts and in accordance with the provisions hereinafter set forth;

AND WHEREAS the Initia] Unitholder and the Trustes desire that the beneficiaries of the Fund,
including the Initial Unitholder, shall be the holders of Trust Units as hercinafter provided,

AND WHEREAS it is intendcd that the Trust Units be offered for sale to the public;

AND WHEREAS the Initial Unitholer and the Trustee desire that the Fund shall gualify as a
"unit trust" and as a "mutual fund trust” pursuant to paragraph 108(2)(a) and subsection 132(6),
respectively, of the Income Tax Act (as hereinafter defined);

AND WHEREAS the parties hereto desire to set out the agreements, terms and conditions which
shall govern their nutual and respective rights, powers and obligations with respect to the settlement and
administretion of the Fund,

NOW THEREFORE THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH THAT, in consideration of the

premises and the mmtual and respective covenants and agreements contained herein, the Trustee declares,

{ and covenants and agrecs with the Corporation and the Initial Unitholder, and the Corporation and the
Initial Unitholder covenant and agree with the Trustee as follows:
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ARTICLE 1
INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

In this Trust Indenture and in the Unit Certificates, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following shall have the following meanings: )

(@
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"Adminco" means Alter Nrg Administration Ltd., a corporation formed pursuant to the
Business Corporations Act (Alberta), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation and
the trustee of the Commercial Trust;

"Adminco Shares" means the common shares of Adminco;

"affiliate” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Securities Act (Alberta), as amended
from time to time; '

"Alter LP" means Alter Nrg Limited Partnership, a limited partoership to be formed
under the laws of the Province of Alberta, and includes its successors and assigns;

"Alter LP Units" means the ordinary limited partnership units of Alter LP;

"appuitant” means the annuitant of a registered retirement savings plan, a registered
retirement income fund, a registered education savings plan or a deferred profit sharing
plan, all as defined in the Income Tax Act, or any other plan of which a Unitholder or
holder of Other Fund Securities acts as trustee or carrier;

"associate” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Securiries Act (Alberta), as amended
from time to time;

"Auditors" means the firm of chartered accountants appointed as the auditors of the Fund
from time to time in accordance with the provisions hereof and, initially, means Deloitte
& Touche LLP;

"Beneficiary" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Subsection 2.8(a);

"Business" means the business conducted by Alter LP and/or the Commercial Trust from
time to tme, and will initially include exploiting opportumities in the energy’ sector,
including developing, commercializing, marketing and licensing gasification technology
using coal, petroleum and other feedstocks, as well as all business incidental, ancillary or
relating thereto;

"Business Day" means any day on which the principal chartered banks located at
Calgary, Alberta arc open for business during normal banking hours other than a
Saturday, Sunday or a day observed as a holiday in Calgary, Alberta;

"Cash Redemption Price" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 6.3,

"Closing" means the completion of the issue of Trust Units to the public pursuant to the
Initial Offering;
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"Closing Date" means the date on which Closing occurs;
"closing market price” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 6.3;
"Closing Time" means the time on the Closing Date at which Closing occurs;

"Commerctal Trust" means Alter Nrg Commercial Trust, an Alberta trust to be
constituted by the CT Trust Indenture, and includes its successors and assigns;

"Corporation" means Alter Nrg Ltd., a corporation incorporated under the Business
Corporations Act (Alberta), and includes its successors and assigns;

"Corporation Shares” means the common shares of the Corporation;

"Counsel"” means a barrister and solicitor or firm of barristers and solicitors or other
lawyers in an appropriate jurisdiction retained by the Fund;

"CT Trust Indenture" means the trust indenture constituting the Commercial Trust
among Adminco, as trustee of the Commercial Trust, the Fund, as the scitlor thereof and
the holders of CT Units, to be dated on or before the Closing Date, as amended,
supplemented or restated from time to time;

"CT Unit" means a trust unit issued by the Commercial Trust;

"Directors" means the directors from time to time of the Corporation;

"Distributable Cash Flow" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 5.1;

)
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30702631.4

"Distribution Payment Date” means the date or dates as may be determined from time
to time by the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) on which Distributable
Cash Flow is distributed to Unitholders (initially being the 15th day of the calendar
month following the comresponding Distribution Record Date, or if such day is not a
Business Day, the following Business Day);

"Distribution Perfod" means, in respect of the initial distribution, the period
commencing on and including the Closing Date and ending on and inchuding the last day
of the calendar month following the month in which Closing occurs, and thereafter means
each calendar month, or such other period as may be hereafter determined from time to
time by the Corporation {on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee), provided that amy such
period shall be no longer in duration than six calendar months nor any shorter in duration
than one calendar month;

"Distribution Record Date" means, in respect of a Distribution Period, the last Business
Day of the Distribution Period or such other date or dates as may be determined from
time to time by the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trusiee), except that
December 31 of each year shall in all cases be a Distribution Record Date;

"Eligibic Investments" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Subsection 4.3(b);

"Exchangeable Security” or "Exchangeable Securities" means a unit or units, a share
or shares or other sccurity or securities which are convertible into or exchangeable for
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Trust Units (directly or indirectly) without the payment of additional consideration
therefor, whether or not issued by the Fund;

“Experts" means any anditor (inchuding the Auditors), legal counsel {including Counsel),
valuator, engineer, surveyor, appraiser or other expert whose profession gives authority to
a statement made by them on the subject in question;

"Fund” means the trust constituted by this Trust Indenture;

"Fund Property" means, at any tinge, all of the monies, properties and other assets of any
nature or kind whatsoever as are, at such time, held by the Fund or by the Trustee on

behalf of the Fund and any reference to "property” or "property of the Fund" or
"assets” or “assets of the Fund" includes, in each case, the Fund Property;

"Governmental Authority" means any court or governmental department, comnmission,
board, bureau, agency, or instrumentality of Canada, or of any state, province, territory,
county, municipality, city, town or other political jurisdiction whether domestic or
foreign and whether now or in the future constituted or existing;

"Income of the Fund” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Subsection 5.2(a);

"Income Tax Act" means the Jncome Tax Act (Canada) R.S.C. 1985, Chapter 1 (5th
Supplement) and the regulations thereunder as amended from time to time;

"Indenture Conferred Duties”" means all rights, powers and duties conferred upon,
granted, allocated and delegated to the Corporation pursuant to the terms of this Trust
Indenture;

“Initial Contribution” means the amount of $10.00 paid by the Initial Unitholder to the
Trustes on the date hereof for the purpose of settling the trust constituted hereby;

"Initia] Offering"” means the first distribution of Trust Units to persons other than the
Initial Unitholder;

"Initial Trustee" means Valiant Trust Conpany;

"Initial Unitholder" means Cameron M. Proctor;

“in specie Redemption Price" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Subsection 6.6{a);
"Issue Expenses” means all expenses of an Offering payable by the Fund including legal
fees, accounting fees and printing expenses and all other fees and expenses which may be
described, whether generally or specifically, in the offering document relating to the
Offering, but excluding Underwriters' Fees;

"marKet price” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 6.3;

"meeting of the Unitholders" shall mean and include, as the circumstances require, both
an amnal meeting of Unitholders and any other meeting of Unitholders;

« ~
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(ss)  "Net Proceeds" means the proceeds of an Offering after deduction of Underwriters' Fees
and Issue Expenses;

{tt) "Net Realized Capital Gains" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Subsection 5.2(h);

(un)  "non-resident” means: (i) a person (within the meaning of the Income Tax Act but, for
greater certainty, does not include a partnership) who is not resident, nor deemed to be
resident, in Canada within the meaning of the Income Tax Act; and (ii) a partnership that
is not a Canadian parinership for the purposes of the Income Tax Act;

(vv)  "Notes" means any notes or evidence of indebtedness which may, from time to time, be
issued to and held, directly or indirectly, by the Fund,

(ww) "Offering" means any issuance or offering of Trust Units or Other Fund Securities;
(xx)  "Ordinary Resclution" means:

D a resolution passed by more than 50% of the votes cast in respect of the
resolution by or on behalf of the Unitholders and Special Rights Holders, either
in person or by proxy, at a meeting of Unitholders, at which a quorum was
present, called (at least in part) for the purpose of approving such resolution; or

(i) a resolution approved in writing, in one or more counterparts, by holders of more
than 50% of the votes represented by the Trust Units and Special Voting Rights
entitled to be voted on such resolution,

For the purpose of determining such percentage, the holders of any issued Special Voting
Rights who are present at the meeting shall-be-regarded-as-representing-outstanding-Trust——————

Units equivalent in number to the votes attaching to such Special Voting Rights;

(yy}  "Other Fund Securities" means any Special Voting Rights or any other securities of the
Fund, including Exchangeable Securities, options, rights, warrants or other securities
convertible into or exerciseable for Trust Units or other securities of the Fund (including
convertible debt securities, subscription receipts and installment receipts);

(zz)  “"person” means and includes individuals, corporations, limited partnerships, general
partnerships, joint stock companies, limited liability corporations, joint ventures,
associations, companies, trusts, banks, trust companies, pension funds, business trusts and
other organizations, whether or not legal entities and governments and agencics and
political subdivisions thereof;

(aaa) "Redemption Gains" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Subsection 5.2(c);

(bbb) "Redemption Income" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Subsection 5.2(c);

(cce) "Redemption Notes" means any unsecured promissory notes that may be issued from
time to time by the Fund upon certain redemptions of Trust Units, as set forth in
Subsection 6.6(a);

(&dd) "Redemption Notice" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 6.2;

307026314
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"Registered Plan" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 8.11;
"Registers" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 15.6;

"securities” include: (i) any documents, instruments or writings commonly known as
securities; (i) any documents constituting evidence of title to or interest n the capital,
assets, property, profits, eammings or royalties of any person; (iii) any documents
constituting evidence of an option, subscription or other interest in or fo securities; (iv)
any bond, debenture, note or other evidence of indebtedness, share, stock, umit, umit
certificate, participation certificate or certificate of share or interest; (v) any certificate of
share or interest in a trust, estate or association; (vi) amy profit sharing agreement or
certificate; and (vii) any investment contract,

"Special Resolution” means:

@ a Tesolution passed by more than 66 2/3% of the votes cast in respect of the
resolution by or on behalf of the Unitholders and Special Rights Holders, either
in persen or by proxy, at a meeting of Unitholders, at which a quorum was
present, called (at least in part) for the purpose of approving such resolution; or

(i) a resolution approved in writing, in one or more counterparts, by holders of more
than 66 2/3% of the votes represented by the Trust Units and Special Voting
Rights entitled to be voted on such resolution,

For the purpose of determining such percentage, the holders of any issued Special Voting
Rights who are present at the meeting shall be regarded as representing outstanding Trust
Units equivalent in mumber to the votes attaching to such Special Voting Rights;

"Special Rights Holders" means the holders from time to time of one or more Special
Voting Rights.

"Special Voting Rights" means special voting rights of the Fund, issued and certified
hereunder for the time being outstanding and entitled to the benefits and subject to the
lirmitations set forth in Section 3.2;

"Subsequent Investments" means any assets, securities (whether debt or equity), notes,
royalties, properties or interests of whatever nature or kind that may be acquired, directly
or indirectly, by the Fund and which are described in section 132(6)(b) of the Income Tax
Act, subject to the restrictions in Section 4.4,

"take-over bid" has the meaning ascribed to such term in the Securities Act (Alberta), as
amended from time to fime;

(mmom) “this Trust Indenture”, "this Indenture”, "hereto”, "herein”, "hereof”, "hereby",

30702631.4

"hereunder" and similar expressions refer to this instrument and not to any particular
Article, Section or portion hereof, and include any and every amendment hereto and
instrument supplemental or ancillary hereto;

"Transfer Agent” means such company, initially to be the Trustee, as may from time to
time be appointed by the Fund to act as registrar and transfer agent of the Trust Units or
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Other Pund Securities fogether with amy sub-transfer agent duly appointed by the
Transfer Agent,

"Trust Liabilities" has the meaning ascribed thereto in Subsection 2.8(a);

"Trustee" means at any time, a person who is, in accordance with the provisions hereof,
g trustee of the Fund at that time including, so long as it remains a trustee; the Initial
Truste;

"Trustee's Regulations” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 8.3;

"Trust Units" means the trust units of the Fund referred to in Subsection 3.1(a)
authorized and issued hereunder;

"Underwriters' Fees" means the amount so designated in any Underwriting Agreement;

"Underwriting Agreement” means any underwriting, agency or similar agrcemcnt
entered into by or on behalf of the Fund and investment dealers, and such other persons
as may be party thereto, relating to an Offering;

"Unit Certificate” means a certificate, in the form approved by the Corporation (on
behalf of the Fund and the Trustes), cvidencing one or more Trust Units, issued and
certified in accordance with the provisions hereof, and

"Unitholders" means at any time the holders at that time of one or more Trust Units, as
shown on the register of such holders maintained by the Fund or by the Transfer Agent
on behalf of the Fund.

1.2 References to Acts Performed by the Fund and the Corporation

Por greater certainty, where anmy reference is made in this Trust Indenture to:

(a)

®

(c)
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an act to be performed by the Fund or to rights of the Fund, such reference shall be
construed and applied for all purposes to refer to: (i) an act to be performed by the
Trustee on behalf of the Fund or by some other person duly authorized to do so by the
Trustee or pursuant to the provisions hereof; or to (if) rights of the Trustee, in its capacity
as Trustee of the Fund, as the case may be;

actions, rights or obligations of the Trustce, such reference shall be construed and applied
for all purposes to refer to actions, rights or obligations of the Trustee in its capacity as
Trustee of the Fund, and not in its other capacities, unless the context clearly requires
otherwise; and '

an act to be performed by the Corporation, such reference shall be construed and applied
for all purposes to refer to an act to be performed by the Directors, or any person that the
Directors have duly authorized or permitted to take such action on behalf of. the

- Carporation.



1.3 Tax Act

Any reference herein to a particular provision of the Incorne Tax Act shall include a reference to
that provision as it may be renumbered or amended from time to time. Where there are proposals for
amendments to the Income Tax Act which have not been enacted into laws or proclaimed into force on or
before the date on which such proposals are to become effective, the Trustee may take such proposal into
consideration and apply the provisions hereof as if such proposals had been enacted into law and
proclaimed into force.

1.4 Interpretation

In this Trust Indenture, unless herein otherwise expressly provided or unless the context
otherwise requires, words importing the singular number include the plural, and vice-versa and words
importing a gender shall include the feminine, masculine and neuter genders. Where the word
"ipcluding” or "includes" is used in this Trust Indenture it means "including without limitation” or
"inclhides without limitation", respectively.

1.5 Headings for Reference Only

The division of this Trust Indenture into Articles and Sections, the provision of a Table of
Contents and the insertion of headings are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the
construction or interprefation of this Trust Indenture.

1.6 Day Not a Business Day

Except as otherwise set out herein, in the event that any day on which any amount is to be
determined or any other determination is to be made or any action is Tequired to be taken hereunder is not
a Business Day, then such amount shall be determined, or such other determination shall be made, or such
action shall be required to be taken, at or before the requisite time on the next succeeding day that is a
Business Day. This Section 1.6 is not applicable to Sections 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4 and 5.7 and to defined
terms used in such Sections and the defimition of Distribution Record Date (except with respect to the
definition of, and action to be taken on, any Distribution Payment Date in Section 5.3 and Subsection
5.4(c)).

1.7 Currency

All references in this Trust Indenture to dollars, unless otherwise specifically indicated, are
expressed in Canadian currency.

1.8 Accounting Principles

All accounting terms not specifically defined in this Trust Indenture will be interpreied in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles from time to time, applied on a
consistent basis ("GAAP"). Where the character or amount of any asset or liability or item of revenue or
expense or amount of equity is required to be determined, or any consolidation or other determination or
calculation will, to the extent applicable and except as otherwise specified herein or as otherwise
determined by the Corporation or the Trustee, as applicable, be made in accordance with GAAP.

1.9 Time of the Essence

Time shall be of the essence in this Trust Indenture.

30702631.4
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1.16  Governing Law

This Trust ndenturc and the Unit Certificates shall be construed in accordance with the laws of
the Province of Alberta and the laws of Canada applicable therein. The parties hereto hereby irrevocably
submit and attorn to the jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Alberta.

ARTICLE 2
DECLARATION OF TRUST

2.1 Initial Contribution and Settlement of Fund

The Initial Unitholder is paying, concurrent with the execution of this Trust Indenture, the Initial
Contribution to the Trustee for the purpose of creating and settling the Fund, and in consideration therefor
one Trust Unit in the Fund is being issued to the Initial Unitholder. Receipt of the Initial Contribution is
hereby acknowledged by the Trustee.

2.2 Declaration of Trust

The Trustee hereby agrees to hold legal title to, use and administer the Fund Property in trust for
the benefit of the Unitholders, their permitied assigns and personal representatives in accordance with and
subject to the terms and conditions hercinafter declared and set forth, such trust to constitute the Fund
hereunder.

2.3 Name of the Fund

The Fund shall be known and designated as "Alter Nig Income Pund" and, whenever lawful and
convenient, the property of the Fund shall be held and the affairs of the Fund shall be conducted and
transacted nnder that name. The Fund may use such other designation-or-may adopt such-other name-ag

the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) deems appropriate, and the Fund may hold
property and conduct and fransact its affairs under such other designation or name.

2.4 Head Office

The head office of the Fund shall be located at Calgary, Alberta, or such other place or places in
Canada as the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) may from time to time designate and
will initially be located at #420, 1414 — 8™ Street S.W., Calgary, Alberta, T2R 1J6.

2.5 Nature of the Fund

The Fund is a trust that is an unincorporated open-ended rmutual fund trust, established for the
purpose specified in Section 4.1. The Fund is not, is not intended to be, shall not be deemed to be and
shall not be treated as, a general partnership, limited partnership, syndicate, association, joint venture,
company, corporation or joint stock company; further, none of the Trustee, the Corporation or the
Unitholders, nor any of them, shall be, or be deemed to be, treated in any way whatsoever as liable or
responsible hereunder as partners or joint venturers. Neither the Trustee nor the Corporation shall be, or
be deemed to be, an agent of the Unitholders. The relationship of the Unitholders to the Trustee shall be
solely that of beneficiaries of the Fund, and their rights shall be limited to those expressty conferred upon
them by this Trust Indenture. In filing a return of mcome for the Fund for its first tax year and for each
subsequent year, the Corporation, on behaif of the Fund, shall elect that the Fund shall be deemed tobe a
"mutual fund trust” for purpeses of the Income Tax Act since inception and for the entire year, assuming
the requirements for such election are met.

30702631.4
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2.6 Rights of Unitholders and Ownership of Assets of the Fund

(2) Except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, no Unitholder shall be entitled to
interfere with, or give any direction to, the Trustee or the Corporation with respect to the
affairs of the Pund or in connection with the exercise of any powers or authorities
conferred upon the Trustee or the Corporation under this Trust Indenture.

(®) The legal ownership of the Fund Property is vested exclusively in the Trustee and the
tight to conduct the affairs of the Fund is, subject to the Indenture Conferred Duties to be
conducted by the Corporation, vested exclusively in the Trustee, or such other persons as
the Trustee may determine or as are permmitted in accordance with the terms hereof. The
Unitholders shall have no interest or right of ownership in the Fund Property other than
the interest specifically set forth in this Trust Indenture and they shall have no right to
compel or call for any redemption of Trust Units or any partition, division, dividend or
distribution of the Fund Property or any of the other asscts of the Fund, except as
specifically provided herein.

(c) The Trust Units shall be personal property and shall confer upon the Unitholders only the
interest and rights attributable to such Trust Units as specifically set forth m this Trust
Indenture.

2.7 Unitholders Bound

This Trust Indenture shall be binding upon all persons who become Unitholders from tume to
time. By acceptance of a Unit Certificate representing any Trust Units, the Unitholder thereof shall be
deemed to agree to be bound, and shall be so bound, by this Trust Indenture. Furthermore, where
applicable, this Trust Indenture shall be binding upon all persons who from time to time hold Other Fund
Securities, including Special Voting Rights, and acceptance of a certificate or confirmation of purchase of
such Other Fumd Securities in whatever manner shall result in such holder of Other Fund Securities being
deemed to agree to be bound, and shall be so bound, by the applicable provisions of this Trust Indenture.

2.8 Liability of Unitholders

(a) No Unitholder, holder of Other Fund Securitics or annuitant (collectively, &
"Beneficiary"), in its capacity as such, will incur or be subject to any liability, direct or
indirect, absolute or contingent, in contract or i tort or of any other kind to any person
and no resort shall be had to, nor shall recourse or satisfaction be sought from, the private
property of any Beneficiary for any liability whatsoever in connection with: (i) the Fund
Property or the ownership, use, operation, acquisition or disposition thereof or the
exercise or enjoyment of the rights, privileges, conditions or benefits attached thereto,
associated therewith or derived therefrom; (ii) the obligations, Labilities, activities or
affairs of the Fund, the Trustee or the Corporation (with respect to the Corporation's
performance of its obligations hereunder); (iii) any actual or alleged act or omission of
the Trustee, the Corporation or any other person in Tespect of the activities or affairs of
the Fund (whether or not authorized by or pursuant to this Trust Indenture); (iv) any
actual or alleged act or omission of the Trustee, the Corporation or any other person in
the performance or exercise, or purported or attermpted performance or exercise, of any
obligation, power, discretion or authority conferred upon the Trustee, the Corporation or
such other person in respect of the activities or affairs of the Fund (whether or not
authorized by or pursuant to this Trust Indenture); or (vi) any taxes, levies, imposts or
charges or fines, penalties or interest in Tespect thereof payable by the Fund or by the

30702631.4

TN



-11 -

Trustee, the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund) or by any other person (except the
Beneficiary, to the extent required by applicable tax Jaws) on behalf of or in connection
with the activities or affairs of the Fund (collectively, "Trust Liabilities™).

(b) No Beneficiary, in its capacity as such, will be liable to indemmify the Trustee, the
Corporation ar amy other person with respect to any Trust Liabilities.

(c) To the extent that, notwithstanding the provisions of this Section 2.8, any Beneficiary, in
its capacity as such, may be determmined by a judgment of a court of conmetent
jurisdiction to be subject to or liable in respect of any Trust Liabilities, such judgment
and any writ of execution or sfimilar process in respect thereof will be enforceable only
against, any will be satisfied only out of, the Trust Units or Other Fund Securities held by
or on behalf of such Beneficiary. ‘

(d)  To the extent that, contrary to the provisions of this Section 2.8, any Beneficiary is held
personally liable as such to any other person in respect of any Trust Liabiliies, such
Beneficiary will be entitled to indermmity and reimbursement out of the Fund Property to
the full extent of such liability and for all costs of any litigation or other proceedings in
which such liability has been determined, inchiding, without limitation, all fees and
disbursereents of counsel. The rights accruing to a Beneficiary under this Subsection
2.8(d) do not exclude any other rights to which such Beneficiary may be lawfully
entitled, nor does anything herein contain restrict the right of the Trustee or the
Corporation to indemnify or reimbwrse a Beneficiary out of thc Fund Property in any
appropriate situation not specifically provided herein but, for greater certamty, neither the
Trustee nor the Corporation has any liability to rcimburse a Beneficiary for taxes
assessed against them by reason of or arising out of their ownership of Trust Units or
Other Fund Securities.

ARTICLE 3
CREATION, ISSUE AND SALE OF TRUST UNITS

3.1 Nature of Trust Units

(a) The beneficial interests in the Fumd shall be represented and constituted by a single class
of units described and designated as “Trust Units®, and cach Unitholder shall be entitled
to the rights and be subject to the hmitations, restrictions and conditions set out herein,
and the beneficial interest of cach such Unitholder shall be determined by the number of
Trust Units registered in the name of the Unitholder.

(b) Subject to Section 6.6, each Trust Unit represents an equal undivided beneficial interest
in any distribution from the Fund (whether of net income, net realized capital gains or
other amounts) and in any net assets of the Fund in the event of termination or winding-
up of the Fund. Al Trust Units shall rank among themselves equally and ratably without
discrimination, preference or priority. Bach Trust Unit shall entitle the holder of record
thereof to one vote at all meetings of Umitholders.

{c) The issued and ontstanding Trust Units may be subdivided or consolidated from time to

time, as determined in the discretion of the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the
Trustee).
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32 Special Voting Rights

(2) In addition to Trust Units, there may be issued an unlimited number of Special Voting
Rights. Except for the right to attend and vote at meetings of the Umitholders or in
respect of written resolutions of the Unitholders as set forth in Subsection 3.2(b), the
Special Voting Rights shall not confer upon the holders thercof any other rights; and for
greater certainty, the holders of Special Voting Rights shall not be cntitled to any interest
or share in the Fund, in any distributions of any nature whatsoever from the Fund or have
any beneficial interest in any assets of the trust on termination or winding-up of the Fund.
Special Voting Rights may be issued in series and will only be issued in connection with
or in relation to Exchangeable Securities as the Corporation {on behalf of the Fund and
the Trustee) may determine. A Special Voting Right will be issued together with, and
will be attached to, if the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) so
determines, each Exchangeable Security issued to which it relates, and will be evidenced
only by the certificates representing such Exchangeable Securities. Special Voting
Rights will not be transferable separately from the Exchangeable Securities to which they
are attached.

®) Bach Special Voting Right will entitle the holder of record thereof from time to time, as
shown on the Register, to attend and vote at meetings of Unitholders and to that number
of votes on a ballot vote at all meetings of Unitholders or in respect of any written
resolution of Unitholders that is equal to the number of Trust Units into which the
Exchangeable Security to which such Special Voting Right is attached is, directly or
indirectly, exchangeable or convertible. Any matter in this Trust Indenture which requires
the approval of Unitholders shall be construed to require the approval of Unitholders and
Special Rights Holders, voting together as a single class, at a single meeting of both
Unitholders and Special Rights Holders held in the marmner conternplated in Article 10.
Any provision in this Trust Indenture regarding notice to be provided to Unitholders,
including Article 16, shall apply equally to Special Rights Holders. Upon the exchange,
redemption or conversion of an Exchangeable Security for Trust Units, the Special
Voting Right that is attached to such Exchangeable Security will immediately be
cancelled without any further action of the Corporation or the Trustee, and the former
holder of such Special Voting Right will cease to have any rights with respect thereto.

(© Concurrently with the issnance of any Exchangeable Securities (and attached Special
Voting Rights), the Fund will enter into such agreements, including exchange and voting
agreements, as may be necessary or desirable properly to give cffect to the terms of the
Exchangeable Securities, including to provide for the voting of all attached Special
Voting Rights and the conversion, exercise, redemption or exchange of such
Exchangeable Securities in the event of an Offer (as defined in Section 3.10) for the Trust

Units as provided in Section 3.10.
33 Authorized Number of Trust Units-and Other Fund Securities

The aggregate mumber of Trust Units and Other Fund Securities which are authorized and may be
issued hereunder is unlimited.

3.4 Issue of Trust Units and Other Fund Securities

(a) Trust Units or Other Fund Securities may be created, issued, sold and delivered at the
times, to the persons, for the comsideration and on the terms and conditions that the
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Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustec) determines, including, subject to any
required regulatory approvals, pursuant to unitholder rights plans or incentive option or
other compensation plans and distribution reinvestment and trust unit purchase plans, and
the Corporation may enter into agreements or plans relating to the foregoing or amy
agrecment relating to Exchangeable Securities. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) may authorize the
Fund to pay a reasonable commission to any person in consideration of such person
purchasing or agrecing to purchase Trust Units or Other Fund Securities from the Fund or
from any other person or procuring or agreeing to procure purchasers for Trust Units or
Other Fund Securities or may allow discounts to persons in consideration of their
subscribing or agreeing fo subscribe, whether absolutely or conditionally, for Trust Units
or Other Fund Securities or of their agreeing to produce or obtain subscriptions therefor,
whether absolute or conditional

() Subject to allowable discounts {if any) provided to persons as consideration for
purchasing or agreeing to procure subscriptions for Trust Units, Trust Units are only to be
issued as fully paid and are not to be subject to fufure calls or assessments; provided
however, that Trust Units issued under any Offering subsequent to the Initial Offering
may be issued for a consideration payable in instalments and that the Fund may take
security over any Trust Units issued under any such Offering as security for unpaid
instalments and assign the benefit of all or part of such security.

(c)  The consideration for any Trust Unit shall be paid in money or in property (inchiding a
Promissory note) or in past services that are not less in value than the fair equivalent of
the money that the Fund would have received if the Trust Unit had been issued for
money.

There are no pre-emptive rights attaching to the Trust Units or the Special Voting Rights.
3.6 Re-Purchase of Initial Trust Unit by Fund

Immediately after the Closing, the Fund will purchase the initial Trust Unit from the Initial
Upitholder, and the Initial Unitholder shall sell the initial Trust Unit to the Fund for a purchase price of
$10.00, and upon the conpletion of such purchase and sale, the initial Trust Unit shall be cancelled and
shall no longer be outstanding for any of the purposes of this Trust Indenture,

3.7 Consolidation of Trust Units

Immediately after any pro rata distribution of additional Trust Units to Unitholders pursuant to
Subsection 5.7(a), the number of the outstanding Trust Units will be consolidated such that each
Utitholder will hold after the consolidation the same number of Trust Units as the Unitholder held before
the distribution of additional Trust Units. In this case, cach Unit Certificate representing a number of
Trust Units prior to the distribution of additional Trust Units is deemed to represent the same number of
Trust Units after the distribution of additional Trust Units and the consolidation. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, where tax is required to be withheld in respect of a Unitholder's share of the distribution, the
Pund shall withhold from the cash portion of such distribution, if any, or the Unitholder shall make a cash
payment to the Fund, of an amount equal to the amount of tax required to be remitted to the appropriate
taxation authority by the Fund, or, if such withholding cannot be made by the Fund or such payment is
not made by the Unitholder: {a) the consolidation of the Trust Units held by such Unitholder will result in

30702631.4
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such Unitholder holding that number of Trust Units equal to the mumber of Trust Units heid by such
Unitholder prior to the distribution minus the nurmber of Trust Units withheld on account of withholding
taxes payable by the Unitholder in respect of the distribution; and (b) the consolidation shall not apply to
any Trust Units so withheld. Any Trust Units so withheld shall either be delivered to the appropriate
taxation authority or sold, in which case the net proceeds shall be remitted to the appropriate taxation
authority. Such Unitholder will be required to swrrender the Unit Certificates, if any, representing such
Unitholder's original Trust Units, in exchange for a Unit Certificate representing such Unitholder's post-
consolidation Trust Units.

3.8 Mutual Fund Truost Status and Non-Resident Unitholders

It is in the best interest of Unitholders that the Fund always qualify as a "mutual fund trust" under
the Income Tax Act. Accordingly:

(a) in order to ensure that the Fund continues to qualify as a "mutual fimd trust"™:

@ the Fund shall not be established or maintained primarily for the benefit of non-
residents and it shall be the responsibility of the Corporation to monitor the
holdings by non-residents;

(i) notwithstanding any delegation of the powers of the Corporation to another
person, the Corporation shall and shall be entitled to take all such steps as are
necessary or desirable to ensure that the Fund is not established or mamtained
primarily for the benefit of non-residents;

b) the Corporation may, at any time and from time to time, make reasonable efforts, as
practicable in the circumstances, to obtain declarations as to beneficial ownership,
perform tesidency searches of holders of securities of the Fund and beneficial holder
mailing address lists and take such other steps specified by the Corporation, at the cost of
the Fund, to determine or estimate as best as is possible in the circumstances the
residence of the beneficial owners of securities of the Fund Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the Corporation may require any Unitholder as shown on the
register of Unitholders to provide a declaration, in such form prescribed by the
Corporation, as to the beneficial owner of Trust Units registered in such Unitholder's
name and to the jurisdiction in which such beneficial owner is resident;

(c) if at amy time the Corporation, in its sole discretion, determines that it is in the best
interest of the Fund, the Corporation, may:

@ requirc the Fund and the Transfer Agent to refuse to accept a subscription for
securities of the Fund from, or issue or register a transfer of securities of the Fund
to, a person unless the person provides a declaration to the Corporation and the
Transfer Agent that the securities of the Fund to be issued or transferred to such
person will not when issued or transferred be beneficially owned by a non-
resident;

(i) to the extent practicable in the circumstances, send a notice to registered holders
of securities of the Fund which are beneficially owned by non-residents, chosen
in inverse order to the order of acquisition or registration of such sccurities
beneficially owned by non-residents or in such other manmer as the Corporation
may consider equitable and practicable, requiring them to sell their securities of

3070263L.4
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the Fund which are beneficially owned by non-residents or a specified portion
thereof within a specified period of not less than 60 days or such shorter period
as may be required to preserve the status of the Fund as a mmtual fund trust imder
the Income Tax Act The Corporation may also refuse the issuance of Trust
Units to facilitate an exchange of Exchangeable Securities if to do so would
cause the Fund to lose its status as a mmtual fund trust under the Income Tax Act.
If the holders of securities of the Fund receiving such notice have not sold the
specified momber of such securities or provided the Corporation and the Transfer
Agent with satisfactory evidence that such securities are not beneficially owned
by nop-residents within such period, the Corporation may, on behalf of such
registered Unitholder, sell such securities and, in the interim and to the extent
applicable, suspend the voting and distribution rights attached to such securities
of the Fund and make any distribution in respect of such securities by depositing
such amount in a separate bank account in a Canadian chartered bank (net of any
applicable taxes). Any sale shall be made on any stock exchange on which the
applicable securities of the Fund are then listed or in such other manner in which
the Corporation shall determmne, and upon such sale, the affecied holders shall
cease to be holders of such securities so disposed of and their rights shall be
limited to Teceiving the net proceeds of sale, and any distribution in respect
thereof deposited as aforesaid, net of applicable taxes and costs of sale, upon
surrender of the Unit Certificates representing such securities;

(iti)  delist any listed securities of the Fund from any non-Canadian stock exchange;
and

(iv)  take such other actions as the Corporation determines, m its sole discretion, are
appropriate in the circumstances that will reduce or limit the number of securities

——————————pftheFund-held-by-moreresidentstoensure that-tire-Fund - Is ot -established or

(d)
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maintained primarily for the benefit of non-residents.

None of the Corporation, the Trustee or the Transfer Agent shall have any Hability for
amounts Teceived pursuant to sales of securities of the Fund made pursuant to Subsection
3.8(c)(il). The Trustee shall not be deemed to have notice of any violation of this Section
3.8 unless and until it has been provided with written notice of such violation. Except as
specifically set out herein, none of the Corporation, the Trustee or the Transfer Agent
shall be bound to do or take any proceeding or action with respect to this Section 3.8 by
virtue of the powers conferred on it under this Trust Indenture and the Trustee shail only
be required to act in respect of this Section 3.8 upon first being provided with a
satisfactory indermity from the Fund It is acknowledged that the ability of the
Corporation to monitor the non-resident ownership of the Trust Units will be limited due
to the fact that the Trust Units will be registered in the name of depositories and other
non-beneficial holders and in this regard, the Corporation shall be entitled to rely on
information respecting the residency of Umitholders provided to the Corporation by the
Transfer Agent and the Corporation may cxercise its discretion in making any
determination under this Section 3.8, and any reasonable and bona fide exercise of such
discretion shall be binding for the purpose of this Section 3.8. None of the Corporation,
the Trustee, the Transfer Agent or any of their respective directors, officers, employees or
agents, or any holder of Trust Units, shall be liable for a determipation that the Fund is
established or maintained primarily for the benefit of non-residents as a result of an
excess number of securities of the Fund being held by non-residents during the term of
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the Fund. The Trustee shall have no obligation to monitor beneficial ownership of Trust
Units or the Fund's status under the Income Tax Act.

(e) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Trust Indenture, unless determined otherwise
by the Corporation, non-residents, whether registered holders or beneficial holders of
securitics of the Fund, shall not be entitled to vote in respect of any Special Resolutions
to amend this Section 3.8.

3.9 Repurchase of Trust Units

The Fund shall be entitled to purchase, for cancellation or otherwise, at any time the whole or
from time to time any part of the outstanding Trust Units, at a price per Trust Unit and on a basis
determined by the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) in its discretion but in compliance
with all applicable sccurities laws, Tules, regulations or policies or the policies of any applicable stock
exchange, including purchases as may be necessitated as a result of subscribers in any Offering exercising
their statutory rights of withdrawal or rescission in respect of Trust Units acquired by them pursuant to
any document relating to an Offering.

3.10 Take-Over Bids
(a) In this Section 3.10:

® "Dissenting Unitholder" means a holder of Trust Units or Exchangeable
Securities who does not accept an Offer referred to in Subsection 3.10(c} and
includes any assignee of the Trust Unit or the Exchangeable Security of such
holder to whom such an Offer is made, whether or not such assignee is
recognized under this Indenture;

(1) "Offer" means an offer to acquire outstanding Trust Units and/or Exchangeable
Seccurities where, as of the date of the offer to acquire, the Trust Units and
Exchangeable Securities that are subject to the offer to acquire, together with the
Offeror's Trust Units and Exchangeable Securitics, constitute in the aggrepate
20% or more of all outstanding Trust Units and the Trust Units issuable upon the
conversion, exercise or exchange of the Exchangeable Securities;

(i)  "offer to acquire" includes an acceptance of an offer to sell;

(iv) "Offeror" means a person, or two or more persons acting jointly or in concert,
who make an Offer;

(v) "Offeror's Notice" means the notice described in Subsection 3.10(d); and

(vi) "Offeror's Units" means Trust Units and the Trust Units issuable upon the
conversion, excrcise or exchange of the Exchangeable Securities beneficially
owned, or over which control or direction is exercised, on the date of an Offer by
the Offeror, any affiliate or associate of the Qfferor or any person or commpany
acting jointly or in concert with the Offeror.

() If an Offer is made, any holder of Exchangeable Securities may, unless prohibited by the

termos and conditions of the Exchangeable Security, convert, cxcrcise or exchange such
Exchangeable Security, as applicable, for the purpose of tendering Trust Units to such

30702631.4
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Offer on the condition that such Trust Units are taken up under such Offer, unless an
identical Offer (in terms of price per Trust Unit issuable upon the conversion, exercise or
exchange of the Exchangeable Security and percentage of outstanding securities to be
taken up exclusive of securities owned immediately prior to the Offer by the Offeror, or
associates or affiliates of the Offeror and in all other material respects) is made
concurrently by the Offeror to purchase the Bxchangeable Securities, which identical
Offer has no condition attached other than the right not to take up and pay for securities
tendered if no securities are purchased pursuant to the Offer for Trust Units, If a holder
of Exchangeable Securities elects to conditionally convert, exercise or exchange such
Exchangeable Securities for the purpose of tendering Trust Units to such Offer, the
tendering of a certificate issued by the Fund indicating that the Trust Units are issuable
upon and subject to completion of the Offer shall be good delivery under such bid and
after payment of the consideration therefor to the former holder of the Exchangeable
Security such holder shall cease to have any rights as holder of Exchangeable Securities
or Trust Units to the extent that the Trust Units issuable upon the conversion, exercise or
exchange of such Exchangeable Securities have been taken up.

If an Offer for all of the outstanding Trust Units, Exchangeable Securities and/or Trust
Units issuable upon the conversion, exercise or exchange of the Exchangeable Securities
(other than such securities held by or on behalf of the Offeror or an affitiate or associate
of the Offeror) is made and:

)] within the time provided in the Offer for its acceptance or within 120 days after
the date the Offer is made, whichever period is the shorter, the Offer is accepted
by offerces representing at least 90% of the outstanding Trust Units and the Trust
Units issuable upon the conversion, exercise or exchange of the Exchangeable
Securities, other than the Offeror's Uniis;

(d
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{i) the Offeror is bound to take up and pay for, or has taken up and paid for the Trust
Units and the Exchangeable Securities of the offerees who accepted the Offer;
and

(ifi)  the Offeror complies with Subsections 3.10(d) and 3.10(f);

the Offerer is entitled to acquire, and the Dissenting Unitholders are required to sell to the
Offeror, the Trust Umts and the Exchangeable Securities held by the Dissenting
Unitholders for the same consideration payable or paid, as the case may be, under the
Offer.

Where an Offeror is entitled to acquire Trust Units and Exchangeable Securities held by
Dissenting Unitholders pursuant to Subsection 3.10(c), and the Offeror wishes to exercise
such right, the Offeror shall send by registered mail within 30 days after the date of
termination of the Offer a notice (the "Offeror's Notice") to each Dissenting Unitholder
stating that:

(i) offerees holding at least 90% of the outstanding Trust Units and the Trust Units
issuable upon the conversion, exercise or exchange of the Exchangeable
Securities, other than Offeror's Units, have accepted the Offer;



(®)

)

&

(&)

30702631.4

- 18 -

(it) the Offeror is bound to take up and pay for, or has taken up and paid for, the
Trust Units and the Exchangeable Securities of the offerees who accepted the
Offer;

(i)  Dissenting Unitholders must transfer their respective Trust Units and/or
Bxchangeable Securities to the Offeror on the terms on which the Offeror
acquired the Trust Units and the Exchangeable Securities of the offerees who
accepted the Offer within 21 days afier the date of the sending of the Offeror's
Notice; and

(iv)  Dissenting Unithoidcrs must send their respective Unit Certificate(s) and/or
certificate(s) evidencing the Exchangeable Secirities to the Fund within 21 days
after the date of the sending of the Offeror's Notice.

A Dissenting Unitholder to whom an Offeror's Notice is sent pursuant to Subsection
3.10(d) shall, within 21 days after the sending of the Offeror's Notice, send his or her
Unit Certificate(s) and/or certificate(s) evidencing the Exchangeablc Securities to the
Fund, duly endorsed for transfer.

Within 21 days after the Offeror sends an Offeror's Notice pursuant to Subsection
3.10(d), the Offeror shall pay or transfer to the Trustee, or to such other person as the
Trustee may direct, the cash or other consideration that is payable to Dissenting
Unitholders pursnant to Subsection 3.10(c).

The Trastee, or the person directed by the Trustee, shall hold in trust for the Dissenting
Unitholders the cash or other consideration it receives under Subsection 3.10(f). The
Trustee, or such person, shall deposit cash in a separate account in a Canadian chartered
bank, and shall place other consideration in the custody of a Canadian chartered bank or
sitoilar institution for safekeeping.

Within 30 days after the date of the scndﬁng of an Offeror's Notice pursuant to Subsection
3.10(d), the Trustee, if the Offeror has complied with Subsection 3.10(f), shall:

@ do all acts and things and execufe and cause to be executed all instrirnents as in
the Trustee's opinion may be necessary or desirable to canse the transfer of the
Trust Units and the Exchangeable Securities of the Dissenting Unitholders to the
Offerar;

(i) send to each Dissenting Unitholder who has complied with Subsection 3.10(¢)
the consideration to which such Dissenting Unitholder is entitled under this
Section 3.10; and

(i)  send to each Dissenting Unitholder who has not complied with Subsection
3.10(e) a notice stating that:

(A)  his or her Trust Units and Exchangeable Securities have been transferred
to the Offeror;

®) the Trustee or some other person designated in such notice are holding in
trust the consideration for such Trust Units and Exchangeable Securities;
and
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(C) the Trustes, or such other person, will send the consideration to such
Dissenting Unitholder as soon as practicable after receiving such
Dissenting Unitholder's Unit Certificate(s) and/or certificate(s)
evidencing the Exchangeable Securities or such other documents as the
Trustees, or such other person may require in lieu thereaf,

and the Trustee is hereby appointed the agent and attorney of the Dissenting Unitholders
for the purposes of giving effect to the foregoing provisions.

An Offeror cannot make an Offer for the Trust Units and/or the Exchangeable Securities
unless, concurrent with the communication of the Offer to any holder thereof, a copy of
the Offer is provided to the Fund.

The Fund shall cause the terms, conditions, restrictions, rights' and obligations of
Exchangeable Securitics to contain corresponding provisions as may be reasonably
necessary or desirable to give effect to this Section 3.10, including provisions to effect
the automatic conversion, excrcise or exchange of Bxchangeable Securities by a non-
tendering holder thereof.

ARTICLE 4
PURPOSE AND INVESTMENTS OF FUND

4.1 Purpose of the Fund

The purposes and activities of the Fund are restricted to:

@

acquiring, holding, transferring, disposing of, investing in, and otherwise dealing with
securities {whether debt or equity), rovaliies and notes_of whatever nature_or kind issued

®)

(¢}

(d)
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by the Commercial Trust, the Corporation or any associate or affiliate thereof (including
the CT Units and the Corporation Shares), or any other business entity in which the
Commercial Trust has an interest, direct or indirect, including the Business;

acquiring, holding, transferring, disposing of, investing in, and otherwise dealing with
Eligible Investments and Subsequent Investments (including, for greater certainty,
acquiring end holding additional limited partnership interests as a limited partner),

teroporarily holding cash and other short term investments in connection with and for the
purposes of the Fund's activities, incleding paying admunistration and trust expenses,
paying any amounts required in comnection with the redemption of Trust Units and
making distributions to Unitholders or payments o other securityholders of the Fund;

issuing Trust Units and Other Fund Securities for the purposes of:

(1) obtaining fimds to conduct the activities described above, whether directly or
indirectly by the Fund, the Commercial Trust, the Corporation, Alter LP or any
affiliate or associate thereof, including raising funds for further acquisitions;

(i) repayment of any indebtedness or borrowings of the Fund or its affiliates;
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(iii)  establishing and implementing unitholder rights plans, distribution reinvestment
plans, Trust Unit purchase plans, and incentive option and other compensation
plans, if any, established by the Fund; and

(iv)  making non-cash distributions to Unitholders as contemplated by this Trust

' Indenture including in specie Tedemptions pursuant to Axticle 6, and distributions
pursuant to distribution reinvestment or simlar plans, if any, established by the
Fund,

repurchasing or redeeming Trust Units or Other Fund Securities, subject to the provisions
of this Trust Indenture and applicable law;

guaranteeing the obligations of its affiliates pursuant to any debt for borrowed money or
any other obligation incurred by such entity in good faith for the purpose of carrying on
its business, and pledging securities and other property owned by the Fund as security for
any obligations of the Fund, including obligations under any such guarantec;,

granting security in any form, over any or all of the Fund Property to secure any or all of
the obligations of the Fund or its affiliates;

carrying out any of the transactions, and entering into and performing any of the
obligations of the Fund under any agreements contemplated by this Trust Indenture;

borrowing funds and issuing debt securities for the purposes, directly or indirectly, set
forth in Subsections 4.1(a} through 4.1¢h); and

engaging in all activitics ancillary or incidental to any of those activities set forth in
Subsections 4.1(a) through 4.1(i). '

4.2  Investment of Proceeds of Initial Offering

At and after the Closing Time, the Fund shall use the Net Proceeds of the Initial Offering to
subscribe for and purchase CT Units and Corporation Shares, each in amounts determined by the
Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) in its discretion.

4.3 Other Investments

@

®

e
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Monies or other property reccived by the Fund or the Trustee on behalf of the Fund,
ncluding the Net Proceeds of Offerings, may be uscd for any purpose not inconsistent
with this Trust Indenture, including: (3} to make Subsequent Investments; (i) to make
distributions and redemptions under Articles 5 and 6, respectively; (iii) to make payments
to other securityholders of the Fund; and (iv) to pay costs, fees and expenscs associated
therewith.

To the extent that any monies or other property received by the Fund or the Trustec is not
to be immediately used by the Fund in accordance with the terms hereof, the Trustee is
hereby authorized to, and where directed by the Corporation {on behalf of the Fund and
the Trustee) to do so, the Trustee shall, place such monies i an account with a frust
company or Schedule I chartered bank incorporated under the laws of Canada, or to
invest such monies or property, at the direction of the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund
and the Trustee) in the following ("Eligible Investments"): (i} obligations issued or
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guaranteed by the Government of Canada or a Province of Canada or any agency or
instrumentality thereof; (ii) short term commercial paper obligations of a corporation
whose short term commercial paper is rated R-1 or higher by Dominion Bond Rating
Service Limited or A-1 or higher by Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hilt
Companies, Inc.; or (iif) term deposits, interest bearing accounts, certificates of deposit or
banker's acceptances of, or guaranteed by, one of the six largest (in terms of total assets)
Canadian chartered banks. For the purpose hereof, "short term" shall mean having a date
of maturity or call for payment not more than 60 days from the date on which the
investment is made.

4.4 Investment Restrictions

The Corporation shall exercisec commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that the Fund complies
at all times’ with the requirements of paragraph 108(2)(a) and subsection 132(6) of the Income Tax Act,
and that under no circumstances shall the Fund acquire or retain any investment that would result in the
Fund not being considered either a "unit trust" or a "mutual fimd trust” for purposes of the Income Tax
Act. The Corporation shall provide written notice fo the Trustee if there is a reasonable probability that
the Pund will cease to be a "unit trust” and a "mutual fund trust”, each for purposes of the Income Tax
Act. For greater certainty, the Fund shall also comply with the provisions of Sections 3.8 and 8.11 with
respect to the matters described therein. For greater certainty, except as otherwise expressly stated herein,
the Trustee shall have no obligation to monitor, or take any action with respect to, the Fund's status under
the Income Tax Act.

ARTICLE 5§
DISTRIBUTIONS

5.1 Computation of Distributable Cash Flow of the Fund

The "Distributable Cash Flow" for or in respect of a Distribution Period shall be equal to:

(a) all cash amounts which are received by the Fund for and in respect of such Distribution
Period including amounts on account of interest, income, royalties, distributions,
dividends, returns of capital, amounts declared to be payable on CT Units, interest
payments and principal repayments on Notes held by the Fund that will be paid on or
prior to the Distribution Payment Date in respect of such Distribution Period and such
other amounts as may be determined from time to time by the Trustee or the Corporation
(on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) to be included in "Distributable Cash Flow",
provided that, for greater certainty, the proceeds of any issuance of Trust Units or any
other securities of the Fund, and the expenses of such distributions of securities of the
Fund, shalil not be inchuded in the calculations of Distributable Cash Flow in respect of
any Distribution Period;

less:

(b} all liabilities of the Fund which, in the opinion of the Trustee or the Corporation (on
behalf of the Fund and the Trustee), may reasonably be considered to have accrued and
" become owing in Tespect of, or which relate to, such Distribution Period or a prior
Distribution Period if not accrued in such prior period including any interest payable by

the Fund on any indebtedness of the Fund;

30702631.4
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the aggregate amount of all Cash Redemption Prices in respect of the redemption of Trust
Units during such Distribution Period multiplicd by the applicable number of Trust Units;

all amonnts which relate to the repayment of the principal amount of any indebtedness of
the Fund during such Distribution Period (net of any such amounts that have been
refinanced during such Distribution Period);

amy amount, in addition to those amounts set forth in Subsections 5.1(b), 5.1(c) and
5.1(d), which the Trustee or the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) may
reasonably consider to be necessary to provide for the payment of any Labilities which
have been or will be incurred by the Fund, including any tax liability of the Fund (to the
extent that such liabilities have not otherwise been taken into account in determining the
Distributable Cash Flow hereunder); and

an amount as determined in the discretion of the Trustee or the Corporation (on bebalf of
the Fund and the Trustee), for reasonable reserves, provided that, unless the consent of
the Directors is obtained, reserves shall not be maintained by the Fund except for the
purpose of satisfying payment of amy of the amounts or labilities referred to in
Subsections 5.1(b), 5.1(c), 5.1{d) and 5.1(€).

5.2 Computation of Income and Net Realized Capital Gains

(a)

®)

(c)
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The “Income of the Fund" for any year shall be the income of the Fund for the ycar
computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act; provided, however,
that capital gains and capital losses shall be excluded and provided further that:

@) the portion of the Fund's income comprised of taxable dividends recetved from
corporations resident in Canada shall be calculated on the basis that the amount
included in the Fund's income is the actual amount of the dividend received,
which excludes the gross-up adjustment provided in paragraph 82(1)(b) of the
Income Tax Act; and

(id) no amount is deductible in respect of amounts paid or payable to Unitholders.

The "Net Realized Capital Gains" of the Fund for any particular year shall be
determiined as the amount, if any, by which the aggregate of the capital gains of the Fund
in the particular year cxceeds the aggregate of the capital losses of the Fund in the year
and the amount of any net capital losses for prior years which the Fund is permitted by
the Income Tax Act to deduct in computing the taxable income of the Fund for the
particular year.

Notwithstanding Subsections 5.2(a) and 5.2(b), Income of the Fund and Net Realized
Capital Gains shall not include any income ("Redemption Income™) or capital gains
("Redemption Gains"), respectively, which are realized by the Pund, in accordance with
the Income Tax Act, on a distribution of Fund Property to a Unitholder pursuant to an in
specie Tedemption of the Unitholder's Trust Units under Section 6.6, or as a result of a
redemption of CT Units which is necessary in order to effect such in specie redemption
pursuant to Section 6.6.
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53 Monthly Distributions of Distributable Cash Flow

The Corporation, on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee, shall, in respect of each Distribution
Period, declare payable to the holders of Trust Units of record as at the close of business on the
Distnibution Record Date for such Distribution Period, all or any part of the Distributable Cash Flow for
such Distribution Period For clarity, the Corporation, on behalf of the Fumd and the Trustee, may
determine that none of the Distributable Cash Flow for a Distribution Period is to be declared payable to
such holders of Trust Units. Each Trust Unit's proportionate share of the amount of such Distributable
Cash Flow which is declared payable to holders of Trust Units shall be determined by dividing the
amount of such Distributable Cash Flow by the number of issued and outstanding Trust Units on such
Distribution Record Date. The share of such Distributable Cash Flow distributable to each holder of
Trust Units shall be an amount equal to each Trust Unit's proportionate share of such Distributable Cash
Flow mmltiplied by the number of Trust Units owned of record by such Unitholder on such Distribution
Record Date. Subject to Section 5.7, Distributable Cash Flow which has been declared to be payable to
Unitholders in respect of a Distribution Period shall be paid in cash on the Distribution Payment Date
which immediately follows such Distribution Record Date.

5.4 Other Distributions

(a) In addition to the distributions which are made payable to Unitholders pursuant to
Section 5.3, the Corporation, on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee, may, in its sole
discretion, in respect of a Distribution Period, declare a -distribution to be payable fo
holders of Trust Units of record as at the close of business on the Distribution Record
Date for such Distribution Period, out of Income of the Fund, Net Realized Capital Gains,
the capital of the Fund or otherwise, in any year, in such amount or amounts, and on such
dates as the Corporation may determine.

b} 5 o-as-to-ensure-the-allecation-and-distributien,—te-helders-of-Trust-Umts-of-al-of-the ———————

Income of the Fund, Net Realized Capital Gains and any other applicable amoumnts so that
the Fund will not have any liability for tax under the Income Tax Act in any year, the
amount, if any, by which the Income of the Fund and Net Realized Capital Gains exceed
the aggregate of:

(1) such part of the taxable capital gains of the Fund for the calendar year required to
be retained by the Fund to maximmze its capital gains refund for such year, unless
the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) determines, and has

. given written notice to the Trustee, that this Subsection 5.4(b)(i) is not to apply to
the Fund for that year by the end of the year; and

(i1 any amount that became payable by the Fund during the calendar year to
Unitholders on the Trust Units (other than amounts that became payable to
Unitholders on the rederoption of their Trust Units),

shall, without army further actions on the part of the Trustee or the Corporation, be payable
to holders of Trust Units of record as of the close of business on the last Distribution
Record Date in such year.

() Bach Trust Unit's proportionate share of the amount of any distribution made pursuant to
cither or both of Subsections 5.4(a) or 5.4(b) shall be determined by dividing such
amount by the mumber of issued and outstanding Trust Units as at the close of business
on the applicable distribution date in respect of a distribution pursuant to Subsection
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5.4(a) and as at the close of business on the last Distribution Record Date in the year in
respect of a distribution pursuant to Subsection 5.4(b). The share of the amount of any
such distribution distributable to each holder of Trust Units shall be an amount equal to
each Trust Unit's proportionate share of such amount multiplied by the number of Trust
Units owned of record by each such Unitholder on such applicable distribufion record
date. Subject to Section 5.7, amounts which have been declared to be payable to
Unitholders pursuant to either or both of Subsections 5.4(a) or 5.4(b) shall be paid in
cash, or such other property as the Carporation {on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee)
may determine, on the distribution payment date which immediately follows the
applicable distribution record date in respect of a distribution pursuant to Subsection
5.4(a) or Subsection 5.4(b).

(d) In addition to the distributions which are made payable to Unitholders under Sections 5.3
and 5.4, the Fund shall allocate any Redermption Income and Redemption Gains realized
by the Fund in connection with the redemption of Trust Units of a particular Unitholder
pursuant to Section 6.6, to that Unitholder, so that an amount equal to such Redemption
Income and Redemption Gains shall be allocated to and shall be treated as an amount
paid to the redeeming Unitholder. In addition, one-half (or any other proportion that may
be provided for from time to time under section 38 of the Income Tax Act) of such
Redemption Gains shall be designated as taxable capital gains of that Unitholder under
subsection 104(21) of the Income Tax Act, and any portion of the Redemption Income
and Redemption Gains in respect of that Unitholder as may be income from a source in a
country other than Canada, within the meaning of subsection 104(22} of the Income Tax
Act, shall be designated as that Unitholder's income from that source in accordance with
that subsection.

5.5 Character of Distribution and Designation

In accordance with and to the extent permitted by the Income Tax Act, the Corporation, on behalf
of the Trustee, in each year shall make designations in respect of the amounts payable to holders of Trust
Units for such amounts that the Corporation considers to be reasonable in the circumstances, including,
without limitation, designations relating to taxable dividends received by the Fund in the year on shares of
taxable Canadian corporations (or designated in respect of the Fund where the Fund is a beneficiary of
another trust), net capital gains realized by the Fund in the year (or designated in respect of the Fund
where the Fund is a beneficiary of another trust) and foreign source income of the Fund for the year, as
well as elect under subsections 104(13.1) and/or (13.2) of the Income Tax Act that income be taxed at the
Fund level, rather than in the hands of Unitholders. Distributions payable to holders of Trust Units
pursuant to this Article 5 shall be deemed to be distributions of Income of the Fund, Net Realized Capital
Gains, trust capital or other items in such amounts as the Corporation {(on behalf of the Fund and the
Trustee) shall, in its absolute discretion, deterrmine. For greater certainty, it is hereby declared that any
distribution of Net Realized Capital Gains shall include the non-taxable portion of the capital gains of the
Fund which are encompassed in such distribution.

5.6 Enforceabllity of Right to Receive Distributions
For greater certainty, it is hereby declared that each holder of Trust Units shall have the legal
right to enforce payment of any amount payable to such holder of Trust Units as a result of any

distribution or amount which becomes payable to such holder of Trust Units pursuant to this Article 5 as
of the date such amount becomes so payable.
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5.7 Method of Payment of Distributions

(a) The Fund shall make payment, in cash or other property, where applicable, of
distributions which have been declared to be payable pursuant to this Article, provided
that where the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) determines that the
Fund does not have cash in an amount sufficient to make payment of the full amount of
any distribution which has been declared to be payable pursuant to this Article on the due
date for such payment, the payment may, at the option of the Corporation, inchude the
issuance of additional Trust Units, or fractions of Trust Units, if necessary, having an
aggregate value equal to the difference between the amount of such' distribution and the
amount of cash which has been determmined by the Corporation to be available for the
payment of such distribution.

(b} The value of each Trust Unit which is issued pursuant to Subsection 5.7(a) shall be the
"market price” (as defined in Section 6.3) of the Trust Unit on the applicable Distribution
Record Date in respect of a distribution pursuant to Section 5.3, Subsection 5.4{a) or
Subsection 5.4(b), provided that if the particular date is not a Business Day then the
"market price" (as defined in Section 6.3) shall be determined on the last Business Day
which precedes such particular date.

5.8 Withholding Taxes

The Trustee shall deduct or withhald from distributions payable to any Unitholder (including any
amounts which the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) directs the Trustee to so deduct or
withhold) all amounts required by law to be withheld from such distributions.

59 Income Tax Matters

In reporting income for income tax purposes the Fund shall claim the maximum amount available
to it as deductions under the relevant law, unless the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee)
determines otherwise.

ARTICLE 6
REDEMPTION

6.1 Right of Redemption by Holders of Trust Units

Each holder of Trust Units shall be entitled to require the Fund to redeem at any time or from
time to time at the demnand of the holder all or amy part of the Trust Units Tegistered in the name of the
holder at the price, with respect to each Trust Unit so redeemed, as determined and payable in accordance
with the conditions. hereinafter provided For greater certainty, it is hereby declared that each holder of
Trust Units shall have the legal right to enforce payment of ary amount payable to such holder of Trust
Units pursuant to this Article 6.

. 6.2 Exercise of Redemption Right

To exercise a Unitholder's right to require redemption under this Article 6, a duly coropleted and
properly executed notice requiring the Fund to redeem Trust Units (a "Redemption Notice"), in a form
reasonably acceptable to the Corporation, shall be sent to the Fund at the head office of the Fund or any of
the principal offices of the Transfer Agent at which it has agreed to act as registrar for Trust Units,
together with any Unit Certificate or Unit Certificates representing the Trust Units to be redeemed and

307026314



- 26 -

written instructions as to the number of Trust Units to be redeemed No form or manner of completion or
execution of a Redemption Notice shalfl be sufficient unless the same is in all respects satisfactory to the
Corporation and is accompanied by any further cvidence that the Corporation or the Transfer Agent may
reasonably require with respect to the identity, capacity or amthority of the person giving such
Redemption Notice.

Upon the tender of Trust Units of a holder for redemption, the holder shall cease to have any
rights with tespect to the Trust Units tendered for redemption (other than to receive the Cash Redemption
Price or in specie Redenmption Price therefor, as the case may be) including the right to receive amy
distributions thereon which are declared payable to the holders of record on a date which is subsequent to
the date upon which the Trust Units of the Unitholder have been tendered for redemption. Trust Units
shall be considered to be tendered for redemption on the date the Fund has, to the satisfaction of the
Corporation, received the notice, Unit Certificates, if any, the written instructions as to the mumber of
Trust Units to be redeemed and all other required documents or evidence as aforesaid.

6.3 Cash Redemption Price

Subject to Section 6.5, upen the tendering for redemption of Trust Units in accordance with
Section 6.2, the holder of the Trust Units tendered for redemption shall be entitled to receive a price per
Trust Unit (hereinafter called the "Cash Redemption Price”) equal to:

(2) if the Trust Units are listed for trading or quoted on amy stock exchange or similar
market, the lesser of’

)] 90% of the "market price" of the Trust Units on the date on which the Trust Units
were tendered for redernption; and

(ii) the "closing market price” of the Trust Units on the date that the Trust Units were
tendered for redemption; or ‘

®) if the Trust Units are not listed for trading or quoted on any stock exchange or similar
market, the greater of:

)] the fair market value of the Trust Units as deterrmined by the Corporation (on
behalf of the Fund and the Trustee); and

(i1) $0.40 per Unit.

For the purposes of Subsection 6.3(a)(i), the "market price” of the Trust Units shall be an
amount equal to the arithmetic average of the daily volume weighted average trading prices of Trust Units
traded on the principal exchange on which Trust Units arc listed during the period of the last ten trading
days during which at least a board lot of Trust Units were traded on such exchange or market immediately
prior to the date on which the Trust Units were tendered for redemption.

For the purposes of Subsection 6.3(a)(i), "closing market price" shall be: (i) an amount equal to
the closing price of the Trust Units on the principal exchange on which Trust Units are listed if there was
a trade on the date on which the Trust Units were tendered for redersption, and the exchange or market
provides a closing price; (i) an amount equal to the average of the highest and lowest prices of Trust
Units on the principal exchange on which Trust Units are listed if there was trading on the date on which
the Trust Units were tendered for redemption and the exchange or other market provides only the highest
and lowest trading prices of Trust Units traded on a particular day; or (iii) the average of the last bid and
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last ask prices on the principal exchange on which Trust Units are listed if there was no trading on the
date on which the Trust Units were tendered for redemption.

" For the purposes hereof, the principal exchange or principal market on which Trust Units are
listed or quoted for trading shall be the exchange or market on which the greatest volume of Trust Units
were traded during the relevant period or, if such is not deternuinable, the exchange or market designated
by the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) in its absolute discretion. If the principal
exchange or tmarket on which the Trust Units are listed or quoted for trading was not open for trading on
* the date on which the Trust Units were tendered for redermption, then the reference date shall be the last
day on which such principal exchange or market was open for trading.

In determining the fair market value of Trust Units tendered for redcmpuon, the Corporation {on
behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) may take imto consideration any factors considered relevant by i,
including, but not limited to, prior trades or transfers of Trust Units and prices paid by buyers of Trust
Units (if any, and fo the extent known to the Corporation), any valuation of Trust Units that may have
been prepared (provided that, for greater certainty, the Corporation shall have no obligation fo prepare or
commission any such valuation), the financial condition and results of the Trust and the assets and
Habilities of the Trust

6.4 Payment of Cash Redemption Price

Subject to Section 6.5, the Cash Redemption Price payable by the Fund in respect of the Trust
Units tendered for redemption during any month shall be paid by wire transfer or by cheque, drawn on a
Canadian chartered bank or trust company in lawful money of Canada, payable to or to the order of the
Unitholder who exercised the right of redemption within 60 days after the end of the calendar month in
which the Trust Units were tendered for redemption. Payments made by the Fund of the Cash
Redemption Price are conclusively deemed to have been made upon the receipt of the wire transfer or the

mailing-of-a-cheque-in-a-postage-prepaid-envelopeaddressed-to-the-former-Unitholder-at-its-last-address
appearing on the Registers unless such cheque is dishonoured upon presentment. Upon such payment, the
Fund shall be discharged from all lLiability to the former Unitholder in respect of the Trust Units so
redeemed.

6.5 No Cash Redemption in Certain Circumstances

Section 6.4 shall not be applicable to Trust Units tendered for redexnption by a Unitholder if the
total amount payable by the Fund pursuant to Section 6.3 in respect of Such Trust Units and all other
Trust Units tendered for redemption prior thereto in the same calendar month and in the immediately
preceding calendar month exceeds $30,000; provided that the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the
Trustee) may, in its sole discretion, waive such limitation in respect of any calendar month.

6.6 In Specie Redemption

(a) If, pursuant to Section 6.5, Section 6.4 is not applicable to Trust Units surrendered for
redemption by a Unitholder, then such Unitholder shall, instead of the Cash Redemption
Price per Trust Unit specified in Section 6.3, be entitled to receive a price per Trust Unit
(hercinafter called the "In specle Redemption Price") equal to the fair market value of a
Trust Unit as determined by the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee), in
its discretion, and the in specie Redemption Price shall, subject to all necessary
regulatory approvals, be paid and satisfied by way of a distribution in specie of Fund
Property (other than CT Units or Corporation Shares) or Redemption Notes, as
determined in the discretion of the Corporation. In the event of distributions of
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Redemption Notes, cach Redemption Note so distributed to the redeeming Unitholder
shall be in the principal amount of $100. No fractional Redemption Notes shall be
distributed and where the number of Redemption Notes to be received upon redemption
by a Unitholder would otherwise include a fraction, that number shall be rounded to the
next lowest whole number.

®) The in specie Redemption Price payablc in respect of Trust Units tendered for
rederaption during any month shall, subject to compliance with applicable securities laws
and receipt of any necessary regulatory approvals, be paid by the transfer, to or to the
order of the Unitholder who exercised the right of redemption, within 60 days afier the
end of the calendar month following the calendar month in which the Trust Units were
tendered for redemption, of Fund Property determined as aforesaid. In respect of any
Fund Property being transferred in payment of the in specie Redemption Price, the Fund
shall be entitled to all interest paid or accrued and umpaid in respect of such Fund
Property (including on any instruments on which interest is accruing), to and including
the date of transfer thereof. Payments by the Fund of the in specie Redemption Price are
conclusively deemed to have been made upon the mailing of the documents evidencing
ownership of the property so distributed by registered mail in a postage prepaid envelope
addressed to the former Unitholder at its last address appearing on the Registers. Upon
such payment, the Fund shall be discharged from all lability to the former Unitholder in
respect of the Trust Unifs so redeemed.

(c) Where the Fund makes a distribution in specie of securities of the Commercial Trust or
other securities or assets on a redemption of Trust Units pursuant to this Section 6.6, the
Corporation (on behaif of the Fund and the Trustee) may, in its sole discretion, designate
as payable to the redeeming Unitholders as part of the in specie Redemption Price any
capital gain or income realized by the Fund as a result of the distribution of such
securities to the Unitholder. :

(d Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Trust Indenture, if the Fund
has, pursuant to Section 4.1, granted security on any of its assets, then such assets may be
distributed directly or indirectly (inchiding via another enfity) in such manner as is
considered appropriate by the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) so as
to preserve such security interest while giving redeeming Unitholders directly or
indirectly the pro rata interest to which they are entitled

6.7 Cancellation of Certificates for all Redeemed Trust Units

AN Unit Certificates representing Trust Units which are redeemed under this Article 6 shall be
cancelled and such Trust Units shall no longer be outstanding.

6.8 Retraction of Special Voting Rights

At such Hime as no Bxchangeable Sccurities (other than Exchangeable Securities owned by the
Fund and its affiliates) rclating to Special Voting Rights are outstanding, and no shares of stock, debt,
options or other securities or agreements which could give rise to the issuance of any such Bxchangeable
Securities to any person (other than the Fund and its affiliates) exist, the applicable Special Voting Rights
shall automatically be redeemed by the Fund and cancelled. Upon any such redemption or other purchase
or acquisition of a Special Voting Right by the Fund, such Special Voting Right shall be deemed retired
and cancelled and may not be reissued.
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6.9 Withholding by the Fund

The Trustee may deduct or withhold from all payments or other distributions payable to any

* Unitholder pursuant to this Article 6 (including any amounts which the Corporation (on behalf of the

Fund and the Trustee) directs the Trustee to so deduct or withhold) all amounts required by law to be so
withheld. .o .

ARTICLE 7
TRUSTEE

7.1 Number and Term

There shall be one Trustee of the Fund.  The Initial Trustee is hereby appointed as the Trustee on
the date hereof. The term of office of the Trustee commences from the date on which its election or
appointment becomes effective and shall confinue until the earlier of the date of the termination of the
Fund, the cffective date of the Trustec's resignation in accordance with Section 7.4, the effective date of
the removal of the Trustee by the Unitholders in accordance with Section 7.4, or the effective date of the
removal of the Trustee by the Corporation in accordance with Section 7.4.
7.2 Qualifications of the Trustee

The Trustee shall be a body corporate which shall at all tirnes during which it is the Trustee:

(0) be incorporated under the laws of Canada or of a province thereof;

(b) be resident in Canada for the purposes of the Income Tax Act; and
(c) be authorized and registered unchtbs_lam_Qﬂlhc_Emcc_of_AIhma_m.carqwnihc____

business of a trust company.
73 Election of the Trustee

The Trustee shall be elected by Ordinary Resolution (other than the appointment of the Initial
Trustee as Trustee upon the execution of this Trust Indenturc who shall remain the Trustee unless
removed in accordance with Section 7.4). The election or appointment of a Trustee (other than the
appointment of the Initial Trustee as Trustee upon the execution of this Trust Indenture) shall not become
effective unless and until such person has, either before or after such election or appomtment, executed
and delivered to the Fund an acceptance substantially as follows:
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"lo:  Alter Nrg Income Fund (the "Fund")
And to: Alter Nrg Ltd., as Administrator of the Fund

The undersigned hereby accepts its election or appointment as the Trustee of the Fund and hereby
agrees, upon the later of the date of this acceptance and the date of the undersigned's election or
appointment as the Trustee of the Fund, to thereby become a party, as the Trustee, to the Trust
Indenture made as of April 28, 2006, as amended from time to time, constituting the Fund and to
act as Trustee of the Fund pursuant thereto. .

Dated:

[Print Name]

[Signature]”

Upon the later of a person being elected or appointed as the Trustee hereunder and executing and
delivering to the Fund an acceptance substantially as set forth above, such person shall become the
Trustee hereunder and shall be deemed to be a party (as the Trustee) to this Trust Indenture, as amended

from time to time.

An act of the Trustee is valid notwithstanding an irregularity in the ¢lection or appointment of the
Trustee or a defect in the qualifications thereof.

7.4 Resignation and Removal of the Trustee

{a) The Trustee may resign its trust herennder by giving to the Corporation not less than 50
days' prior written notice of such resignation.

) The Trustee may be removed at any time with or without cause by Ordinary Resolution
passed in favour of the removal of the Trustee. The Trustee may also be removed at any
time by the Carporation (on behalf of the Fund) by notice in writing to the Trustee if, at
any time:

(i) the Trustee no longer satisfies all the requirements of Section 7.2;

(i) the Trustee shall be declared bankrupt or insolvent ar shall enter into liquidation,
whether compulsory or voluntary, to wind up its affairs;

(i)  all of the assets of the Trustee, or a substantial part thereof, shall become subject
to seizure or confiscation; or

(iv)  the Trustee shall otherwise become incapable of performing its responsibilities
_under this Trust Indenture.

(c) Any resignation or removal pursuant to Subsection 7.4(a) or 7.4(b) shall take effect on
the earlier of: (i) 90 days after the date notice of such resignation is duly given, such

Ordinary Resolution is approved, or such notice of the Corporation is given, as the case
may be; and (i) the date a successor Trustee is appointed or elected and such successor
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Trustee has legally and vahd]y assumed all obligations of the Trustee rclatcd hereto in the
same capacities as the resigning Trustee.

{d) If no successor Trustee has been appointed or ¢lected within 60 days of: (i) the Trustec's
notice of resignation under Subsection 7.4(a); (ii) the approval of the Ordinary Resohition
referred to n Subsection 7.4(b); or (iii) the giving of notice by the Corporation to remove
the Trustee under Subsection 7.4(b), as the case may be, any Unitholder, the Trustee (at
the expense of the Fund), the Corporation or any other interested person may apply to a
court of competent jurisdiction for the appointrent of a successor trustee.

(e) Upon the resignation or removal of the Trustee becoming effective, or the Trustee
otherwise ceasing to be the Trustee, the Trustee shall:

(1) ccase to have rights, privileges, powers and autharities of a Trustee hereunder
and be released from the performance of its duties and obligations as Trustee
bereunder and any liabilities for ceasing such performance;

(ii) execute and deliver such documents as the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund)
shall reasonably require for the conveyance, to a successor Trustee, of any Fund
Property held in the Trustee's name, and shall provide for or facilitate the
transition of the Fund's activities and affairs to such successor Trustee; and

(iii)  account fo the Corporation as the Corporation may require for all property,
inclading the Fund Property, which the Trustee held or then holds as Trustee.

(H Upon the Trustee ceasing to hold office as such hereunder, the Trustee shall cease to be a
party (as a Trustee) to this Trust Indenture provided, however, that such Trustee shall
continne to be entitled to payment of any amounts-owing by-the-Fund-to-the-Frustee——————

which accrued prior to its vacating of the office of Trustee; and provided further that such
Trustee and each of its directors, officers, employees, shareholders and agents shall
continue to be entitled to the benefit of any indemmity and limitation of Hability
provisions which are expressly set out herein and by their terms are for the benefit of the
obligations of the Trustee and its directors, officers, employees, sharcholders and agents
(as the case may be).

& The resignation or removal of the Trustee, or the Trustee otherwise ceasing to be the
Trustee, shall not affect any obligations or Habilities of the Trustee in respect of or in any
way arising under or out of the Trust Indenture which have accrued prior to the taking
effect of any such resignation, removal or termination.

7.5 Vacancies

No vacanéy of the office of the Trustee shall operate to armul this Trust Indenture or affect the
continuity of the Fund

7.6 Successor and Additional Trustee
The rights of the Trustee, subject to the terms hereof, to control and exclusively administer the
Fund (subject to the Indenture Conferred Duties) and to have the title to the Fund Property drawn up in its

name and all other rights of the Trustee at law shall vest automatically in any person who may hereafter
become the Trustee upon its due election or appaintment and qualification, in accordance with the terms
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hereof, without any further act and it shall thereupon have all the rights, privileges, powers, authorities,
obligations and immunities of the Trustee hereunder. Such rights shall vest in the Trustee whether or not
conveyancing or transfer documents have been executed and delivered pursuant to Section 7.4 or
otherwise.

7.7 Compensation and Other Remuneration
The Trustee shall be entitled to receive for its services as Trustee:

(s) such reasonable compensation as shall be negotiated between the Trustee and the
Corporation on behalf of the Fund;

() reimbursement of the Trustee's out-of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred in acting as
-the Trustee; and '

(c) fair and reasonable remuneration for services rendered to the Fund in any other capacity,
which services may include services as the Transfer Agent for the Fund or any Trust
Units.

The Trustee shall, in respect of amounts payable or reimbursable to the Trustee pursnant to this
Section 7.7, Section 8.9 or Section 12.2, have a priority over distributions to Unitholders pursuant to
Article 5 or Section 11.6.

ARTICLE 8
TRUSTEE'S POWERS AND DUTIES

8.1 General Powers

The Trustee, subject only to the specific limitations and grant of powers to the Corporation
contained in this Trust Indenture, shall have, without further or other action or consent, and free from any
power of control on the part of the Unitholders, full, absolute and exclusive power, control and authority
over the Fund Property and over the affairs of the Fund to the same extent as if the Trustee were the sole
and absolute beneficial owmer of the Fund Property in its own right, to do all such acts and things as in ifs
sole judgement and discretion are necessary or incidental to, or desirable for, carrying out the trust created
hereunder.

In construing the provisions of this Trust Indenture, presumption shall be in favour of the granted
powers and authority to the Trustee. The enumeration of any specific power or authority herein
(including pursuant to Section 8.2) shall not be construed as limiting the general powers or authority or
any other specified power or authority conferred herein on the Trustee.

To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Trustee shall, in carrying out investment activities,
not be in any way restricted by the provisions of the laws of any jurisdiction limiting or purporting to
limit investments which may be made by trustees.

8.2 Specific Powers and Authorities
In addition to amy and all other power and authority conferred on the Trustee by this Trust
Indenture (inchiding Section 8.1), which the Trustec may have by virtue of any present or future law or

which may be authorized by Ordinary or Special Resolution from time to time, and in addition to the
grant and delegation of powers and authorities to the Corporation in this Trust Indenture (including
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pursuant to Article 13), but subject to Section 8.7 and any other express limitations contained in this Trust
Indenture, the Trustee without any action or consent by the Unithelders shall have and may exercise at
any time and from time to time the following powers and authoritics which may be exercised by it or
delegated by it, as herein provided, in its sole judgement and discretion and in such manner and upon such
terms and conditions as it toay from time to time deem proper:

() to open, operatc and closc accounts and other similar credit, deposit and banking
arrangements and to negotiate and sign banking and financing contracts and agreements;

{b) to borrow money upon the credit of the Fund and the Fund Property;

(c) to temporarily hold cash and other short term investments in connection with and for the
purposes of the Fund's activities, imcluding as provided in Article 4;

(d) to pay administration and frust expenses;
(e) to pay anmy amounts required in connection with the redemption of Trust Units;
§3] to pay distributions to Unitholders and payments to other securityholders of the Fund;

(2 without limit as to amount, issue any type of debt securities or convertible debt securities
and to borrow money or incur any other form of indebtedness for the purpose of carrying
out the purposes of the Fund or its affiliates and associates or for other expenses incurred
in connection with the Fund and to enter into hedging arrangements with respect thereto
and for such purposes may draw, make, execute and issue promissory notes and other
negotiable and non-negotiable instruments or securities and evidences of indebtedness,
securc the payment of sums so borrowed or indebtedness incwrred and mortgage, pledge,
assign or grant a security interest in_any money owing to the Pund or-in-the-Fund —

Property or engage in any other means of financing the Fund,

(h) to give a guarantee on behalf of the Fund to secure performance of an obligation of
another person,

@ to mortgage, hypothecate, pledge or otherwise create a security interest in all or any
movable or personal, immovable or real or other property of the Fund, owned or
subsequently acquired, to secure any obligation of the Fund,

)] to obfain security, including encumbrances on assets, to secure the full payment of
monies owed to the Fund and the performance of obligations in favowr of the Fund, and
to exercise all of the rights of the Fund, and to perform all of the obligations of the Fund,
under such security;

(k) to renew or extend or participate in the renewal or extension of any security, upon such
terms as may be deemed advisable, and to agree to a reduction in the rate of interest on
any security or to any other modification or change in the terms of any security or of any
guarantee pertaiming thereto, in any manner and to any extent that it may deem advisable;
and to waive any default whether in performance of any covenant or condition of any
security, or in the performance of any guarantee or to enforce the rights in respect of any
.such default in such manner and to such extent that it may deem advisable;
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to exercise and enforce any and all rights of foreclosure, to bid on property on sale or
foreclosure, to take a conveyance in lieu of foreclosure with ar without paying a
consideration therefor and in connection therewith to revive the obligation on the
covenants secured by such security and to exercise and enforce in any action, suit or
proceeding at law or in equity any rights ar remedies with respect to any such security or

guarantee;

to collect, sue for and receive all sums of money or other property or items that are
believed due to the Fund,

to obtain or render services for or on behalf of the Fund ncctssary or useful to carry out
the purposes of the Fund,

to obtain, prepare, compose, design, print, publish, issue and distribute marketing and
public relations materials in connection with the Fund,

to establish places of business of the Fund;
to manage the Fund Property;

to invest, hold shares, trust units, beneficial interests, partnership interests, joint venture
interests or other interests in any person necessary ot useful to carry out the purpose of
the Fund,

to cause legal title to any of the Fund Property to be held in the name of the Trustee or, to
the extent permitted by applicable law, in the name of the Fund or any other person, on
such terms, in such manmer, with such powers in such person as the Trustee may
determine and with or without disclosure that the Fund or the Trustee is interested
therein, provided that should legal title to amy of the assets of the Fund be held by and/or
in the name of any person other than the Trustee or the Fund, the Trustee shall require
such person fo execute a frust agreement acknowledging that legal title to such assets s
held in trust for the benefit of the Fund;

to deteroaine conclusively the allocation to capital, income or other appropriate accounts
of all receipts, expenses and disbursements of the Fund;

to determine, among other things, the amount of Distributable Cash Flow, Income of the
Fund, Net Realized Capital Gains, Redemption Income and Redemption Gains for the
purposes of distributions hereunder and to arrange for distributions to Unitholders
pursuant to Article 5; '

to determine conclusively the valuc of any or all of the Fund Property from time to time
and, in determining such value, to consider such information and advice as the Trustee in
its sole judgment, may deem material and reliable;

to possess and exercise all the rights, powers and privileges pertaining to the ownership
of securities and any Notes owned by the Fund to the same extent that an individual
might, umless otherwise limited herein (including pursuant to Section 8.7) and, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, to vote or give any consent, request ar notice, or
waive any notice, either in person or by proxy or power of attorney, with or without
power of substitution, to one or more persons with respect to voting securities and any
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Notes held by the Fund, which proxies and powers of attorney may be for meetings or
actions generally or for any particular meeting or action and may include the exercise of
discretionary power;

to pay, out of the Fund Property, all reasonable fees, costs and expenses incurred, from
time to time, in the administration of the Fund, including those in connection with the
Initial Offering and subsequent Offerings, and including: (i) the Underwriting Fees; (ii)
any amounts in respect of Eligible Investments and. Subsequent Investments; and (uii)
Issue Expenses; :

where reasonably required, to engage or employ on behalf of the Fund any persons as
administrators, agents, advisors, representatives, employees, independent contractors or
subcontractors (including the Corporation, investment advisors, registrars, underwriters,
accountants, lawyers, appraisers, brokers or otherwise) in one or more capacities;

to the extent not prohibited by law, to delegate any of the powers and duties of the
Trustee to any one or more agents, representatives, employees, independent contractors,
subcontractors or other persons without lability to the Trustee (including to the
Corporation pursuant to this Trust Indenture), except as provided in this Trust Indenture;

to appear and respond to all orders issued by a court, arbitral body or administrative
authority or claims made by another person, to make all affidavits, sworn declarations
and solemn affirmations with respect to such matters, to put in default, sue for and
receive all sinms of money or obligations due to the Fund, and to engage in, intervene in,
prosecute, join, defend, compromige, abandon or adjust, by arbitration or otherwise, any
actions, suits, disputes, claims, demands ar other litigation or proceedings, regulatory or
judicial, relating to the Fund, the Fund Property or the Fund's affairs, to cnter into

agreements—therefor,—whether—or—net-any—suit—er-preceeding-—is-commenced-or-claim

{bb)

(cc)

@d)

(ee)
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asserted and to enter into agreements regarding the arbitration, adjudication or settlement
thereof;

to arrange for insurance coniracts and policies insuring the Fund, the Fund Property, the
Trustee and/or the Unitholders, including against any and all claims and habilities of any
natore asserted by any person arising by reason of any action alleged to have been taken
or ormitted by the Fund or by the Trustee or Unitholders or otherwise, and to perform all
of the obligations of the Fund under such insurance policies and contracts;

to form any subsidiary for the purpose of making any Subscquent Investment and
entering into or amending any unanimous sharcholder agreement, management
agreement or other agreement on such terms as may be approved by the Corporation (on
behalf of the Fund and the Trustee);

to vote Subsequent Investments held by the Fund which carry voting rights in such
marmer as may be approved by the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee);

to do all such things and take all such action, and to negoliate, make, execute,
acknowledge and deliver any and all deeds, instruments, contracts, waivers, releases or
other documents, necessary or useful for the exercise or accomplishment of: (i) any of the
powers herein granted to the Trustee; (i) the purposes of the Fund as set forth in Section
4.1; and (i) all of the rights and o¢blipations of the Trustee hereunder; including the
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negotiation and execution of agreements in connection with the administration of the
Fund; and

(ff) to do all such other acts and things as are necessary, useful, incidental or ancillary to the
foregoing and to exercise all powers and authorities which are necessary, useful,
incidental or ancillary to carry on the affairs of the Fund, to promote the purpose for
which the Fund is formed and to carry out the provisions of this Trust Indenture.

8.3 Further Powers of the Trustee

The Trustee shall have the power to prescribe any form of docurnent or other instrument provided
for or contemplated by this Trust Indenture and the Trustee may make, adopf, amend, or repeal
regulations containing provisions relating to the conduct of the affairs of the Fund not inconsistent with
law or with this Trust Indenture (the "Trustee's Regulations"). The Trustee shall also be entitled to
roake any reasonable decisions, designations or determinations not contrary to this Trust Indenture which
it may determine are necessary or desirable in interpreting, applying or administering this Trust Indenture
or n administering, managing or operating the Fund Any Trustee's Regulations, decisions, designations
or determinations made pursuant to this Section 8.3 shall be conclusive and binding upon all persons
affected thereby. The Trustee shall also have such additional powers as may be approved by the
Unitholders by Ordinary Resolution.

8.4 Standard of Care

The standard of care required of the Trustee in exercising its powers and carrying out its functions
under this Trust Indenture shall be that it exercise its powers and carry out its functions hereunder as
Trustee honestly, in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Fund and the Unitholders and that
in connection therewith it exercise that degree of care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person
would exercise in comparable circumstances. Unless otherwise required by law, the Trustee shall not be
required to give bond, surety or security in any jurisdicton for the performance of any duties or
obhigations hereunder. The Trustee in its capacity as trustee shall not be required to devote its entire time
to the affairs of the Fund.

For greater certainty, to the extent that the performance of certain duties and activitics has been
granted or allocated to the Corporation in this Trust Indenture, or that the Trustee has delegated the
performance of certain duties and activities to the Corporation in accordance with Article 13, the Trustee
shall be deemed to have satisfied the aforesaid standard of care. .

8.5 Reliance Upon the Trustee

Any person dealing with the Fund in respect of any matters pertaining to the Fund, the Fund
Property or securities of the Fund shall be entitled to rely on a certificate or statutory declaration
(including a certificate or statutory declaration as to the passing of a resolution of the Trustee) executed
by the Trustee or the Corporation or, without lirmitation, such other person as may be authorized by the
Trustee as to the capacity, power and authority of the Trustee, the Corporation or any other person to act
for and on behalf and in the name of the Fund. No person dealing with the Trustee shall be bound to see
to the application of any monies or property passing into the hands or control of the Trustee. The receipt
by or on behalf of the Trustee of monies or other consideration shall constitute receipt by the Fund and be
binding thereon.
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8.6 Determinations of the Trustee Binding

All determinations of the Trustee which are made in good faith with respect to any matters
relating to the Fund, including whether any particular imvestment or disposition meets the requirements of
this Trust Indenture, shall be final and conclusive and shall be binding upon the Fund and all Unitholders
(and, where the Unitholder is a registered retirement savings plan, registered retirement income fund,
registered education savings plan, deferred profit sharing plan or registered-pension fund or plan as
defined in the Income Tax Act, or such other fund or plan registered under the Income Tax Act, upon
past, present or future fumd or plan beneficiaries and fund or plan holders), and Trust Units shall be issued
and sold on the condition and understanding that any and all such determinations shall be binding as -
aforesaid

8.7 Restrictions on the Trustee's and Corporation's Powers and their Exercise
Notwithstanding any provisions hereof, and in addition to any other provisions set forth herein
requiring the approval of Unitholders in respect to certain matters, or as a condition precedent to taking

certain actions, it is agreed that:

(a) ncither the Trustec nor the Corporation shall, without the appruvél of the Unitholders by
Ordinary Resoclution, take any of the following actions:

3] vote the Corporation Shares to appoint, remove or replace the Directors; or

(i) except to fill a vacancy in the office of Auditors in accardance with Section
16.16, appoint or change the Auditors; and

() neither the Trustee nor the Corporation shall, without the approval of the Unitholders by
Special Resolution, take any of the following actions:

@) amcnd this Trust Indenture except as permitted in Article 9,

(i1) sell, lease or exchange or agree to sell, lease or exchange, all or substantially all
of the property and assets of the Fund, other than: (A) in the ordinary course of
business; (B) pursuant to in specie redemptions permitted hereunder; (C) in order
to acquire the CT Units and Corporation Shares in connection with pursuing the
purposcs of the Fund, (D) in conjunction with an inlernal reorganization of the
direct or mdirect assets of the Fund as a result of which the Fund has the same
interest, whether direct or indirect, in the property and assets as the interest,
whether direct or indirect, that it had prior to the reorganization; or (E} pursuant
to a pledge in accordance with Subsection 8.2(g),

(i)  cxcept as may be expressly permitted by such agreements, vote the CT Units or
Corporation Shares, or cause or permut the Adminco Shares or the Alter LP Units
to be voted, each as applicable, in respect of any material amendment to: (A) the
CT Trust Indenture; or (B) the limited partnership agreement pursuant to which
Alter LP will be formed, in each case in a manner that, in the sole discretion of
the Corporation, is prejudicial to the Fund and the Unitholders;

(iv)  authorize the termination, liquidation or winding up of the Fund, other than in the
circumstances set forth in Section 11.1; or
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i\ authorize the cormbination, merger or similar transaction between the Fund and
any other person that is not an affiliate or associate of the Fund, except in
connection with an internal reorganization of the Fund and its affiliates (but for
greater certainty, a take-over bid by or on behalf of the Fund, an acquisition by or
on behalf of the Fund by way of plan of arrangement or the acquisition by the
Fund of all or substantially all of the assets of another person shall not be subject
to the approval of the Unitholders),

and the Trustee (or the Corporation on behalf of the Trustee) shall seek such approval in connection with
any such matter or proposed matter.

8.8 Banking

Subject to Subsection 4.3(b), the banking activities of the Fund, or any part thercof, shall be
transacted with such bank, trust company, or other firm or corporation carrying on a banking business as
the Trustee or the Corporation may designate, appoint or authorize from time to time and all such banking
activities, or any part thereof, shall be transacted on behalf of the Fund by the Trustee, the Corporation or
such other persons as the Trustee may designate, appoint or authorize from time to time, including the
following activities:

(a) the operation of the accounts of the Fund,

() the making, signing, drawing, accepting, endorsing, negotiation, lodging, depositing or
transferring of any cheques, promissory notes, drafts, acceptances, bills of exchange and
orders for the payment of money;

(c) the giving of receipts for orders relating to any property of the Fund;
(d) the execution of any agreement or instrument relating to any property of the Fund; and

(e) the execution of any agreement relating to any such banking activities and defining the
rights and powers of the parties thereto, and the anthorizing of any officer of such banker
to do any act or thing on the Fund's behalf to facilitate such banking activities.

8.9 Fees and Expenses

As part of the expenses of the Fund, the Trustee may pay or cause to be paid reasonable fees,
costs and expenses incurred in copnection with the administration and management of the Fund and in
commection with the discharge of any of the Trustee's duties herein, including fees, costs and expenses of
auditors, accountants, lawyers, appraisers and other professional advisors employed by or on behalf of the
Fund and the cost of reporting to and giving notices to Unitholders. Al costs, charges and expenses
properly incurred by the Trustee on behalf of the Fund shall be payable out of the Fund Property.

8.10 Payments to Unitholders

Except as may be otherwise provided herein, any cash payment required under the terms of this
Trust Indenture to be made to a Unitholder shali be paid in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise determined
by the Trustee or the Corporation, with such payment to be by cheque, bank draft or wire transfer to the
order of the registered Unitholder and may be mailed by ordinary mail to the last address appearing on the
books of the Fund in respect of such Unitholder but may also be paid in such other manner as such
Unitholder has designated to the Trustee or the Corporation and the Trustee or the Corporation, as
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applicable in the circurstances, has accepted In the case of joint registered Unitholders, amy cash
payment required hereunder to be made to a Unitholder shall be deemed to be required to be made to such
Unitholders jointly and shall be paid by cheque, bank draft or wire transfer but may also be paid in such
other manmer as the joint registered Unitholders or any one of the joint registered Unitholders has
designated to the Trustee or the Corporation and that the Trustee or the Corporation, as applicable in the
circumstances, has accepted For greater certainty, a Unitholder or any one of the joint Unitholders may
designate and the Trustee or the Corporation, as applicable in the circumstances, may accept that any
payment required to be made hereunder shall be made by deposit to an account of such Unitholder or to a
joint account of such Unithelder and any other person or in the case of joint registered Unitholders to an
account of joint registered Unitholders or to an account of any one of the joint registered Unitholders. A
cheque, bank draft or wire transfer shall, unless the joint registered Unitholders otherwise direct, be made
payable to the order of all of the said joint registered Unitholders, and if more than one address appears on
the books of the Fund in respect of such joint unitholding, the cheque or bank draft or payment in other
acceptable manner as aforesaid may be sent to the address of any one of the joint registered Unitholders
whose name and address appears on the books of the Fund Al! payments made in the aforesaid manner
shall satisfy and be a valid and binding discharge of all liability of the Trustee or the Fund for the amount
so required to be paid unless the cheque, bank draft or wire transfer is not paid at par on presentation af
Calgary, Alberta, or at any other place where it 1s by its terms payable. In the event of non-receipt of any
such cheque or bank draft by the person to whom it was mailed, the Trustee or the Corporation, as
applicable, on proof of the non-receipt and upon satisfactory indemnity being given to it and to the Fund,
shall issue to the person a replacement cheque or bank draft for a like amount.

The receipt, by the registered Unitholder, of any payment not mailed or paid in accordance with
this Section 8.10 shall nonetheless be a valid and binding discharge to the Fund and to the Trustee for any
payment made in respect of the registered Trust Units, and if several persons are registered as joint
registered Unitholders or, in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a Unitholder, one or
several persons are entitled so to be registered in accordance with Sections 15.9 and 15.10, respectively,

Trustee for any such payment.
8.11  Notice to Unitholders of Non-Eligibility for Deferred Income Plans

In addition to performing those matters described in Section 4.4, if the Corporation (on behalf of
the Fund and the Trustee) deternmines that: (i) the Fund has ceased to be a "unit trust” and a "mmtual fund
trust”, each for the purposes of the Income Tax Act; or (if) the Trust Units have ceased to be qualified
investments for registered retirement savings plans, registered retirement income funds, deferred profit
sharing plans and registered education savings plans (all within the meaning of the Income Tax Act) or
any of such plans or funds (a "Registered Plan"), then the Corporation shall so advise the Trustee and
shall give notice to Unitholders at their latest address as shown on the register of Unitholders that the
Fund has ceased to be a "unit trust” and a "mutual fund trust” or that the Trust Units have ceased to be
qualified investments for such Registered Plams, as the case may be. Neither the Trustee nor the
Corporation shall be liable to the Fund, and neither the Trustee, the Corporation nor the Fund shall be
liable to any Unitholder for any costs, expenses, charges, penalties or taxes mourred by a Unitholder or,
where the Unitholder is a Registered Plan, an annuitant, subscriber or beneficiary thercunder, as a result
of or by virtue of a Trust Unit not being a "unit trust” and a "mutual fund trust” or a qualified investment
for any such Registered Plan, as the case may be, including where incurred by reason of a failure or
omission by the Corpération to have given the notice provided for herein.
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ARTICLE 9
AMENDMENTS TO THE TRUST INDENTURE

The provisions of this Trust Indenture may only be amended by Special Resolution except where
specifically otherwise provided herein, including pursuant to Scctions 9.2 and 9.3.

9.2 Amendment without Approval

The provisions of this Trust Indenture may be amended by the Trustee at any time and from time
to time, without the consent, approval or ratification of the Unitholders or any other person:

(2)

(b)

prior to Closing, for any purpose by agreement between the Trustee and the Corporation;

or

at any time for the purpose of:

®

(1)

(idi)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vi)

ensuring confipuing compliance, by the Fund, with applicable laws, iegtﬂations,
requirements or policies of any Governmmental Authority having jurisdiction over
the Trustee or the Fund,

providing, in the bona fide opinion of the Trustee, additional protection for the
Unitholders or to preserve or clarify the provision of desirable tax treatment to
Unitholders;

making miner corrections, of removing or curing any conflicts or inconsistencies
between the provisions of this Trust Indenture or any supplemental indenture and
any other agreement of the Fund or any applicable law or regulation of any
jurisdiction or any Offering document with respect to the Fund, provided that, in
the opinion of the Trustec in cach case, the rights of the Umtholders are not
materially prejudiced thereby;

making amendments which, m the opinion of the Trustee, are necessary or
desirable in the interests.of the Unitholders as a result of changes in taxation laws
or in their interpretation or administration;

making amendments hereto provided that; in the opinion of the Trustee, the rights
of the Trustee and of the Unitholders are not materially prejudiced thereby;

curing, correcting or rectifying any ambiguities, defective or inconsistent
provisions, errors, mistakes or omissions, provided that in the opinion of the

. Trustee the rights of the Trustee and of the Unitholders are not prejudiced

thereby; or

changing the situs of the Fund or the laws governing the Fund which, in the
opinion of the Trustee, are necessary or desirable in order to provide Unitholders
with the benefit of any legislation limiting their liability.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein or in any other agreement, and without in any way
lirniting the authority of the Corparation herein provided for, the discretion of the Trustee to be exercised
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in. Subsecctions 9.2(b)(i1} to 9.2(b)(vii) inclusive, shall be exercised by the Corporation, and any
determination as to the nccessity for an amendment to this Indenture for the purposes set forth in
Subsection 9.2(b)(i} shall be made by the Corporation.
9.3 Further Restrictions on Amendments
Notwithstanding a.nyﬂﬁng herein contained, no amendment shall be rpade to this Trust Indenture:
{(a) to modify the voting rights attributable to Trust Units as set out in Section 3.1 or reduce
the fractional undivided beneficial interest in the Fund Property represented by any Trust
Unit without the consent of the holder of such Unit; and

o) to amend this Section 9.3, unless the consent of the holders of all of the Trust Units then
outstanding is obtained.

9.4 Notification of Amendment -

As soon as shall be practicable after the making of any amendment pursuant to Section 9.2, the
Trustee shall furnish written notification of the substance of such amendment to each Unitholder.

9.5 Further Acts Regarding Amendment

When a vote of the Unitholders approves an amendment to this Trust Indenture or an amendment
is approved pursuant to Section 9.2, then the Trustee and the Corporation (as applicable) shall sign such
documents as may be necessary to effect such amendment, inclhuding executing an amended and restated
version of this Trust Indenture that incledes all amendments to this Trust Indenture in effect at the
applicable time.

ARTICLE 10
MEETINGS OF UNITHOLDERS

10.1  Annual Meeting

There shall be an annual meeting of the Unitholders immediately prior to each annual meeting of
holders of CT Units and Corporation Shares, for the.purpose of:

(2) directing and instructing the Trustee as to the mammer in which the Trustee shall vote the
Corporation Shares and the CT. Units held by the Fund in respect of: (i) the election of the
Directors who are to be clected at the annual meeting of the holders of Corporation
Shares, which is to immediately follow the meeting of Unitholders; and (if) any other
relevant matiers described in Subsections 8.7(a) or 8.7(b) which may be properly brought
before such annnal meeting of holders of Corporation Shares and CT Units;

(b) appointing the auditors of the Fund for the ensuing year; and

(c) transacting such other business as the Trustee or the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund
and the Trustee) may determine or as may properly be brought before the meeting,

The annual meeting of Unitholders shall be held after delivery to the Unitholders of the annual

financial statements referred to in Subsection 16.8(a) and, in any event, within 180 days after the end of
each fiscal year of the Fund.
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10.2  Other Meetings

@

(b)

©
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Called by the Trustee: The Trustee shall have the power, at any time and for any purpose,
to call special meetings of the Unitholders at such time and place as the Trustee may
determine or the Corporation may request (and, for greater certainty, the Trustee shall
call a special meeting of Unitholders upon request of the Corporation).

Reguisition by Unitholders and Special Rights Holders: Unitholders and Special Rights
Holders, if any, holding in the aggregate not less than ten percent of the aggregate votes
attached to outstanding Trust Units and Special Voting Rights, if any, may requisition the
Trustee to call a special mecting of the Unitholders for the purposes stated in the
requisition. The requisition shall be in writing and shall state in reasonable detail the
business to be transacted at the meeting and shall be sent to the Trustee at the Trustec's
principal place of business in Alberta. Upon receiving the requisition, the Trustee shall
call a meeting of Unitholders to transact the business referred to in the requisition, unless:

0] a record date for a meeting of the Unitholders has been fixed and notice thereof
has been given to each stock exchange in Canada on which the Trust Units are
listed for trading;

(1) the Trustee has called a meeting of the Unitholders and has given nofice thereof
pursuant to Section 10.3; ar

(i)  inconnection with the business as stated in the requisition:

(A) it clearly appears that a matter covered by the requisition is submitted by
the Unitholder or the Special Rights Holder, as the case may be,
primarily for the purpose of enforcing a personal claim or redressing a
personal grievance against the Fund, the Trustee, the Unitholders or any
affitiate of amy of the foregoing, or primarily for the purpose of
promoting general economic, political, religious, social or simmlar causes
or primarily for a purpose that does not relate in a significant way to the
business or affairs of the Fund;

(B) the Pund, at the Unitholder's or Special Rights Holder's request, had
previously included a matter substantiaily the same as a matter covered
by the requisition in an information circular relating to a meeting of
Unitholders held within 30 months preceding the receipt of such
requisiion and the Unitholder or the Special Rights Holder failed to
present the matter, in person or by proxy, at the meeting;

(C)  substantially the same matter covered by the requisition was submitted to
Unitholders in an information circular relating to a meeting of
Unitholders held within 30 months preceding the receipt of such
requisition and the matter covered by the requisition was defeated; or

(D) the Trustee reasonably believes that the rights conferred by this Section
10.2 are being abused to secure publicity.

Requisition by Directors: While the Fund holds, directly or indirectly, any Corporation
Shares, the Trustee shall call a special meeting of Unitholders upon receipt of a
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requisition from the Directors for the purposes set forth m such requisition, including
sccking the required approvals from the Unitholders to vote the Corporation Shares and
CT Units held by the Fund in respect of the matters set forth in Subsections 8.7(a) and

8.7(b).

(d) Failure to Call Meeting: If the Trustee does not, within 21 days after receiving the
requisition, call 2 meeting (except where the grounds for not calling the meeting are one
or more of those set forth in Subsection 10.2(b)), any Unitholder or Special Rights Holder
who signed the requisition or the Directors, as the case may be, may call the meeting in
accordance with the provisions of Article 10, mutaris mutandis.

10.3  Notice of Meeting of Unitholders

Notice of all meetings of the Unitholders shall be mailed or delivered by the Trustee to each
Unitholder and Special Rights Holder at the address for such Unitholder and Special Rights Holder
appearing in the Register, fo the Trustee, to the Corporation and to the Auditors not less than 21 nor more
than 50 days before the meeting {or within such other time periods as required or permitted by applicable
securities laws). The attendance of a Unitholder or Special Rights Holder at a meeting shall constitute a
waiver of notice, or defect therein, with respect to such meeting except where a Unitholder or Special
Rights Holder attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business on
the ground that the meeting has not been lawfully called or convened. Such notice shall set out the time
when, and the place where, such meeting is to be held and shall specify the nature of the business to be
transacted at such meeting in sufficient detail to permit a Unitholder or Special Rights Holder to forma
reasoned judgement thereon, together with the text of any special resolution in substantially the final form
proposed to be passed Any adjourned meeting may be held as adjourned without further notice. The
accidental omission fo give notice fo or the non-receipt of such notice by the Unitholders and Special
Rights Holders shall not invalidate any resolution passed at any such meeting.

10.4 Quorum; Chairman

A quorum for any meeting of Unitholders shall be two individuals present in person and being
Unitholders or Special Rights Holders or representing, by proxy, Unitholders or Special Rights Holders,
and who hold in the aggregate not less than 5% of the total number of votes attached to outstanding Trust
Units and Special Voting Rights, in the aggregate. For the purpose of determining such quorum, the
holders of any issued Special Voting Rights who are present at the meeting shall be regarded as
representing outstanding Trust Units equivalent in number to the votes attaching to such Special Voting
Rights. In the event of such quorum not being present at the appointed place on the date for which the
meeting is called within 30 minutes after the time fixed for the holding of such meeting, the meeting, if
called by request of Unitholders and/or Special Rights Holders, shall be terminated and, if otherwise
called, shall stand adjourned to a day not less than 14 days later and to such place and time as may be
determined by the chairman of the meeting. If at such adjowrned meeting a quorum as above defined is
not present, the Unitholders and Special Rights Holders present either personally or by proxy shail forma
quorum, and any business may be brought before or dealt with at such an adjourned meeting which might
have been brought before or dealt with at the original meeting in accordance with the notice calling the
same. The Chairman of the Directors, or such other individual as may be appointed by the Trustee on the
advice of the Corporation, shall be the chairman of any meeting of the Unitholders and Special Rights
Holders. : : :
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1.5 Voting

Holders of Trust Units and Special Voting Rights may attend and vote at all meetings of the
Unitholders cither in person or by proxy. Bach Trust Unit shall entitle the holder thereof to the number of
votes set out in Section 3.1 and each Special Voting Right shall entitle the holder thereof to such number
of votes as may be prescribed by the Corporation (on behalf of the Fund and the Trustee) when
authorizing the issuance of such Special Voting Right. Any action to be taken by the Unitholders shall,
except as otherwise required by this Trust Indenture or by law, be authorized when approved by an
Ordinary Resolution. The chairman of any meeting of Unitholders shall not have a second or casting
vote.

10.6 Record Dates

For the purpose of determining the Unitholders and Special Rights Holders who are entitled to
receive notice of and vote at any meeting or any adjournment thereof, or who are entitled to receive any
distribution, or for the purpose of any other action, the Trustee may from time to time, without notice to
Unitholders and Special Rights Holders, close the transfer books for such period, not exceeding 30 days,
as the Trustee may determine. Alternatively, with or without closing the transfer books, the Trustee may
fix a date not more than 60 days prior to the date of any meeting of the Unitholders or any distribution or
any other action to be taken by the Fund, as a record date for the determination of Unitholders and Special
Rights Holders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at such mecting or any adjournment thereof or to
receive such distribution or to be treated as Unitholders and Special Rights Holders of record for purposes
of such other action, as the case may be. Any person who was a Unitholder or Special Rights Holder at
the record date so fixed shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote at such meeting or any adjournment
thereof, or to receive such distribution, or to be treated as a Unitholder or Special Rights Holder, as the
case may be, of record for purposes of such other action, even though he has since that date disposed of
his Trust Units or Special Voting Rights, as the case may be, and no person who becomes a Unitholder or
Special Rights Holder, as the case may be, after that date shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote at
such meeting or any adjournment thereof, or to receive such distribution, or to be treated as a Unitholder
or a Special Rights Holder, as the case may be, of record for purposes of such other action.

10.7  Proxies

Whenever the vote or consent of Unitholders is required or permitted under this Trust Indenture,
such vote or consent may be given either directly by the Unitholder or the Special Rights Holder, as the
case may be, or by a proxy in such form as is acceptable to the Trustee acting reasonably. A proxy holder
need not be a Unitholder or a Special Rights Holder. The Trustee may solicit such proxies from the
Unitholders, the Special Rights Holders, if any, or any of them in respect of any matter requiring or
permitting the Unitholders' and Special Rights Holder's vote, approval or consent in such mammer as may
be required or permitted by applicable law.

Subject to applicable laws, the Trustee may adopt, amend or repeal such rules relating to proxies,
including pertaining to the appointment of proxy holders and the solicitation, execution, validity,
revocation and deposit of proxies, as it in its discretion from time to time determines and such rules may
be contained in the Trustee's Regulations.

10.8  Resolution in Lieu of Meeting
A resolution signed in writing by Unitholders and Special Rights Holders holding a proportion of

all the cutstanding votes attributable to all issued and outstanding Trust Units and Special Voting Rights,
where such proportion is equal to or greater than the proportion of votes required to be voted in favour of
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such resolution at a meeting of Unitholders to approve that resolution, is as valid as if it had been passed
at a meeting of Unitholders duly called and convened. :

10.9  Materials Sent to Unitholders

At any time that the Fund, directly or indirectly, holds more than 50% of the issued and
outstanding Corporation Shares, the Trustee shall include in the materials sent to Unitholders and Special
Rights Holders in respect of meetings thereof all materials requested to be sent to Unitholders and Special
Rights Holders, if any, by the Directors, acting reasonably.
10.10 Meetings of Holders of CT Units and Corporation Shares

Meetings of Unithc;lders may be held immediately prior to, after or simultaneously with meetings
of the holders of CT Units and Corporation Shares; provided, however, that the anmual meeting of
Unitholders shall be held immediately prior to that of the holders of CT Units and Corporation Shares.
10.11 Resolutions Binding the Trustee

“Unitholders shall be entitled to pass resolutions that will bind the Trustee only with respect to the
following matters:

(a) the appointment or removal of the Trustee or the Directors;
(b) the appointment or removal of Auditors as provided in Sections 16.13 and 16.15;
(c) amendroents of this Trust Indenture as provided in Article 9;

(d) the termination of the Fund as provided in Section 11.2; and

(e) any other matter referred to in Subsections 8.7(a) or 8.7(b).

Except with Tespect to the above matters set out in this Section 10.11, no action taken by the
Unitholders or any resolution of the Unitholders at any meeting shall in any way bind the Trustee. Any
action taken.or resolution paSScd in respect of any matter at a meeting of Unitholders shall be by Ordinary
Resolution, unless the contrary is otherwise expressly provided under any specific provision of this Trust
Indenture.

ARTICLE 11
TERMINATION

11.1  Term of the Fund

The term of the Fund shall commence on the date hereof and shall continue in full force and
effect for a period which shall end twenty one years after the date of death of the last surviving
descendant of Her Majesty, Queen Elizabeth II, who is alive on the date hereof. The Trustee shall have
throughout such term all the powers and chscrenon, expressed and implied, as conferred upon it by law
and by this Trust Indenture.
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11.2 . Termination with the Approval of Unitholders

The Fund shall be terminated if the Unitholders pass a Special Resolution, authorizing such
termmination, at a meeting of Unitholders duly called for the purpose of comsidering the wind-up or
termination of the Fund. Following the passage of such Special Resolution and subject to any exercise of
the rights of the Trustec under Scction 12.5, the Trustee shall commence to wind-up the affairs of the
Fund Such Special Resolution may contain such directions to the Trustec as the Unitholders deterrmine,
including a direction to distribute securities, Notes or any other Fund Property, or amy of them, in specie.
The Fund shall terminate when all of the assets of the Pund have been sold, all known and other
outstanding debts, liabilities and obligations of the Fund have been paid, retired, discharged or provided
for and the amounts referred to in Section 11.6 have been distributed or paid into court as provided in this
Article 11. Inno event shall the winding-up of the affairs of the Fund exceed ten years.

11.3  Procedure Upon Termination

Forthwith upon being required to commence to wind-up the affairs of the Fund, the Trustee shall
give notice of such wind-up or termination to the Unitholders, which notice shall designate the tme or
times at which Unitholders may surrender their Trust Units for cancellation and the date at which the
Registers of Trust Units of the Fund shall be closed. |

11.4  Powers of the Trustee Upon Termination

After the date on which the Trustee is required to commence to wind-up the affairs of the Fund,
the Trustee shall carry on no activities on behalf of the Fund except for the purpose of winding-up or
terminating (as the case may be) the affairs of the Fund as hercinafter provided and, for this purpose, the
Trustee shall continue to be vested with and may exercise all ar any of the powers conferred upon the
Trustee under this Trust Indenture.

11.5 Sale of Investments

After the date referred to in Section 11.4, the Trustee shall proceed to wind-up the affairs of the
Fund 2s soon as may be reasonably practicable and for such purpose shall, subject to any direction to the
contrary in tespect of a wind-up authorized under Section 11.2, sell and convert into money the Fund
Property and do all other acts appropriate to liquidate the Fund, and shall in all respects act in accordance
with the directions, if any, of the Unitholders (in respect of a termination authorized under Section 11.2).
If the Trustee is unable to sell all or any of the Fund Property or other assets which comprise part of the
Fund by the date set for wind-up or termination, the Trustee may distribute undivided interests in the
remaining Fund Property or other assets directly to the Unitholders on a pro rara basis in accordance with
their respective interest in the Fund as determined by the number of Trust Units held by each such
respective Unitholder.

11.6 Distribution of Proceeds

After paying, retiring or discharging or making provision for the payment, retirement or discharge
of all known liabilities and obligations of the Fund (including all liabilities to the Trustee hereunder) and
providing for an indemnity or establishing a reserve amount against any other outstanding liabilities and
obligations, the Trustee shall distribute the remaining part of the proceeds of the sale of the Fund Property
pro rata among the Unitholders in accordance with their respective interest in the Fund as determined by
the number of Trust Units held by each such respective Unitholder, net of all amounts required by law to
be deducted or withheld.
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11.7  Further Notice to Unitholders

In the event that less than all of the. -Unitholders have swrrendered their Trust Units for
cancellation within six months afler the timé specified in the notice referred to in Section 11.3, the
Trustee shall give further notice to' the remaining Unitholders to surrender their Trust Units for
cancellation and if, within one year after the further notice, ail the Trust Units shall not bave been
surrendered for cancellation, such remaining Trust Units shall be deemed to be cancelled without
prejudice to the rights of the holders of such Trust Units to receive their pro rata share of the remaining’
Fund Property, and the Trustee may cither take appropriate steps, or appoint an agent to take appropriate
steps, to contact such Unitholders (deducting all expenses thereby incurred from the amounts to which
such Unitholders are entitled as aforesaid) or, in the discretion of the Trustee, may pay such amounts into
court. . . .

11.8  Responsibility of the Trustee after Sale and Conversion

The Trustee shall be under no obligation to invest the proceeds of any sale of investments or other

- assets or cash forming part of the Fund Property after the date referred to in Section 11.4 and, after such

sale, the sole obligation of the Trusiee under this Trust Indenture shall be to collect, distribute and hold
such proceeds in trust for distribution under this Article 11.

ARTICLE 12
LIABILITY OF TRUSTEE, CORPORATION
AND UNITHOLDERS AND OTHER MATTERS
12.1  General Limitation of Liability and Indemnification

(a) The Trustee, the Corporation and the directers, officers, ermmployees, consultants and
agents of the Fund, the Trustee and the Corporation,-as the case-may-be,-In-InCHFHRE-ANF—m-m—r—memvmrm

debts, Habilities or obligations, or taking or omitting any other actions for or in
connection with the affairs of the Fimd are, and shall be conclusively deemed to be,
acting for and on behalf of the Fund, and not in their own personal capacities.

(b) All reasonable efforts shall be made to ensure that every contract entered into by or on
behalf of the Fund, whether by the Trustee, the Corporation or otherwise, shall (except as
the Trustee may otherwise expressly agree in writing with respect to personal liability of
the Trustee} include a provision substantially to the following effect:

"The parties hereto acknowledge that the [Trustee/Corporation] is
entering into this - agreement solely in its capacity as
[Trustee/administrator] on behalf of the Fund and the obligations of the -
Fund hereunder shall not be personally binding upon the {Trustee/the
Corporation) or any Unitholder of the Fund.or any annuitant under 2 plan’
of which a Unitholder is a trustee or-carrier (an "annuitant') and that any
recourse against the Fumd, [the Trustee/the Corporation] -or any
Unitholder or annvitant in any manner in respect of any indebtedness,
obligation or ‘liability of the Fund arising hereunder or arising in
connection herewith ar from the matters to which this agreerment relates,
if any, including without limitation clains based on negligence or
otherwisc tortious behaviour, shall be limited to, and satisfied only out
of, the Fund Property as defined in the Trust Indenture dated as of April
28, 2006, as the same may be amended.”
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The rights conferred by any such provision shall be held in trust and enforced by the
Trustee or the Corporation, as applicable, for the benefit of the Trustee, the Corporation,
Unitholders and annuitants, The omission of such a provision from any such written
agreement shall not operate to impose personal liability on the Trustee, the Corporation
or any Unitholder or amnuitant.

The Trustes, its directars, officers, employees, shareholders and agents shall not be liable
to any Unitholder or annuitant for:

) any action taken in good faith in reliance on any documents that are, prima facie,
properly execuied,

(i) any depreciation of, or loss to, the Fund incurred by reason of the retention or
sale of any property,;

(i)  any inaccuracy or omission in any cvaluation provided by the Corporation or any
other appropriately qualified person or for relying on any such evaluation; or

(iv) any action or failure to act of the Corporation, including anything done or
permitted to be done pursuant to, or any error or omission relating to, the
Indenture Conferred Dutics or any material contracts of the Fund, or the act of
agreeing to the conferring upon, granting, allocating and delegating the Indenture
Conferred Duties to the Corporation in accordance with the terms of this
Indenture.

The Trustee, its directors, officers, employees, sharcholders and agents shall not be liable
to any Unitholder or annuitant for any other action or failure to act (including the failure
to compel in any way any former trustee to redress amy breach of trust), unless such
tabilities arise principally and directly from a breach of the Trustee's standard of care as
set out in Section 8.4 or the Trustee's or such director's, officer's, emplayee's,
shareholder's or agent's gross negligence, wilful defanlt or fraud (provided, for greater
certainty, that for purposes of this provision neither the Corporation nor any sub-delegate
thereof shall be considered an agent of the Trustee).

The Trustee, its directors, officers, employees, shareholders and agents shall not be liable
to any Unitholder or annuitant in acting or failing to act, in good faith, in relation to any
atter arising from or relating to this Trust Indenture or any material contract where such
action or failure to act is based upon the opinion or advice of or information obtained
from any Expert, provided that the Trustee has satisfied its standard of care in Section 8.4
in selecting such Expert.

12.2 Indemnification of Trustee

The Fund (to the extent of the assets of the Fund) is liable to, and shall indernnify and save
harmless the Trustee, its directors, officers, employees, shareholders and agents, and all of their
successors and assigns in respect of:

(a)

30702631.4

any liability and all costs, charges and expenses sustained or incurred in respect of any
claim, action, suit or proceeding (including all reasonable defense costs) that is proposed
or commenced against the Trustee or any of its directors, officers, employees,
shareholders and agents, as the case may be, for or in respect of anything done or
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permitted to be done in respect of the Fund or any error or omission in respect of: (i) any
matter relating to the Fund and the execution of all duties, responsibilitics, powers,
authorities and discretion pertaiming thercto; and (i) the Corporation providing or
omitting to provide services to the Fund or otherwise pcrformmg its obligations as
delegated to it or otherwisc contemplated hereunder;

()] all othcr costs, charges, taxes, penalties and interest in respect of unpaid taxes or other tax
matters and all other expenses and liabilities sustained or incurred by the Trustee in
respect of the administration or termination of the Fund (excluding, however, any and all
taxes on any income of the Trustee); and

(c) any loss, expense, claim, liabilify or asserted liability (including strict liability and
including costs and expenses of abatement and remediation of spills or releases of
contaminants and including Habilities of indemnified parties to third parties in respect of
bodily irjuries, property damage, damage to or impairment of the environment) incurred
as a result of the administration of the trust treated hereby, or the exercise by the Trustee
of any of the rights under this Trust Indenture including, without limitation, those which
result from or relate, directly or indirectly, to:

6} the presence or release or threatened presence or release of any contaminants, by
any means or for any reason, on or in respect of any property which the Fund or
any affiliate thereof has an interest in or is responsible for, whether or not such
presence or release-or threatened presence or release of the contaminants was
under the confrol, care or management of the Fund, the Trustee (in ifs capacity as
trustee of the Fund), the Commercial Trust, Alter LP, the Corporation or any
affiliate thereof or of a previous owner or operator of any property which the
Fund or any affiliate thereof has an interest in or is responsible for;

(1) amy contaminant present on or released from any property adjacent to or in the
proximate area of any property which the Fund, the Commercial Trust, Alter LP,
the Corporation or any affiliate thereof has an interest in or is responsible for;

(iify  the breach or alleged breach of any federal, provincial or mumnicipal
environmental law, regulation, by-law, order, rule or permit by the Fund, the
Trustee (in its capacity as trustee of the Fund), the Commercial Trust, Alter LP,
the Corporation or any affiliate thereof or of a previous owner or operator of any

" property which the Fund, the Commercial Trust, Alter LP, the Carporation or any
affiliate thereof has an interest in or is responsible for; or

(iv)  any misrepresentation or omission of a lmown fact or condition made by the
Corporation relating to any property which the Fund, the Commercial Trust,
Alter LP, the Corporation or any affiliatc thereof has an interest in or is
Tesponsible for.

unless any of the foregoing (other than a liability, loss, claim, charge or expense for which the Trustee
and its directors, officers, employees, shareholders and agents have no liability because of the application
of Subsections 12.1{(c){i) to 12.1{c)(iv) inclusive) arises principally and directly from a breach of the
Trustee's standard care as set out in Section 8.4 or the Trustee's or such director's, officer's, employee's,
shareholder's or agent's gross negligence, wilful default or fraud, in which case the provisions of this
Section 12.2 shall not apply (provided, for gieater certainty, that for purposes of this provision neither the
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Corporation nor any sub-delegate thereof shall be considered an agent of the Trustee). These indemmities
shall survive the termination of the Fund and the resignation or removal of the Trustee.

For the purpose of this Section 12.2, "liability" shall include: (i) hability of an indenmified party for costs
and expenses of abatement and remediation of spills and releases of contaminants; (ii) liability of an
indemmnified party to a third party to reimburse the third party for bodily injuries, property damage and
other injuries or damages which the third party suffers, including (to the extent, if amy, that the
indemmified party is liable therefor) foreseeable and unforeseeable consequential damages suffered by the
third party; and (iii) liability of the indemnified party for damage to or impairment of the environment.

12.3  Execution of Instruments and Apparent Authoerity

(@

®

Any instrument executed in the name of the Fund or on behalf of the Fund by the
Corporation shall constitute and shall be deemed to constitute a valid obligation of the
Fund enforceable in accordance with its terms as if executed by the Trustee.

No purchaser, transfer agent or other person dealing with the Trustee or with any officer,
employee or agent of the Trustee shall be bound to make any enquiry concerning the
validity of any transaction purporting to be made by the Trustee or by such officer,
employee or agent or make enquiry concerning, or be liable for, meney or property paid,
lent or delivered to or on the order of the Trustee or such officer, employee or agent. Any
person dealing with the Fund in respect of any matters pertaming to the Fumd Property
and any right, title or interest therein, or pertaining to the Fund or to the Trust Units shall
be entitled to rely on a certificate, statutory declaration or resolution executed or certified
by the Trustee as to the capacity, power and authority of the Trustee, the Corporation,
consultant or agent or any other person to act for and on behalf and in the name of the
Fund. No person dealing with the Trustee, the Corporation, or any consultant or agent of
the Fund, shall be bound to see to the application of any funds or property passing into
the hands or control of such Trustee, the Corporation, consultant or agent of the Fund
The receipt of the Trustee, the Corporation, or of authorized consultants or agents of the
Fund, for moneys or other consideration, shall be binding upon the Fund.

12.4 Reliance

(a)

(b)
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The Trustee shall be entitled to rely on statements from, the opinion or advice of, or
informatior from Experts, provided that, with respect to Experts other than the Auditors
and Counsel, the Trustee has satisfied its standard of care in Section 8.4 in selecting such
Expert.

The Trustee and its directors, officers, employees, sharcholders and agents shall not be
liable to any Unitholders, anmutants or other persons in relying in good faith upon
statements or information from, the opinion or advice of, or instruments or directions
given by an officer, director, employee, shareholder or agent of the Corporation or by a
broker, a custodian or any Unitholder, or by such other parties as may be authorized to
give instructions or directions to the Trustee. If required by the Trustee, the Corporation
shall file with the Trustee a certificate of incumbency setting forth the names and titles of
parties authorized to give instructions or directions fo the Trustee together with specimen
signatures of such persons and the Trustee shall be entitled to rely on the latest such
certificate of incumbency filed with it. The Trustee, the Corporation and their respective
directors, officers, employees, shareholders and agents shall not be liable to anmy
Unitholders, annuitants or other persons and shall each be fully protected from Hability in
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acting upon any mstrument, certificate or paper believed by it to be genuine and signed or
presented by the proper person or persons. For greater cerfainty, in discharging any
duties ascribed to it hereunder, the Trustee shall be entitled to rely upon the statements,
advice or opinions referred to in Subsection 12.1{c).

12.5 Conditions Precedent to Trustee's Obligations to Act

The obligation of the Trustee to: (i) commence to wind up the affairs of the Trust pursuant to
Section 11.2; (if) commence or continue any act, action or proceeding for the purpose of enforcing the
rights of the Trustee, the Fund and of the Unitholders; or (iii) undertake any of those matters referred to in
Subsection 8.2(aa) or Section 10.2, shall be conditional upon the Corporation or Unitholders furnishing,
when required by notice in writing by the Trustee, sufficient funds to commence or continue such act,
action or proceeding and an indemnity (to the extent sufficient funds for such purpose are not available in
the Fund) satisfactory to the Trustee, acting reasconably, to protect and hold harmless the Trustee against
the costs, charges and expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein and any loss and damage the Trustee
may suffer by reason thereof. None of the provisions contained in this Trust Indenture shall require the
Trustee to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur financial Liability in the performance of any of
its duties or in the exercise of amy of its rights or powers umless indemnified as aforesaid

ARTICLE 13
RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION TO THE CORPORATION

13.1  Delegation Pérmitted to the Corporation
Except as expressly prohibited by law, the Trustee may grant or delegate separately to the

Corporation such authority and such powers as the Trustee may in its sole discretion deem necessary or
desirable to carry out and effect the actual administration of the duties of the Trustee under this Trust

Indenture,withoutregard-to-whether-such-autherity-is-normally-granted-or-delegated-by—trustees—In

addition to those matters specifically granted, allocated or delegated to the Corporation in this Trust
Indenture, the Trustee may, subject to Section 8.7, enter infto any other contract with the Corporation
relating to the Trustee's delegation of its duties hereunder to the Corporation, and pertaining to the
Corporation's authority, term of appointment, compensation and any other matters decmed desmable by
the Trustee.

13.2  Responsibilities of the Corporation

Notwithstanding the powers and responsibilities conferred upon the Trustee in this Trust
Indenture, the Corporation shall have broad discretion fo be responsible for the general administration and
management of the day-to-day affairs and operations of the Fund. Subject to and in accordance with the
terms, conditions and limitations herein contained, and in addition to those other responsibilitics, duties
and obligations that are granted, allocated ar delegated to the Corporation herein, the Corporation shall
provide and perform, or procure from third parties, all general adwinistrative and support services (other
than those set forth in Scction 13.3) as may be required or advisable, from time to time, in order to
administer the business, affairs and operations of the Fund, including the following services:

(a) all matters relating to Offerings (including the Initial Offering) or repurchases of Trust
Units or Other Fund Securities (including the Special Voting Rights), including te ensure
compliance with all terms and regulations applicable thereto, to prepare and approve any

* prospectus, registration statement, offering memorandum, circular, underwriting
agreement or comparable documents of the Fund to effect the sale of any such securities,
and to enter into any agreernent or instrument in connection therewith, and such other
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(e)
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(&)
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agreements or instruments may provide for any matter determined by the Corporation to

be necessary or useful including provisions pertaining to securities certificates (form,

mamner of execution and certification), maintenance of registers, use of book-based
versus certificated system, repurchases, rederoptions and transfers;

"to make or cause to be made application for the listing or quotation on any stock

cxchange or market of any Trust Units or Other Fund Securities, and to do all things
which in the opinion of the Corporation may be necessary or desirable to effect or
maintain such listing or listings or quotation;

undertaking all matters in connection with the issue, sale or pledge of debt cbligations or
guarantees of the Pund, whether secured or unsecured, including establishing credit
facilities or other borrowing arrangements, as required, and prepare and approve any
documents in connection therewith;

the responsibility, on behalf of the Fund, for all matters concerning the terms, execution
and amendment from time to time of the terms of any promissory notes or any agreement
or indenture relating to such notes issued to the Fund, and any royalty agreement to
which the Fund is or may be a party, as well as other documents contemplated in Section
13.7;

vote any securities held by the Fund (including the CT Units and the Corporation Shares)
which carry voting rights, subject to the restrictions contained in Section 8.7,

acquire or form any direct or indirect subsidiaries of the Fund and make any investments
i, loans with or royalty or other agreements entered into by the Fund with any such
subsidiary; . .

undertaking all matters in connection with any take-over bid, merger, amalgamation,
arrangement, reorganization, recapitalization, purchase, repurchase or sale of any
securities or assets of any person or the Fund, any business combination or any similar
transaction involving the Fund (the foregoing individually referred to as a "Transaction”
and collectively as the "Transactions™}, including, without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the right, power and authority to:

@ issue news releases and ensure compliance by the Fund with its continuous
disclosure obligations under all applicable securities legislation;

1)) approve and implement any unitholder rights plan either prior to or during the
course of a Transaction;

(iif)  consider the terms of, and make any recommendations to Unitholders regarding,
any Transaction;

(iv)  take any legally permitted action in the context of a Transécﬁon, including
prosecuting or defending any regulatory or court action,

v) prepare and send to Unitholders or other persons, as appropriate, and approve ail
take-over bid circulars, directors’ circulars and information circulars, and
amendments thereto, required under applicable securities legislation in respect of
any Transaction;

TN
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(vi)  call and hold, and prepare and approve all materials (including notices of
meetings and information circulars) in respect of, all special meetings of
Unitholders required in connection with any Transaction; and

(vii) make all determinations, enter all agreements, prepare all docwments and take all
other actions with respect to any Transaction which it may deterrmne to be
necessary, expedient, desirable or advisable for the best interests of the Fund and
the Unitholders, and so as to comply with all applicable laws;

determine the amount of Distributable Cash Flow, Income of the Fund, Net Realized
Capital Gains, Redemption Income and Redemption Gains pursuant to Article 5, and
cornpute, determine, approve and direct the Trustee to make distributions to Unitholders
which are properly payable by the Fund and, in connection therewith, withhold (or direct
the Trustee to withhald) all amounts required by applicable law, and make all such
remittances and filings (or direct the Trustee to make all such remittances and filings) in
connection with such withholdings;

prepare all returns, filings and documents and make all determinations necessary for the
discharge of the Trustee's obligations under Article 15;

prepare and approve (and execute on behalf of the Fund, where required) the annual
audited and interim wnaudited financial statements and management's discussion and
analysis of the Fund, as well as relevant tax information, which are to be provided to
Unitholders;

perform all of the duties and responsibilities of the Trustee contemplated by Article 6,

approve the. Fund's annual information forms,.material —change -reports;,—business

{m)

(o)

(0
®)

@
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acquisition reports and any other document or material that a board of directors of a
reporting issuer may be required to approve under applicable securities laws, that may be
inclnded or incorporated by reference in a prospectus or similar document of the Fund or
that may be prescribed by applicable law, -

prepare, execnfe and file all income tax returns and filings within tbe time required by
applicable tax laws;

ensure compliance by the Fund with all applicable laws, including securities laws, and
prepare and provide to Unitholders on a timely basis all information to which Unitholders
are entitled hereunder and under applicable Jaws, including quarterty and annual reports,
notices, financial reports and tax information relating to the Fund;

provide investor relations services to the Fund;

prepare and cause {o be provided either to the Trustee for distribution to the Unitholders
or to Unitholders, as the case may be, all information to which Unitholders are entitled
under this Trust Indenture and under applicable laws;

call and hold all ammual and/or special meetings of Unitholders pursuant to Article 10,
and prepare, approve and arrange for the distribution of all materials (including notices of
meetings and information circulars) in respect thereof;
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(n undertake and perform all acts, duties and responsibilities in connection with, acquiring
or disposing of assets end property, for and on behalf of the Fund, of whatsoever nature
or kind;

(s) undertake and perform all acts, duties and responsibilities as considered necessary or
desirable for the purpose of completing the Initial Offering;

(t) undertake all matters relating to ensuring that the Fund continues to qualify as a "nmtual
fimd trust” under the Income Tax Act, including all decisions relating to any remedial
action if the Corporation determines the level of beneficial ownership by non-residents
mst be reduced in order for the Fund to qualify as & "mutual fund trust";

(u) take all actions as the Trustee may request or which are necessary to effect the
tmplementation and carrying out of the Trustee's powers and responsibilities described in
Section 8.2; and

W) generally provide all other services as may be necessary, or as requested by the Trustee,
for the administration of the Fund and which are not otherwise expressly granted,
allocated or delegated to the Corporation under the terms of this Trust Indenture
(including the foregoing Subsections 13.2(a) to 13.2(u)), excluding, however, any of
those matters which are referred to in Section 13.3.

Upon the tequest of the Corporation, the Trustee shall notify such parties as requested by the
Corporation of the Indenture Conferred Dutics conferred upon, granted, allocated or delegated to the
Corporation under this Trust Indenture and shall execute all directions and other instruments as may be
necessary to evidence, document ar otherwise give effect to the Corporation's anthority under this Trust
Indenture.

For further certainty, the Corporation is under no obligation to consult with, seek advice from, or
otherwise commmumicate with any person whomsoever (including the Trustee} pertaining to the
performance and discharge of the Indenture Conferred Dutices, or atherwise.

13.3  Services for which the Corporation is not Responsible

Notwithstanding any provision herein contained, the right and obligation of the Corporation to
perform or procure all general administrative and support services as may be required or advisable, from
time to time, in order to administer the business, affairs and operations of the Fund (as more particularly
set forth in Section 13.2) shall not be construed to derogate from the position of the Trustee, as the sole
trustee of the Fund, holding the legal ownership of the Fund Property in its name for the benefit of the
Unitholders and, without limitation the foregoing, shall not be construed to include or be deemed to
include the delegation by the Trustee of its rights, powers, authorities and duties to act on behalf of the
Fund and be responsible for: :

(a) the issue, certification, exchange or cancellation of Trust Units;

) making the distribution of payments or property to Unitholders and maintaining records
and providing statements in respect thereof;

(©) any mailings to Unitholders of materials directed by the Corporation to be so mailed; and
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(d) amy matters ancillary or incidental to anj,lz of those set forth in Subsections 13.3(a) to
13.3(c). . :

13.4  Covenants of the Corporation

The Corporation covenants and agrees that, in the pérformance of the Indenture Conferred Duties,
it shall:

(@) perform all such services at all times in compliance with applicable laws;

(b} observe and perform or cause to be observed and performed on. behalf of the Fund, in
every material respect, the provisions of: (i) all agreements from time to time entered into
by the Fund in connection with its activities; and (ii) all applicable laws;

(© not commingle its own ﬁnds with auy fimds held by it on behalf of the Fund,

(d) maintain proper books, records and documents in which complete, true and correct
entries in conformity, in all material respects, with generally accepted accounting
principles and all requirements of applicable laws will be made in respect of the
-performance of the Corporation's services under this Trust Indenture, and all such books
and records shall be maintained at thé Corporation's head office in the Province of
Alberta; and

(&) upon reasonable prior notice by the Fund to the Corporation, the Corporation shall make
available to the Trustee and its authorized representatives, for examination during normal
business hours on a Business Day, all books, records and documents required to be
maintained under Subsection 13.4(d), wherever nuintained. In addition, the Corporation
shall make available to the Trustee and its authorized representatives such financial and

operating data and other information in respect of the performance of the Corporation's
services under this Trust Indenture as may be in existence and as the Trustee and ifs
authorized representatives shall from time to time reasonably request, including for the
purposes of conducting any audit in respect of expenses of the Fund or other matters
necessary or advisable to be audited in order for the Trustee to conduct an audit of the
financial affairs of the Fund. Any examination of records at the Corporation’s head office
shall be conducted in a manner which will not unduly interfere with the conduct of the
business of the Corporation.

13.5 Grant of Power and Authority to Corporation

The Corporation is hereby granted, allocated and, where applicable, delegated full and absolute
right, power and authority to undertake, perform and provide, for and on behalf of the Fund, all of the
Indenture Conferred Duties and to take and do, for and on behalf of the Fund, in connection with the
provision of all such Indenture Conferred Duties, all such actions and all such things which the
Corporation deems appropriate, in its sole discretion, including the right, power and authority to retain
and instruct such appropriate experts or advisors to perform those duties and obligations granted to the
Corporation which it is not qualified to perform, to execute and deliver contracts, leases, licenses, and
other documents, instruments and agreements, to make all applications and filings with Governmental
Authorities, and to take such other actions as the Corporation considers appropriate, in the name of and on
behalf of the Fund.
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13.6  Determinations of the Corporation Binding

All determinations of the Corporation which are made in good faith with respect to any Indenture
Conferred Dutics relating to the Fund, including whether any particular investment or disposition meets
the requirements of this Trust Indenture, shall be final and conclusive and shall be binding upon the Fund
and all Unitholders (and, where the Unitholder is a registered retirement savings plan, registered
retirement income fund, registered education savings plan, deferred profit sharing plan or registered
pension fund or plan as defined in the Income Tax Act, or such other fund or plan registered under the
Income Tax Act, upon past, present or futnre fund or plan beneficiaries and fund or plan holders), and

. Trust Units shall be issued and sold on the condition and understanding that amy and all such
determinations shall be binding as aforesaid.

13.7 Execution of Documents

In carrying out the Indenture Conferred Duties, the Corporation may execute and deliver, in the
name of and for and on behalf of the Fund, all agreements, certificates, deeds, instruments, waivers,
releases or other documents pertaining to the Fund which the Corporation considers appropriate, in its
sole discretion, and in doing so the Corporation shall be designated as the "Administrator” of the Fund
Any such instrument or documuent shall be executed in the following roanner:

ALTER NRG INCOME FUND
By its Administrator, Alter Nrg Ltd.

Per:

Authorized Signatory
and provide for such signatures as may be required by apphicable laws and the by-laws of the Corporation.
13.8  Expense Reimbursement

The Corporation shall act as the Fund's agent and pay any costs and expe